
01107.0001/748302.1  DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  

ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0  ◼  PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5  ◼  BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0  ◼  FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3  ◼  RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0  ◼  POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3  ◼  PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

CITY COUNCIL 

Lori Wilson, Mayor 

Alma Hernandez, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Jane Day 

Michael J. Hudson 

Wanda Williams 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 

Every Month 

A G E N D A 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2022 

5:30 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, subdivision (b), and in accordance with the provisions of SB 361 

(2021), the following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting includes teleconference participation 

by: Council/Board Members Jane Day, Michael Hudson, Wanda Williams, Mayor Pro Tem Alma Hernandez, and 

Mayor/Chair Lori Wilson. Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 

94585. 

THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH REQUIRES MASKING FOR ALL INDOOR PUBLIC 

SETTINGS. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE REQUIRED TO WEAR FACE MASKS WHILE IN CITY 

FACILITIES, IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU.  

DUE TO CORONAVIRUS COVID-19 CITY HALL IS CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC, RESIDENTS MAY 

 ATTEND THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING VIA THE APPLICATION, ZOOM.  

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION: 

WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID:  896 2644 0732 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 4pm) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 

ROLL CALL 

Council Members 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION 
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers/Boardmembers should be 

identified at this time.) 

https://zoom.us/join
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


February 15, 2022 City Council Page 2 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 

California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 

Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 

City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 

period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 

future agenda.) 

CLOSED SESSION 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54950 the Suisun City Council will hold a Closed 

Session for the purpose of: 

1. PERSONNEL MATTERS

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957(b)(1) et seq. the Suisun City Council

will hold a Closed Session for the purpose of Public Employee Performance Evaluation: City

Manager

2. Conference with Legal Counsel - Significant Exposure to Litigation (1 potential case)

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)

CONVENE OPEN SESSION 

Announcement of Actions Taken, if any, in Closed Session. 

ADJOURNMENT 

A complete packet of information containing staff reports and exhibits related to each item for the open session of this meeting, 

and provided to the City Council, are available for public review at least 72 hours prior to a Council /Agency/Authority Meeting at 

Suisun City Hall 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City. Agenda related writings or documents provided to a majority of the 

Council/Board/Commissioners less than 72 hours prior to a Council/Agency/Authority meeting related to an agenda item for the 

open session of this meeting will be made available for public inspection during normal business hours. An agenda packet is also 

located at the entrance to the Council Chambers during the meeting for public review. The City may charge photocopying charges 

for requested copies of such documents. Assistive listening devices may be obtained at the meeting 
PLEASE NOTE: 

1. The City Council/Agency/Authority hopes to conclude its public business by 10:00 P.M. Ordinarily, no new items will be taken up after the 
10:00 P.M. cutoff and any items remaining will be agendized for the next meeting. The agendas have been prepared with the hope that all 

items scheduled will be discussed within the time allowed.

2. Suisun City is committed to providing full access to these proceedings; individuals with special needs may call 421-7300. 
3. Agendas are posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular meetings at Suisun City Hall, 701 Civic Center Boulevard, Suisun City, CA. 

Agendas may be posted at other Suisun City locations including:

• Suisun City Fire Station, 621 Pintail Drive, Suisun City, CA;

• Suisun City Senior Center, 318 Merganser Drive, Suisun City, CA;

• Joe Nelson Center, 611 Village Drive, Suisun City, CA;

• Harbor Master Office, 800 Kellogg Street, Suisun City, CA.

I, Donna Pock, Deputy City Clerk for the City of Suisun City, declare under penalty of perjury that the above agenda for the meeting of February 

15, 2022 was posted and available for review, in compliance with the Brown Act.



DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  

ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0  ◼  PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5  ◼  BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0  ◼  FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3  ◼  RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0  ◼  POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3  ◼  PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

CITY COUNCIL 

Lori Wilson, Mayor 

Alma Hernandez, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Jane Day 

Michael J. Hudson 

Wanda Williams 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 

Every Month 
, 

A G E N D A 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY, 

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2022 

6:30 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, subdivision (b), and in accordance with the provisions of SB 361 

(2021), the following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting includes teleconference participation 

by: Council/Board Members Jane Day, Michael Hudson, Wanda Williams, Mayor Pro Tem Alma Hernandez, and 

Mayor/Chair Lori Wilson. Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 

94585. 

THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH REQUIRES MASKING FOR ALL INDOOR PUBLIC 

SETTINGS.  MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE REQUIRED TO WEAR FACE MASKS WHILE IN CITY 

FACILITIES, IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU.  

DUE TO CORONAVIRUS COVID-19 CITY HALL IS CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC, RESIDENTS MAY 

 ATTEND THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING VIA THE APPLICATION, ZOOM.  

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION: 

WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID:   841 8879 3577  
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6 PM) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 

(Next Ord. No. – 791) 

 (Next City Council Res. No. 2022 – 14) 

Next Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency Res. No. SA2022 - 01) 

 (Next Housing Authority Res. No. HA2022 – 01) 

https://zoom.us/join
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


February 15, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 2 

ROLL CALL 

Council / Board Members 

Pledge of Allegiance  

Invocation  

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION 
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers should be 

identified at this time.) 

REPORTS:  (Informational items only) 

1. City Manager/Executive Director/Staff

PRESENTATION/APPOINTMENTS 
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments). 

City Council 

2. Mayoral Appointments – (Wilson:  lwilson@suisun.com).

a. Appointment of Solano Transportation Authority Alternate

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion. 

City Council 

3. Council Consideration and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 2022-__:  A Resolution of

the City Council of the City of Suisun City proclaiming a local emergency persists and

authorizing the use of remote teleconference meeting procedures by the City’s legislative

bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) et seq., through March 16, 2022 –

(Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com).

4. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-____: Authorizing the Recreation, Parks, and Marina

(RPM) Department Director to Apply for California Drought, Water, Parks, Climate, Coastal

Protection, and Outdoor Access for All Act of 2018- Rural Recreation and Tourism (RRT)

Program Grant Funds – (Lofthus: klofthus@suisun.com).

5. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-__:  Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into a

Construction Contract on the City’s Behalf with Consolidated Engineering, Inc. for the Suisun

Marina Dock Box Replacement Project and Authorize up to $34,786.00 for Contingencies and

Staff Time in Administering the Construction Contract and Performing Construction Inspections

– (Lofthus: klofthus@suisun.com).

6. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___:   Authorizing the City Manager to sign an

agreement with Medic Ambulance Service, Inc., for billing services for the City of Suisun City

First Responder Fee – (Renucci: grenucci@suisun.com).

7. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-__:  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Purchase Agreement with Golden State Fire Apparatus for a Skeeter Brush Truck LLC Type

5 Wildland Engine and Authorizing the City Manager to Approve the Cost for Upfitting of the

Type 5 in an Amount up to $120,000 – (Renucci: grenucci@suisun.com).

8. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-__:   Adopting a List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2022-

23 Funded by SB 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 – (Vue: nvue@suisun.com).

mailto:lwilson@suisun.com
mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:klofthus@suisun.com
mailto:klofthus@suisun.com
mailto:grenucci@suisun.com
mailto:grenucci@suisun.com
mailto:nvue@suisun.com


February 15, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 3 

9. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-__; Establishing a List of Qualified Environmental

Consultants for Development Projects and Capital Improvement Projects – (Bermudez:

jbermudez@suisun.com).

10. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-__:  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the

Contract with Tyler Technologies for the Purchase and Implementation of Tyler Technologies

system Software as a Service (SaaS) – (Deol: ldeol@suisun.com).

11. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-__:  Authorizing the City Manager to purchase two

StarWind SANs (Storage Area Network) Information Technology Servers: one for the Police

Department and one for City Hall – (Deol: ldeol@suisun.com).

12. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-____: Amending the Council Norms and Procedures

Manual – (Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com).

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency / Housing Authority 

13. Council/Agency/Authority Accept the Investment Report for the Quarter Ending December

31, 2021 – (Deol:  ldeol@suisun.com).

14. Council/Agency/Authority Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and/or Special Meetings of

the Suisun City Council, Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency, and Housing

Authority held on February 1, 2022 - (Skinner: askinner@suisun.com).

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency 

15. Council/Agency Approval of January 2022 Payroll Warrants in the Amount of $664,652.25,

and Council/Agency Approval of the January 2022 Accounts Payable Warrants in the Amount

of $773,920.19 – (Finance).

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 

California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 

Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 

City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 

period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 

future agenda.) 

PUBLIC HEARING  

City Council 

16. HEARING

Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___:  Placing Liens for Unpaid Waste Collection

Service Charges on Certain Lands Situated in the City of Suisun City, County of Solano, State

of California – (Deol: ldeol@suisun.com).

17. Council Decision to Implement a Major Service Change to Fairfield and Suisun Transit Fixed

Route Services within Suisun City effective April 1, 2022 – (Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com).

mailto:jbermudez@suisun.com
mailto:ldeol@suisun.com
mailto:ldeol@suisun.com
mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:ldeol@suisun.com
mailto:askinner@suisun.com
mailto:ldeol@suisun.com
mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com


February 15, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 4 

GENERAL BUSINESS  

City Council 

18. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___:  Authorizing the City Manager to execute the

First Amendment to the Granicus Service Agreement between Granicus, LLC and Suisun City –

(Deol: ldeol@suisun.com).

REPORTS:  (Informational items only) 

19. Council Updates

a. Council/Boardmembers

b. Mayor

20. Non-Discussion Items

ADJOURNMENT 

A complete packet of information containing staff reports and exhibits related to each item for the open session of this meeting, 

and provided to the City Council, are available for public review at least 72 hours prior to a Council /Agency/Authority Meeting at 

Suisun City Hall 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City.  Agenda related writings or documents provided to a majority of the 

Council/Board/Commissioners less than 72 hours prior to a Council/Agency/Authority meeting related to an agenda item for the 

open session of this meeting will be made available for public inspection during normal business hours.  An agenda packet is also 

located at the entrance to the Council Chambers during the meeting for public review.  The City may charge photocopying charges 

for requested copies of such documents.  Assistive listening devices may be obtained at the meeting 

PLEASE NOTE: 

1. The City Council/Agency/Authority hopes to conclude its public business by 10:00 P.M.  Ordinarily, no new items will be

taken up after the 10:00 P.M. cutoff and any items remaining will be agendized for the next meeting.  The agendas have been

prepared with the hope that all items scheduled will be discussed within the time allowed.

2. Suisun City is committed to providing full access to these proceedings; individuals with special needs may call 421-7300.

3. Agendas are posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular meetings at Suisun City Hall, 701 Civic Center Boulevard, Suisun

City, CA.  Agendas may be posted at other Suisun City locations including:

• Suisun City Fire Station, 621 Pintail Drive, Suisun City, CA;

• Suisun City Senior Center, 318 Merganser Drive, Suisun City, CA;

• Joe Nelson Center, 611 Village Drive, Suisun City, CA;

• Harbor Master Office, 800 Kellogg Street, Suisun City, CA.

I, Donna Pock, Deputy City Clerk for the City of Suisun City, declare under penalty of perjury that the above agenda for the meeting 

of February 15, 2022 was posted and available for review, in compliance with the Brown Act. 

mailto:ldeol@suisun.com


PREPARED/APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE: February 15, 2022 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Consideration and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 2022-__: A 

Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City proclaiming a local emergency persists 

and authorizing the use of remote teleconference meeting procedures by the City’s legislative 

bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) et seq., through March 16, 2022. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Provide Good Governance 

BACKGROUND:   A number of laws have changed since the beginning of the COVID pandemic 

related to the Brown Act as it relates to teleconferenced public meetings, both from Governor 

Newsom’s Executive Orders and recently from the enactment of Assembly Bill 361, which took 

effect October 1, 2021, allowing continued remote teleconference meetings without traditional 

Brown Act compliance, provided certain findings can be made related to the ongoing state of 

emergency and subject to adherence to certain new noticing and public participation requirements.  

The City, as all public agencies in California, must now invoke and adhere to AB 361 and its 

modifications on certain elements of remote public meetings, or else revert to traditional Brown 

Act compliance. The major change associated with continuing remote meetings under AB 361 is 

that the public must now be allowed to make comments in real-time during the public comment 

period, either telephonically or electronically (such as by Zoom). No physical location for public 

comment need be provided.  

The other major change is that all public agencies, if they want to continue to conduct public 

meetings remotely, must adopt a resolution every 30 days making the findings of necessity to do so 

and affirming the measures in place to allow remote public comments by the public. 

On October 19, 2021 the City of Suisun City passed a resolution proclaiming that a local 

emergency persists and authorizing the transition to use of remote teleconference meeting 

procedures by City’s the legislative bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) 

et seq., for the initial period of October 19, 2021 through November 18, 2021. 

STAFF REPORT:  This is a recurring resolution, after 30 days following the initial invocation of 

AB 361, continued reliance on AB 361 for subsequent meetings requires the following: 

1. Either the “state of emergency” must remain active,  or state or local officials have imposed

or recommended measures to promote social distancing; and

2. No later than 30 days after teleconferencing for the first time under AB 361 rules, and

every 30 days thereafter, the legislative body, by majority vote, finds that it has

reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency and at least one of the following

circumstances exist:

Item 3

1



o The state of emergency continues to impact the ability of the members to meet

safely in person; or

o State or local officials continue to impose recommended measures to promote

social distancing

Continued reliance on AB 361 will require adoption of a new resolution making the required 

findings every 30 days. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 

2021- ____: A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City proclaiming a local 

emergency persists and authorizing the transition to use of remote teleconference meeting 

procedures by City’s the legislative bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) 

et seq., through March 16, 2022. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 2022-___ A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City

proclaiming a local emergency persists and authorizing the transition to use of remote

teleconference meeting procedures by City’s the legislative bodies, as authorized by

government code section 54953(e) et seq., through March 16, 2022.

Item 3

2



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN 

CITY PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY PERSISTS AND 

AUTHORIZING THE TRANSITION TO USE OF REMOTE 

TELECONFERENCE MEETING PROCEDURES BY CITY’S THE 

LEGISLATIVE BODIES, AS AUTHORIZED BY GOVERNMENT 

CODE SECTION 54953(E) ET SEQ., THROUGH MARCH 16, 2022 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Suisun City is committed to preserving 

and nurturing public access, transparency, observation and participation in its meetings and 

the meetings of each of its legislative bodies; and  

WHEREAS, all meetings of the City’s legislative bodies are open and public, as 

required by the Ralph M. Brown Act, codified as Government Code sections 54950 et seq., so 

that any member of the public may attend, participate, and observe the City’s legislative 

bodies conduct their business; and 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, as amended by Assembly Bill 361 (2021), amending 

Government Code section 54953(e) et seq., allows for remote teleconferencing observation 

and participation in meetings by members of a legislative body and members of the public, 

without compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject 

to the existence of certain conditions; and 

WHEREAS, the initial required condition is a declaration of a state of emergency by 

the Governor pursuant to the California Emergency Services Act, Government Code section 

8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of 

persons and property within the state and within the boundaries of the City, as provided in 

Government Code section 8558; and  

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, pursuant to Government Code Section 8625, 

Governor Newsom declared the existence of a state of emergency for the State of California, 

in response to the outbreak of respiratory illness due to a novel coronavirus (a disease now 

known as COVID-19); and 

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2020, the City’s Director of Emergency Services declared 

a local emergency for the City pursuant to Chapter 2.32 of the Suisun City Municipal Code, 

finding that conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property have arisen 

within the City as a result of the COVID-19 virus and that these conditions are or are likely to 

be beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the City; and  

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2020-40, 

ratifying the Director of Emergency Services’ declaration of local emergency; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 54953(e) further requires that state or local 

officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; or, the 

legislative body of the City finds that meeting in person would present imminent risk to the 

health and safety of attendees; and  

Item 3 
Attachment 1

3



Resolution No. 2022- 

Adopted  

Page 2 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds that such emergency conditions now exist in 

the City, such that meeting in person for the meetings of the legislative bodies of the City 

would present imminent risk to the health and safety of attendees as a result of the increased 

risk of the spread of the COVID-19 virus among those in attendance; and 

WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds that the state of emergency due to the COVID-

19 virus and the conditions related thereto has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions 

of extreme peril to the safety of persons within the City that are likely to be beyond the 

control of services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the City, and thereby affirms, 

authorizes, and proclaims that the existence of a local emergency persists throughout the City, 

and ratifies the proclamation of state of emergency by the Governor of the State of California; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds that, as a consequence of the existing local 

emergency, the legislative bodies of the City shall conduct their meetings without compliance 

with Government Code section 54953(b)(3), and shall instead comply with the remote 

teleconference meeting requirements as authorized by Government Code section 54953(e) et 

seq.; and   

WHEREAS, the Council affirms that it will allow for observation and participation by 

Councilmembers and the public by allowing limited in-person attendance, as well as allowing 

public participation and comment in real time via Zoom or by telephone, in an effort to 

protect the constitutional and statutory rights of all attendees.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

FINDS, RESOLVES, AND ORDERS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated herein 

Resolution by reference. 

Section 2. The Council hereby recognizes and affirms the existence and conditions of 

a state of emergency as proclaimed by the Governor, the existence of emergency conditions in 

the City, and affirms, authorizes, and proclaims that the existence of a local emergency 

persists throughout the City. 

Section 3. The Council hereby ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s 

Proclamation of State of Emergency, effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2020. 

Section 4. Further, the Council finds that holding the meetings of the City’s legislative 

bodies in person with no limitations to attendance would present imminent risk to the health 

and safety of attendees as a result of the increased risk of the spread of the COVID-19 virus 

among those in attendance, as required by Government Code section 54953(e) et seq. 

Section 5. The City Manager and legislative bodies of the City are hereby authorized 

and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution 

including, conducting open and public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 

54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 

Item 3 
Attachment 1

4



Resolution No. 2022- 

Adopted  

Page 3 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Section 6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and shall be 

effective until the earlier of (i) March 16, 2022, or (ii) such time the Council adopts a 

subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e)(3) to extend the 

time during which the legislative bodies of the City may continue to teleconference without 

compliance with Government Code section 54953(b)(3). 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on February 15, 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members: 

NOES: Council Members: 

ABSENT: Council Members: 

ABSTAIN: Council Members: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of February 2022. 

_________________________________ 

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

Item 3 
Attachment 1

5



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

6



PREPARED BY: Marvin Mora, Recreation Supervisor 

REVIEWED BY: Kris Lofthus, Recreation, Parks, and Marina Director 

APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  February 15, 2022 

CITY AGENDA ITEM: Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-____: Authorizing the 

Recreation, Parks, and Marina (RPM) Department Director to Apply for California Drought, Water, 

Parks, Climate, Coastal Protection, and Outdoor Access for All Act of 2018- Rural Recreation and 

Tourism (RRT) Program Grant Funds. 

FISCAL IMPACT: If awarded the maximum amount the RRT Grant will require a 20% match, 

estimated at $627,000.  The grant award will also have a positive impact on the Montebello Vista 

Lighting and Landscaping Municipal Assessment fund.  The 20% match would be paid through the 

Park Development Fund that currently has a balance of $500,000 with anticipated revenues in the 

next 18 months. 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance and Enhance Environment.  

BACKGROUND: The Montebello Vista Lighting and Landscape Maintenance Assessment 

District does not generate sufficient revenue to cover expenses related to the maintenance of 

Montebello Vista Park, streetlight electricity/maintenance, and Walters Road entrance and median 

maintenance. During FY 2014-15, a group of neighbors asked the City Council to lend the District 

funding to hire a consultant to facilitate a process to put the District on a sound fiscal footing. As 

a result of the consultant’s work, a District-wide vote was held to 1) expand the district to include 

all homes that benefit from the amenities maintained by the District; 2) increase the assessment to 

cover the actual current costs associated with the desired level of service; and 3) add an annual 

inflation factor to the annual assessment to help the District revenues keep pace with inflation. The 

votes were counted at the July 7, 2015, City Council meeting and the changes were not approved. 

Currently, the Assessment District Fund is in the negative by more than $50,000. 

RRT Program Grants are intended to create new recreation features in support of economic, 

tourism, and other health related goals.  Competitive applications will improve the health of 

residents and attract out-of-town visitors.  To identify as “rural,” the project site must be in a county 

with a population below 500,000 people and in a city/town that has a population below 50,000.  

The project focusing on the revitalization of Montebello Vista Park fits that description.  Because 

the median income around Montebello Vista Park $56,982, there is a 20% match requirement.  The 

maximum grant amount $3,000,000 per application. 

STAFF REPORT: The City has an interest in helping reduce the maintenance costs at Montebello 

Vista Park, while adding enhancements that provide more recreation opportunities and provide the 

possibility of revenue. Revenue can be used to offset maintenance costs and to provide for future 

maintenance needs. The total estimate for this project is $3,135,000, with the grant application 

Item 4

7



requesting $2,508,000 and the required 20% City match of $627,000.  Elements included in the grant 

proposal include artificial turf sports field that will accommodate soccer, football, baseball, and 

softball, covered picnic pavilion, updated low water landscaping, updated walking path, new 

bathroom and concession facility, large concrete pad for portable skate park and a recirculating splash 

pad.   

The Recreation, Parks, and Marina (RPM) Department submitted an application for Statewide Park 

Development Community Revitalization Program Round 4 Grant Funds in 2021 but was not awarded. 

In follow-up meetings with the CA Department of Parks and Recreation, the RPM Department was 

encouraged to revise its application for the Montebello Vista Park Revitalization Project and submit 

for consideration RRT Grant program.     

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council Adopt Resolution No. 2022- 

___: Authorizing the Recreation, Parks, and Marina (RPM) Department Director to Apply for 

California Drought, Water, Parks, Climate, Coastal Protection, and Outdoor Access for All Act of 

2018- Rural Recreation and Tourism (RRT) Program Grant Funds. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Resolution No. 2022-___: Authorizing the Recreation, Parks, and Marina (RPM)

Department Director to Apply for California Drought, Water, Parks, Climate, Coastal

Protection, and Outdoor Access for All Act of 2018 - Rural Recreation and Tourism (RRT)

Program Grant Funds.

Item 4

8



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY, 

CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE RECREATION, PARKS, AND MARINA (RPM) 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR TO APPLY FOR CALIFORNIA DROUGHT, WATER, 

PARKS, CLIMATE, COASTAL PROTECTION, AND OUTDOOR ACCESS FOR ALL 

ACT OF 2018 – RURAL RECREATION AND TOURISM (RRT) PROGRAM GRANT 

FUNDS  

WHEREAS, the State Department of Parks and Recreation has been delegated the 

responsibility by the Legislature of the State of California for the administration of the Rural 

Recreation and Tourism Grant Program, setting up necessary procedures governing the 

application; and 

WHEREAS, said procedures established by the State Department of Parks and 

Recreation require the Applicant to certify by resolution the approval of the application before 

submission of said application to the State; and 

WHEREAS, successful Applicants will enter into a contract with the State of California 

to complete the Grant Scope project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The City Council authorizes the Recreation, 

Parks, and Marina Director to file an application for the Montebello Vista Park Revitalization 

Project   on behalf of the City of Suisun City, a public entity established under the laws of the State 

of California; and  

1. Certifies that said Applicant has or will have available, prior to commencement of

any work on the project included in this application, the sufficient funds to complete the project; 

and  

2. Certifies that if the project is awarded, the Applicant has or will have sufficient funds

to operate and maintain the project, and 

3. Certifies that the Applicant has reviewed, understands, and agrees to the General

Provisions contained in the contract shown in the Grant Administration Guide; and 

4. Delegates the authority to (designated position) to conduct all negotiations, sign and

submit all documents, including, but not limited to applications, agreements, amendments, and 

payment requests, which may be necessary for the completion of the Grant Scope; and  

5. Agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules,

regulations and guidelines. 

6. Will consider promoting inclusion per Public Resources Code §80001(b)(8 A-G).

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Suisun 

City duly held on Tuesday, the 15th day of February 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members: 

NOES: Council Members: 

ABSENT: Council Members: 

ABSTAIN: Council Members: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of February 2022. 

Anita Skinner, City Clerk 

Item 4 
Attachment 1

9



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

10



PREPARED BY:  Janet Hull, Recreation Manager 

REVIEWED BY: Kris Lofthus, Recreation, Parks, & Marina Director 

APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  February 15, 2022 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Adoption of Council Resolution No. 2022-__:  Authorizing the City 

Manager to Enter into a Construction Contract on the City’s Behalf with Consolidated 

Engineering, Inc. for the Suisun Marina Dock Box Replacement Project and authorize up to 

$34,786.00 for Contingencies and Staff Time in Administering the Construction Contract 

Inspections. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The Suisun Marina Dock Box Replacement Project (Project) will have no 

fiscal impact to the General Fund. Last year the State’s Department of Finance approved City’s 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS), which includes $223,440.00 in FY2021-22 for 

the Project. 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance. 

BACKGROUND: The dock boxes at the marina, which house the electrical and potable water 

lines, in addition to providing storage for each individual slip, are past their life expectancy and are 

in need of replacement. To allow for safe electrical units secured from weather, new dock boxes 

are necessary. In 2020, the marina had several dock boxes replaced during the potable waterline 

replacement project. The remaining 112 dock boxes needing to be replaced will be addressed 

during this project. 

STAFF REPORT:  The construction documents for this Project were advertised in the Daily 

Republic newspaper on January 21, 2022, and again on January 28, 2022.  Bids were opened on 

February 3, 2022, at 2:00 PM, at which time six (6) bids were received.  Staff has reviewed the low 

bidder’s proposal and bid documents.  Staff has determined that the bid submitted by Consolidated 

Engineering, Inc. is the lowest responsive bid.  

The six bids received for the Project are as follows: 

Company Base Bid 

Engineer’s Estimate $223,440.00 

Consolidated Engineering, Inc. $188,654.00 

Geveden Industrial, Inc. $197,288.00 

Eastridge Engineering and Construction  $212,400.00 

Bellingham Marine Industries, Inc. $211,141.00 

Swierstock Enterprise Inc. dba Pro Builders $223,600.00 

Saboo, Inc. $335,000.00 

Given that the construction budget is enough to cover the construction contract for this Project, 

staff recommends awarding the construction contract in the amount of $188,654.00 to 

Consolidated Engineering, Inc. for the Suisun Marina Dock Box Replacement Project.  Staff also 

Item 5

11



recommends approval to utilize the remaining ROPS approved funds of $34,786.00 for 

contingencies and staff time in administering the construction contract and performing construction 

inspections. 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2022-

___:  Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into a Construction Contract on the City’s Behalf with 

Consolidated Engineering, Inc. for the Suisun Marina Dock Box Replacement Project and 

authorize up to $34,786.00 for contingencies and staff time in administering the construction 

contract inspections.  

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2022-__: Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into a Construction

Contract on the City’s Behalf with Consolidated Engineering, Inc. for the Suisun Marina

Dock Box Replacement Project and authorize up to $34,786.00 for contingencies and staff

time in administering the construction contract inspections.

2. Project Location Map.

Item 5

12



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONSTRUCTION 

CONTRACT ON THE CITY’S BEHALF WITH CONSOLIDATED ENGINEERING, 

INC. FOR THE SUISUN MARINA DOCK BOX REPLACEMENT PROJECT AND 

AUTHORIZE UP TO $34,786 FOR CONTINGENCIES AND STAFF TIME IN 

ADMINISTERING THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AND PERFORMING 

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTIONS 

WHEREAS, the dock boxes at the marina which house the electrical and potable water 

lines, in addition to providing storage for each individual slip are past their life expectancy and 

are in need of replacement; and 

WHEREAS, to allow for safe electrical units secured from weather, the need for new 

dock boxes are necessary; and 

WHEREAS, 112 dock boxes needing to be replace will be addressed during this 

project; and 

WHEREAS, in 2021 the State Department of Finance approved the City’s Recognized 

Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS), which includes funding allocation for the replacement of 

the dock box replacement; and 

WHEREAS, the construction documents for the Project were advertised on January 22, 

2022 and January 28, 202 in the Daily Republic newspaper; and 

WHEREAS, six (6) sealed bid proposals were received by the City on February 3, 2022, 

by 2:00 pm, and bids were opened and read aloud; and 

WHEREAS, Consolidated Engineering, Inc., provided the lowest responsive bid of 

$188,654. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Suisun 

City authorizes the City Manager to enter into a construction contract on behalf of the City with 

Consolidated Engineering, Inc. for the Suisun Marina Dock Box Replacement Project in the 

amount of $188,654 and to take any and all necessary and appropriate actions to implement this 

contract.  The City Council further authorizes the City Manager to approve use of the remaining 

ROPS approved funds of $34,786 for contingencies and staff time in administering the 

construction contract and performing construction inspections. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 15th day of February 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers: 

NOES: Councilmembers: 

ABSENT: Councilmembers: 

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of February 2022. 

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

Item 5 
Attachment 1

13



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

14



ATTACHMENT 2 

DOCK BOX LOCATION MAP 

Item 5 
Attachment 2

15



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

16



PREPARED BY:  Greg Renucci, Acting Fire Chief 

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  February 15, 2022 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Adopt Resolution No. 2022-___:   Authorizing the City Manager to sign 

an agreement with Medic Ambulance Service, Inc., for billing services for the City of Suisun City 

First Responder Fee. 

FISCAL IMPACT: AP Triton estimates a cost recovery for emergency medical response of 

$97,318.00 per year. 

STRATEGIC PLAN: Ensure Public Safety – 7. Pursue cost recovery for first-responders’ 

medical calls (insurance policy). 

BACKGROUND:  In July 2021, the City of Suisun City adopted Ordinance No 785 adding 

Chapter 9.32 Emergency Medical Service First Responder Fee to Title 9 Public Peace, Morals and 

Welfare of the Municipal Code, to allow the collection of fees for the cost of providing emergency 

medical services. The cities of Fairfield, Vallejo, Dixon, Benicia adopted similar ordinances in 

2016. 

STAFF REPORT: Medic Ambulance, Inc. provides ambulance service to the cities of Solano 

County excluding Vacaville, who provides their own ambulance services. In the course of regular 

business, Medic Ambulance generates billings for their services. Fairfield, Vallejo, Dixon, and 

Benicia currently utilize Medic Ambulance for bill collections, through a Service Agreement. 

The Service Agreement states that Medic Ambulance will collect the First Responder Fee (currently 

$310.92, Ordinance 785) for the City of Suisun City. The agreement further states, Medic will remit 

to the City the full amount collected via billing services for fire/medical first responder services 

provided by the City, less a processing fee of Forty-seven dollars and Forty Cents ($47.40) for paid 

service.  Should Medic receive an amount less than the full amount billed, Medic will take a prorated 

percentage of amount collected, not to exceed twelve percent (12%). 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2022-___:  

Authorizing the City Manager to sign an agreement with Medic Ambulance Service, Inc., for billing 

services for the City of Suisun City First Responder Fee. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Resolution No. 2022-___:   Authorizing the City Manager to sign an agreement with Medic

Ambulance Service, Inc., for billing services for the City of Suisun City First Responder

Fee.

2. Services Agreement

3. Sample Informational Bills

4. Frequently Asked Questions

Item 6

17



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

18



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF SUISUN CITY AUTHORIZING THE 

CITY MANAGER TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT WITH MEDIC AMBULANCE 

SERVICE, INC., FOR BILLING SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY FIRST 

RESPONDER FEE 

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City adopted Ordinance No adding 785, adding Chapter 

9.32 Emergency Medical Service First Responder Fee to Title 9 Public Peace, Morals and Welfare 
of the Municipal Code, to allow the collection of fees for the cost of providing emergency medical 

services; and 

WHEREAS, Medic Ambulance Services, Inc. (“Medic”) provides ambulance services 

to the City and in the course of business generates billings for said services; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires a billing mechanism for the First Responder Fee, and medic 

currently bills for ambulance fees provided; and 

WHEREAS, the City and Medic have discussed and reached an agreement for Medic to 

provide billing services for the City’s First Responder Fee. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it here resolved by the City Council of Suisun City that 
authorizes the City Manager to sign an agreement with Medic Ambulance Service, Inc., for 
billing services for the City of Suisun City First Responder Fee. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Suisun 

City duly held on Tuesday, the 15th day of February 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers: 

NOES: Councilmembers: 

ABSENT: Councilmembers: 

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of February 2022. 

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

Item 6 
Attachment 1

19



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

20



1 

SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made effective as of __________________, 

2022 (“Effective Date”), by and between MEDIC AMBULANCE SERVICE, INC., a 

California Corporation (“Company”),(dba Fire Billing Services) and City of Suisun City, a 

charter City and municipal corporation (“City”). The Company and City are referred to 

herein individually as a “party” and collectively as the “parties.” 

R E C I T A L S 

WHEREAS, Company engages in the business of performing billing services 

(“Company Services”) for fire departments in connection with first responder services 

performed by department personnel; and 

WHEREAS, City seeks the services of Company to assist with the billing for 

services that City provides in connection with Medical First Responder Services; and 

WHEREAS, Company and City desire to enter into this Agreement to document 

their agreements regarding the Company Services to be provided to City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual representations, warranties 

and covenants set forth herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 

and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Company and City agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 

ENGAGEMENT 

1.1. Engagement: City hereby engages Company to provide the Company 

Services described in Article 4 herein, and City hereby accepts such engagement, all 

on the terms and conditions set forth herein. Company will determine the method, detail 

and means of performing the services detailed below. 

ARTICLE 2 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

2.1. Representations and Warranties of Company: Company hereby 

represents and warrants to City that, at all times during the term of this Agreement, 

Company is a California Corporation, validly existing and in good standing under the 

laws of the State of California. 

2.2. Representations and Warranties of City: City hereby represents and 

warrants to Company that, at all times during the term of this Agreement, City is an 

organized city established pursuant to the laws and ordinances of the state in which City 

is located. 

Item 6 
Attachment 2

21



2 

ARTICLE 3 

COMPANY STATUS AND QUALIFICATIONS 

3.1. Independent Contractor:  Company enters into this Agreement, and will 

remain throughout the term of the Agreement, as an independent contractor.   Company 

agrees that it will not become an employee, partner, agent or principal of City while this 

Agreement is in effect. 

3.2. Payment of Income Taxes: Company is responsible for paying when due 

all income taxes, including estimated taxes, incurred as a result of the compensation 

paid by City to Company for services rendered under this Agreement. On request, 

Company will provide City with proof of timely payment. Company agrees to indemnify 

city for any claims, costs, losses, fees, penalties, interest, or damages suffered by City 

resulting from Company’s failure to comply with this provision. 

3.3. Use of Employees or Subcontractors: Company may, at Company’s own 

expense, use any employees or subcontractors as Company deems necessary to 

perform the services required of Company by this Agreement. City may not control, direct, 

or supervise Company’s employees or subcontractors in the performance of those 

services. 

3.4. Qualifications: Company represents that it is qualified and has the skills 

necessary to perform the services under this Agreement in a competent and professional 

manner, without the advice or direction of City. 

3.5. No Benefit Contributions: Company shall have no obligation under this 

Agreement to compensate or pay applicable taxes or provide employee benefits of any 

kind to any person employed or retained by City. 

3.6. Attorney-in-Fact: City appoints Company as City’s attorney-in-fact for the 

following purposes: 

(a) Billing and Collections: To bill and collect (“Collections”) all revenue

earned by and due to City, in connection with City’s provision of emergency services 

provided/rendered at the sites of motor vehicle incidents and other emergency 

incidents, and to receive all Collections on City’s behalf pertaining to or arising out 

of Company’s or City’s right to collect such amounts; and 

(b) Receipt of Payments:  Sums collected by Company on City accounts shall

be deposited within three (3) business days in an account maintained in a bank, the 

deposits of which are insured by FDIC. In order to properly deposit payments, company 

be City’s attorney-in-fact to take possession of and endorse in City’s name any 

notes, checks, money orders, and any other instruments received as Payment. 

ARTICLE 4 

GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF COMPANY 

4.1. Minimum Amount of Service: Company agrees to devote as much time and 

attention to the performance of the Company Services under this Agreement as may 

Item 6 
Attachment 2

22



3 

be, in Company’s sole discretion, required to accomplish the tasks described herein to 

accomplish the results for which the Company is responsible under this Agreement. 

4.2. Company Services: Company agrees to perform the Company Services 

as set forth in the “List of Company Services” attached hereto as Schedule “A” and 

incorporated herein by reference; including those additional services requested by City 

and accepted in writing by the Company during the term of this Agreement. 

4.3. Non-Exclusive Relationship: Company may represent, perform services 

for, and contract with as many additional clients, persons, or companies as Company, 

in Company’s sole discretion, sees fit. 

4.4. Time and Place of Performing Work: Company may perform the services 

under this Agreement at any suitable time and location Company chooses. 

4.5. Materials and Equipment: Company will supply all materials and 

equipment required to perform the services under this Agreement. 

4.6. Insurance: Company agrees to provide and maintain insurance as required 

in the PPP Agreement. 

4.7. Assignment: Neither this Agreement nor any duties or obligations under this 

Agreement may be assigned by Company without the prior written consent of City, which 

consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

ARTICLE 5 

COMPENSATION OF COMPANY 

5.1. Compensation for Company Services:  All Company Services provided 

pursuant to this Agreement will be provided in accordance with the terms, including 

compensation amounts and schedule of remittance, set forth in the “List of Company 

Services,” attached hereto as Schedule A. 

5.2. The provisions of Article 11 of this Agreement will govern any dispute 

associated with compensation. 

Item 6 
Attachment 2

23



4 

ARTICLE 6 

OBLIGATIONS OF CITY 

6.1. Cooperation of City: The City agrees to comply with all reasonable 
requests of Company and provide access to all documents reasonably necessary to 
the performance of Company’s duties under this Agreement. The City agrees to adopt, 
implement and enforce policies and procedures to assure City personnel perform the 
steps necessary to provide Company with patient information needed to properly bill 
services. 

ARTICLE 7 

CITY AUTHORIZATION 

7.1. Written Authorization: Not withstanding other provisions of this Agreement, 

Company shall obtain written authorization from City prior to performing any other or type 

of collection services not listed in the agreement. 

ARTICLE 8 

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

8.1. Termination on Notice: Notwithstanding any other provision of this 

Agreement, either party may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving one hundred 

and eighty (180) calendar days written notice to the other party.  Unless earlier 

terminated as set forth below, this Agreement shall be effective as of the date first set 

out above and shall continue for a period of three (3) years thereafter. This Agreement 

shall automatically renew for successive one (1) year periods, unless either party 

provides written notification to the other party of its decision not to renew this Agreement, 

with such written notice provided at least thirty (30) calendar days before the termination 

date. 

8.2. Termination on Occurrence of Stated Events: This Agreement will 

terminate automatically on the occurrence of any of the following events; 

(a) Bankruptcy or insolvency of either party;

(b) The assignment of this Agreement by either party without the consent

of the other party; the parties agree that neither party will unreasonably

withhold consent to such an assignment.

8.3. Termination fo r  De fau l t :  If either party defaults in the performance of 

this Agreement or materially breaches any of its provisions, the non-breaching party 

may terminate this Agreement by giving written notification to the breaching party. 

Termination will take effect immediately on receipt of notice by the breaching party or 

five days (5) after mailing of notice, whichever occurs first. For the purposes of this 

paragraph, material breach of this Agreement includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

(a) Company’s failure to complete the services specified in the

Description of Services;

Item 6 
Attachment 2

24



5 

(b) City’s material breach of any representation, warranty or agreement

contained in this Agreement;

(c) Company’s material breach of any representation, warranty or

agreement contained in this Agreement;

(d) City’s failure to make payments as described in Schedule A,
Section 5.

ARTICLE 9 

PROPRIETARY RIGHTS 

9.1. Confidential Information:  Any written, printed, graphic, or electronically or 

magnetically recorded information furnished by City for Company’s use are the sole 

property of City. This confidential information includes, but is not limited to, customer 

requirements, customer lists, marketing information, and information concerning the City’s 

employees, products, services, prices, operations, and subsidiaries. Company will keep 

this confidential information in the strictest confidence, and will not disclose it by any means 

to any person except with the City’s approval, and only to the extent: (i) necessary to 

perform the services under this Agreement, or (ii) required pursuant to the order or 

requirement of a court, administrative agency, federal law, foreign state law, California state 

law, applicable regulatory authorities, or other governmental body. This prohibition also 

applies to Company’s employees, agents, and subcontractors. On termination of this 

Agreement, Company will return any confidential information in Company’s possession 

to city.   

ARTICLE 10 

INDEMNIFICATION 

10.1.      Indemnification:  To the fullest extent allowed by law, the Company shall 
indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers from all claims 
and/or injury resulting from all actions performed by the Company, or its agents on the 
Company’s behalf, in connection with this Agreement.  However, this indemnification shall 
not apply with respect to any legal cause, action or consequential liability or losses as a 
result from inaccurate or incomplete information or unfounded or unreasonable 
submissions furnished to the Company by the City nor shall it apply to any act, omission or 
negligence of the City. To the fullest extent allowed by applicable law, the City shall 
indemnify and hold harmless the company, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers 
from all claims and/or injury resulting from all actions performed by the City, or its agents 
on the City’s behalf, in connection with this Agreement.  However, this indemnification shall 
not apply with respect to any legal cause, action or consequential liability or losses as a 
result from inaccurate or incomplete information or unfounded or unreasonable 
submissions furnished to the City by the Company nor shall it apply to any act, omission or 
negligence of the company.  

The obligation for such indemnity shall survive termination or completion of this 

agreement for the full period of time allowed by law. 

Item 6 
Attachment 2

25



 

6 
 

ARTICLE 11 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

11.1. Governing Law: This Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the 

laws of the State of California, without giving effect to any choice or conflict of law 

provision or rule (whether of the State of California or any other jurisdiction that would 

cause the application of the laws of any jurisdiction other that the State of California). 
 

11.2. Entire Agreement: This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 

between the Parties pertaining to the subject matter contained in it and supersedes all prior 

and contemporaneous agreements, representations, and understanding of the parties. 

 

11.3. Successors and Assigns: Except as otherwise provided herein, the 

provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the successors, 

assigns, heirs, executors and administrators of the parties hereto. No party may assign 

any of its rights or obligations hereunder without the express written consent of the other 

party hereto, which consent may not be unreasonably withheld; provided, however, any 

party may assign any and all of its rights and interests hereunder to one or more of its 

affiliates and designate one or more of its affiliates to perform its obligations hereunder; 

provided, however, that such party remains liable for full and total performance of its 

obligations hereunder. 

 

11.4. Notices:  Any notices authorized to be given hereunder shall be in writing 

and deemed given, if delivered personally or by overnight courier, on the date of delivery, 

if a Business Day, or if not a business day, on the first Business Day following delivery, 

or if mailed, three days after mailing by registered or certified mail, return receipt 

requested, and in each case, addressed, as follows: 

 

If to the Company: 
Medic Ambulance Service, Inc. 
506 Couch St. 
Vallejo, CA 94590  
Attention: James Pierson 
 

If to the City: 
City of Suisun City 
701 Civic Center Blvd. 
Suisun City, CA 
Attention: Acting Fire Chief Greg Renucci 

  

Item 6 
Attachment 2

26



7 

Or, if delivered by telecopy, on a Business Day before 4:00 PM local time of 

addressee, on transmission confirmed electronically, or if at any other time or day on 

the first Business Day succeeding transmission confirmed electronically, to the facsimile 

numbers provided above, or to such other address or telecopy number as any party shall 

specify to the other, pursuant to the foregoing notice provisions. When used in this 

Agreement, the term “Business Day” shall mean a day other than a Saturday, Sunday 

or a Federal Holiday. 

11.5 Waiver; Amendments: This Agreement, and the Transaction Documents, 
(i) set forth the entire agreement of the parties respecting the subject matter hereof, (ii)
supersede any prior and contemporaneous understandings, agreements, or
representations by or among the parties, written or oral, to the extent they related in any
way to the subject matter hereof, and (iii) may not be amended orally, and no right or
obligation of any party may be altered, except as expressly set forth in a writing signed
by such party.

11.6. Counterparts:  This Agreement may be signed in several counterparts. 

11.7. Expenses:  Each party shall bear its own expenses incurred with 

respect to the preparation of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions 

contemplated hereby. 

11.8. Waiver of Jury Trial; Exemplary Damages:  The parties hereto hereby 

waive their rights to trial by jury with respect to any dispute arising under this 

agreement or any transaction document. No party shall be awarded punitive or other 

exemplary damages respecting any dispute arising under this agreement or any 

transaction document contemplated hereby. 

11.9. Cooperative Purchases: This Agreement may be used by other 

government agencies. Company has agreed to offer similar serves to other agencies 

under the same or similar terms and conditions as stated herein except that the revenue 

share percentage (Compensation) may be negotiated between the Company and other 

agencies based on the specific revenue expectations, agency reimbursed costs, and 

other agency requirements. The City/County/or City/Protection District will in no way 

whatsoever incur any liability in relation to specifications, delivery, payment, or any other 

aspect of purchase by other agencies. 

Signatures on following page: 

Item 6 
Attachment 2

27



8 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of 

the date first written above. 

COMPANY: 

MEDIC AMBULANCE SERVICE, INC., 

a California Corporation 

By:   
______________________________________ 
James Pierson, President and COO 

CITY: 

THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

By:   
______________________________________ 
Greg Folsom, City Manager 

Item 6 
Attachment 2

28



9 

SCHEDULE A 

LIST OF COMPANY SERVICES 

1. Company agrees to bill the responsible party on the City’s behalf for fire/medical
first responder services rendered by the City and recorded and processed by
Company. The fees are listed in EXHIBIT A, but may change over time. City will provide
notice to Company of changes to its fee schedule.

2. Company agrees to bill to the best of its ability and as promptly as commercially
practicable all fire/medical first responder services provided to Company by the City.

3. Company will not file litigation or collection services against a person to whom
the city provides fire/medical first responder services.

4. Company agrees to remit to City the full amount collected via billing services for
fire/medical first responder services provided by the City, less a processing fee of Forty-
Seven Dollars and Forty Cents ($47.40) for paid service.  Should the company receive a
less amount than the full amount billed, the company will take a prorated percentage of
amount collected. The pro-rated percentage will not exceed twelve percent (12%).

5. Company agrees to pay the funds due to the City for its services collected on
a monthly basis, within seven (7) working days after the close and accounting of the
monthly billing cycle.

6. Company agrees to provide reports to the city along with the payments made to
City pursuant to paragraph 5 above. Such reports will provide an accounting of all
payments and amounts due the City under the terms of this Agreement; provided,
however, that specific information about claims paid, payor information, patient insurance
information and any breakdown of payors is proprietary to the Company and will not be
shared as part of this agreement. It is the company’s right to choose what will and will not
be on these reports.

7. Company will not be responsible for, nor accept any liability for, any erroneous,
invalid, or illegal services performed by City.

8. Parties acknowledge a critical component to the success of the billing effort is
the acquisition by the City of the necessary contact information for the patient to be
billed for the services provided by the City.  If the City does not maintain an 80% success
rate for obtaining accurate contact information, the Company reserves the right to
charge a fifteen-dollar ($15) processing charge for attempting to identify the responsible
party, whether that effort is successful or not.  If this fee is charged by the Company
the total fee for each month will be documented and subtracted from the monthly
payment to the City.

Item 6 
Attachment 2

29



10

EXHIBIT A “RATES” 

First Responder Fee to be billed by Company on behalf of City of Suisun City 

$310.92

This rate is controlled by the City of Suisun City. Any and all changes to said rate by 
Company can only be done with written authorization from City’s signing agent to this 
agreement. Notification must come in written form to the company with a thirty-day (30) 
notice of change. 

Item 6 
Attachment 2

30



TEST, TEST

Amount

Patient name: 21-89210

Time of call: 21:51

12/27/2021Date of call:

Run Number:

621 PINTAIL DRLocation:

Description

Payment

 DateUnit Price QuantityCheck #Payer 

City of Suisun - Fire Billing Serv
1001 TEXAS ST, SUITE C

FAIRFIELD, CA 94533

(888) 582-9847

TEST TEST

999 TEST RD

SUISUN CITY, CA 94585

First Responder Fee - Suisun $100.00 $100.001

THIS IS NOT A BILL

If you have any questions regarding this fee please go to: https://www.suisun.com/departments/fire-department/

In the event that your insurance provider issues payment directly to you for any amount of the First Responder Fee, you will be 

required to remit that payment to Fire Billing Services - SCFD at the address listed below. If you refuse to remit payment for 

monies received directly from your insurance provider for the First Responder Fee, you will be sent to collec"ons

21-89210

Current date:

REMIT TO:

1/28/2022

TEST, TEST Run Number:Patient name: $

Due on: 02/07/2022

$100.00

City of Suisun - Fire Billing Serv

1001 TEXAS ST, SUITE C

FAIRFIELD, CA 94533

If you have health insurance coverage please provide the information below.

Insurance:__________________

ID#: _______________________

Address: _________________________

Phone #: _________________________

Item 6 
Attachment 3

31



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

32



Suisun City Fire Department 
First Responder Fee – Frequently Asked Question 

Suisun City Fire Department  
621 Pintail Dr. Suisun City, CA 94585 
Phone (707) 421-7205 
Fax (707) 421-7398 

What is a First Responder Fee? 

A First Responder Fee is charged to insurance companies of patients who are treated or evaluated by Suisun 

City Firefighters for medical service. 

Why have I received a First Responder Fee Notice? 

You received this bill because the Suisun City Fire Department responded to a 9-1-1 call from you or someone 

representing you and a medical assessment was performed. 

Do I need to pay the bill? 

No, the bill has also been sent directly to your insurance company.  The copy you have received in the mail 

is for information only. 

Do I need to pay a portion of the Notice if my insurance does not cover the entire balance? 

No, the City will utilize a compassionate billing concept and accept any payment by an insurance company 

as the full payment for the First Responder Fee obligation.  

What if I do not have insurance? 

There is no out of-of-pocket expense for patients receiving services from the Fire Department, even if the 

patient is uninsured. 

What are the fees based on? 

The $310.92 fee per call is based on a cost recovery for providing an Advanced Life Support (ALS) engine 

company to all calls for service and associated fees for equipment and supplies. This amount was calculated 

based on a comprehensive fee study conducted by AP Triton, LLC. 

Don’t my taxes cover this service? 

The principle rationale for a First Responder Fee is that local government fire department services have 

expanded well beyond the traditional fire suppression generally supported by property taxes.  The change in 

balance from fire suppression to medical services has shifted the rationale for financing fire department 

operations from primarily property-related taxes to a combination of property taxes and user fees.  As our 

department has transitioned to provide trained staff for both fire suppression and medical services, there 

were no additional taxes or increases in our budget to absorb the costs to provide these services.  Regardless 

of the number of incidents we respond to, we must maintain our apparatus, equipment, skills/training, and 

certifications for both fighting fires and providing emergency medical services. 

Item 6 
Attachment 4

33



Suisun City Fire Department 
First Responder Fee – Frequently Asked Question 

Suisun City Fire Department  
621 Pintail Dr. Suisun City, CA 94585 
Phone (707) 421-7205 
Fax (707) 421-7398 

Conservative Revenue estimate: $85.639.00 

Solano County Fire Agencies 

City First Responder Fee Amount 

Vallejo $483.00 

Fairfield $433.00 

Benicia $314.00 

Dixon $314.00 

Proposed Suisun City $310.92 

Vacaville N/A 

Rio Vista N/A 

Item 6 
Attachment 4

34



PREPARED BY:  Greg Renucci, Acting Fire Chief 

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  February 15, 2022 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-__:  Resolution of the City 

Council of the City of Suisun City Authorizing the City Manager to execute a purchase agreement 

with Golden State Fire Apparatus for a Skeeter Brush Truck LLC Type 5 Wildland Engine and 

Authorizing the City Manager to Approve the Cost for Upfitting of the Type 5 in an Amount up to 

$120,000. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The Type 5 Wildland Unit and total upfit will not cost more than $480,000. 

Vehicle cost is $356,308.56 and the remaining $120,000 will be used for upfitting, equipment, and 

radios.  Funds for this purchase were authorized out of Measure S at mid-year budget.  

STRATEGIC PLAN: Section 3.5: Ensure Public Safety; Optimize the use of technology to drive 

efficiency, productivity and customer service.  

BACKGROUND:  Wildland fire engines are used by the fire department to extinguish fires in the 

City’s open lands.  They are smaller units which provide an ease of access to the canals and vacant 

lots and still carry the necessary equipment for extinguishment. The current fleet of wildland 

consists of three units:  E647 (Type 6) is a 1998 Dodge Ram; E547 (Type 5) 2003 Ford F550; and 

the newest unit is a 2019 (Type 3) Pierce Engine. The two oldest units have become extremely 

unreliable and a safety risk to the firefighters.   

STAFF REPORT: Type 5 fire engines have a much smaller configuration than a typical Type 3 or 

Type 1 engine.  The smaller body still allows the department to carry up to 400 gallons of water with 

the maneuverability and accessibility not available in a Type 3 or 1.  Types 5 are used heavily for 

initial attack and typically are built on a Ford F550 Chassis. This wildland apparatus is designed for 

a crew of up to four personnel and has the ability to access off road areas that larger apparatus cannot 

access due to height and weight restrictions.  In Suisun City this is primarily along the canal banks, 

area surrounding Old Town Suisun, and the 34-acre lot at Highway 12 and Marina. 

Benefits of a Type 5 Engine 

• Ease of access to confined areas

• Strike Team deployment opportunities

• Lower maintenance cost

• Class-C Driver’s License

• Can be utilized for medical calls in the city

This unit will replace the aged Type 6, which will be converted into a utility pickup truck.  The fire 

department has conducted research and has determined that a cooperative purchase through the 

Houston-Galveston Area Council Cooperative Purchasing Program (HGAC Buy) will provide the 

best price and best product. HGAC Buy has for 30 years assisted local government members 

nationally in reducing the competitive bid costs associated with procuring products and services. 

Golden State Fire Apparatus was selected with the following cost: 

Item 7

35



100% Pre-Payment at the time of order (includes a discount) - $356,308.56 

The cost of upfitting for equipment and radios will not exceed $120,000.  The department does not 

have a reserve of equipment and tools, necessitating the purchase of new equipment for the Type 

5. The items are purchased separately for the unit, including, but not limited to, the list below:

• The MFG to install all brackets for tools

• New portable and mobile radios

• New SCBA’s (Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus)

• New iPad and mounting equipment

• New EMS equipment

• New fire hoses and hose packs

• New nozzles and adaptors

• New chain saw and chaps

• Firefighting foam

• New hand tools

• New Thermal Imager

• New flashlights

Due to the cost, the only items requiring a separate contract or purchase agreement will be the 

radios at an estimated cost of $30,000.00, which is under the City Managers purchasing limit. 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council: 

Adopt Resolution No. 2022-__:  Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City Authorizing 

the City Manager to execute a purchase agreement with Golden State Fire Apparatus for a Skeeter 

Brush Truck LLC Type 5 Wildland Engine and Authorizing the City Manager to approve the cost for 

upfitting of the Type 5 in an amount up to $120,000. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Resolution No. 2022-__:  Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City

Authorizing the City Manager to execute a purchase agreement with Golden State Fire

Apparatus for a Skeeter Brush Truck LLC Type 5 Wildland Engine and Authorizing the City

Manager to approve the cost for upfitting of the Type 5 in an amount up to $120,000.

2. Purchase Agreement

Item 7

36



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

WITH GOLDEN STATE FIRE APPARATUS FOR A SKEETER BRUSH TRUCK LLC 

TYPE 5 WILDLAND ENGINE AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

APPROVE THE COST OF UPFITTING OF THE TYPE 5 IN AN AMOUNT UP TO 

$120,000 

 

WHEREAS, the fire department staff has completed extensive research and validated 

the need to acquire a new Type 5 wildland unit; and 

WHEREAS, the Skeeter Type 5 Wildland Engine is listed on the Houston-Galveston 

Area Council Cooperative Purchasing Program (HGACBuy); and 

WHEREAS, the HGACBuy is a cooperative purchasing program which allows local 
governments and certain non-profits to contract or agree under the terms of the program to 

make purchases using HGACBuy contracts which are competitively bid; and 

WHEREAS, staff reviewed and recommended the acceptance of the bid received 

from Golden State Fire Apparatus (Pierce Manufacturing Inc.). 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it hereby resolved by the City Council of Suisun City that 
the City Manager is authorized to approve a purchase agreement for a Skeeter Brush Truck 
LLC Type 5 Wildland Engine from Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. for the amount of 
$356,308.56 and is also authorized to approve the cost for upfitting of the Type 5 with 
equipment and radios for an amount not to exceed $120,000. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on February 15, 2022, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  Council Members: 

NOES:  Council Members: 

ABSENT:  Council Members: 

ABSTAIN: Council Members: 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of February 2022.  

 

 

_________________________________  

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

 

 

  

Item 7 
Attachment 1

37



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

38



PROPOSAL PREPARED FOR 

Suisun City Fire Department 

Skeeter Brush Trucks 

Ford F-550 Type 5 Engine 

February 3, 2022 

SALES CONSULTANT 
Jon Bauer 
Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. 

7400 Reese Road 

Sacramento, CA 95828 

916.330.1638 Office 

530.351.2151 Cell 

jbauer@goldenstatefire.com 

PARTS, SERVICE & SUPPORT 
Golden State Emergency Vehicle Service, Inc. 

7400 Reese Road 

Sacramento, CA 95828 

916.330.1638 Office 

parts@goldenstatefire.com 

Item 7 
Attachment 2

39

mailto:jbauer@goldenstatefire.com
mailto:parts@goldenstatefire.com


 

 

       Submitted Date: 
 

                      February 3, 2022 

 

Proposal Number: 
 

  50203-22B 

 

     Expiration Date: 
 

                           March 4, 2022 

 

      Sales Consultant: 
 

                                  Jon Bauer 

 

www.goldenstatefire.com 

7400 Reese Road 

Sacramento, CA 95828 

Office 916.330.1638 

Fax 916.330.1649 
 

 
 
 
 

PROPOSAL PREPARED FOR: 
 

Suisun City Fire Department 
 
621 Pintail Drive 
 
Suisun City, CA 94585 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pursuant to this proposal (the “Proposal”), Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. (“GSFA”) hereby proposes to furnish SUISUN 

CITY FIRE DEPARTMENT (“Customer”), the following fire apparatus and equipment, hereinafter called the “Product”: 
 

OPTION “B” - 100% PRE-PAYEMENT AT TIME OF ORDER 

 
 

PROPOSAL SUMMARY 
 

This Proposal includes the following items in accordance with the specifications hereto attached: 
 

▪ Fire apparatus and equipment 
▪ Pre-construction conference with dealer and 

factory rep via Skype video conference 
▪ Factory final inspection for two customer 

representatives 

 
▪ Demonstration and familiarization of Product at the factory  

▪      Delivery of vehicles from factory to customer location 

▪ California Tire Fee

 
PRODUCT COMPLETION 

 

The Product shall be built in accordance with the specifications hereto attached within approximately 545 calendar days after 

Customer’s acceptance of this Proposal, subject to the force majeure provisions contained in the Purchase Agreement (defined 

below). The Purchase Agreement shall further describe the delivery schedule for the Product. 

 
DELIVERY LOCATION 

 

Product shall be shipped in accordance with the specifications hereto attached and be delivered to you at SUISUN CITY, 

CALIFORNIA. Prior to final delivery of the Product to Customer, Customer agrees to provide proof of liability and physical 

damage insurance to GSFA. GSFA shall not deliver the Product until such proof of insurance is provided.

# Description Unit Price 

A 
One (1) Skeeter Brush Trucks – Ford Four Door, 4x4, Super Single/ Lifted 
Type 5 Engine (HGAC Consortium Purchase) 

333,697.17 

B Discount For 100% Pre-Payment (4,931.49) 

                                                         
                          

 

 

8.375% 

State Sales Tax  
27,534.13           

California Tire Fee                 8.75 

GRAND TOTAL 

 
$356,308.56 

Item 7 
Attachment 2

40

http://www.goldenstatefire.com/


ACCEPTING THIS PROPOSAL 

In the event Customer wishes to purchase the Product described in this Proposal and the attached specifications, then, prior to the expiration 

date listed on page 2 of this Proposal, Customer shall sign and return this Proposal. Thereafter, GSFA and Customer will endeavor to enter into a 

purchase agreement incorporating this Proposal and including additional terms (a “Purchase Agreement”). If Customer returns a signed copy of 

this Proposal alone, GSFA will send Customer its form of Purchase Agreement for Customer’s review and signature. If Customer desires to use 

its standard form of purchase order as the Purchase Agreement, then Customer should return a signed copy of this Proposal along with a copy of 

such purchase order. All purchase orders shall be made out to GSFA. GSFA will review such purchase order and contact the Customer regarding 

any required revisions. Only upon a full execution of a Purchase Agreement shall GSFA and Customer be obligated to purchase and sell the 

Product set forth in this Proposal. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

The following Terms and Conditions are hereby made part of this Proposal: 

1. Payment Terms, Payment within 15 Calendar Days of

Contract Signing – Customer shall pay the Grand Total within 15

Calendar Days of Contract Signing to GSFA. It is the responsibility

of the Customer to have full payment ready within this timeframe.

If payment is late or delivery is delayed pending payment, a daily

finance charge of $150.00 and a daily storage fee of $50.00 may

apply until such payment is received. Due to insurance liability, 

the Product(s) will not be left at the Customer’s location without

full acceptance and payment or prior written agreement between

the Customer and GSFA. 

2. Multiple Unit Purchase – If the Purchase Price includes

pricing for multiple units, the price stated on this Proposal shall

only be valid if the quantity of Products being proposed are

purchased at the same time, pursuant to the same Purchase

Agreement.

3. Stock / Demo Units – If applicable, any stock/demo units, 

including those identified by this Proposal, are available for sale

on an as-is, first-come and first served-basis. Regardless of this

Proposal, the first Customer to enter into a Purchase Agreement

identifying any such stock/demo unites shall obtain said units.

4. Order Changes – The Customer may request that GSFA

incorporate a change to the Product or the Specifications for the

Product by delivering a written change order to GSFA, which shall

include a description of the proposed change sufficient to permit

GSFA to evaluate the feasibility of such change (a “Change

Order”). GSFA will provide Customer a written response (a

“Response”) stating (i) whether GSFA will accommodate such

Change Order (which GSFA may decide in its sole and absolute

discretion) and (ii) the terms of the modification to the order, 

including any increase or decrease in the Purchase Price resulting

from such Change Order, and any effect on production scheduling

or Delivery resulting from such Change Order. Customer shall

have seven (7) days after receipt of the Response to notify GSFA

as to whether Customer desires to make the changes GSFA has

approved in the Response. In the event Customer counter-signs

GSFA’s Response, Customer shall pay the increase (or be

refunded the decrease) in the Purchase Price prior to final

delivery to Customer location.

5. Force Majeure – GSFA shall not be responsible nor deemed to

be in default on account of delays in performance due to causes

which are beyond GSFA’s and manufacturer’s control and which

make GSFA’s performance impracticable, including but not limited

to wars, insurrections, strikes, riots, fires, storms, floods, other

acts of nature, explosions, earthquakes, accidents, any act of

government, delays in transportation, inability to obtain

necessary labor supplies or manufacturing facilities, allocation

regulations or orders affecting materials, equipment, facilities or

completed products, failure to obtain any required license or

certificates, acts of God or the public enemy or terrorism, failure

of transportation, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, failure of

vendors (due to causes similar to those within the scope of this 

clause) to perform their contracts or labor troubles causing 

cessation, slowdown, or interruption of work.

6. Cancellation/Termination – In the event Customer and GSFA

enter into a Purchase Agreement and Customer thereafter

cancels or terminates the Purchase Agreement, GSFA will charge

a cancellation fee as follows: (a) 10% of the Purchase Price after

order is accepted and entered by GSFA; (b) 20% of the Purchase

Price after completion of the pre-construction phase of the order

process; and (c) 50% of the Purchase Price after the requisition of

any materials or commencement of any manufacturing or

assembly of the Product by either GSFA or the manufacturer of

the Product. The tier of cancellation fee applicable to any

cancellation shall be in the sole and absolute discretion of GSFA.

7. State Sales Tax – Customer shall be responsible for the cost of

state sales tax associated with, or attributable to the Product. The 

taxes owed by Customer for the Product is subject to adjustment

for the applicable state sales tax rate in effect when the Product is

delivered to the Customer. Therefore, the sales tax will be

increased or decreased at the time of delivery if a change in the

sales tax rate has occurred, in which case Customer shall pay GSFA

(or be refunded by GSFA) the applicable change in sales tax.

8. Proposal Expiration – After the Expiration Date shown on

page one of this Proposal, Customer shall require GSFA’s written

consent to accept this Proposal.

9. Governing Law – This Proposal is to be governed by and under

the laws of the state of California.

Item 7 
Attachment 2

41



Thank you for providing Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. with the opportunity to provide this proposal. If you have any questions 

regarding the options presented or need additional options, please contact me. 

Sincerely, 

     Jon Bauer 

    Golden State Fire Apparatus, Inc. 

7400 Reese Road 

Sacramento, CA 95828 

Office 916.330.1638 
I, __________________________________________authorized representative of SUISUN CITY FIRE DEPARTMENT agrees to 

purchase the proposed Product(s) and agree to the terms and conditions of this proposal and the specifications hereto attached. 

 SIGNATURE:  

TITLE:  DATE:  

Item 7 
Attachment 2

42



PREPARED BY: Nick Lozano, Associate Engineer 

REVIEWED BY: Nouae Vue, Public Works Director 

APPROVED BY:  Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  February 15, 2022 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-__: Resolution Adopting a List 

of Projects for Fiscal Year 2022-23 Funded by SB 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 

2017 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Total operating cost for the Suisun City (City) Road Maintenance and 

Rehabilitation Act (RMRA) project is budgeted under the Transportation PW Capital Projects Fund 

(Fund 115) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23. The estimated annual SB 1 fund for pavement project is 

$505,000.  

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Restore Historic Downtown. Develop Sustainable Economy. Ensure Public 

Safety. Provide Good Governance. Ensure Fiscal Solvency. Enhance Environment.  

BACKGROUND:  The City of Suisun City is responsible for the maintenance of 153 lane miles 

of roadway with over 13 million square feet of pavement. The goal of the Suisun City Pavement 

Management Program is to maintain the city’s pavement in the best condition possible given the 

available funding. Each year, preventive maintenance treatments are performed on selected city 

streets. These planned treatment projects are intended to extend the life of the pavement and avoid 

costlier repair or replacement of streets. Road reconstruction is only considered when preventive 

maintenance treatments are no longer cost-effective or feasible. The cost of reconstructing a street 

can exceed the cost of performing a preventative maintenance treatment by tenfold. 

On April 28, 2017, the Governor signed Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), also known as the Road Repair and 

Accountability Act of 2017. This bill provides a stable source of funding to local agencies to 

provide for road maintenance and rehabilitation.  

STAFF REPORT: In accordance with SB 1, the City of Suisun City must adopt a budget each 

fiscal year appropriating revenues and expenditures of Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 

Account (RMRA) funds.  In addition, the City must submit a list of projects corresponding to the 

adopted budget to the California Transportation Commission (CTC) prior to July 1, 2022 in order 

to receive the SB 1 funds for FY 2022-23. Suisun City is committed to improving the road 

conditions and ADA accessibility in the city and has budgeted SB 1 funds for road maintenance 

and rehabilitation.  

The previously proposed and adopted projects listed in the table on the following page may utilize 

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account Revenues.  Moreover, staff is 

recommending the addition of the following two street segments to the list: 1) Pepperwood Street, 

and 2) Emperor Drive from Highway 12 to Pintail Drive. With the re-listing of these projects and 

listing of the two new street segments in the fiscal year resolution, the City of Suisun City is 

reaffirming to the public and the State our intent to fund these projects with Road Maintenance 

and Rehabilitation revenues. 

Item 8

43



City of Suisun City - FY  2022-2023 Local Streets and Roads Program Projects List 

Pavement Treatment Description Location 

Estimated 

Useful 

Life 
Minimum 

Estimated 

Useful 

Life 
Maximum 

Project 

Started or 
Estimated 

Project 

Start 

Revised 

Estimated 

Project 
End 

Asphalt Rubber Cape Seal with 

Digouts and ADA Ramp Upgrades 

Village Drive     

(Highway 12 to Railroad Ave) 
8-10 50 6/1/2020 12/1/2022 

Asphalt Rubber Cape Seal with 

Digouts and ADA Ramp Upgrades 

Whispering Bay Lane     

(Francisco Dr to Josiah Circle) 
8-10 50 6/1/2020 12/1/2022 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal Main Street (S of Cordelia St to Lotz Way) 5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal Floyd Court  5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal 
Capistrano Drive     

(Montebello Dr. to Bella Vista Dr) 
5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal 
Catamaran Way     

(Civic Center Blvd to Harbor Park Dr) 
5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal 
Harbor Park Drive     

(Civic Center Blvd to Terminus) 
5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal Breakwater Circle 5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal Catalina Circle 5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal 
Anderson Drive     

(E of Canal to Lawler Ranch Pkwy) 
5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal 
Lawler Ranch Parkway     

(Mayfield Way to Potrero St) 
5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal Hoyt Court 5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal Pepperwood Street 5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal Emperor Drive (Hwy 12 to Pintail Dr) 5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Resolution included as Attachment No. 1 of this 

report and authorize staff to submit the required list of projects to the California Transportation 

Commission (CTC) prior to July 1, 2023 to secure SB 1 funding.  The list of projects and project 

streets can be modified in the future without consequence. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

1. Staff Recommends the City Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-__: Resolution

Adopting a List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2022-23 Funded by SB 1: The Road Repair and

Accountability Act of 2017

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2021-__: Resolution Adopting a List of Projects for

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Funded by SB 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017

Item 8

44



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO.  2022 - ____ 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

FUNDED BY SENATE BILL 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT 

OF 2017 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 

(Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017) was passed by the Legislature and Signed into law by the Governor 

in April 2017 to address the significant multi-modal transportation funding shortfalls statewide; 

and  

WHEREAS, SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure 

the residents of our City of Suisun City are aware of the projects proposed for funding in our 

community and which projects have been completed each fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City must adopt by resolution a list of projects proposed 

to receive fiscal year funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), 

created by SB 1, which must include a description and the location of each proposed project, a 

proposed schedule for the project’s completion, and the estimated useful life of the 

improvement; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City, will receive an estimated $505,000 in RMRA 

funding in Fiscal Year 2022-23 from SB 1; and 

WHEREAS, this is the fifth year in which the City of Suisun City is receiving SB 1 

funding and will enable the City of Suisun City to continue essential road maintenance and 

rehabilitation projects, safety improvements, repairing and replacing aging bridges, and 

increasing access and mobility options for the traveling public that would not have otherwise 

been possible without SB 1; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City has undergone a robust public process to ensure 

public input into our community’s transportation priorities/the project list; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City used a Pavement Management System to develop 

the SB 1 project list to ensure revenues are being used on the most high-priority and cost-

effective projects that also meet the community’s priorities for transportation investment; and  

WHEREAS, the funding from SB 1 will help the City of Suisun City maintain and 

rehabilitate up to fourteen (14) streets/roads throughout the City/County this year by applying 

a combination of slurry seals to preserve good roads and applying asphalt rubber cape to high 

volume collector roads this year and the following year; and many similar projects into the 

future; and 

WHEREAS, the 2018 California Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs Assessment 

found that the City of Suisun City streets and roads are in an “good” condition and this revenue 

will help us maintain our road system in a “good” condition; and  

WHEREAS, the SB 1 project list and overall investment in our local streets and roads 

infrastructure with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, investing in complete streets 

infrastructure, and using cutting-edge technology, materials and practices, will have significant 

positive impact on our road system.  

Item 8 
Attachment 1

45



Resolution No. 2022-___ 

Adopted February 15, 2022 

Page 2 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, ORDERED AND FOUND by 

the City Council of the City of Suisun City, State of California, as follows: 

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

2. The following previously proposed and adopted projects may utilize Fiscal Year 2022-

23 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account Revenues in their delivery (see table

below). Street segments added from the previous list are Pepperwood Street and

Emperor Drive (from Highway 12 to Pintail Drive.) With the relisting of these projects

and the two new street segments in the adopted fiscal year resolution, the City of Suisun

City is reaffirming to the public and the State our intent to fund these projects with Road

Maintenance and Rehabilitation revenues.

City of Suisun City - FY  2022-2023 Local Streets and Roads Program Projects List 

Pavement Treatment Description Location 

Estimated 

Useful 

Life 
Minimum 

Estimated 

Useful 

Life 
Maximum 

Project 

Started or 
Estimated 

Project 

Start 

Revised 

Estimated 

Project 
End 

Asphalt Rubber Cape Seal with 

Digouts and ADA Ramp Upgrades 

Village Drive     

(Highway 12 to Railroad Ave) 
8-10 50 6/1/2020 12/1/2022 

Asphalt Rubber Cape Seal with 

Digouts and ADA Ramp Upgrades 

Whispering Bay Lane     

(Francisco Dr to Josiah Cir) 
8-10 50 6/1/2020 12/1/2022 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal Main Street (S of Cordelia St to Lotz Way) 5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal Floyd Court  5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal 
Capistrano Drive     

(Montebello Dr. to 75' N of El Morro Ln) 
5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal 
Capistrano Drive     

(75' N of El Morro Ln to Bella Vista Dr) 
5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal 
Catamaran Way     

(Civic Center Blvd to Harbor Park Dr) 
5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal 
Harbor Park Drive     

(Civic Center Blvd to Terminus) 
5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal Breakwater Circle 5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal Catalina Circle 5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal 
Anderson Drive     

(E of Canal to Lawler Ranch Pkwy) 
5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal 
Lawler Ranch Parkway     

(Mayfield Wy to Potrero St) 
5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal Hoyt Court 5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal Pepperwood Street 5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Crack Seal and Slurry Seal Emperor Drive (Hwy 12 to Pintail Dr) 5-7 50 6/1/2022 12/1/2023 

Item 8 
Attachment 1

46



Resolution No. 2022-___ 

Adopted February 15, 2022 

Page 3 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the following vote at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Suisun City duly held on the 15th day of February 2022: 

AYES: Council Members: 

NOES: Council Members: 

ABSENT: Council Members: 

ABSTAIN: Council Members: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of February 2022. 

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

Item 8 
Attachment 1

47



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

48



______________________________________________________________________________ 

PREPARED BY: John Kearns, Senior Planner 

REVIEWED BY:         Jim Bermudez, Development Services Director 

APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  February 15, 2022 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-__; Establishing a List of 

Qualified Environmental Consultants for Development Projects and Capital Improvement Projects. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  There is no fiscal impact from the establishment of this list of firms as this 

list does not authorize any scope of work. The cost of environmental work for proposed 

development projects would be borne fully by the applicant.     

STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS: 

• Develop Sustainable Economy

• Ensure Fiscal Solvency

• Enhance Environment

BACKGROUND:  From time to time, the Development Services Department requires the use of 

consultants to assist with planning services that are either beyond the capacity of planning staff 

due to the scope of the project and/or when the project analysis requires special expertise. As 

such, the City determined that it was both necessary and cost-effective to utilize qualified 

environmental consulting firms for needed environmental review and preparation of 

environmental documents.  Establishing a list of qualified environmental consultants is a normal 

process that many cities utilize to accelerate processing of development projects which, in turn, 

will assist the City in achieving the strategic plan goals listed above. 

STAFF REPORT:  On November 19, 2021, the City advertised for proposals from qualified 

environmental consulting firms to provide environmental review services to the City.  On 

December 14, 2021, seven proposals were received from qualified firms.  In the RFQ/RFP the 

scope of work to be performed was described as: 

On-call environmental consulting services for development projects requiring environmental 

review through the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Below is a brief list of the 

types of projects that may require environmental review: 

• General Plan Amendments;

• Zone Changes;

• Zoning Code Amendments;

• Annexations;

• Tentative Subdivision Maps;

• Conditional Use Permits;

• Design Reviews;

• Specific Plans;

Item 9

49



• Overlays.  

 

The RFQ/RFP stated that the consultant must be qualified to prepare Environmental Impact 

Reports (EIR), Environmental Impact Statements (EIS), Negative Declarations (ND), Mitigated 

Negative Declarations (MND), technical studies, and other CEQA and NEPA documentation for 

proposed projects. Firms were invited to propose on all services for which they were qualified, as 

well as to include sub-consultants for other areas of work, e.g., traffic and air quality.  During the 

submittal period (November 19 – December 14, 2021) a number of questions were raised by the 

consulting firms and a list of responses was compiled by staff and circulated to the consulting 

firms.  

 

The proposals were thoroughly reviewed and analyzed based on the following evaluation criteria 

included in the RFQ/RFP: 

• Expertise, Experience, Education, and Training along with Prior Contracting History 

(40%) – The expertise, experience, education, and training of the proposer and its key 

personnel and previous experience with similar work in similar fields and qualifications 

and depth of the staff that will perform the work on this project. This factor includes 

evaluation of the proposer’s prior contracting history, including references provided, as 

well as the review of the proposer’s certifications relating to false claims, debarment, and 

civil litigation. 

• Project Approach (30%) – The proposer’s responsiveness in addressing the City’s 

specific needs, understanding of the scope of work, and timeframe in which the proposer 

will be ready to begin assisting the City. 

• Fee/Rate Schedule (20%) – The proposed compensation structure (inclusive of hourly 

rates of compensation, pass-through costs, and subconsultant costs). 

• Compliance with RFQ/RFP (10%) – The ability of the proposer to comply with all 

instructions set forth under this RFQ/RFP as well as the proposer’s ability to agree to all 

of the terms and conditions of the City’s Professional Services Agreement without 

modification, particularly relating to indemnification, insurance requirements, and 

standards of care. 

 

All firms that responded to the RFQ/RFP were qualified to undertake the anticipated scope of 

work.  However, after review, staff identified the most responsive firms in terms of identified 

evaluation criteria.  Especially of note during review were relevant experience, cost efficiency, 

and project approach.  Staff is recommending that the City Council adopt a resolution 

establishing the below list of firms for the City to use on future development and capital 

improvements projects: 

 

• AECOM Technical Services Inc. 

• First Carbon Solutions, FCS International, Inc. 

• Rincon Consultants, Inc. 

• Stantec Consulting Services Inc.  

 

Staff will work collaboratively with the consultants, but each lead consulting firm will manage 

the work of its consultant team. In addition to preparing environmental documents, it is 

anticipated that the consultants may be required to present their work product to the City 

Council, Planning Commission, and community.   

Item 9

50



RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council: 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-___:  Establishing a List of Qualified Environmental Consultants

for Development Projects and Capital Improvement Projects.

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2022-___: Establishing a List of Qualified Environmental Consultants for

Development Projects and Capital Improvement Projects.

Item 9

51



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

52



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

ESTABLISHING A LIST OF QUALIFIED ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS FOR 

DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS. 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is necessary to establish a list of qualified 

environmental firms to complete environmental review for future development and capital 

improvement projects; and 

WHEREAS, utilizing the services of these consulting firms will expedite the 

processing of development applications in the City; and 

WHEREAS, funding for these services for development projects will be borne by the 

applicant; and 

WHEREAS, funding is available for these services for City-initiated development 

projects from various funding sources, depending upon the project; and 

WHEREAS, proposals were received from qualified environmental consulting firms 

and were thoroughly reviewed and four firms were identified to be included on the approved 

consultant list. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City hereby establishes the following list of qualified environmental consultants for 

development projects and capital improvement projects: 

• AECOM

• First Carbon Solutions, FCS International, Inc.

• Rincon Consultants, Inc.

• Stantec, Inc.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by a Regular Meeting of said City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 15th of February 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers: 

NOES: Councilmembers: 

ABSENT: Councilmembers: 

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of February 2022. 

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

Item 9 
Attachment 1

53



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

54



PREPARED BY: Lakhwinder Deol, Finance Manager 

REVIEWED & APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  February 15, 2022 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-__:  Authorizing the City 

Manager to execute the contract with Tyler Technologies for the purchase and implementation of 

Tyler Technologies system Software as a Service (SaaS).    

FISCAL IMPACT:  Executing the contract with Tyler Technologies will not impact the General 

Fund. The purchase and implementation of Tyler Technologies system Software as a Service (SaaS) 

services agreement is budgeted under the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) fund. The FY 2021-

22 Budget includes $335,800 for these services under account 167-96440-1917. The one-time fees 

are $215,710 and annual on-going cost will be $120,055. The contract is for five years with options 

to renew annually after the initial term.  

STRATEGIC PLAN: Ensure fiscal solvency; Provide good governance. 

BACKGROUND:  The City of Suisun City has been operating from the current financial software 

solution (MOMs) for more than two decades. Over the course of time, the MOMs software has 

become increasingly inefficient in meeting the City’s reporting, analytical, functional and day-to-

day operational needs. Furthermore, the City has utilized multiple different budgeting, building 

permitting, business licenses, personnel and financial management processing platforms over the 

previous decade including Questica and ClearGov, each of which has involved cumbersome 

processes and complex integration to facilitate the City’s overall financial and payroll system 

management. To improve the City’s overall financial and personnel management, the staff has 

been conducting many meetings and attended serval demonstrations to find a suitable product. The 

staff evaluated the City’s technology-based business practices and infrastructure and researched 

integrated financial systems/platforms. Tyler Technologies, Inc. has demonstrated the ability to 

provide the City with a comprehensive, best practices, cloud-based (Software as a Service) 

"Enterprise" solution. Their software will allow the City to effectively manage the general ledger, 

payroll, human resources, budgeting and other financial needs within one integrated system. Tyler 

Technologies is headquartered in Plano, Texas and has decades of experience serving over 6,000 

public sector clients with its integrated solution. Tyler Technologies has implemented integrated 

solutions with more than sixty California clients, including the cities of Pinole, Hollister, 

Clearlake, Mill Valley, Gridley and Grass Valley.  

STAFF REPORT:  Tyler Technologies Integrated Systems will make every aspect of the day-

to-day financial and personnel management of the City more efficient. As part of the 

implementation process, Tyler Technologies will work with staff to review existing financial 

business processes and workflows to determine how they can be modified to create more 

efficiencies. The strategic goal is to implement value-added processes that align with best business 

practices. The initial implementation will focus on transferring the existing financial functionality 

from the MOMs system into the Tyler platform (General Ledger, Accounts Payables/Receivables, 

Cashiering, Budgeting, Purchasing and Reporting). As part of the implementation of Tyler 

Item 10

55



Technologies is a Personnel Module. The Personnel Management module encompass critical 

functions such as Human Resources and Employee Self-Service, as well as increased 

interoperability between Human Resources and Payroll functions such as tracking and reporting.  

Additional Modules included in the SaaS contract include the following:  

1.) EnerGov (including Permitting 10 users, Online Capabilities, GIS, Report Toolkit) 

2.) Tyler EAM (Enterprise Asset Management)  

3.) Socrata Open Finance Suite (Transparency application)  

4.) Tyler U (online platform for training videos and training resources)  

5.) Tyler Content Management 

6.) MyCivic (Community Interaction) 

7.) Services and Implementation for all modules  

These additional modules will further help streamline business processes within the City, increase 

transparency as well as offer greater efficiency and ease for residents and businesses when 

interacting with the City. The total implementation is estimated to take between 18 and 24 months. 

It is critical to ensure the transfer of records, establishment of necessary infrastructure within the 

systems as well as training and validation testing are done with an emphasis on accuracy and 

strategic implementation over expediency. It is anticipated that the Financial Module, the largest 

and most encompassing of the modules, will be the first of the major systems to be implemented; 

along with the Personnel Management, Building Permitting, Enterprise Asset Management, and 

the ancillary modules in line with an overall implementation strategy that will be crafted between 

City Staff and Tyler Technologies’ Implementation Team. The structure and details of the overall 

implementation of the software can be finalized upon execution of the contract and upon having 

the formal kick-off meeting of the software implementation between Tyler Technology and City 

Staff. With a starting point of April 2022 for Tyler Technologies City Staff is targeting a go-live 

date for the Financial module of October 1, 2023. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 

2022-___: Authorizing the City Manager to execute the contract with Tyler Technologies for the 

purchase and implementation of Tyler Technologies system Software as a Service (SaaS).    

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___: Authorizing the City Manager to execute the

contract with Tyler Technologies for the purchase and implementation of Tyler Technologies

system Software as a Service (SaaS).

2. Tyler Technologies Proposal

3. Tyler Technologies Service Agreement

Item 10

56



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACT WITH 

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES FOR THE PURCHASE AND IMPLEMENTATION OF 

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES SYSTEM SOFTWARE AS A SERVICE (SAAS) 

WHEREAS, the City desires to purchase and implement of Tyler Technologies System 

Software as a Service; and   

WHEREAS, the proposed purchase and implementation will upgrade outdated 

financial software solution with a modern software system that will promote the City’s 

reporting, analytical, functional, and day-to-day operations more efficiently; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed update will improve customer service efficiency and 

effectivity during business operations; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed system will increase departmental capabilities and allow 

staff to work remotely without any communication and service interruptions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby authorizes 

the City Manager to execute the contract with Tyler Technologies for the purchase and 

implementation of Tyler Technologies system Software as a service (SaaS). 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of said City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 15th day of February 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers: 

NOES: Councilmembers: 

ABSENT: Councilmembers: 

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of February 2022. 

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

Item 10 
Attachment 1

57



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

58



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
1 

of
 9

Sa
le

s Q
uo

ta
tio

n 
Fo

r:
Ci

ty
 o

f S
ui

su
n 

Ci
ty

70
1 

Ci
vi

c 
Ce

nt
er

 B
lv

d
Su

isu
n 

Ci
ty

 C
A 

94
58

5-
26

17

Ty
le

r A
nn

ua
l S

of
tw

ar
e 

– 
Sa

aS

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Li

st
 P

ric
e

Di
sc

ou
nt

An
nu

al
In

co
de

In
co

de
 1

0 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ui

te
Co

re
 F

in
an

ci
al

s
$ 

12
,2

22
$ 

1,
22

2
$ 

11
,0

00
Be

ne
fit

s E
nr

ol
lm

en
t

$ 
4,

12
5

$ 
41

3
$ 

3,
71

2
Fi

xe
d 

As
se

ts
$ 

2,
14

0
$ 

21
4

$ 
1,

92
6

Pe
rs

on
ne

l M
an

ag
em

en
t (

In
cl

ud
es

 P
os

iti
on

 B
ud

ge
tin

g)
$ 

7,
85

7
$ 

78
6

$ 
7,

07
1

Pr
oj

ec
t A

cc
ou

nt
in

g
$ 

2,
85

3
$ 

28
5

$ 
2,

56
8

Pu
rc

ha
sin

g
$ 

3,
80

3
$ 

38
0

$ 
3,

42
3

Ac
co

un
ts

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e

$ 
3,

12
2

$ 
31

2
$ 

2,
81

0
In

co
de

 1
0 

Cu
st

om
er

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ui

te
U

til
ity

 C
IS

 S
ys

te
m

 - 
W

at
er

/G
as

$ 
10

,0
40

$ 
1,

00
4

$ 
9,

03
6

Ca
sh

ie
rin

g
$ 

3,
27

4
$ 

32
7

$ 
2,

94
7

U
til

ity
 B

ill
in

g 
O

nl
in

e 
Co

m
po

ne
nt

 (B
as

ed
 o

n 
# 

of
 A

cc
ts

 ($
.4

8 
x 

# 
of

 A
cc

ts
)

$ 
4,

08
0

$ 
4,

08
0

M
ob

ile
 S

er
vi

ce
 O

rd
er

s
$ 

65
4

$ 
65

$ 
58

9
En

er
Go

v
Bu

sin
es

s M
an

ag
em

en
t [

10
]

$ 
6,

54
8

$ 
65

5
$ 

5,
89

3

Q
uo

te
d 

By
:

Co
dy

 G
un

st
en

so
n

Q
uo

te
 E

xp
ira

tio
n:

2/
15

/2
2

Q
uo

te
 N

am
e:

59

Item 10 
Attachment 2



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
2 

of
 9

Ci
tiz

en
 S

el
f S

er
vi

ce
 - 

Bu
sin

es
s M

an
ag

em
en

t
$ 

2,
18

3
$ 

21
8

$ 
1,

96
5

Ci
tiz

en
 S

el
f S

er
vi

ce
 - 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

$ 
2,

18
3

$ 
21

8
$ 

1,
96

5
Co

m
m

un
ity

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t (
Fo

rm
al

ly
 P

LM
) [

10
]

$ 
6,

54
8

$ 
65

5
$ 

5,
89

3
e-

Re
vi

ew
s

$ 
4,

36
6

$ 
43

7
$ 

3,
92

9
GI

S 
[2

0]
$ 

4,
36

7
$ 

43
7

$ 
3,

93
0

iG
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 A
pp

s [
7]

$ 
1,

52
8

$ 
15

3
$ 

1,
37

5
In

te
lli

ge
nt

 O
bj

ec
ts

 A
ut

om
at

io
n

$ 
5,

14
4

$ 
51

4
$ 

4,
63

0
Re

po
rt

 T
oo

lk
it

$ 
1,

28
6

$ 
12

9
$ 

1,
15

7
Ty

le
r 3

11
$ 

3,
21

5
$ 

32
2

$ 
2,

89
3

Ty
le

r E
AM

Ty
le

r A
ss

et
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 [1

2]
$ 

5,
18

9
$ 

51
9

$ 
4,

67
0

As
se

t P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 [1
2]

$ 
2,

07
5

$ 
20

8
$ 

1,
86

7
Re

qu
es

to
rs

 A
cc

es
s L

ic
en

se
 (f

or
 E

AM
)

$ 
96

5
$ 

97
$ 

86
8

An
al

yt
ic

s a
nd

 R
ep

or
tin

g
$ 

0
$ 

0
As

se
t M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
-T

yl
er

 R
ea

dy
Fo

rm
s

$ 
58

1
$ 

58
$ 

52
3

M
yC

iv
ic

M
yC

iv
ic

 C
iti

ze
n 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t &

 3
11

$ 
8,

00
0

$ 
8,

00
0

Ex
ec

uT
im

e
Ex

ec
uT

im
e 

Ti
m

e 
&

 A
tt

en
da

nc
e 

M
ob

ile
 A

cc
es

s L
ic

en
se

$ 
1,

50
3

$ 
15

0
$ 

1,
35

3
Ex

ec
uT

im
e 

Ti
m

e 
&

 A
tt

en
da

nc
e 

Im
po

rt
 L

ic
en

se
$ 

1,
52

4
$ 

15
2

$ 
1,

37
2

Ex
ec

uT
im

e 
Ti

m
e 

&
 A

tt
en

da
nc

e
$ 

4,
14

3
$ 

41
4

$ 
3,

72
9

Ex
ec

uT
im

e 
Ad

va
nc

ed
 S

ch
ed

ul
in

g 
M

ob
ile

$ 
1,

17
8

$ 
11

8
$ 

1,
06

0
Ex

ec
uT

im
e 

Ad
va

nc
ed

 S
ch

ed
ul

in
g

$ 
7,

40
9

$ 
74

1
$ 

6,
66

8
Ty

le
r C

on
te

nt
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
Ty

le
r C

on
te

nt
 M

an
ag

er
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ed
iti

on
$ 

6,
41

8
$ 

64
2

$ 
5,

77
6

TO
TA

L:
$ 

13
0,

52
3

$ 
11

,8
45

$ 
11

8,
67

8
Te

rm
 #

 o
f Y

ea
rs

:
5

Ty
le

r A
nn

ua
l S

er
vi

ce
s

60

Item 10 
Attachment 2



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
3 

of
 9

De
sc

rip
tio

n
An

nu
al

In
co

de
O

th
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Ty

le
r U

$ 
1,

37
7

TO
TA

L:
$ 

1,
37

7
Ty

le
r F

ee
s p

er
 T

ra
ns

ac
tio

n 

De
sc

rip
tio

n
N

et
 U

ni
t P

ric
e

In
co

de
In

co
de

 1
0 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ui
te

AP
 A

ut
om

at
io

n
$ 

0.
00

 
In

co
de

 1
0 

Cu
st

om
er

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ui

te
IV

R 
So

lu
tio

n 
fo

r U
til

ity
 B

ill
in

g
$ 

1.
25

 
Ty

le
r N

ot
ify

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r U

til
ity

 B
ill

in
g

$ 
0.

10
 

Se
rv

ic
es

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Ho

ur
s/

U
ni

ts
Ex

te
nd

ed
 

Pr
ic

e
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
In

co
de

 1
0 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ui
te

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

38
0

$ 
49

,4
00

$ 
0

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls 
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
em

en
t

1
$ 

2,
00

0
$ 

0

Ac
co

un
ts

 P
ay

ab
le

 H
ist

or
y 

Da
ta

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n

1
$ 

1,
00

0
$ 

0

Ac
co

un
ts

 P
ay

ab
le

 V
en

do
rs

 D
at

a 
Co

nv
er

sio
n

1
$ 

2,
00

0
$ 

0

Ge
ne

ra
l L

ed
ge

r H
ist

or
y 

Da
ta

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n

1
$ 

75
0

$ 
0

Ge
ne

ra
l L

ed
ge

r C
ha

rt
 o

f A
cc

ou
nt

s D
at

a 
Co

nv
er

sio
n

1
$ 

1,
75

0
$ 

0

Pe
rs

on
ne

l M
an

ag
em

en
t -

Pa
yr

ol
l H

ist
or

y 
Da

ta
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n
1

$ 
1,

00
0

$ 
0

Pe
rs

on
ne

l M
an

ag
em

en
t -

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s R

ec
or

ds
 D

at
a 

Co
nv

er
sio

n
1

$ 
2,

25
0

$ 
0

In
co

de
 1

0 
Cu

st
om

er
 R

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ui
te

61

Item 10 
Attachment 2



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
4 

of
 9

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

23
2

$ 
30

,1
60

$ 
0

Cu
st

om
er

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ui

te
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
1

$ 
1,

95
0

$ 
0

U
til

ity
 B

ill
in

g 
Da

ta
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n
1

$ 
6,

50
0

$ 
0

En
er

Go
v

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

52
6

$ 
68

,3
80

$ 
0

Ty
le

r E
AM

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

1
$ 

13
0

$ 
0

Ty
le

r R
ea

dy
Fo

rm
s

1
$ 

0
$ 

0

As
se

t M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

16
0

$ 
20

,8
00

$ 
0

As
se

t M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

-P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

1
$ 

2,
00

0
$ 

0

M
yC

iv
ic

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

44
$ 

5,
72

0
$ 

0

M
yC

iv
ic

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

1
$ 

25
0

$ 
0

Ex
ec

ut
im

e
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s
1

$ 
12

,7
40

$ 
0

Ex
ec

uT
im

e 
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s
1

$ 
13

0
$ 

0

Ex
ec

ut
im

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
em

en
t

1
$ 

1,
60

0
$ 

0

Ty
le

r C
on

te
nt

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

40
$ 

5,
20

0
$ 

0

TO
TA

L:
$ 

21
5,

71
0

$ 
0

Su
m

m
ar

y
O

ne
 T

im
e 

Fe
es

Re
cu

rr
in

g 
Fe

es
 

 
 

To
ta

l S
aa

S
$ 

11
8,

67
8

 
 

 
To

ta
l T

yl
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$ 

21
5,

71
0

$ 
1,

37
7

 
 

 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

To
ta

l
$ 

21
5,

71
0

$ 
12

0,
05

5
 

 
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
ot

al
$ 

33
5,

76
5

De
ta

ile
d 

Br
ea

kd
ow

n 
of

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s (
In

cl
ud

ed
 in

 S
um

m
ar

y 
To

ta
l)

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Ho

ur
s

Ex
te

nd
ed

 P
ric

e
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce

62

Item 10 
Attachment 2



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
5 

of
 9

In
co

de
In

co
de

 1
0 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ui
te

Ac
co

un
ts

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e

16
$ 

2,
08

0
$ 

0
Be

ne
fit

s E
nr

ol
lm

en
t

12
$ 

1,
56

0
$ 

0
Co

re
 F

in
an

ci
al

s
14

0
$ 

18
,2

00
$ 

0
Fi

xe
d 

As
se

ts
20

$ 
2,

60
0

$ 
0

Pe
rs

on
ne

l M
an

ag
em

en
t

11
6

$ 
15

,0
80

$ 
0

Pr
oj

ec
t A

cc
ou

nt
in

g
16

$ 
2,

08
0

$ 
0

Pu
rc

ha
sin

g
32

$ 
4,

16
0

$ 
0

Ac
co

un
ts

 P
ay

ab
le

 H
ist

or
y 

Da
ta

 A
na

ly
sis

4
$ 

52
0

$ 
0

Ac
co

un
ts

 P
ay

ab
le

 V
en

do
rs

 D
at

a 
An

al
ys

is
4

$ 
52

0
$ 

0
Ge

ne
ra

l L
ed

ge
r H

ist
or

y 
Da

ta
 A

na
ly

sis
4

$ 
52

0
$ 

0
Ge

ne
ra

l L
ed

ge
r C

ha
rt

 o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s D

at
a 

An
al

ys
is

8
$ 

1,
04

0
$ 

0
Pe

rs
on

ne
l M

an
ag

em
en

t H
ist

or
y 

Da
ta

 A
na

ly
sis

4
$ 

52
0

$ 
0

Pe
rs

on
ne

l M
an

ag
em

en
t -

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s R

ec
or

ds
 D

at
a 

An
al

ys
is

4
$ 

52
0

$ 
0

Su
b-

To
ta

l
38

0
$ 

49
,4

00
 $

 0
In

co
de

 1
0 

Cu
st

om
er

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ui

te
Ca

sh
ie

rin
g

40
$ 

5,
20

0
$ 

0
U

til
ity

 C
IS

 S
ys

te
m

 - 
W

at
er

/G
as

17
6

$ 
22

,8
80

$ 
0

M
ob

ile
 S

er
vi

ce
 O

rd
er

s
4

$ 
52

0
$ 

0
U

til
ity

 B
ill

in
g 

Da
ta

 A
na

ly
sis

12
$ 

1,
56

0
$ 

0
Su

b-
To

ta
l

23
2

$ 
30

,1
60

 $
 0

En
er

Go
v

CS
S

60
$ 

7,
80

0
$ 

0
eR

ev
ie

w
s

32
$ 

4,
16

0
$ 

0
Fu

ll 
Su

ite
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

(In
cl

. C
D,

 B
M

, G
IS

, C
SS

, T
IM

, 
iG

)
43

4
$ 

56
,4

20
$ 

0
Su

b-
To

ta
l

52
6

$ 
68

,3
80

 $
 0

Ty
le

r E
AM

63

Item 10 
Attachment 2



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
6 

of
 9

As
se

t P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

1
$ 

13
0

$ 
0

Su
b-

To
ta

l
1

$ 
13

0
 $

 0
M

yC
iv

ic
M

yC
iv

ic
 C

iti
ze

n 
En

ga
ge

m
en

t &
 3

11
44

$ 
5,

72
0

$ 
0

Su
b-

To
ta

l
44

$ 
5,

72
0

 $
 0

Ex
ec

uT
im

e
Ex

ec
uT

im
e 

Ad
va

nc
ed

 S
ch

ed
ul

in
g

48
$ 

6,
24

0
$ 

0
Ex

ec
uT

im
e 

Ti
m

e 
&

 A
tt

en
da

nc
e

50
$ 

6,
50

0
$ 

0
Su

b-
To

ta
l

98
$ 

12
,7

40
 $

 0
Ty

le
r C

on
te

nt
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
Ty

le
r C

on
te

nt
 M

an
ag

er
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ed
iti

on
40

$ 
5,

20
0

$ 
0

Su
b-

To
ta

l
40

$ 
5,

20
0

 $
 0

TO
TA

L:
13

21
$ 

17
1,

73
0

$ 
0

O
pt

io
na

l T
yl

er
 A

nn
ua

l S
of

tw
ar

e 
– 

Sa
aS

De
sc

rip
tio

n
An

nu
al

In
co

de
In

co
de

 1
0 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ui
te

In
ve

nt
or

y 
Co

nt
ro

l
$ 

4,
24

4
In

co
de

 1
0 

Cu
st

om
er

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ui

te
Ac

co
un

ts
 R

ec
ei

va
bl

e 
O

nl
in

e 
Co

m
po

ne
nt

 
$ 

1,
80

0
W

or
k 

O
rd

er
 A

ss
et

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

$ 
7,

93
1

So
cr

at
a

O
pe

n 
Fi

na
nc

e 
Su

ite
$ 

9,
00

0
TO

TA
L:

$ 
22

,9
75

O
pt

io
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s

64

Item 10 
Attachment 2



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
7 

of
 9

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Ho

ur
s/

U
ni

ts
Ex

te
nd

ed
 

Pr
ic

e
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
In

co
de

 1
0 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ui
te

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

32
$ 

4,
16

0
$ 

0

In
co

de
 1

0 
Cu

st
om

er
 R

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ui
te

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

72
$ 

9,
36

0
$ 

0

So
cr

at
a

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

28
$ 

3,
64

0
$ 

0

Se
rv

ic
e 

to
ta

l -
 T

O
TA

L:
$ 

17
,1

60
$ 

0

Co
m

m
en

ts

Ca
sh

ie
rin

g 
su

pp
or

ts
 c

re
di

t/
de

bi
t c

ar
ds

 v
ia

 E
TS

, i
nc

lu
de

s P
CI

 C
om

pl
ia

nt
, a

 c
as

h 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

in
te

rf
ac

e,
 a

 c
as

hi
er

in
g 

re
ce

ip
t i

m
po

rt
)

Co
re

 F
in

an
ci

al
s i

nc
lu

de
s g

en
er

al
 le

dg
er

, b
ud

ge
t p

re
p,

 b
an

k 
re

co
n,

 A
P,

 C
el

lS
en

se
, a

 st
an

da
rd

 fo
rm

s p
kg

, o
ut

pu
t d

ire
ct

or
, p

os
iti

ve
 p

ay
, s

ec
ur

e 
sig

na
tu

re
s.

In
co

de
 IV

R 
So

lu
tio

n 
fo

r U
til

ity
 B

ill
in

g-
Th

e 
pa

ym
en

t p
ac

ke
t i

s c
re

at
ed

 in
 c

en
tr

al
ize

d 
ca

sh
 c

ol
le

ct
io

ns
. T

he
 IV

R 
sy

st
em

 g
iv

es
 th

e 
cu

st
om

er
 a

n 
ac

co
un

t 
ba

la
nc

e,
 th

e 
cu

st
om

er
 m

ak
es

 th
e 

pa
ym

en
t b

y 
ph

on
e,

 a
nd

  t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

 m
an

ag
er

 is
 u

pd
at

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
pa

ym
en

t r
ec

or
d.

 N
O

TE
: T

he
re

 is
 a

 $
1.

25
 p

er
 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n 

fe
e 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
IV

R 
th

at
 w

ill
 b

e 
pa

id
 b

y 
cl

ie
nt

 u
nl

es
s T

yl
er

 is
 in

st
ru

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

cl
ie

nt
 to

 p
as

s a
lo

ng
 to

 th
e 

us
er

 a
t t

im
e 

of
 p

ay
m

en
t.

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r U

til
ity

 B
ill

in
g 

($
0.

10
 p

er
 c

al
l) 

in
cl

ud
es

 C
us

to
m

er
 n

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 
by

 p
ho

ne
 (c

al
l l

at
e 

no
tic

es
 a

nd
 g

en
er

al
 n

ot
ifi

ca
tio

ns
). 

Ca
ll 

lis
ts

 a
re

 
au

to
m

at
ic

al
ly

 g
en

er
at

ed
 a

nd
 th

e 
ac

co
un

t i
s u

pd
at

ed
 a

ft
er

 th
e 

ca
ll.

 It
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

 c
us

to
m

 m
es

sa
ge

 fo
r e

ac
h 

ca
ll 

ty
pe

 a
nd

 th
e 

ca
ll 

m
es

sa
ge

 c
an

 b
e 

in
 

En
gl

ish
 o

r S
pa

ni
sh

. I
t g

en
er

at
es

 re
po

rt
s b

as
ed

 o
n 

ca
ll 

re
su

lts
. N

ot
e:

 T
he

 U
til

ity
 w

ill
 b

e 
bi

lle
d 

at
 th

e 
ra

te
 sp

ec
ifi

ed
 a

bo
ve

 fo
r a

ll 
th

e 
ca

lls
 m

ad
e.

 T
he

 
U

til
ity

 w
ill

 b
e 

bi
lle

d 
qu

ar
te

rly
 b

y 
Ty

le
r T

ec
hn

ol
og

ie
s f

or
 c

al
ls 

co
nd

uc
te

d.
In

co
de

 U
til

ity
 B

ill
in

g 
O

nl
in

e 
Co

m
po

ne
nt

 d
isp

la
ys

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t s

ta
tu

s (
la

te
, c

ut
 o

ff 
et

c)
, t

he
 a

ct
io

n 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 a

vo
id

 p
en

al
ty

, c
ur

re
nt

 b
al

an
ce

, d
ep

os
its

 o
n 

fil
e 

(o
pt

io
na

l),
 la

st
 p

ay
m

en
t d

at
e,

 la
st

 p
ay

m
en

t a
m

ou
nt

, p
ay

m
en

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 o

n 
fil

e,
 la

st
 b

ill
 a

m
ou

nt
, l

as
t b

ill
 d

at
e,

 b
ill

 d
ue

 d
at

e,
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

 o
n 

fil
e 

an
d 

st
at

us
, t

ra
ns

ac
tio

n 
hi

st
or

y 
(o

nl
in

e 
pa

ym
en

ts
). 

Pa
ym

en
t p

ac
ke

t i
s c

re
at

ed
 to

 b
e 

im
po

rt
ed

 to
 u

til
ity

 sy
st

em
. A

dd
re

ss
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 le

ga
l 

de
sc

rip
tio

n,
 p

re
ci

nc
t, 

sc
ho

ol
 d

ist
ric

t, 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

t a
dd

re
ss

(s
ub

je
ct

 to
 d

at
a 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y)

. I
nc

lu
de

s c
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
hi

st
or

y 
by

 se
rv

ic
e 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
gr

ap
hs

), 
re

qu
es

t f
or

 se
rv

ic
e 

(o
pt

io
na

l),
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ch

an
ge

 re
qu

es
t (

op
tio

na
l),

 se
cu

rit
y 

-S
SL

 (s
ec

ur
e 

so
ck

et
 la

ye
r)

. N
ot

e 
th

at
 th

e 
cu

st
om

er
 p

ay
s $

1.
25

 fe
e 

pe
r 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n 

fo
r p

ay
m

en
t o

n-
lin

e.
 

U
til

ity
 C

IS
 S

ys
te

m
 in

cl
ud

es
 c

ol
le

ct
io

ns
, t

ax
 li

en
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 im

po
rt

, u
til

ity
 p

ay
m

en
t i

m
po

rt
, a

 st
an

da
rd

 fo
rm

s p
kg

., 
ou

tp
ut

 d
ire

ct
or

 a
nd

 o
ne

 U
til

ity
 

ha
nd

he
ld

 m
et

er
-r

ea
de

r i
nt

er
fa

ce
.

Ac
co

un
ts

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e 

O
nl

in
e 

Co
m

po
ne

nt
 d

isp
la

ys
 a

cc
ou

nt
 st

at
us

, a
cc

ou
nt

s f
or

 p
ay

m
en

t, 
ha

s S
ec

ur
ity

-(S
ec

ur
e 

So
ck

et
 L

ay
er

), 
an

d 
pa

ym
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

vi
a 

cr
ed

it 
ca

rd
s.

 P
ay

m
en

t p
ac

ke
t i

s c
re

at
ed

 to
 b

e 
im

po
rt

ed
 to

 a
cc

ou
nt

s r
ec

ei
va

bl
e 

sy
st

em
.

eR
ev

ie
w

s e
na

bl
es

 e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 m

ar
ku

p 
of

 su
bm

itt
ed

 p
la

ns
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
by

 c
lie

nt
 p

er
so

nn
el

. e
Re

vi
ew

s r
eq

ui
re

s B
lu

eb
ea

m
 S

tu
di

o 
Pr

im
e,

 a
t a

n 
es

tim
at

ed
 y

ea
rly

 su
bs

cr
ip

tio
n 

co
st

 o
f $

3,
00

0/
10

0 
us

er
s t

o 
be

 p
ur

ch
as

ed
 se

pa
ra

te
ly

 b
y 

Cl
ie

nt
. F

ur
th

er
 p

ric
in

g 
de

ta
il 

is 
up

on
 re

qu
es

t.

65

Item 10 
Attachment 2



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
8 

of
 9

iG
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 - 
iG

 In
sp

ec
t a

nd
 iG

 E
nf

or
ce

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 m

ob
ile

 so
lu

tio
n 

fo
r f

ie
ld

 p
er

so
nn

el
 to

 c
ap

tu
re

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
co

de
 d

at
a 

re
m

ot
el

y.
 T

yl
er

 w
ill

 a
ss

ist
 to

 
co

nn
ec

t I
G 

Ap
ps

 to
 th

e 
En

er
Go

v 
su

ite
, a

nd
 su

pp
or

t t
es

tin
g.

 T
he

se
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

on
 iO

S.
Ty

le
r 3

11
 is

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

fo
r c

iti
ze

ns
 to

 re
po

rt
 c

od
e 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s.

 T
yl

er
 re

so
ur

ce
s w

ill
 c

on
fig

ur
e,

 tr
ai

n 
cl

ie
nt

 p
er

so
nn

el
, a

nd
 su

pp
or

t g
o-

liv
e 

fo
r 3

11
 

fu
nc

tio
na

lit
y 

ut
ili

ze
d 

by
 E

ne
rG

ov
.

Ac
co

un
ts

 P
ay

ab
le

 c
on

ve
rs

io
ns

 in
cl

ud
e 

Ve
nd

or
 M

as
te

r O
nl

y 
- a

dd
iti

on
al

 fe
e 

fo
r h

ist
or

ic
al

 v
ie

w
s.

Ge
ne

ra
l L

ed
ge

r H
ist

or
y 

co
nv

er
sio

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 u

nl
im

ite
d 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 re

co
rd

s  

Ge
ne

ra
l L

ed
ge

r c
on

ve
rs

io
ns

 in
cl

ud
e 

Ch
ar

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s -

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 fe

e 
fo

r h
ist

or
ic

al
 v

ie
w

s.

Pe
rs

on
ne

l M
an

ag
em

en
t  

Hi
st

or
y 

co
nv

er
sio

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 u

nl
im

ite
d 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 re

co
rd

s  
Pe

rs
on

ne
l M

an
ag

em
en

t/
Pa

yr
ol

l c
on

ve
rs

io
ns

 in
cl

ud
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 m
as

te
r, 

de
du

ct
io

ns
/t

ax
es

, r
et

ire
m

en
t, 

cu
rr

en
t l

ea
ve

 to
ta

ls,
 c

ur
re

nt
 d

ire
ct

 d
ep

os
it 

- 
ad

di
tio

na
l f

ee
 fo

r h
ist

or
ic

al
 v

ie
w

s.
U

til
ity

 B
ill

in
g 

co
nv

er
sio

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 c

on
ta

ct
s/

pr
op

er
tie

s/
ac

co
un

ts
, m

et
er

s,
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

n/
co

ns
um

pt
io

n/
re

ad
 h

ist
or

y,
 m

et
er

ed
 se

rv
ic

es
, n

on
-m

et
er

ed
 

se
rv

ic
e.

  B
al

an
ce

d 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 c

on
ve

rt
ed

 fr
om

 c
ur

re
nt

 c
al

en
da

r y
ea

r p
lu

s p
rio

r 2
 y

ea
rs

. U
nl

im
ite

d 
hi

st
or

y 
im

po
rt

ed
 u

po
n 

re
qu

es
t.

Cl
ie

nt
 a

gr
ee

s t
ha

t i
te

m
s i

n 
th

is 
sa

le
s q

uo
ta

tio
n 

ar
e,

 u
po

n 
Cl

ie
nt

's 
sig

na
tu

re
 o

r a
pp

ro
va

l o
f s

am
e,

 h
er

eb
y 

ad
de

d 
to

 th
e 

ex
ist

in
g 

ag
re

em
en

t (
"A

gr
ee

m
en

t"
) 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

pa
rt

ie
s a

nd
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

its
 te

rm
s.

 A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, p
ay

m
en

t f
or

 sa
id

 it
em

s,
 a

s a
pp

lic
ab

le
 b

ut
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

an
y 

lis
te

d 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 h

er
ei

n,
 sh

al
l c

on
fo

rm
 

to
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

te
rm

s,
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

pa
ym

en
t t

er
m

s i
n 

an
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t, 
am

en
dm

en
t, 

or
 si

m
ila

r d
oc

um
en

t i
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

is 
sa

le
s q

uo
ta

tio
n 

is 
in

cl
ud

ed
:

• 
Li

ce
ns

e 
fe

es
 fo

r T
yl

er
 a

nd
 th

ird
-p

ar
ty

 so
ft

w
ar

e 
ar

e 
in

vo
ic

ed
 u

po
n 

th
e 

ea
rli

er
 o

f (
i) 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
lic

en
se

 k
ey

 o
r (

ii)
 w

he
n 

Ty
le

r m
ak

es
 su

ch
 so

ft
w

ar
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

.
• 

Fe
es

 fo
r h

ar
dw

ar
e 

ar
e 

in
vo

ic
ed

 u
po

n 
de

liv
er

y.
• 

Fe
es

 fo
r y

ea
r o

ne
 o

f h
ar

dw
ar

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

re
 in

vo
ic

ed
 u

po
n 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
ha

rd
w

ar
e.

• 
An

nu
al

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 S
up

po
rt

 fe
es

, S
aa

S 
fe

es
, H

os
tin

g 
fe

es
, a

nd
 S

ub
sc

rip
tio

n 
fe

es
 a

re
 fi

rs
t p

ay
ab

le
 w

he
n 

Ty
le

r m
ak

es
 th

e 
so

ft
w

ar
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 to

 th
e 

Cl
ie

nt
 (f

or
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
) o

r o
n 

th
e 

fir
st

 d
ay

 o
f t

he
 m

on
th

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
da

te
 th

is 
qu

ot
at

io
n 

w
as

 si
gn

ed
 (f

or
 S

aa
S,

 H
os

tin
g,

 a
nd

 S
ub

sc
rip

tio
n)

, a
nd

 a
ny

 su
ch

 
fe

es
 a

re
 p

ro
ra

te
d 

to
 a

lig
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 te

rm
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

ag
re

em
en

t, 
w

ith
 re

ne
w

al
s i

nv
oi

ce
d 

an
nu

al
ly

 th
er

ea
ft

er
 in

 a
cc

or
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

Ag
re

em
en

t.
• 

Fe
es

 fo
r s

er
vi

ce
s i

nc
lu

de
d 

in
 th

is 
sa

le
s q

uo
ta

tio
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

in
vo

ic
ed

 a
s i

nd
ic

at
ed

 b
el

ow
.

o 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

ot
he

r p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l s
er

vi
ce

s f
ee

s s
ha

ll 
be

 in
vo

ic
ed

 a
s d

el
iv

er
ed

.
o 

Fi
xe

d-
fe

e 
Bu

sin
es

s P
ro

ce
ss

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 se

rv
ic

es
 sh

al
l b

e 
in

vo
ic

ed
 5

0%
 u

po
n 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
Be

st
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

, b
y 

m
od

ul
e,

 a
nd

 5
0%

 
up

on
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 c

us
to

m
 d

es
kt

op
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s,
 b

y 
m

od
ul

e.
o 

Fi
xe

d-
fe

e 
co

nv
er

sio
ns

 a
re

 in
vo

ic
ed

 5
0%

 u
po

n 
in

iti
al

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

co
nv

er
te

d 
da

ta
, b

y 
co

nv
er

sio
n 

op
tio

n,
 a

nd
 5

0%
 u

po
n 

Cl
ie

nt
 a

cc
ep

ta
nc

e 
to

 lo
ad

 
th

e 
co

nv
er

te
d 

da
ta

 in
to

 L
iv

e/
Pr

od
uc

tio
n 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t, 

by
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
op

tio
n.

 W
he

re
 c

on
ve

rs
io

ns
 a

re
 q

uo
te

d 
as

 e
st

im
at

ed
, T

yl
er

 w
ill

 in
vo

ic
e 

Cl
ie

nt
 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 se

rv
ic

es
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 o
n 

a 
tim

e 
an

d 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

ba
sis

.
o 

Ex
ce

pt
 a

s o
th

er
w

ise
 p

ro
vi

de
d,

 o
th

er
 fi

xe
d 

pr
ic

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 in

vo
ic

ed
 u

po
n 

co
m

pl
et

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 F
or

 th
e 

av
oi

da
nc

e 
of

 d
ou

bt
, w

he
re

 
"P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

" a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d,
 p

ay
m

en
t s

ha
ll 

be
 in

vo
ic

ed
 u

po
n 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 d
oc

um
en

t. 
De

di
ca

te
d 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t s

er
vi

ce
s,

 if
 a

ny
, w

ill
 b

e 
in

vo
ic

ed
 m

on
th

ly
 in

 a
rr

ea
rs

, b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
fir

st
 d

ay
 o

f t
he

 m
on

th
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

in
iti

at
io

n 
of

 p
ro

je
ct

 
pl

an
ni

ng
.

o 
If 

Cl
ie

nt
 h

as
 p

ur
ch

as
ed

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t s

er
vi

ce
s,

 th
os

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

vo
ic

ed
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

Ag
re

em
en

t.
o 

N
ot

w
ith

st
an

di
ng

 a
ny

th
in

g 
to

 th
e 

co
nt

ra
ry

 st
at

ed
 a

bo
ve

, t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
pa

ym
en

t t
er

m
s s

ha
ll 

ap
pl

y 
to

 fe
es

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r m
ig

ra
tio

ns
: T

yl
er

 w
ill

 
in

vo
ic

e 
Cl

ie
nt

 5
0%

 o
f a

ny
 M

ig
ra

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 F
ee

s l
ist

ed
 a

bo
ve

 u
po

n 
Cl

ie
nt

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f t

he
 p

ro
du

ct
 su

ite
 m

ig
ra

tio
n 

sc
he

du
le

. T
he

 re
m

ai
ni

ng
 5

0%
, b

y 

66

Item 10 
Attachment 2



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
9 

of
 9

lin
e 

ite
m

, w
ill

 b
e 

bi
lle

d 
up

on
 th

e 
go

-li
ve

 o
f t

he
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 p
ro

du
ct

 su
ite

. T
yl

er
 w

ill
 in

vo
ic

e 
Cl

ie
nt

 fo
r a

ny
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t F
ee

s l
ist

ed
 a

bo
ve

 u
po

n 
th

e 
go

-li
ve

 o
f t

he
 fi

rs
t p

ro
du

ct
 su

ite
.  

An
nu

al
 S

aa
S 

Fe
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
vo

ic
ed

 u
po

n 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

ho
st

ed
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t.
An

y 
Sa

aS
 o

r h
os

te
d 

so
lu

tio
ns

 a
dd

ed
 to

 a
n 

ag
re

em
en

t c
on

ta
in

in
g 

Cl
ie

nt
-h

os
te

d 
Ty

le
r s

ol
ut

io
ns

 a
re

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
Ty

le
r’s

 S
aa

S 
Se

rv
ic

es
 te

rm
s f

ou
nd

 h
er

e:
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.ty

le
rt

ec
h.

co
m

/t
er

m
s/

ty
le

r-
sa

as
-s

er
vi

ce
s.

U
nl

es
s o

th
er

w
ise

 in
di

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 o
r a

m
en

dm
en

t t
he

re
to

, p
ric

in
g 

fo
r o

pt
io

na
l i

te
m

s w
ill

 b
e 

he
ld

Fo
r s

ix
 (6

) m
on

th
s f

ro
m

 th
e 

Q
uo

te
 d

at
e 

or
 th

e 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

Da
te

 o
f t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t, 

w
hi

ch
ev

er
 is

 la
te

r.

Cu
st

om
er

 A
pp

ro
va

l:
Da

te
:

Pr
in

t N
am

e:
P.

O
.#

:

67

Item 10 
Attachment 2

https://www.tylertech.com/terms/tyler-saas-services


THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

68



1 

SOFTWARE AS A SERVICE AGREEMENT

This Software as a Service Agreement is made between Tyler Technologies, Inc. and Client. 

WHEREAS, Client selected Tyler to provide certain products and services set forth in the Investment 
Summary, including providing Client with access to Tyler’s proprietary software products, and Tyler 
desires to provide such products and services under the terms of this Agreement; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants and promises set forth 
in this Agreement, Tyler and Client agree as follows: 

SECTION A – DEFINITIONS 

 “Agreement” means this Software as a Service Agreement.
 “Business Travel Policy” means our business travel policy.  A copy of our current Business Travel

Policy is attached as Schedule 1 to Exhibit B.
 “Client” means the City of Suisun City, California.
 “Data” means your data necessary to utilize the Tyler Software.
 “Data Storage Capacity” means the contracted amount of storage capacity for your Data

identified in the Investment Summary.
 “Defect” means a failure of the Tyler Software to substantially conform to the functional

descriptions set forth in our written proposal to you, or their functional equivalent.  Future
functionality may be updated, modified, or otherwise enhanced through our maintenance and
support services, and the governing functional descriptions for such future functionality will be
set forth in our then-current Documentation.

 “Defined Users” means the number of users that are authorized to use the SaaS Services.  The
Defined Users for the Agreement are as identified in the Investment Summary. If Exhibit A
contains EnerGov labeled software, defined users mean the maximum number of named users
that are authorized to use the EnerGov labeled modules as indicated in the Investment
Summary.

 “Developer” means a third party who owns the intellectual property rights to Third Party
Software.

 “Documentation” means any online or written documentation related to the use or
functionality of the Tyler Software that we provide or otherwise make available to you, including
instructions, user guides, manuals and other training or self-help documentation.

 “Effective Date” means the date by which both your and our authorized representatives have
signed the Agreement.

 “Force Majeure” means an event beyond the reasonable control of you or us, including, without
limitation, governmental action, war, riot or civil commotion, fire, natural disaster, or any other
cause that could not with reasonable diligence be foreseen or prevented by you or us.

 “Investment Summary” means the agreed upon cost proposal for the products and services
attached as Exhibit A.

69

Item 10 
Attachment 3



2 

 “Invoicing and Payment Policy” means the invoicing and payment policy.  A copy of our current
Invoicing and Payment Policy is attached as Exhibit B.

 “Order Form” means an ordering document that includes a quote or investment summary and
specifying the items to be provided by Tyler to Client, including any addenda and supplements
thereto.

 “SaaS Fees” means the fees for the SaaS Services identified in the Investment Summary.
 “SaaS Services” means software as a service consisting of system administration, system

management, and system monitoring activities that Tyler performs for the Tyler Software, and
includes the right to access and use the Tyler Software, receive maintenance and support on the
Tyler Software, including Downtime resolution under the terms of the SLA, and Data storage and
archiving.  SaaS Services do not include support of an operating system or hardware, support
outside of our normal business hours, or training, consulting or other professional services.

 “SLA” means the service level agreement.  A copy of our current SLA is attached hereto as
Exhibit C.

 “Statement of Work” means the industry standard implementation plan describing how our
professional services will be provided to implement the Tyler Software, and outlining your and
our roles and responsibilities in connection with that implementation.  The Statement of Work is
attached as Exhibit F.

 “Support Call Process” means the support call process applicable to all of our customers who
have licensed the Tyler Software.  A copy of our current Support Call Process is attached as
Schedule 1 to Exhibit C.

 “Third Party Hardware” means the third party hardware, if any, identified in the Investment
Summary.

 “Third Party Products” means the Third Party Software and Third Party Hardware.
 “Third Party SaaS Services” means software as a service provided by a third party, if any,

identified in the Investment Summary.
 “Third Party Services” means the third party services, if any, identified in the Investment

Summary.
 “Third Party Software” means the third party software, if any, identified in the Investment

Summary.
 “Third Party Terms” means, if any, the end user license agreement(s) or similar terms for the

Third Party Products or other parties’ products or services, as applicable, and attached or
indicated at Exhibit D.

 “Tyler” means Tyler Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation.
 “Tyler Software” means our proprietary software, including any integrations, custom

modifications, and/or other related interfaces identified in the Investment Summary and
licensed by us to you through this Agreement.

 “we”, “us”, “our” and similar terms mean Tyler.
 “you” and similar terms mean Client.

SECTION B – SAAS SERVICES 

1. Rights Granted.  We grant to you the non-exclusive, non-assignable limited right to use the SaaS
Services solely for your internal business purposes for the number of Defined Users only.  The Tyler
Software will be made available to you according to the terms of the SLA.  You acknowledge that we
have no delivery obligations and we will not ship copies of the Tyler Software as part of the SaaS
Services.  You may use the SaaS Services to access updates and enhancements to the Tyler Software,

70

Item 10 
Attachment 3



   
3 

as further described in Section C(9).  The foregoing notwithstanding, to the extent we have sold you 
perpetual licenses for Tyler Software, if and listed in the Investment Summary, for which you are 
receiving SaaS Services, your rights to use such Tyler Software are perpetual, subject to the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement including, without limitation, Section B(4).  We will make any such 
software available to you for download. 
 

2. SaaS Fees.  You agree to pay us the SaaS Fees.  Those amounts are payable in accordance with our 
Invoicing and Payment Policy.  The SaaS Fees are based on the number of Defined Users and amount 
of Data Storage Capacity.  You may add additional users or additional data storage capacity on the 
terms set forth in Section H(1). In the event you regularly and/or meaningfully exceed the Defined  
Users or Data Storage Capacity, we reserve the right to charge you additional fees commensurate 
with the overage(s).  

 
3. Ownership.   

 
3.1 We retain all ownership and intellectual property rights to the SaaS Services, the Tyler Software, 

and anything developed by us under this Agreement.  You do not acquire under this Agreement 
any license to use the Tyler Software in excess of the scope and/or duration of the SaaS Services.   
 

3.2 The Documentation is licensed to you and may be used and copied by your employees for 
internal, non-commercial reference purposes only.   
 

3.3 You retain all ownership and intellectual property rights to the Data.  You expressly recognize 
that except to the extent necessary to carry out our obligations contained in this Agreement, we 
do not create or endorse any Data used in connection with the SaaS Services.    
 

4. Restrictions. You may not: (a) make the Tyler Software or Documentation resulting from the SaaS 
Services available in any manner to any third party for use in the third party’s business operations; 
(b) modify, make derivative works of, disassemble, reverse compile, or reverse engineer any part of 
the SaaS Services; (c) access or use the SaaS Services in order to build or support, and/or assist a 
third party in building or supporting, products or services competitive to us; or (d) license, sell, rent, 
lease, transfer, assign, distribute, display, host, outsource, disclose, permit timesharing or service 
bureau use, or otherwise commercially exploit or make the SaaS Services, Tyler Software, or 
Documentation available to any third party other than as expressly permitted by this Agreement. 
 

5. Software Warranty.  We warrant that the Tyler Software will perform without Defects during the 
term of this Agreement.  If the Tyler Software does not perform as warranted, we will use all 
reasonable efforts, consistent with industry standards, to cure the Defect in accordance with the 
maintenance and support process set forth in Section C(9), below, the SLA and our then current 
Support Call Process. 

 
6. SaaS Services.  

 
6.1 Our SaaS Services are audited at least yearly in accordance with the AICPA’s Statement on 

Standards for Attestation Engagements (“SSAE”) No. 18. We have attained, and will maintain, 
SOC 1 and SOC 2 compliance, or its equivalent, for so long as you are timely paying for SaaS 
Services.  The scope of audit coverage varies for some Tyler Software solutions.  Upon execution 
of a mutually agreeable Non-Disclosure Agreement (“NDA”), we will provide you with a 

71

Item 10 
Attachment 3



4 

summary of our compliance report(s) or its equivalent.  Every year thereafter, for so long as the 
NDA is in effect and in which you make a written request, we will provide that same 
information. If our SaaS Services are provided using a 3rd party data center, we will provide 
available compliance reports for that data center. 

6.2 You will be hosted on shared hardware in a Tyler data center or in a third-party data center.  In 
either event, databases containing your Data will be dedicated to you and inaccessible to our 
other customers.  

6.3 Our Tyler data centers have fully-redundant telecommunications access, electrical power, and 
the required hardware to provide access to the Tyler Software in the event of a disaster or 
component failure.  In the event of a data center failure, we reserve the right to employ our 
disaster recovery plan for resumption of the SaaS Services. In that event, we commit to a 
Recovery Point Objective (“RPO”) of 24 hours and a Recovery Time Objective (“RTO”) of 24 
hours.  RPO represents the maximum duration of time between the most recent recoverable 
copy of your hosted Data and subsequent data center failure.  RTO represents the maximum 
duration of time following data center failure within which your access to the Tyler Software 
must be restored. 

6.4 We conduct annual penetration testing of either the production network and/or web 
application to be performed.   We will maintain industry standard intrusion detection and 
prevention systems to monitor malicious activity in the network and to log and block any such 
activity.  We will provide you with a written or electronic record of the actions taken by us in the 
event that any unauthorized access to your database(s) is detected as a result of our security 
protocols.  We will undertake an additional security audit, on terms and timing to be mutually 
agreed to by the parties, at your written request.  You may not attempt to bypass or subvert 
security restrictions in the SaaS Services or environments related to the Tyler Software.  
Unauthorized attempts to access files, passwords or other confidential information, and 
unauthorized vulnerability and penetration test scanning of our network and systems (hosted or 
otherwise) is prohibited without the prior written approval of our IT Security Officer. 

6.5 We test our disaster recovery plan on an annual basis.  Our standard test is not client-specific. 
Should you request a client-specific disaster recovery test, we will work with you to schedule 
and execute such a test on a mutually agreeable schedule.  At your written request, we will 
provide test results to you within a commercially reasonable timeframe after receipt of the 
request.  

6.6 We will be responsible for importing back-up and verifying that you can log-in.  You will be 
responsible for running reports and testing critical processes to verify the returned Data. 

6.7 We provide secure Data transmission paths between each of your workstations and our servers. 

6.8 Tyler data centers are accessible only by authorized personnel with a unique key entry. All other 
visitors to Tyler data centers must be signed in and accompanied by authorized personnel.  
Entry attempts to the data center are regularly audited by internal staff and external auditors to 
ensure no unauthorized access. 

72

Item 10 
Attachment 3



   
5 

6.9 Where applicable with respect to our applications that take or process card payment data, we 
are responsible for the security of cardholder data that we possess, including functions relating 
to storing, processing, and transmitting of the cardholder data and affirm that, as of the 
Effective Date, we comply with applicable requirements to be considered PCI DSS compliant and 
have performed the necessary steps to validate compliance with the PCI DSS. We agree to 
supply the current status of our PCI DSS compliance program in the form of an official 
Attestation of Compliance, which can be found at https://www.tylertech.com/about-
us/compliance, and in the event of any change in our status, will comply with applicable notice 
requirements. 

 
SECTION C – PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 
1. Professional Services. We will provide you the various implementation-related services itemized in 

the Investment Summary and described in the Statement of Work.  
 

2. Professional Services Fees.  You agree to pay us the professional services fees in the amounts set 
forth in the Investment Summary.  Those amounts are payable in accordance with our Invoicing and 
Payment Policy.  You acknowledge that the fees stated in the Investment Summary are good-faith 
estimates of the amount of time and materials required for your implementation.  We will bill you 
the actual fees incurred based on the in-scope services provided to you.  Any discrepancies in the 
total values set forth in the Investment Summary will be resolved by multiplying the applicable 
hourly rate by the quoted hours. 

 
3. Additional Services.  The Investment Summary contains, and the Statement of Work describes, the 

scope of services and related costs (including programming and/or interface estimates) required for 
the project based on our understanding of the specifications you supplied.  If additional work is 
required, or if you use or request additional services, we will provide you with an addendum or 
change order, as applicable, outlining the costs for the additional work.  The price quotes in the 
addendum or change order will be valid for thirty (30) days from the date of the quote.   
 

4. Cancellation. If travel is required, we will make all reasonable efforts to schedule travel for our 
personnel, including arranging travel reservations, at least two (2) weeks in advance of 
commitments.  Therefore, if you cancel services less than two (2) weeks in advance (other than for 
Force Majeure or breach by us), you will be liable for all (a) non-refundable expenses incurred by us 
on your behalf, and (b) daily fees associated with cancelled professional services if we are unable to 
reassign our personnel.  We will make all reasonable efforts to reassign personnel in the event you 
cancel within two (2) weeks of scheduled commitments. 
 

5. Services Warranty.  We will perform the services in a professional, workmanlike manner, consistent 
with industry standards.  In the event we provide services that do not conform to this warranty, we 
will re-perform such services at no additional cost to you. 

 
6. Site Access and Requirements.  At no cost to us, you agree to provide us with full and free access to 

your personnel, facilities, and equipment as may be reasonably necessary for us to provide 
implementation services, subject to any reasonable security protocols or other written policies 
provided to us as of the Effective Date, and thereafter as mutually agreed to by you and us.   

 
 

73

Item 10 
Attachment 3



6 

7. Background Checks.  For at least the past twelve (12) years, all of our employees have undergone
criminal background checks prior to hire. All employees sign our confidentiality agreement and
security policies.

8. Client Assistance.  You acknowledge that the implementation of the Tyler Software is a cooperative
process requiring the time and resources of your personnel.  You agree to use all reasonable efforts
to cooperate with and assist us as may be reasonably required to meet the agreed upon project
deadlines and other milestones for implementation.  This cooperation includes at least working with
us to schedule the implementation-related services outlined in this Agreement.  We will not be
liable for failure to meet any deadlines and milestones when such failure is due to Force Majeure or
to the failure by your personnel to provide such cooperation and assistance (either through action
or omission).

9. Maintenance and Support.  For so long as you timely pay your SaaS Fees according to the Invoicing
and Payment Policy, then in addition to the terms set forth in the SLA and the Support Call Process,
we will:

9.1 perform our maintenance and support obligations in a professional, good, and workmanlike
manner, consistent with industry standards, to resolve Defects in the Tyler Software (subject to 
any applicable release life cycle policy);  

9.2 provide support during our established support hours; 

9.3 maintain personnel that are sufficiently trained to be familiar with the Tyler Software and Third 
Party Software, if any, in order to provide maintenance and support services; 

9.4 make available to you all releases to the Tyler Software (including updates and enhancements) 
that we make generally available without additional charge to customers who have a 
maintenance and support agreement in effect; and 

9.5 provide non-Defect resolution support of prior releases of the Tyler Software in accordance with 
any applicable release life cycle policy. 

We will use all reasonable efforts to perform support services remotely.  Currently, we use a third-party 
secure unattended connectivity tool called Bomgar, as well as GotoAssist by Citrix.  Therefore, you agree 
to maintain a high-speed internet connection capable of connecting us to your PCs and server(s).  You 
agree to provide us with a login account and local administrative privileges as we may reasonably 
require to perform remote services.  We will, at our option, use the secure connection to assist with 
proper diagnosis and resolution, subject to any reasonably applicable security protocols.  If we cannot 
resolve a support issue remotely, we may be required to provide onsite services.  In such event, we will 
be responsible for our travel expenses, unless it is determined that the reason onsite support was 
required was a reason outside our control.  Either way, you agree to provide us with full and free access 
to the Tyler Software, working space, adequate facilities within a reasonable distance from the 
equipment, and use of machines, attachments, features, or other equipment reasonably necessary for 
us to provide the maintenance and support services, all at no charge to us.  We strongly recommend 
that you also maintain your VPN for backup connectivity purposes. 

74

Item 10 
Attachment 3



7 

For the avoidance of doubt, SaaS Fees do not include the following services: (a) onsite support (unless 
Tyler cannot remotely correct a Defect in the Tyler Software, as set forth above); (b) application design; 
(c) other consulting services; or (d) support outside our normal business hours as listed in our then-
current Support Call Process.  Requested services such as those outlined in this section will be billed to
you on a time and materials basis at our then current rates.  You must request those services with at
least one (1) weeks’ advance notice.

SECTION D – THIRD PARTY PRODUCTS 

1. Third Party Hardware.  We will sell, deliver, and install onsite the Third Party Hardware, if you have
purchased any, for the price set forth in the Investment Summary.  Those amounts are payable in
accordance with our Invoicing and Payment Policy.

2. Third Party Software.  As part of the SaaS Services, you will receive access to the Third Party
Software and related documentation for internal business purposes only.  Your rights to the Third
Party Software will be governed by the Third Party Terms.

3. Third Party Products Warranties.

3.1 We are authorized by each Developer to grant access to the Third Party Software.

3.2 The Third Party Hardware will be new and unused, and upon payment in full, you will receive
free and clear title to the Third Party Hardware. 

3.3 You acknowledge that we are not the manufacturer of the Third Party Products.  We do not 
warrant or guarantee the performance of the Third Party Products.  However, we grant and pass 
through to you any warranty that we may receive from the Developer or supplier of the Third 
Party Products. 

4. Third Party Services.  If you have purchased Third Party Services, those services will be provided
independent of Tyler by such third-party at the rates set forth in the Investment Summary and in
accordance with our Invoicing and Payment Policy.

SECTION E - INVOICING AND PAYMENT; INVOICE DISPUTES 

1. Invoicing and Payment.  We will invoice you the SaaS Fees and fees for other professional services in
the Investment Summary per our Invoicing and Payment Policy, subject to Section E(2).

2. Invoice Disputes. If you believe any delivered software or service does not conform to the
warranties in this Agreement, you will provide us with written notice within thirty (30) days of your
receipt of the applicable invoice.  The written notice must contain reasonable detail of the issues
you contend are in dispute so that we can confirm the issue and respond to your notice with either a
justification of the invoice, an adjustment to the invoice, or a proposal addressing the issues
presented in your notice.  We will work with you as may be necessary to develop an action plan that
outlines reasonable steps to be taken by each of us to resolve any issues presented in your notice.
You may withhold payment of the amount(s) actually in dispute, and only those amounts, until we
complete the action items outlined in the plan.  If we are unable to complete the action items
outlined in the action plan because of your failure to complete the items agreed to be done by you,

75

Item 10 
Attachment 3



   
8 

then you will remit full payment of the invoice.  We reserve the right to suspend delivery of all SaaS 
Services, including maintenance and support services, if you fail to pay an invoice not disputed as 
described above within fifteen (15) days of notice of our intent to do so. 
 

SECTION F – TERM AND TERMINATION 
 
1. Term.  The initial term of this Agreement is equal to the number of years indicated for SaaS Services 

in Exhibit A, commencing on the first day of the first month following the Effective Date, unless 
earlier terminated as set forth below.  If no duration is indicated in Exhibit A, the initial term is one 
(1) year.  Upon expiration of the initial term, this Agreement will renew automatically for additional 
one (1) year renewal terms at our then-current SaaS Fees unless terminated in writing by either 
party at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the then-current renewal term.  Your right to access 
or use the Tyler Software and the SaaS Services will terminate at the end of this Agreement.   

 
2. Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated as set forth below.  In the event of termination, 

you will pay us for all undisputed fees and expenses related to the software, products, and/or 
services you have received, or we have incurred or delivered, prior to the effective date of 
termination.  Disputed fees and expenses in all terminations other than your termination for cause 
must have been submitted as invoice disputes in accordance with Section E(2). 
 
2.1 Failure to Pay SaaS Fees.  You acknowledge that continued access to the SaaS Services is 

contingent upon your timely payment of SaaS Fees.  If you fail to timely pay the SaaS Fees, we 
may discontinue the SaaS Services and deny your access to the Tyler Software.  We may also 
terminate this Agreement if you don’t cure such failure to pay within forty-five (45) days of 
receiving written notice of our intent to terminate. 
 

2.2 For Cause.  If you believe we have materially breached this Agreement, you will invoke the 
Dispute Resolution clause set forth in Section H(3).  You may terminate this Agreement for cause 
in the event we do not cure, or create a mutually agreeable action plan to address, a material 
breach of this Agreement within the thirty (30) day window set forth in Section H(3).   
 

2.3 Force Majeure.  Either party has the right to terminate this Agreement if a Force Majeure event 
suspends performance of the SaaS Services for a period of forty-five (45) days or more. 
 

2.4 Lack of Appropriations.  If you should not appropriate or otherwise make available funds 
sufficient to utilize the SaaS Services, you may unilaterally terminate this Agreement upon thirty 
(30) days written notice to us.  You will not be entitled to a refund or offset of previously paid, 
but unused SaaS Fees.  You agree not to use termination for lack of appropriations as a 
substitute for termination for convenience. 

 
SECTION G – INDEMNIFICATION, LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND INSURANCE 
 
1. Intellectual Property Infringement Indemnification.   

 
1.1 We will defend you against any third party claim(s) that the Tyler Software or Documentation 

infringes that third party’s patent, copyright, or trademark, or misappropriates its trade secrets, 
and will pay the amount of any resulting adverse final judgment (or settlement to which we 
consent).  You must notify us promptly in writing of the claim and give us sole control over its 

76

Item 10 
Attachment 3



   
9 

defense or settlement.  You agree to provide us with reasonable assistance, cooperation, and 
information in defending the claim at our expense. 
 

1.2 Our obligations under this Section G(1) will not apply to the extent the claim or adverse final 
judgment is based on your use of the Tyler Software in contradiction of this Agreement, 
including with non-licensed third parties, or your willful infringement. 
 

1.3 If we receive information concerning an infringement or misappropriation claim related to the 
Tyler Software, we may, at our expense and without obligation to do so, either: (a) procure for 
you the right to continue its use; (b) modify it to make it non-infringing; or (c) replace it with a 
functional equivalent, in which case you will stop running the allegedly infringing Tyler Software 
immediately.  Alternatively, we may decide to litigate the claim to judgment, in which case you 
may continue to use the Tyler Software consistent with the terms of this Agreement. 
 

1.4 If an infringement or misappropriation claim is fully litigated and your use of the Tyler Software 
is enjoined by a court of competent jurisdiction, in addition to paying any adverse final 
judgment (or settlement to which we consent), we will, at our option, either: (a) procure the 
right to continue its use; (b) modify it to make it non-infringing; or (c) replace it with a functional 
equivalent.  This section provides your exclusive remedy for third party copyright, patent, or 
trademark infringement and trade secret misappropriation claims. 
 

2. General Indemnification. 
 

2.1 We will indemnify and hold harmless you and your agents, officials, and employees from and 
against any and all third-party claims, losses, liabilities, damages, costs, and expenses (including 
reasonable attorney's fees and costs) for (a) personal injury or property damage to the extent 
caused by our negligence or willful misconduct; or (b) our violation of PCI-DSS requirements or a 
law applicable to our performance under this Agreement.  You must notify us promptly in 
writing of the claim and give us sole control over its defense or settlement.  You agree to 
provide us with reasonable assistance, cooperation, and information in defending the claim at 
our expense. 
 

2.2 To the extent permitted by applicable law, you will indemnify and hold harmless us and our 
agents, officials, and employees from and against any and all third-party claims, losses, 
liabilities, damages, costs, and expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees and costs) for 
personal injury or property damage to the extent caused by your negligence or willful 
misconduct; or (b) your violation of a law applicable to your performance under this Agreement. 
We will notify you promptly in writing of the claim and will give you sole control over its defense 
or settlement.  We agree to provide you with reasonable assistance, cooperation, and 
information in defending the claim at your expense. 
 

3. DISCLAIMER.  EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT AND TO 
THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, WE HEREBY DISCLAIM ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING, BUT 
NOT LIMITED TO, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES, DUTIES, OR CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY OR 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. CLIENT UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES THAT TYLER 
DISCLAIMS ANY LIABILITY FOR ERRORS THAT RELATE TO USER ERROR. 

 

77

Item 10 
Attachment 3



10 

4. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT,
OUR LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER BASED ON A THEORY
OF CONTRACT OR TORT, INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY, SHALL BE LIMITED TO
YOUR ACTUAL DIRECT DAMAGES, NOT TO EXCEED (A) DURING THE INITIAL TERM, AS SET FORTH
IN SECTION F(1), TOTAL FEES PAID AS OF THE TIME OF THE CLAIM; OR (B) DURING ANY RENEWAL
TERM, THE THEN-CURRENT ANNUAL SAAS FEES PAYABLE IN THAT RENEWAL TERM.  THE PARTIES
ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT THE PRICES SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT ARE SET IN
RELIANCE UPON THIS LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT ALLOWED UNDER
APPLICABLE LAW, THE EXCLUSION OF CERTAIN DAMAGES, AND EACH SHALL APPLY REGARDLESS
OF THE FAILURE OF AN ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OF ANY REMEDY.  THE FOREGOING LIMITATION OF
LIABILITY SHALL NOT APPLY TO CLAIMS THAT ARE SUBJECT TO SECTIONS G(1) AND G(2).

5. EXCLUSION OF CERTAIN DAMAGES.  TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW,
IN NO EVENT SHALL WE BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, INDIRECT, OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, EVEN IF WE HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF SUCH DAMAGES.

6. Insurance.  During the course of performing services under this Agreement, we agree to maintain
the following levels of insurance: (a) Commercial General Liability of at least $1,000,000; (b)
Automobile Liability of at least $1,000,000; (c) Professional Liability of at least $1,000,000; (d)
Workers Compensation complying with applicable statutory requirements; and (e) Excess/Umbrella
Liability of at least $5,000,000.  We will add you as an additional insured to our Commercial General
Liability and Automobile Liability policies, which will automatically add you as an additional insured
to our Excess/Umbrella Liability policy as well.  We will provide you with copies of certificates of
insurance upon your written request.

SECTION H – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Additional Products and Services.  You may purchase additional products and services at the rates
set forth in the Investment Summary for twelve (12) months from the Effective Date by executing a
mutually agreed addendum.  If no rate is provided in the Investment Summary, or those twelve (12)
months have expired, you may purchase additional products and services at our then-current list
price, also by executing a mutually agreed addendum.  The terms of this Agreement will control any
such additional purchase(s), unless otherwise specifically provided in the addendum.

2. Optional Items.  Pricing for any listed optional products and services in the Investment Summary will
be valid for twelve (12) months from the Effective Date.

3. Dispute Resolution.  You agree to provide us with written notice within thirty (30) days of becoming
aware of a dispute.  You agree to cooperate with us in trying to reasonably resolve all disputes,
including, if requested by either party, appointing a senior representative to meet and engage in
good faith negotiations with our appointed senior representative.  Senior representatives will
convene within thirty (30) days of the written dispute notice, unless otherwise agreed.  All meetings
and discussions between senior representatives will be deemed confidential settlement discussions
not subject to disclosure under Federal Rule of Evidence 408 or any similar applicable state rule.  If
we fail to resolve the dispute, then the parties shall participate in non-binding mediation in an effort
to resolve the dispute.  If the dispute remains unresolved after mediation, then either of us may
assert our respective rights and remedies in a court of competent jurisdiction.  Nothing in this

78

Item 10 
Attachment 3



11 

section shall prevent you or us from seeking necessary injunctive relief during the dispute resolution 
procedures. 

4. Taxes.  The fees in the Investment Summary do not include any taxes, including, without limitation,
sales, use, or excise tax.  If you are a tax-exempt entity, you agree to provide us with a tax-exempt
certificate.  Otherwise, we will pay all applicable taxes to the proper authorities and you will
reimburse us for such taxes.  If you have a valid direct-pay permit, you agree to provide us with a
copy.  For clarity, we are responsible for paying our income taxes, both federal and state, as
applicable, arising from our performance of this Agreement.

5. Nondiscrimination.  We will not discriminate against any person employed or applying for
employment concerning the performance of our responsibilities under this Agreement.  This
discrimination prohibition will apply to all matters of initial employment, tenure, and terms of
employment, or otherwise with respect to any matter directly or indirectly relating to employment
concerning race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, sexual orientation, ancestry, disability that
is unrelated to the individual's ability to perform the duties of a particular job or position, height,
weight, marital status, or political affiliation.  We will post, where appropriate, all notices related to
nondiscrimination as may be required by applicable law.

6. E-Verify.  We have complied, and will comply, with the E-Verify procedures administered by the U.S.
Citizenship and Immigration Services Verification Division for all of our employees assigned to your
project.

7. Subcontractors.  We will not subcontract any services under this Agreement without your prior
written consent, not to be unreasonably withheld.

8. Binding Effect; No Assignment.  This Agreement shall be binding on, and shall be for the benefit of,
either your or our successor(s) or permitted assign(s). Neither party may assign this Agreement
without the prior written consent of the other party; provided, however, your consent is not
required for an assignment by us as a result of a corporate reorganization, merger, acquisition, or
purchase of substantially all of our assets.

9. Force Majeure.  Except for your payment obligations, neither party will be liable for delays in
performing its obligations under this Agreement to the extent that the delay is caused by Force
Majeure; provided, however, that within ten (10) business days of the Force Majeure event, the
party whose performance is delayed provides the other party with written notice explaining the
cause and extent thereof, as well as a request for a reasonable time extension equal to the
estimated duration of the Force Majeure event.

10. No Intended Third Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit of you
and us.  No third party will be deemed a beneficiary of this Agreement, and no third party will have
the right to make any claim or assert any right under this Agreement.  This provision does not affect
the rights of third parties under any Third Party Terms.

11. Entire Agreement; Amendment.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between you and
us with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any prior agreements, understandings,
and representations, whether written, oral, expressed, implied, or statutory.  Purchase orders
submitted by you, if any, are for your internal administrative purposes only, and the terms and

79

Item 10 
Attachment 3



12 

conditions contained in those purchase orders will have no force or effect.  This Agreement may 
only be modified by a written amendment signed by an authorized representative of each party. 

12. Severability.  If any term or provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, the
remainder of this Agreement will be considered valid and enforceable to the fullest extent
permitted by law.

13. No Waiver.  In the event that the terms and conditions of this Agreement are not strictly enforced
by either party, such non-enforcement will not act as or be deemed to act as a waiver or
modification of this Agreement, nor will such non-enforcement prevent such party from enforcing
each and every term of this Agreement thereafter.

14. Independent Contractor.  We are an independent contractor for all purposes under this Agreement.

15. Notices.  All notices or communications required or permitted as a part of this Agreement, such as
notice of an alleged material breach for a termination for cause or a dispute that must be submitted
to dispute resolution, must be in writing and will be deemed delivered upon the earlier of the
following: (a) actual receipt by the receiving party; (b) upon receipt by sender of a certified mail,
return receipt signed by an employee or agent of the receiving party; (c) upon receipt by sender of
proof of email delivery; or (d) if not actually received, five (5) days after deposit with the United
States Postal Service authorized mail center with proper postage (certified mail, return receipt
requested) affixed and addressed to the other party at the address set forth on the signature page
hereto or such other address as the party may have designated by proper notice.  The consequences
for the failure to receive a notice due to improper notification by the intended receiving party of a
change in address will be borne by the intended receiving party.

16. Client Lists.  You agree that we may identify you by name in client lists, marketing presentations, and
promotional materials.

17. Confidentiality.  Both parties recognize that their respective employees and agents, in the course of
performance of this Agreement, may be exposed to confidential information and that disclosure of
such information could violate rights to private individuals and entities, including the parties.
Confidential information is nonpublic information that a reasonable person would believe to be
confidential and includes, without limitation, personal identifying information (e.g., social security
numbers) and trade secrets, each as defined by applicable state law.  Each party agrees that it will
not disclose any confidential information of the other party and further agrees to take all reasonable
and appropriate action to prevent such disclosure by its employees or agents.  The confidentiality
covenants contained herein will survive the termination or cancellation of this Agreement.  This
obligation of confidentiality will not apply to information that:

(a) is in the public domain, either at the time of disclosure or afterwards, except by breach of
this Agreement by a party or its employees or agents;

(b) a party can establish by reasonable proof was in that party's possession at the time of initial
disclosure;

(c) a party receives from a third party who has a right to disclose it to the receiving party; or
(d) is the subject of a legitimate disclosure request under the open records laws or similar

applicable public disclosure laws governing this Agreement; provided, however, that in the
event you receive an open records or other similar applicable request, you will give us

80

Item 10 
Attachment 3



   
13 

prompt notice and otherwise perform the functions required by applicable law.   
 

18. Quarantining of Client Data.  Some services provided by Tyler require us to be in possession of your 
Data.  In the event we detect malware or other conditions associated with your Data that are 
reasonably suspected of putting Tyler resources or other Tyler clients’ data at risk, we reserve the 
absolute right to move your Data from its location within a multi-tenancy Tyler hosted environment 
to an isolated “quarantined” environment without advance notice.  Your Data will remain in such 
quarantine for a period of at least six (6) months during which time we will review the Data, and all 
traffic associated with the Data, for signs of malware or other similar issues.   If no issues are 
detected through such reviews during the six (6) month period of quarantine, we will coordinate 
with you the restoration of your Data to a non-quarantined environment.  In the event your Data 
must remain in quarantine beyond this six (6) month period through no fault of Tyler’s, we reserve 
the right to require payment of additional fees for the extended duration of quarantine.  We will 
provide an estimate of what those costs will be upon your request. 
 

19. Business License.  In the event a local business license is required for us to perform services 
hereunder, you will promptly notify us and provide us with the necessary paperwork and/or contact 
information so that we may timely obtain such license. 
 

20. Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 
your state of domicile, without regard to its rules on conflicts of law. 
 

21. Multiple Originals and Authorized Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple 
originals, any of which will be independently treated as an original document.  Any electronic, faxed, 
scanned, photocopied, or similarly reproduced signature on this Agreement or any amendment 
hereto will be deemed an original signature and will be fully enforceable as if an original signature.  
Each party represents to the other that the signatory set forth below is duly authorized to bind that 
party to this Agreement. 
 

22. Cooperative Procurement.  To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, we agree that this 
Agreement may be used as a cooperative procurement vehicle by eligible jurisdictions.  We reserve 
the right to negotiate and customize the terms and conditions set forth herein, including but not 
limited to pricing, to the scope and circumstances of that cooperative procurement. 

 
23. Socrata Solution Terms.  Your use of certain Tyler solutions includes Tyler’s Socrata data platform.  

Your rights, and the rights of any of your end users, to use Tyler’s Socrata data platform is subject to 
the Socrata SaaS Services Terms of Service, available at https://www.tylertech.com/terms/socrata-
saas-services-terms-of-service.  By signing a Tyler Agreement or Order Form, or accessing, installing, 
or using any of the Tyler solutions listed at the linked terms, you certify that you have reviewed, 
understand, and agree to said terms. 
 

24. Contract Documents.  This Agreement includes the following exhibits: 
 

Exhibit A Investment Summary 
Exhibit B Invoicing and Payment Policy 

Schedule 1: Business Travel Policy 
Exhibit C Service Level Agreement 

Schedule 1: Support Call Process 

81

Item 10 
Attachment 3



14 

Exhibit D Third Party Terms  
Schedule 1: Hyperlinked Terms 
Schedule 2: DocOrigin Terms 

Exhibit E Web Services – Hosted Application Terms 
Exhibit F Statement of Work  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, a duly authorized representative of each party has executed this Agreement as 
of the date(s) set forth below. 

Tyler Technologies, Inc. City of Suisun City, CA 

By: By: 

Name:  Name: 

Title:  Title: 

Date:  Date: 

Address for Notices: Address for Notices: 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. City of Suisun City 
One Tyler Drive 701 Civic Center Blvd. 
Yarmouth, ME 04096 Suisun City, CA 94585 
Attention: Chief Legal Officer Attention: ______________________________ 

82

Item 10 
Attachment 3



Exhibit A 

1 

Exhibit A 
Investment Summary 

The following Investment Summary details the software and services to be delivered by us to you under 
the Agreement.  This Investment Summary is effective as of the Effective Date.  Capitalized terms not 
otherwise defined will have the meaning assigned to such terms in the Agreement.  

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

83

Item 10 
Attachment 3



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
1 

of
 9

Sa
le

s Q
uo

ta
tio

n 
Fo

r:
Ci

ty
 o

f S
ui

su
n 

Ci
ty

70
1 

Ci
vi

c 
Ce

nt
er

 B
lv

d
Su

isu
n 

Ci
ty

 C
A 

94
58

5-
26

17

Ty
le

r A
nn

ua
l S

of
tw

ar
e 

– 
Sa

aS

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Li

st
 P

ric
e

Di
sc

ou
nt

An
nu

al
In

co
de

In
co

de
 1

0 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ui

te
Co

re
 F

in
an

ci
al

s
$ 

12
,2

22
$ 

1,
22

2
$ 

11
,0

00
Be

ne
fit

s E
nr

ol
lm

en
t

$ 
4,

12
5

$ 
41

3
$ 

3,
71

2
Fi

xe
d 

As
se

ts
$ 

2,
14

0
$ 

21
4

$ 
1,

92
6

Pe
rs

on
ne

l M
an

ag
em

en
t (

In
cl

ud
es

 P
os

iti
on

 B
ud

ge
tin

g)
$ 

7,
85

7
$ 

78
6

$ 
7,

07
1

Pr
oj

ec
t A

cc
ou

nt
in

g
$ 

2,
85

3
$ 

28
5

$ 
2,

56
8

Pu
rc

ha
sin

g
$ 

3,
80

3
$ 

38
0

$ 
3,

42
3

Ac
co

un
ts

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e

$ 
3,

12
2

$ 
31

2
$ 

2,
81

0
In

co
de

 1
0 

Cu
st

om
er

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ui

te
U

til
ity

 C
IS

 S
ys

te
m

 - 
W

at
er

/G
as

$ 
10

,0
40

$ 
1,

00
4

$ 
9,

03
6

Ca
sh

ie
rin

g
$ 

3,
27

4
$ 

32
7

$ 
2,

94
7

U
til

ity
 B

ill
in

g 
O

nl
in

e 
Co

m
po

ne
nt

 (B
as

ed
 o

n 
# 

of
 A

cc
ts

 ($
.4

8 
x 

# 
of

 A
cc

ts
)

$ 
4,

08
0

$ 
4,

08
0

M
ob

ile
 S

er
vi

ce
 O

rd
er

s
$ 

65
4

$ 
65

$ 
58

9
En

er
Go

v
Bu

sin
es

s M
an

ag
em

en
t [

10
]

$ 
6,

54
8

$ 
65

5
$ 

5,
89

3

Q
uo

te
d 

By
:

Co
dy

 G
un

st
en

so
n

Q
uo

te
 E

xp
ira

tio
n:

2/
15

/2
2

Q
uo

te
 N

am
e:

Ex
hi

bi
t A

84

Item 10 
Attachment 3



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
2 

of
 9

Ci
tiz

en
 S

el
f S

er
vi

ce
 - 

Bu
sin

es
s M

an
ag

em
en

t
$ 

2,
18

3
$ 

21
8

$ 
1,

96
5

Ci
tiz

en
 S

el
f S

er
vi

ce
 - 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

$ 
2,

18
3

$ 
21

8
$ 

1,
96

5
Co

m
m

un
ity

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t (
Fo

rm
al

ly
 P

LM
) [

10
]

$ 
6,

54
8

$ 
65

5
$ 

5,
89

3
e-

Re
vi

ew
s

$ 
4,

36
6

$ 
43

7
$ 

3,
92

9
GI

S 
[2

0]
$ 

4,
36

7
$ 

43
7

$ 
3,

93
0

iG
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 A
pp

s [
7]

$ 
1,

52
8

$ 
15

3
$ 

1,
37

5
In

te
lli

ge
nt

 O
bj

ec
ts

 A
ut

om
at

io
n

$ 
5,

14
4

$ 
51

4
$ 

4,
63

0
Re

po
rt

 T
oo

lk
it

$ 
1,

28
6

$ 
12

9
$ 

1,
15

7
Ty

le
r 3

11
$ 

3,
21

5
$ 

32
2

$ 
2,

89
3

Ty
le

r E
AM

Ty
le

r A
ss

et
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 [1

2]
$ 

5,
18

9
$ 

51
9

$ 
4,

67
0

As
se

t P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 [1
2]

$ 
2,

07
5

$ 
20

8
$ 

1,
86

7
Re

qu
es

to
rs

 A
cc

es
s L

ic
en

se
 (f

or
 E

AM
)

$ 
96

5
$ 

97
$ 

86
8

An
al

yt
ic

s a
nd

 R
ep

or
tin

g
$ 

0
$ 

0
As

se
t M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
-T

yl
er

 R
ea

dy
Fo

rm
s

$ 
58

1
$ 

58
$ 

52
3

M
yC

iv
ic

M
yC

iv
ic

 C
iti

ze
n 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t &

 3
11

$ 
8,

00
0

$ 
8,

00
0

Ex
ec

uT
im

e
Ex

ec
uT

im
e 

Ti
m

e 
&

 A
tt

en
da

nc
e 

M
ob

ile
 A

cc
es

s L
ic

en
se

$ 
1,

50
3

$ 
15

0
$ 

1,
35

3
Ex

ec
uT

im
e 

Ti
m

e 
&

 A
tt

en
da

nc
e 

Im
po

rt
 L

ic
en

se
$ 

1,
52

4
$ 

15
2

$ 
1,

37
2

Ex
ec

uT
im

e 
Ti

m
e 

&
 A

tt
en

da
nc

e
$ 

4,
14

3
$ 

41
4

$ 
3,

72
9

Ex
ec

uT
im

e 
Ad

va
nc

ed
 S

ch
ed

ul
in

g 
M

ob
ile

$ 
1,

17
8

$ 
11

8
$ 

1,
06

0
Ex

ec
uT

im
e 

Ad
va

nc
ed

 S
ch

ed
ul

in
g

$ 
7,

40
9

$ 
74

1
$ 

6,
66

8
Ty

le
r C

on
te

nt
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
Ty

le
r C

on
te

nt
 M

an
ag

er
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ed
iti

on
$ 

6,
41

8
$ 

64
2

$ 
5,

77
6

TO
TA

L:
$ 

13
0,

52
3

$ 
11

,8
45

$ 
11

8,
67

8
Te

rm
 #

 o
f Y

ea
rs

:
5

Ty
le

r A
nn

ua
l S

er
vi

ce
s

Ex
hi

bi
t A

85

Item 10 
Attachment 3



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
3 

of
 9

De
sc

rip
tio

n
An

nu
al

In
co

de
O

th
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Ty

le
r U

$ 
1,

37
7

TO
TA

L:
$ 

1,
37

7
Ty

le
r F

ee
s p

er
 T

ra
ns

ac
tio

n 

De
sc

rip
tio

n
N

et
 U

ni
t P

ric
e

In
co

de
In

co
de

 1
0 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ui
te

AP
 A

ut
om

at
io

n
$ 

0.
00

 
In

co
de

 1
0 

Cu
st

om
er

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ui

te
IV

R 
So

lu
tio

n 
fo

r U
til

ity
 B

ill
in

g
$ 

1.
25

 
Ty

le
r N

ot
ify

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r U

til
ity

 B
ill

in
g

$ 
0.

10
 

Se
rv

ic
es

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Ho

ur
s/

U
ni

ts
Ex

te
nd

ed
 

Pr
ic

e
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
In

co
de

 1
0 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ui
te

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

38
0

$ 
49

,4
00

$ 
0

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls 
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
em

en
t

1
$ 

2,
00

0
$ 

0

Ac
co

un
ts

 P
ay

ab
le

 H
ist

or
y 

Da
ta

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n

1
$ 

1,
00

0
$ 

0

Ac
co

un
ts

 P
ay

ab
le

 V
en

do
rs

 D
at

a 
Co

nv
er

sio
n

1
$ 

2,
00

0
$ 

0

Ge
ne

ra
l L

ed
ge

r H
ist

or
y 

Da
ta

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n

1
$ 

75
0

$ 
0

Ge
ne

ra
l L

ed
ge

r C
ha

rt
 o

f A
cc

ou
nt

s D
at

a 
Co

nv
er

sio
n

1
$ 

1,
75

0
$ 

0

Pe
rs

on
ne

l M
an

ag
em

en
t -

Pa
yr

ol
l H

ist
or

y 
Da

ta
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n
1

$ 
1,

00
0

$ 
0

Pe
rs

on
ne

l M
an

ag
em

en
t -

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s R

ec
or

ds
 D

at
a 

Co
nv

er
sio

n
1

$ 
2,

25
0

$ 
0

In
co

de
 1

0 
Cu

st
om

er
 R

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ui
te

Ex
hi

bi
t A

86

Item 10 
Attachment 3



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
4 

of
 9

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

23
2

$ 
30

,1
60

$ 
0

Cu
st

om
er

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ui

te
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
1

$ 
1,

95
0

$ 
0

U
til

ity
 B

ill
in

g 
Da

ta
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n
1

$ 
6,

50
0

$ 
0

En
er

Go
v

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

52
6

$ 
68

,3
80

$ 
0

Ty
le

r E
AM

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

1
$ 

13
0

$ 
0

Ty
le

r R
ea

dy
Fo

rm
s

1
$ 

0
$ 

0

As
se

t M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

16
0

$ 
20

,8
00

$ 
0

As
se

t M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

-P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

1
$ 

2,
00

0
$ 

0

M
yC

iv
ic

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

44
$ 

5,
72

0
$ 

0

M
yC

iv
ic

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

1
$ 

25
0

$ 
0

Ex
ec

ut
im

e
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s
1

$ 
12

,7
40

$ 
0

Ex
ec

uT
im

e 
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s
1

$ 
13

0
$ 

0

Ex
ec

ut
im

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
em

en
t

1
$ 

1,
60

0
$ 

0

Ty
le

r C
on

te
nt

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

40
$ 

5,
20

0
$ 

0

TO
TA

L:
$ 

21
5,

71
0

$ 
0

Su
m

m
ar

y
O

ne
 T

im
e 

Fe
es

Re
cu

rr
in

g 
Fe

es
To

ta
l S

aa
S

$ 
11

8,
67

8
To

ta
l T

yl
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$ 

21
5,

71
0

$ 
1,

37
7

Su
m

m
ar

y 
To

ta
l

$ 
21

5,
71

0
$ 

12
0,

05
5

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
ot

al
$ 

33
5,

76
5

De
ta

ile
d 

Br
ea

kd
ow

n 
of

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s (
In

cl
ud

ed
 in

 S
um

m
ar

y 
To

ta
l)

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Ho

ur
s

Ex
te

nd
ed

 P
ric

e
M

ai
nt

en
an

ceEx
hi

bi
t A

87

Item 10 
Attachment 3



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
5 

of
 9

In
co

de
In

co
de

 1
0 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ui
te

Ac
co

un
ts

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e

16
$ 

2,
08

0
$ 

0
Be

ne
fit

s E
nr

ol
lm

en
t

12
$ 

1,
56

0
$ 

0
Co

re
 F

in
an

ci
al

s
14

0
$ 

18
,2

00
$ 

0
Fi

xe
d 

As
se

ts
20

$ 
2,

60
0

$ 
0

Pe
rs

on
ne

l M
an

ag
em

en
t

11
6

$ 
15

,0
80

$ 
0

Pr
oj

ec
t A

cc
ou

nt
in

g
16

$ 
2,

08
0

$ 
0

Pu
rc

ha
sin

g
32

$ 
4,

16
0

$ 
0

Ac
co

un
ts

 P
ay

ab
le

 H
ist

or
y 

Da
ta

 A
na

ly
sis

4
$ 

52
0

$ 
0

Ac
co

un
ts

 P
ay

ab
le

 V
en

do
rs

 D
at

a 
An

al
ys

is
4

$ 
52

0
$ 

0
Ge

ne
ra

l L
ed

ge
r H

ist
or

y 
Da

ta
 A

na
ly

sis
4

$ 
52

0
$ 

0
Ge

ne
ra

l L
ed

ge
r C

ha
rt

 o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s D

at
a 

An
al

ys
is

8
$ 

1,
04

0
$ 

0
Pe

rs
on

ne
l M

an
ag

em
en

t H
ist

or
y 

Da
ta

 A
na

ly
sis

4
$ 

52
0

$ 
0

Pe
rs

on
ne

l M
an

ag
em

en
t -

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s R

ec
or

ds
 D

at
a 

An
al

ys
is

4
$ 

52
0

$ 
0

Su
b-

To
ta

l
38

0
$ 

49
,4

00
 $

 0
In

co
de

 1
0 

Cu
st

om
er

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ui

te
Ca

sh
ie

rin
g

40
$ 

5,
20

0
$ 

0
U

til
ity

 C
IS

 S
ys

te
m

 - 
W

at
er

/G
as

17
6

$ 
22

,8
80

$ 
0

M
ob

ile
 S

er
vi

ce
 O

rd
er

s
4

$ 
52

0
$ 

0
U

til
ity

 B
ill

in
g 

Da
ta

 A
na

ly
sis

12
$ 

1,
56

0
$ 

0
Su

b-
To

ta
l

23
2

$ 
30

,1
60

 $
 0

En
er

Go
v

CS
S

60
$ 

7,
80

0
$ 

0
eR

ev
ie

w
s

32
$ 

4,
16

0
$ 

0
Fu

ll 
Su

ite
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

(In
cl

. C
D,

 B
M

, G
IS

, C
SS

, T
IM

, 
iG

)
43

4
$ 

56
,4

20
$ 

0
Su

b-
To

ta
l

52
6

$ 
68

,3
80

 $
 0

Ty
le

r E
AM

Ex
hi

bi
t A

88

Item 10 
Attachment 3



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
6 

of
 9

As
se

t P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

1
$ 

13
0

$ 
0

Su
b-

To
ta

l
1

$ 
13

0
 $

 0
M

yC
iv

ic
M

yC
iv

ic
 C

iti
ze

n 
En

ga
ge

m
en

t &
 3

11
44

$ 
5,

72
0

$ 
0

Su
b-

To
ta

l
44

$ 
5,

72
0

 $
 0

Ex
ec

uT
im

e
Ex

ec
uT

im
e 

Ad
va

nc
ed

 S
ch

ed
ul

in
g

48
$ 

6,
24

0
$ 

0
Ex

ec
uT

im
e 

Ti
m

e 
&

 A
tt

en
da

nc
e

50
$ 

6,
50

0
$ 

0
Su

b-
To

ta
l

98
$ 

12
,7

40
 $

 0
Ty

le
r C

on
te

nt
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
Ty

le
r C

on
te

nt
 M

an
ag

er
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ed
iti

on
40

$ 
5,

20
0

$ 
0

Su
b-

To
ta

l
40

$ 
5,

20
0

 $
 0

TO
TA

L:
13

21
$ 

17
1,

73
0

$ 
0

O
pt

io
na

l T
yl

er
 A

nn
ua

l S
of

tw
ar

e 
– 

Sa
aS

De
sc

rip
tio

n
An

nu
al

In
co

de
In

co
de

 1
0 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ui
te

In
ve

nt
or

y 
Co

nt
ro

l
$ 

4,
24

4
In

co
de

 1
0 

Cu
st

om
er

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ui

te
Ac

co
un

ts
 R

ec
ei

va
bl

e 
O

nl
in

e 
Co

m
po

ne
nt

 
$ 

1,
80

0
W

or
k 

O
rd

er
 A

ss
et

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

$ 
7,

93
1

So
cr

at
a

O
pe

n 
Fi

na
nc

e 
Su

ite
$ 

9,
00

0
TO

TA
L:

$ 
22

,9
75

O
pt

io
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s

Ex
hi

bi
t A

89

Item 10 
Attachment 3



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
7 

of
 9

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Ho

ur
s/

U
ni

ts
Ex

te
nd

ed
 

Pr
ic

e
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
In

co
de

 1
0 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ui
te

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

32
$ 

4,
16

0
$ 

0

In
co

de
 1

0 
Cu

st
om

er
 R

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ui
te

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

72
$ 

9,
36

0
$ 

0

So
cr

at
a

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

28
$ 

3,
64

0
$ 

0

Se
rv

ic
e 

to
ta

l -
 T

O
TA

L:
$ 

17
,1

60
$ 

0

Co
m

m
en

ts

Ca
sh

ie
rin

g 
su

pp
or

ts
 c

re
di

t/
de

bi
t c

ar
ds

 v
ia

 E
TS

, i
nc

lu
de

s P
CI

 C
om

pl
ia

nt
, a

 c
as

h 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

in
te

rf
ac

e,
 a

 c
as

hi
er

in
g 

re
ce

ip
t i

m
po

rt
)

Co
re

 F
in

an
ci

al
s i

nc
lu

de
s g

en
er

al
 le

dg
er

, b
ud

ge
t p

re
p,

 b
an

k 
re

co
n,

 A
P,

 C
el

lS
en

se
, a

 st
an

da
rd

 fo
rm

s p
kg

, o
ut

pu
t d

ire
ct

or
, p

os
iti

ve
 p

ay
, s

ec
ur

e 
sig

na
tu

re
s.

In
co

de
 IV

R 
So

lu
tio

n 
fo

r U
til

ity
 B

ill
in

g-
Th

e 
pa

ym
en

t p
ac

ke
t i

s c
re

at
ed

 in
 c

en
tr

al
ize

d 
ca

sh
 c

ol
le

ct
io

ns
. T

he
 IV

R 
sy

st
em

 g
iv

es
 th

e 
cu

st
om

er
 a

n 
ac

co
un

t 
ba

la
nc

e,
 th

e 
cu

st
om

er
 m

ak
es

 th
e 

pa
ym

en
t b

y 
ph

on
e,

 a
nd

  t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

 m
an

ag
er

 is
 u

pd
at

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
pa

ym
en

t r
ec

or
d.

 N
O

TE
: T

he
re

 is
 a

 $
1.

25
 p

er
 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n 

fe
e 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
IV

R 
th

at
 w

ill
 b

e 
pa

id
 b

y 
cl

ie
nt

 u
nl

es
s T

yl
er

 is
 in

st
ru

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

cl
ie

nt
 to

 p
as

s a
lo

ng
 to

 th
e 

us
er

 a
t t

im
e 

of
 p

ay
m

en
t.

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r U

til
ity

 B
ill

in
g 

($
0.

10
 p

er
 c

al
l) 

in
cl

ud
es

 C
us

to
m

er
 n

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 
by

 p
ho

ne
 (c

al
l l

at
e 

no
tic

es
 a

nd
 g

en
er

al
 n

ot
ifi

ca
tio

ns
). 

Ca
ll 

lis
ts

 a
re

 
au

to
m

at
ic

al
ly

 g
en

er
at

ed
 a

nd
 th

e 
ac

co
un

t i
s u

pd
at

ed
 a

ft
er

 th
e 

ca
ll.

 It
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

 c
us

to
m

 m
es

sa
ge

 fo
r e

ac
h 

ca
ll 

ty
pe

 a
nd

 th
e 

ca
ll 

m
es

sa
ge

 c
an

 b
e 

in
 

En
gl

ish
 o

r S
pa

ni
sh

. I
t g

en
er

at
es

 re
po

rt
s b

as
ed

 o
n 

ca
ll 

re
su

lts
. N

ot
e:

 T
he

 U
til

ity
 w

ill
 b

e 
bi

lle
d 

at
 th

e 
ra

te
 sp

ec
ifi

ed
 a

bo
ve

 fo
r a

ll 
th

e 
ca

lls
 m

ad
e.

 T
he

 
U

til
ity

 w
ill

 b
e 

bi
lle

d 
qu

ar
te

rly
 b

y 
Ty

le
r T

ec
hn

ol
og

ie
s f

or
 c

al
ls 

co
nd

uc
te

d.
In

co
de

 U
til

ity
 B

ill
in

g 
O

nl
in

e 
Co

m
po

ne
nt

 d
isp

la
ys

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t s

ta
tu

s (
la

te
, c

ut
 o

ff 
et

c)
, t

he
 a

ct
io

n 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 a

vo
id

 p
en

al
ty

, c
ur

re
nt

 b
al

an
ce

, d
ep

os
its

 o
n 

fil
e 

(o
pt

io
na

l),
 la

st
 p

ay
m

en
t d

at
e,

 la
st

 p
ay

m
en

t a
m

ou
nt

, p
ay

m
en

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 o

n 
fil

e,
 la

st
 b

ill
 a

m
ou

nt
, l

as
t b

ill
 d

at
e,

 b
ill

 d
ue

 d
at

e,
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

 o
n 

fil
e 

an
d 

st
at

us
, t

ra
ns

ac
tio

n 
hi

st
or

y 
(o

nl
in

e 
pa

ym
en

ts
). 

Pa
ym

en
t p

ac
ke

t i
s c

re
at

ed
 to

 b
e 

im
po

rt
ed

 to
 u

til
ity

 sy
st

em
. A

dd
re

ss
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 le

ga
l 

de
sc

rip
tio

n,
 p

re
ci

nc
t, 

sc
ho

ol
 d

ist
ric

t, 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

t a
dd

re
ss

(s
ub

je
ct

 to
 d

at
a 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y)

. I
nc

lu
de

s c
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
hi

st
or

y 
by

 se
rv

ic
e 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
gr

ap
hs

), 
re

qu
es

t f
or

 se
rv

ic
e 

(o
pt

io
na

l),
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ch

an
ge

 re
qu

es
t (

op
tio

na
l),

 se
cu

rit
y 

-S
SL

 (s
ec

ur
e 

so
ck

et
 la

ye
r)

. N
ot

e 
th

at
 th

e 
cu

st
om

er
 p

ay
s $

1.
25

 fe
e 

pe
r 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n 

fo
r p

ay
m

en
t o

n-
lin

e.
 

U
til

ity
 C

IS
 S

ys
te

m
 in

cl
ud

es
 c

ol
le

ct
io

ns
, t

ax
 li

en
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 im

po
rt

, u
til

ity
 p

ay
m

en
t i

m
po

rt
, a

 st
an

da
rd

 fo
rm

s p
kg

., 
ou

tp
ut

 d
ire

ct
or

 a
nd

 o
ne

 U
til

ity
 

ha
nd

he
ld

 m
et

er
-r

ea
de

r i
nt

er
fa

ce
.

Ac
co

un
ts

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e 

O
nl

in
e 

Co
m

po
ne

nt
 d

isp
la

ys
 a

cc
ou

nt
 st

at
us

, a
cc

ou
nt

s f
or

 p
ay

m
en

t, 
ha

s S
ec

ur
ity

-(S
ec

ur
e 

So
ck

et
 L

ay
er

), 
an

d 
pa

ym
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

vi
a 

cr
ed

it 
ca

rd
s.

 P
ay

m
en

t p
ac

ke
t i

s c
re

at
ed

 to
 b

e 
im

po
rt

ed
 to

 a
cc

ou
nt

s r
ec

ei
va

bl
e 

sy
st

em
.

eR
ev

ie
w

s e
na

bl
es

 e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 m

ar
ku

p 
of

 su
bm

itt
ed

 p
la

ns
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
by

 c
lie

nt
 p

er
so

nn
el

. e
Re

vi
ew

s r
eq

ui
re

s B
lu

eb
ea

m
 S

tu
di

o 
Pr

im
e,

 a
t a

n 
es

tim
at

ed
 y

ea
rly

 su
bs

cr
ip

tio
n 

co
st

 o
f $

3,
00

0/
10

0 
us

er
s t

o 
be

 p
ur

ch
as

ed
 se

pa
ra

te
ly

 b
y 

Cl
ie

nt
. F

ur
th

er
 p

ric
in

g 
de

ta
il 

is 
up

on
 re

qu
es

t.

Ex
hi

bi
t A

90

Item 10 
Attachment 3



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
8 

of
 9

iG
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 - 
iG

 In
sp

ec
t a

nd
 iG

 E
nf

or
ce

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 m

ob
ile

 so
lu

tio
n 

fo
r f

ie
ld

 p
er

so
nn

el
 to

 c
ap

tu
re

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
co

de
 d

at
a 

re
m

ot
el

y.
 T

yl
er

 w
ill

 a
ss

ist
 to

 
co

nn
ec

t I
G 

Ap
ps

 to
 th

e 
En

er
Go

v 
su

ite
, a

nd
 su

pp
or

t t
es

tin
g.

 T
he

se
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

on
 iO

S.
Ty

le
r 3

11
 is

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

fo
r c

iti
ze

ns
 to

 re
po

rt
 c

od
e 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s.

 T
yl

er
 re

so
ur

ce
s w

ill
 c

on
fig

ur
e,

 tr
ai

n 
cl

ie
nt

 p
er

so
nn

el
, a

nd
 su

pp
or

t g
o-

liv
e 

fo
r 3

11
 

fu
nc

tio
na

lit
y 

ut
ili

ze
d 

by
 E

ne
rG

ov
.

Ac
co

un
ts

 P
ay

ab
le

 H
ist

or
y 

co
nv

er
sio

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 u

nl
im

ite
d 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 re

co
rd

s

Ac
co

un
ts

 P
ay

ab
le

 c
on

ve
rs

io
ns

 in
cl

ud
e 

Ve
nd

or
 M

as
te

r O
nl

y 
- a

dd
iti

on
al

 fe
e 

fo
r h

ist
or

ic
al

 v
ie

w
s.

Ge
ne

ra
l L

ed
ge

r H
ist

or
y 

co
nv

er
sio

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 u

nl
im

ite
d 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 re

co
rd

s  

Ge
ne

ra
l L

ed
ge

r c
on

ve
rs

io
ns

 in
cl

ud
e 

Ch
ar

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s -

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 fe

e 
fo

r h
ist

or
ic

al
 v

ie
w

s.

Pe
rs

on
ne

l M
an

ag
em

en
t  

Hi
st

or
y 

co
nv

er
sio

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 u

nl
im

ite
d 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 re

co
rd

s  
Pe

rs
on

ne
l M

an
ag

em
en

t/
Pa

yr
ol

l c
on

ve
rs

io
ns

 in
cl

ud
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 m
as

te
r, 

de
du

ct
io

ns
/t

ax
es

, r
et

ire
m

en
t, 

cu
rr

en
t l

ea
ve

 to
ta

ls,
 c

ur
re

nt
 d

ire
ct

 d
ep

os
it 

- 
ad

di
tio

na
l f

ee
 fo

r h
ist

or
ic

al
 v

ie
w

s.
U

til
ity

 B
ill

in
g 

co
nv

er
sio

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 c

on
ta

ct
s/

pr
op

er
tie

s/
ac

co
un

ts
, m

et
er

s,
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

n/
co

ns
um

pt
io

n/
re

ad
 h

ist
or

y,
 m

et
er

ed
 se

rv
ic

es
, n

on
-m

et
er

ed
 

se
rv

ic
e.

  B
al

an
ce

d 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 c

on
ve

rt
ed

 fr
om

 c
ur

re
nt

 c
al

en
da

r y
ea

r p
lu

s p
rio

r 2
 y

ea
rs

. U
nl

im
ite

d 
hi

st
or

y 
im

po
rt

ed
 u

po
n 

re
qu

es
t.

Cl
ie

nt
 a

gr
ee

s t
ha

t i
te

m
s i

n 
th

is 
sa

le
s q

uo
ta

tio
n 

ar
e,

 u
po

n 
Cl

ie
nt

's 
sig

na
tu

re
 o

r a
pp

ro
va

l o
f s

am
e,

 h
er

eb
y 

ad
de

d 
to

 th
e 

ex
ist

in
g 

ag
re

em
en

t (
"A

gr
ee

m
en

t"
) 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

pa
rt

ie
s a

nd
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

its
 te

rm
s.

 A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, p
ay

m
en

t f
or

 sa
id

 it
em

s,
 a

s a
pp

lic
ab

le
 b

ut
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

an
y 

lis
te

d 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 h

er
ei

n,
 sh

al
l c

on
fo

rm
 

to
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

te
rm

s,
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

pa
ym

en
t t

er
m

s i
n 

an
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t, 
am

en
dm

en
t, 

or
 si

m
ila

r d
oc

um
en

t i
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

is 
sa

le
s q

uo
ta

tio
n 

is 
in

cl
ud

ed
:

• 
Li

ce
ns

e 
fe

es
 fo

r T
yl

er
 a

nd
 th

ird
-p

ar
ty

 so
ft

w
ar

e 
ar

e 
in

vo
ic

ed
 u

po
n 

th
e 

ea
rli

er
 o

f (
i) 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
lic

en
se

 k
ey

 o
r (

ii)
 w

he
n 

Ty
le

r m
ak

es
 su

ch
 so

ft
w

ar
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

.
• 

Fe
es

 fo
r h

ar
dw

ar
e 

ar
e 

in
vo

ic
ed

 u
po

n 
de

liv
er

y.
• 

Fe
es

 fo
r y

ea
r o

ne
 o

f h
ar

dw
ar

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

re
 in

vo
ic

ed
 u

po
n 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
ha

rd
w

ar
e.

• 
An

nu
al

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 S
up

po
rt

 fe
es

, S
aa

S 
fe

es
, H

os
tin

g 
fe

es
, a

nd
 S

ub
sc

rip
tio

n 
fe

es
 a

re
 fi

rs
t p

ay
ab

le
 w

he
n 

Ty
le

r m
ak

es
 th

e 
so

ft
w

ar
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 to

 th
e 

Cl
ie

nt
 (f

or
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
) o

r o
n 

th
e 

fir
st

 d
ay

 o
f t

he
 m

on
th

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
da

te
 th

is 
qu

ot
at

io
n 

w
as

 si
gn

ed
 (f

or
 S

aa
S,

 H
os

tin
g,

 a
nd

 S
ub

sc
rip

tio
n)

, a
nd

 a
ny

 su
ch

 
fe

es
 a

re
 p

ro
ra

te
d 

to
 a

lig
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 te

rm
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

ag
re

em
en

t, 
w

ith
 re

ne
w

al
s i

nv
oi

ce
d 

an
nu

al
ly

 th
er

ea
ft

er
 in

 a
cc

or
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

Ag
re

em
en

t.
• 

Fe
es

 fo
r s

er
vi

ce
s i

nc
lu

de
d 

in
 th

is 
sa

le
s q

uo
ta

tio
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

in
vo

ic
ed

 a
s i

nd
ic

at
ed

 b
el

ow
.

o 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

ot
he

r p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l s
er

vi
ce

s f
ee

s s
ha

ll 
be

 in
vo

ic
ed

 a
s d

el
iv

er
ed

.
o 

Fi
xe

d-
fe

e 
Bu

sin
es

s P
ro

ce
ss

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 se

rv
ic

es
 sh

al
l b

e 
in

vo
ic

ed
 5

0%
 u

po
n 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
Be

st
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

, b
y 

m
od

ul
e,

 a
nd

 5
0%

 
up

on
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 c

us
to

m
 d

es
kt

op
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s,
 b

y 
m

od
ul

e.
o 

Fi
xe

d-
fe

e 
co

nv
er

sio
ns

 a
re

 in
vo

ic
ed

 5
0%

 u
po

n 
in

iti
al

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

co
nv

er
te

d 
da

ta
, b

y 
co

nv
er

sio
n 

op
tio

n,
 a

nd
 5

0%
 u

po
n 

Cl
ie

nt
 a

cc
ep

ta
nc

e 
to

 lo
ad

 
th

e 
co

nv
er

te
d 

da
ta

 in
to

 L
iv

e/
Pr

od
uc

tio
n 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t, 

by
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
op

tio
n.

 W
he

re
 c

on
ve

rs
io

ns
 a

re
 q

uo
te

d 
as

 e
st

im
at

ed
, T

yl
er

 w
ill

 in
vo

ic
e 

Cl
ie

nt
 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 se

rv
ic

es
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 o
n 

a 
tim

e 
an

d 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

ba
sis

.
o 

Ex
ce

pt
 a

s o
th

er
w

ise
 p

ro
vi

de
d,

 o
th

er
 fi

xe
d 

pr
ic

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 in

vo
ic

ed
 u

po
n 

co
m

pl
et

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 F
or

 th
e 

av
oi

da
nc

e 
of

 d
ou

bt
, w

he
re

 
"P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

" a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d,
 p

ay
m

en
t s

ha
ll 

be
 in

vo
ic

ed
 u

po
n 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 d
oc

um
en

t. 
De

di
ca

te
d 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t s

er
vi

ce
s,

 if
 a

ny
, w

ill
 b

e 
in

vo
ic

ed
 m

on
th

ly
 in

 a
rr

ea
rs

, b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
fir

st
 d

ay
 o

f t
he

 m
on

th
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

in
iti

at
io

n 
of

 p
ro

je
ct

 
pl

an
ni

ng
.

o 
If 

Cl
ie

nt
 h

as
 p

ur
ch

as
ed

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t s

er
vi

ce
s,

 th
os

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

vo
ic

ed
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

Ag
re

em
en

t.

Ex
hi

bi
t A

91

Item 10 
Attachment 3



20
21

-2
70

54
8-

G0
Z4

J4
9 

of
 9

o
N

ot
w

ith
st

an
di

ng
 a

ny
th

in
g 

to
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ry
 st

at
ed

 a
bo

ve
, t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

pa
ym

en
t t

er
m

s s
ha

ll 
ap

pl
y 

to
 fe

es
 sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 fo
r m

ig
ra

tio
ns

: T
yl

er
 w

ill
in

vo
ic

e 
Cl

ie
nt

 5
0%

 o
f a

ny
 M

ig
ra

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 F
ee

s l
ist

ed
 a

bo
ve

 u
po

n 
Cl

ie
nt

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f t

he
 p

ro
du

ct
 su

ite
 m

ig
ra

tio
n 

sc
he

du
le

. T
he

 re
m

ai
ni

ng
 5

0%
, b

y
lin

e 
ite

m
, w

ill
 b

e 
bi

lle
d 

up
on

 th
e 

go
-li

ve
 o

f t
he

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 p

ro
du

ct
 su

ite
. T

yl
er

 w
ill

 in
vo

ic
e 

Cl
ie

nt
 fo

r a
ny

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t F

ee
s l

ist
ed

 a
bo

ve
 u

po
n

th
e 

go
-li

ve
 o

f t
he

 fi
rs

t p
ro

du
ct

 su
ite

.  
An

nu
al

 S
aa

S 
Fe

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

vo
ic

ed
 u

po
n 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
ho

st
ed

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t.

An
y 

Sa
aS

 o
r h

os
te

d 
so

lu
tio

ns
 a

dd
ed

 to
 a

n 
ag

re
em

en
t c

on
ta

in
in

g 
Cl

ie
nt

-h
os

te
d 

Ty
le

r s
ol

ut
io

ns
 a

re
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

Ty
le

r’s
 S

aa
S 

Se
rv

ic
es

 te
rm

s f
ou

nd
 h

er
e:

 
ht

tp
s:

//
w

w
w

.ty
le

rt
ec

h.
co

m
/t

er
m

s/
ty

le
r-

sa
as

-s
er

vi
ce

s.

U
nl

es
s o

th
er

w
ise

 in
di

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 o
r a

m
en

dm
en

t t
he

re
to

, p
ric

in
g 

fo
r o

pt
io

na
l i

te
m

s w
ill

 b
e 

he
ld

Fo
r s

ix
 (6

) m
on

th
s f

ro
m

 th
e 

Q
uo

te
 d

at
e 

or
 th

e 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

Da
te

 o
f t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t, 

w
hi

ch
ev

er
 is

 la
te

r.

Cu
st

om
er

 A
pp

ro
va

l:
Da

te
:

Pr
in

t N
am

e:
P.

O
.#

:

Ex
hi

bi
t A

92

Item 10 
Attachment 3

https://www.tylertech.com/terms/tyler-saas-services


  Exhibit B 

   
1 

 
 

Exhibit B 
Invoicing and Payment Policy 

 
We will provide you with the software and services set forth in the Investment Summary of the 
Agreement.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined will have the meaning assigned to such terms in 
the Agreement. 
 
Invoicing:  We will invoice you for the applicable software and services in the Investment Summary as 
set forth below.  Your rights to dispute any invoice are set forth in the Agreement. 
 

1. SaaS Fees.  SaaS Fees are invoiced on an annual basis, beginning on the commencement of the 
initial term as set forth in Section F (1) of this Agreement.  Your annual SaaS fees for the initial 
term are set forth in the Investment Summary. Upon expiration of the initial term, your annual 
SaaS fees will be at our then-current rates.    
 

2. Other Tyler Software and Services. 
 

2.1 VPN Device: The fee for the VPN device will be invoiced upon installation of the VPN. 
 
2.2 Implementation and Other Professional Services (including training): Implementation and 

other professional services (including training) are billed and invoiced as delivered, at the 
rates set forth in the Investment Summary. 
 

2.3 Consulting Services: If you have purchased any Business Process Consulting services, if they 
have been quoted as fixed-fee services, they will be invoiced 50% upon your acceptance of 
the Best Practice Recommendations, by module, and 50% upon your acceptance of custom 
desktop procedures, by module.  If you have purchased any Business Process Consulting 
services and they are quoted as an estimate, then we will bill you the actual services 
delivered on a time and materials basis. 

 
2.4 Conversions: Fixed-fee conversions are invoiced 50% upon initial delivery of the converted 

Data, by conversion option, and 50% upon Client acceptance to load the converted Data into 
Live/Production environment, by conversion option.  Where conversions are quoted as 
estimated, we will bill you the actual services delivered on a time and materials basis. 

 
2.5 Requested Modifications to the Tyler Software: Requested modifications to the Tyler 

Software are invoiced 50% upon delivery of specifications and 50% upon delivery of the 
applicable modification.  You must report any failure of the modification to conform to the 
specifications within thirty (30) days of delivery; otherwise, the modification will be deemed 
to be in compliance with the specifications after the 30-day window has passed.  You may 
still report Defects to us as set forth in this Agreement. 

 

93

Item 10 
Attachment 3



Exhibit B 

2 

2.6 Other Fixed Price Services: Other fixed price services are invoiced as delivered, at the rates 
set forth in the Investment Summary. For the avoidance of doubt, where “Project Planning 
Services” are provided, payment will be due upon delivery of the Implementation Planning 
document. Dedicated Project Management services, if any, will be billed monthly in arrears, 
beginning on the first day of the month immediately following initiation of project planning. 

2.7 Web Services:  Annual fees for web services are payable in advance, commencing upon the 
availability of the service.  Your annual fees for the initial term are set forth in the 
Investment Summary. Upon expiration of the initial term, your annual fees will be at our 
then-current rates.    

2.8 Annual Services: Unless otherwise indicated in this Exhibit B, fees for annual services are due 
annually, in advance, commencing on the availability of the service. Your annual fees for the 
initial term are set forth in the Investment Summary. Upon expiration of the initial term, 
your annual fees will be at our then-current rates.    

3. Third Party Products.

3.1 Third Party Software License Fees: License fees for Third Party Software, if any, are invoiced
when we make it available to you for downloading. 

3.2 Third Party Software Maintenance: The first year maintenance for the Third Party Software 
is invoiced when we make it available to you for downloading. 

3.3 Third Party Hardware: Third Party Hardware costs, if any, are invoiced upon delivery. 

3.4 Third Party Services:  Fees for Third Party Services, if any, are invoiced as delivered, along 
with applicable expenses, at the rates set forth in the Investment Summary. 

3.5 Third Party SaaS:  Third Party SaaS Services fees, if any, are invoiced annually, in advance, 
commencing with availability of the respective Third Party SaaS Services.  Pricing for the first 
year of Third Party SaaS Services is indicated in the Investment Summary. Pricing for 
subsequent years will be at the respective third party’s then-current rates. 

4. Transaction Fees.  Unless paid directly by an end user at the time of transaction, per transaction
(call, message, etc.) fees are invoiced on a quarterly basis.  Fees are indicated in Schedule A and
may be increased by Tyler upon notice of no less than thirty (30) days.

5. Expenses.  The service rates in the Investment Summary do not include travel expenses.
Expenses for Tyler delivered services will be billed as incurred and only in accordance with our
then-current Business Travel Policy, plus a 10% travel agency processing fee.  Our current
Business Travel Policy is attached to this Exhibit B as Schedule 1.  Copies of receipts will be
provided upon request; we reserve the right to charge you an administrative fee depending on
the extent of your requests.  Receipts for miscellaneous items less than twenty-five dollars and
mileage logs are not available.

94

Item 10 
Attachment 3



Exhibit B 

3 

Payment.  Payment for undisputed invoices is due within forty-five (45) days of the invoice date.  We 
prefer to receive payments electronically.  Our electronic payment information is available by contacting 
AR@tylertech.com.  

95

Item 10 
Attachment 3



  Exhibit B 
  Schedule 1 

   
1 

 
 

Exhibit B 
Schedule 1 

Business Travel Policy 
 
 

1. Air Travel  
  

A. Reservations & Tickets  
  

The Travel Management Company (TMC) used by Tyler will provide an employee with a direct flight 
within two hours before or after the requested departure time, assuming that flight does not add 
more than three hours to the employee’s total trip duration and the fare is within $100 (each way) 
of the lowest logical fare.  If a net savings of $200 or more (each way) is possible through a 
connecting flight that is within two hours before or after the requested departure time and that 
does not add more than three hours to the employee’s total trip duration, the connecting flight 
should be accepted.    
  
Employees are encouraged to make advanced reservations to take full advantage of discount 
opportunities.  Employees should use all reasonable efforts to make travel arrangements at least 
two (2) weeks in advance of commitments.  A seven (7) day advance booking requirement is 
mandatory.  When booking less than seven (7) days in advance, management approval will be 
required.    
  
Except in the case of international travel where a segment of continuous air travel is six (6) or more 
consecutive hours in length, only economy or coach class seating is reimbursable. Employees shall 
not be reimbursed for “Basic Economy Fares” because these fares are non-refundable and have 
many restrictions that outweigh the cost-savings. 

  
B. Baggage Fees  

  
Reimbursement of personal baggage charges are based on trip duration as follows:  
  

• Up to five (5) days = one (1) checked bag  
• Six (6) or more days = two (2) checked bags  

  
Baggage fees for sports equipment are not reimbursable.  
  

96

Item 10 
Attachment 3



  Exhibit B 
  Schedule 1 

   
2 

2. Ground Transportation  
  

A. Private Automobile  
  

Mileage Allowance – Business use of an employee’s private automobile will be reimbursed at the 
current IRS allowable rate, plus out of pocket costs for tolls and parking.  Mileage will be calculated 
by using the employee's office as the starting and ending point, in compliance with IRS regulations.  
Employees who have been designated a home office should calculate miles from their home.  
 
B. Rental Car  

Employees are authorized to rent cars only in conjunction with air travel when cost, convenience, 
and the specific situation reasonably require their use.  When renting a car for Tyler business, 
employees should select a “mid-size” or “intermediate” car.  “Full” size cars may be rented when 
three or more employees are traveling together.  Tyler carries leased vehicle coverage for business 
car rentals; except for employees traveling to Alaska and internationally (excluding Canada), 
additional insurance on the rental agreement should be declined.  

 
C. Public Transportation  

  
Taxi or airport limousine services may be considered when traveling in and around cities or to and 
from airports when less expensive means of transportation are unavailable or impractical.  The 
actual fare plus a reasonable tip (15-18%) are reimbursable.  In the case of a free hotel shuttle to the 
airport, tips are included in the per diem rates and will not be reimbursed separately.  

  
D. Parking & Tolls  

  
When parking at the airport, employees must use longer term parking areas that are measured in 
days as opposed to hours.  Park and fly options located near some airports may also be used.  For 
extended trips that would result in excessive parking charges, public transportation to/from the 
airport should be considered.  Tolls will be reimbursed when receipts are presented.  

  
3. Lodging  
  

Tyler’s TMC will select hotel chains that are well established, reasonable in price, and conveniently 
located in relation to the traveler's work assignment.  Typical hotel chains include Courtyard, 
Fairfield Inn, Hampton Inn, and Holiday Inn Express.  If the employee has a discount rate with a local 
hotel, the hotel reservation should note that discount and the employee should confirm the lower 
rate with the hotel upon arrival.  Employee memberships in travel clubs such as AAA should be 
noted in their travel profiles so that the employee can take advantage of any lower club rates.   
  
“No shows” or cancellation fees are not reimbursable if the employee does not comply with the 
hotel’s cancellation policy.  
  
Tips for maids and other hotel staff are included in the per diem rate and are not reimbursed 
separately.  
 

97

Item 10 
Attachment 3



  Exhibit B 
  Schedule 1 

   
3 

Employees are not authorized to reserve non-traditional short-term lodging, such as Airbnb, VRBO, 
and HomeAway. Employees who elect to make such reservations shall not be reimbursed. 
  

4. Meals and Incidental Expenses  
  
Employee meals and incidental expenses while on travel status within the continental U.S. are in 
accordance with the federal per diem rates published by the General Services Administration.  
Incidental expenses include tips to maids, hotel staff, and shuttle drivers and other minor travel 
expenses.  Per diem rates are available at www.gsa.gov/perdiem.    
 
Per diem for Alaska, Hawaii, U.S. protectorates and international destinations are provided 
separately by the Department of State and will be determined as required.  
 
A. Overnight Travel  

 
For each full day of travel, all three meals are reimbursable.  Per diems on the first and last day of a 
trip are governed as set forth below.    
 

Departure Day  
  

Depart before 12:00 noon      Lunch and dinner  
Depart after 12:00 noon       
  
Return Day  
  

Dinner  

Return before 12:00 noon      Breakfast  
Return between 12:00 noon & 7:00 p.m.   Breakfast and lunch  
Return after 7:00 p.m.*        Breakfast, lunch and dinner  

  
*7:00 p.m. is defined as direct travel time and does not include time taken to stop for dinner.  
  
The reimbursement rates for individual meals are calculated as a percentage of the full day per diem 
as follows:  
  

Breakfast  15%  
Lunch    25%  
Dinner   60%  

  
B. Same Day Travel  
  
Employees traveling at least 100 miles to a site and returning in the same day are eligible to claim 
lunch on an expense report.  Employees on same day travel status are eligible to claim dinner in the 
event they return home after 7:00 p.m.*  
  
*7:00 p.m. is defined as direct travel time and does not include time taken to stop for dinner.  

98

Item 10 
Attachment 3



  Exhibit B 
  Schedule 1 

   
4 

  
5. Internet Access – Hotels and Airports  

  
Employees who travel may need to access their e-mail at night.  Many hotels provide free high 
speed internet access and Tyler employees are encouraged to use such hotels whenever possible.  If 
an employee’s hotel charges for internet access it is reimbursable up to $10.00 per day.  Charges for 
internet access at airports are not reimbursable.  
  

6. International Travel  
 
All international flights with the exception of flights between the U.S. and Canada should be 
reserved through TMC using the “lowest practical coach fare” with the exception of flights that are 
six (6) or more consecutive hours in length. In such event, the next available seating class above 
coach shall be reimbursed.  
 
When required to travel internationally for business, employees shall be reimbursed for photo fees, 
application fees, and execution fees when obtaining a new passport book, but fees related to 
passport renewals are not reimbursable. Visa application and legal fees, entry taxes and departure 
taxes are reimbursable.  
 
The cost of vaccinations that are either required for travel to specific countries or suggested by the 
U.S. Department of Health & Human Services for travel to specific countries, is reimbursable.  
 
Section 4, Meals & Incidental Expenses, and Section 2.b., Rental Car, shall apply to this section. 

 

99

Item 10 
Attachment 3



Exhibit C 

1 

Exhibit C 
Service Level Agreement 

I. Agreement Overview

This SLA operates in conjunction with, and does not supersede or replace any part of, the Agreement.  It 
outlines the information technology service levels that we will provide to you to ensure the availability of 
the application services that you have requested us to provide.  This SLA does not apply to any Third Party 
SaaS Services.  All other support services are documented in the Support Call Process.   

II. Definitions. Except as defined below, all defined terms have the meaning set forth in the
Agreement.

Actual Attainment: The percentage of time the Tyler Software is available during a calendar quarter, 
calculated as follows:  (Service Availability – Downtime) ÷ Service Availability. 

Client Error Incident: Any service unavailability resulting from your applications, content or equipment, or 
the acts or omissions of any of your service users or third-party providers over whom we exercise no 
control.   

Downtime: Those minutes during Service Availability, as defined below, when all users cannot launch, 
login, search or save primary data in the Tyler Software.  Downtime does not include those instances in 
which only a Defect is present. 

Emergency Maintenance: (1) maintenance that is required to patch a critical security vulnerability; (2) 
maintenance that is required to prevent an imminent outage of Service Availability; or (3) maintenance 
that is mutually agreed upon in writing by Tyler and the Client.   

Planned Downtime: Downtime that occurs during a Standard or Emergency Maintenance window. 

Service Availability:  The total number of minutes in a calendar quarter that the Tyler Software is capable 
of receiving, processing, and responding to requests, excluding Planned Downtime, Client Error Incidents, 
denial of service attacks and Force Majeure. 

Standard Maintenance: Routine maintenance to the Tyler Software and infrastructure.  Standard 
Maintenance is limited to five (5) hours per week.  

III. Service Availability

a. Your Responsibilities

Whenever you experience Downtime, you must make a support call according to the procedures outlined 
in the Support Call Process.  You will receive a support case number. 

b. Our Responsibilities

When our support team receives a call from you that Downtime has occurred or is occurring, we will work 
with you to identify the cause of the Downtime (including whether it may be the result of Planned 

100

Item 10 
Attachment 3



Exhibit C 

2 

Downtime, a Client Error Incident, Denial of Service attack or Force Majeure).  We will also work with you 
to resume normal operations. 

c. Client Relief

Our targeted Attainment Goal is 100%.  You may be entitled to credits as indicated in the Client Relief 
Schedule found below.  Your relief credit is calculated as a percentage of the SaaS fees paid for the 
calendar quarter.  

In order to receive relief credits, you must submit a request through one of the channels listed in our 
Support Call Process within fifteen days (15) of the end of the applicable quarter.  We will respond to your 
relief request within thirty (30) day(s) of receipt.   

The total credits confirmed by us will be applied to the SaaS Fee for the next billing cycle.  Issuing of such 
credit does not relieve us of our obligations under the Agreement to correct the problem which created 
the service interruption.     

Client Relief Schedule 

Actual Attainment Client Relief 

99.99% - 98.00% Remedial action will be taken 

97.99% - 95.00% 4% 

Below 95.00% 5% 

IV. Maintenance Notifications

We perform Standard Maintenance during limited windows that are historically known to be reliably 
low-traffic times.  If and when maintenance is predicted to occur during periods of higher traffic, we will 
provide advance notice of those windows and will coordinate to the greatest extent possible with you. 

Not all maintenance activities will cause application unavailability.  However, if Tyler anticipates that 
activities during a Standard or Emergency Maintenance window may make the Tyler Software unavailable, 
we will provide advance notice, as reasonably practicable that the Tyler Software will be unavailable 
during the maintenance window.

101

Item 10 
Attachment 3



Exhibit C 
Schedule 1 

1 

Exhibit C 
Schedule 1 

Support Call Process 

Support Channels 

Tyler Technologies, Inc. provides the following channels of software support for authorized users*:  
(1) On-line submission (portal) – for less urgent and functionality-based questions, users may create

support incidents through the Tyler Customer Portal available at the Tyler Technologies website.
A built-in Answer Panel provides users with resolutions to most “how-to” and configuration-
based questions through a simplified search interface with machine learning, potentially
eliminating the need to submit the support case.

(2) Email – for less urgent situations, users may submit emails directly to the software support
group.

(3) Telephone – for urgent or complex questions, users receive toll-free, telephone software
support.
* Channel availability may be limited for certain applications.

Support Resources 

A number of additional resources are available to provide a comprehensive and complete support 
experience:  

(1) Tyler Website – www.tylertech.com – for accessing client tools, documentation, and other
information including support contact information.

(2) Tyler Search -a knowledge based search engine that lets you search multiple sources
simultaneously to find the answers you need, 24x7.

(3) Tyler Community –provides a venue for all Tyler clients with current maintenance agreements to
collaborate with one another, share best practices and resources, and access documentation.

(4) Tyler University – online training courses on Tyler products.

Support Availability 

Tyler Technologies support is available during the local business hours of 8 AM to 5 PM (Monday – 
Friday) across four US time zones (Pacific, Mountain, Central and Eastern). Tyler’s holiday schedule is 
outlined below. There will be no support coverage on these days.  

New Year’s Day Labor Day 
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day Thanksgiving Day 
Memorial Day Day after Thanksgiving 
Independence Day Christmas Day 

For support teams that provide after-hours service, we will provide you with procedures for contacting 
support staff after normal business hours for reporting Priority Level 1 Defects only. Upon receipt of 

102

Item 10 
Attachment 3



Exhibit C 
Schedule 1 

2 

such a Defect notification, we will use commercially reasonable efforts to meet the resolution targets 
set forth below.  

We will also make commercially reasonable efforts to be available for one pre-scheduled Saturday of 
each month to assist your IT staff with applying patches and release upgrades, as well as consulting with 
them on server maintenance and configuration of the Tyler Software environment. 

Incident Handling 

Incident Tracking 

Every support incident is logged into Tyler’s Customer Relationship Management System and given a 
unique case number. This system tracks the history of each incident. The case number is used to track 
and reference open issues when clients contact support. Clients may track incidents, using the case 
number, through Tyler’s Customer Portal or by calling software support directly.  

Incident Priority 

Each incident is assigned a priority level, which corresponds to the Client’s needs. Tyler and the Client 
will reasonably set the priority of the incident per the chart below. This chart is not intended to address 
every type of support incident, and certain “characteristics” may or may not apply depending on 
whether the Tyler software has been deployed on customer infrastructure or the Tyler cloud. The goal is 
to help guide the Client towards clearly understanding and communicating the importance of the issue 
and to describe generally expected response and resolution targets in the production environment only. 

References to a “confirmed support incident” mean that Tyler and the Client have successfully validated 
the reported Defect/support incident.   

Priority 
Level Characteristics of Support Incident Resolution Targets* 

1 
Critical 

Support incident that causes (a) 
complete application failure or 
application unavailability; (b) 
application failure or unavailability in 
one or more of the client’s remote 
location; or (c) systemic loss of 
multiple essential system functions. 

Tyler shall provide an initial response to Priority Level 
1 incidents within one (1) business hour of receipt of 
the incident.  Once the incident has been confirmed, 
Tyler shall use commercially reasonable efforts to 
resolve such support incidents or provide a 
circumvention procedure within one (1) business 
day.  For non-hosted customers, Tyler’s responsibility 
for lost or corrupted data is limited to assisting the 
Client in restoring its last available database. 

103

Item 10 
Attachment 3



Exhibit C 
Schedule 1 

3 

Priority 
Level Characteristics of Support Incident Resolution Targets* 

2 
High 

Support incident that causes (a) 
repeated, consistent failure of 
essential functionality affecting more 
than one user or (b) loss or corruption 
of data. 

Tyler shall provide an initial response to Priority Level 
2 incidents within four (4) business hours of receipt of 
the incident.  Once the incident has been confirmed, 
Tyler shall use commercially reasonable efforts to 
resolve such support incidents or provide a 
circumvention procedure within ten (10) business 
days.  For non-hosted customers, Tyler’s 
responsibility for loss or corrupted data is limited to 
assisting the Client in restoring its last available 
database. 

3 
Medium 

Priority Level 1 incident with an 
existing circumvention procedure, or 
a Priority Level 2 incident that affects 
only one user or for which there is an 
existing circumvention procedure. 

Tyler shall provide an initial response to Priority Level 
3 incidents within one (1) business day of receipt of 
the incident.  Once the incident has been confirmed, 
Tyler shall use commercially reasonable efforts to 
resolve such support incidents without the need for a 
circumvention procedure with the next published 
maintenance update or service pack, which shall 
occur at least quarterly.  For non-hosted customers, 
Tyler’s responsibility for lost or corrupted data is 
limited to assisting the Client in restoring its last 
available database. 

4 
Non-

critical 

Support incident that causes failure of 
non-essential functionality or a 
cosmetic or other issue that does not 
qualify as any other Priority Level. 

Tyler shall provide an initial response to Priority Level 
4 incidents within two (2) business days of receipt of 
the incident.  Once the incident has been confirmed, 
Tyler shall use commercially reasonable efforts to 
resolve such support incidents, as well as cosmetic 
issues, with a future version release. 

*Response and Resolution Targets may differ by product or business need

Incident Escalation 

If Tyler is unable to resolve any priority level 1 or 2 defect as listed above or the priority of an issue has 
elevated since initiation, you may escalate the incident to the appropriate resource, as outlined by each 
product support team.  The corresponding resource will meet with you and any Tyler staff to establish a 
mutually agreeable plan for addressing the defect. 

Remote Support Tool 

Some support calls may require further analysis of the Client’s database, processes or setup to diagnose 
a problem or to assist with a question. Tyler will, at its discretion, use an industry-standard remote 
support tool. Tyler’s support team must have the ability to quickly connect to the Client’s system and 
view the site’s setup, diagnose problems, or assist with screen navigation. More information about the 
remote support tool Tyler uses is available upon request.     

104

Item 10 
Attachment 3



Exhibit D 

1 

Exhibit D  
Third Party Terms 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

105

Item 10 
Attachment 3



  Exhibit D 
Schedule 1 

   
1 

 

 

Exhibit D 
Schedule 1 

Hyperlinked Terms 

 

Pattern Stream Terms.  Your use of Pattern Stream software and services is subject to the terms found 
here: https://www.tylertech.com/terms/finite-matters-ltd-consolidated-terms.  By signing a Tyler 
Agreement or Order Form, or accessing, installing, or using Pattern Stream software or services, you 
agree that you have read, understood, and agree to such terms. 
 
Quatred Terms.  Your use of Quatred solutions is subject to the End User License Agreement terms 
found here: https://www.quatred.com/eula.  By signing a Tyler Agreement or Order Form, or accessing, 
installing, or using Quatred solutions provided to you by Tyler, you agree that you have read, 
understood, and agree to such terms. 
 
ThinPrint Terms.  Your use of Tyler Forms software and forms is subject to the End User License 
Agreement terms for ThinPrint Engine, ThinPrint License Server, and Connected Gateway found 
here:  https://www.thinprint.com/en/legal-notes/eula/.  By signing a Tyler Agreement or Order Form, or 
accessing, installing, or using Tyler Forms software or forms, you agree that you have read, understood, 
and agree to such terms.  

Twilio Acceptable Use Policy.  Your use of the Tyler solutions listed below includes functionality provided 
by a Third Party Developer, Twilio.  Your rights, and the rights of any of your end users, to use said 
functionality are subject to the terms of the Twilio Acceptable Use Policy, available 
at http://www.twilio.com/legal/aup.  By signing a Tyler Agreement or Order Form, or accessing, 
installing, or using any such Tyler solution, you certify that you have reviewed, understand and agree to 
said terms. Tyler hereby disclaims any and all liability related to your or your end user’s failure to abide 
by the terms of the Twilio Acceptable Use Policy.  Any liability for failure to abide by said terms shall rest 
solely with the person or entity whose conduct violated said terms. 

 Electronic Warrants 
 Modria 
 Odyssey Notifications Add On (text notifications) 
 ReadySub 
 Tyler Notify 
 Tyler Jury Manager 
 Tyler Supervision 
 Virtual Court 

106

Item 10 
Attachment 3



  Exhibit D 
Schedule 2 

   
1 

 

Exhibit D 
Schedule 2 

DocOrigin Terms 
 
 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 

107

Item 10 
Attachment 3



  Exhibit D 
Schedule 2 

   
2 

 

108

Item 10 
Attachment 3



Exhibit D 
Schedule 2 

3 
109

Item 10 
Attachment 3



Exhibit D 
Schedule 2 

4 
110

Item 10 
Attachment 3



  Exhibit D 
Schedule 2 

   
5 

 

111

Item 10 
Attachment 3



Exhibit D 
Schedule 2 

6 
112

Item 10 
Attachment 3



Exhibit E 

1 

Exhibit E 
Web Services – Hosted Application Terms 

Tyler Technologies, Inc. will provide you with the hosted applications indicated in the Investment 
Summary. The terms and conditions contained in this document only apply to our provision of those 
applications. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined will have the meaning assigned to such terms in the 
Agreement.  

1. Hosted Applications. We will provide you with any of the following hosted applications as indicated in
the Investment Summary.

1.1. Web Services:  Our Web Services are designed to enable you to easily establish a presence on
the Internet.  Our Web Hosting and Design is composed of our Web Hosting and Design 
Publishing Component and other miscellaneous components.  These components may be used 
independently or in conjunction with each other. 

1.2. Utility Billing On-Line:  Our Utility Billing On-Line Component allows you to make available certain 
information from your utility billing system to citizens with Internet access. This information is 
posted to your web site, which is hosted on our web server.  With the proper security clearance, 
citizens with Internet access have access to the data which can include:  Consumption information, 
service level information, requests for service, accounting information and the opportunity to pay 
their Utility Bill over the Internet using a credit card. 

1.3. Court On-Line:  Our Court On-Line Component provides the ability for municipal court fines to be 
paid by credit card via the Internet.   This system interfaces seamlessly with our Incode Municipal 
Court System. 

1.4. On-Line Records Search: Our On-Line Records Search Component allows you to display citations 
and/or docket information. The website can be available for public view or locked down to secured 
access only. This system interfaces seamlessly with our INCODE Municipal Court System. 

1.5. Building Projects On-Line: Our Building Projects On-Line Component allows you to make available 
certain information from your building projects system to citizens with Internet access. This 
information is posted to your web site, which is hosted on our web server.  With the proper 
security clearance, citizens with Internet access have access to the data which can include:  
Building project status, inspection results, inspection scheduling and the opportunity to pay their 
building projects over the Internet using a credit card. 

1.6. Business License On-Line: Our Business License On-Line Component allows you to make available 
certain information from your business license system to citizens with Internet access. This 
information is posted to your web site, which is hosted on our web server.  With the proper 
security clearance, citizens with Internet access have access to the data which can include: 
business license status, business license renewal and the opportunity to pay their business license 

113

Item 10 
Attachment 3



  Exhibit E 

   
2 

over the Internet using a credit card. 

1.7. Accounts Receivable On-Line:  Our Accounts Receivable On-Line Component allows you to make 
available certain information from your accounts receivable system to citizens with Internet 
access. This information is posted to your web site, which is hosted on our web server.  With the 
proper security clearance, citizens with Internet access have access to the data which can include: 
current balance, contract status, and the opportunity to pay the accounts receivable over the 
Internet using a credit card. 

1.8. Call Center On-Line:  Our Call Center On-Line Component allows you to make available certain 
information from your call center system to citizens with Internet access. This information is 
posted to your web site, which is hosted on our web server.  With the proper security clearance, 
citizens with Internet access have access to the data which can include: current and past incidents, 
create a new incident and view status of incident. 

1.9. Property Tax On-Line:  Our Property Tax On-Line Component allows you to make available certain 
information from your Property Tax System to citizens with Internet access. This information is 
posted to your web site, which is hosted on our web server.  With the proper security clearance, 
citizens with Internet access have access to the data which can include: parcel number, receipt 
number, tax amount due, and the opportunity to pay the Property Tax over the Internet using a 
credit card. 

1.10. Sales Tax On-Line:  Our Sales Tax On-Line Component allows you to make available certain 
information from your Sales Tax System to citizens with Internet access. This information is posted 
to your web site, which is hosted on our web server.  With the proper security clearance, citizens 
with Internet access have access to the data to pay outstanding Sales Tax balances over the 
Internet using a credit card. 

1.11. Code Enforcement Online:  Our Code Enforcement Online component allows you to make available 
certain information from your code enforcement system to citizens with Internet access.  This 
information is posted to your website, which is hosted on our web server.  With the proper 
security clearance, citizens with Internet access have access to data which can include: Incident 
Status, Incident Results. 

2. Term. We will grant you access to the hosted applications provided you timely pay all associated fees. 
The term of your subscription will commence on the Effective Date and will continue for three (3) years. 
Thereafter, the term will be automatically extended in separate one (1) year periods. Either party may 
cancel this subscription to the hosted applications upon sixty (60) days written notice to the other.  

3. Nature of Website. We shall maintain a website for you, allowing a user to access relevant data 
provided by you. This data may include information from your Tyler Software system. This website will 
be capable of accepting payments via Secured Socket Layer (SSL) encryption and credit card or debit 
card charge. 

4. Data Procurement. You must set up a merchant account with Electronic Transaction System 
Corporation or authorized.net to be solely used for our Web Service transactions. The merchant 
account must be set up to fund to your bank account. You are responsible for all fees and expenses of 
the merchant account. You must install and run Tyler Web Services to allow us to transfer the necessary 
data from your system to our servers on a real time basis. Certain information, such as payment 

114

Item 10 
Attachment 3



Exhibit E 

3 

information, must be conveyed to you. We will be responsible for transferring such information to you 
on a regular basis. Tyler Web Services may require a dedicated IP address; assignment of this address is 
your responsibility. While we assume responsibility for data transfer, we are not responsible for 
accuracy of data transferred.  

5. Limited License. Your license to use the hosted applications will automatically terminate upon
cancellation of this subscription, or upon your failure to timely pay fees or otherwise comply with these
terms and conditions.

6. Ownership of Data. All data you provide to us for the purposes of generating the website shall remain
your property. Should you terminate your subscription, we shall return to you any such data in our
possession.

7. Fees. You agree to pay the initial fee and annual subscription fees as stated in the Investment Summary
and in accordance with our Invoicing and Payment Policy. We may increase the per-transaction fee for
online payment no more than once per year with sixty (60) days prior written notice.

115

Item 10 
Attachment 3



Exhibit F 

1 

Exhibit F 
Statement of Work 

116

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

 

 

 

City of Suisun City 

SOW from Tyler Technologies, Inc. 

1/11/2022 

 
Presented to: 
Lakhwinder Deol 
701 Civic Center Blvd 
Suisun City, CA 94585 
 
 
Contact: 
Cody Gunstenson 
Email: Cody.Gunstenson@TylerTech.com 
5519 53rd Street, Lubbock, TX 79414 

117

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | i  

Table of Contents 

PART 1: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ............................................................................................................... 1 

 Project Overview ............................................................................................................................. 1 
 Introduction ........................................................................................................................................ 1 
 Project Goals ....................................................................................................................................... 1 
 Methodology ....................................................................................................................................... 1 

PART 2: PROJECT FOUNDATION ............................................................................................................. 3 

 Project Governance ......................................................................................................................... 3 

 Project Scope Control ...................................................................................................................... 4 
 Managing Scope and Project Change ................................................................................................. 4 
 Change Control ................................................................................................................................... 4 
 Change Request Management ............................................................................................................ 4 

 Acceptance Process ......................................................................................................................... 6 

 Roles and Responsibilities ................................................................................................................ 6 
 Tyler Roles & Responsibilities ............................................................................................................. 6 

 Tyler Executive Manager ............................................................................................................. 7 
 Tyler Implementation Manager .................................................................................................. 7 
 Tyler Project Manager ................................................................................................................. 7 
 Tyler Implementation Consultant ............................................................................................... 8 
 Tyler Sales ................................................................................................................................... 8 
 Tyler Technical Services .............................................................................................................. 8 

 City Roles & Responsibilities ............................................................................................................... 9 
 City Executive Sponsor ................................................................................................................ 9 
 City Steering Committee ............................................................................................................. 9 
 City Project Manager .................................................................................................................. 9 
 City Functional Leads ................................................................................................................ 11 
 City Power Users ....................................................................................................................... 11 
 City End Users ........................................................................................................................... 12 
 City Technical Lead .................................................................................................................... 12 
 City Change Management Lead ................................................................................................ 13 

PART 3: PROJECT PLAN ........................................................................................................................... 14 

 Project Stages ................................................................................................................................. 14 
 Initiate and Plan ................................................................................................................................ 15 

 Initial Coordination ................................................................................................................... 15 
 Project/Phase Planning ............................................................................................................. 16 
 Infrastructure Planning ............................................................................................................. 17 

118

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | ii 

Stakeholder Meeting ................................................................................................................. 18 
GIS Preparation ......................................................................................................................... 19 
Control Point 1: Initiate & Plan Stage Acceptance .................................................................... 20 

Assess & Define ................................................................................................................................. 20 
Solution Orientation.................................................................................................................. 20 
Current & Future State Analysis ................................................................................................ 21 
Conversion Assessment ............................................................................................................ 22 
Intentionally left blank. ............................................................................................................. 23 
Intentionally left blank. ............................................................................................................. 23 
Control Point 2: Assess & Define Stage Acceptance ................................................................. 23 

Prepare Solution ............................................................................................................................... 24 
Initial System Deployment ........................................................................................................ 24 
Configuration ............................................................................................................................ 25 
Process Refinement .................................................................................................................. 26 
Conversion Delivery .................................................................................................................. 27 
Intentionally left blank. ............................................................................................................. 29 
Intentionally left blank. ............................................................................................................. 29 
Control Point 3: Prepare Solution Stage Acceptance ................................................................ 29 

Production Readiness ....................................................................................................................... 29 
Solution Validation .................................................................................................................... 30 
Go-Live Readiness ..................................................................................................................... 30 
End User Training ...................................................................................................................... 31 
Control Point 4: Production Readiness Stage Acceptance ........................................................ 33 

Production ......................................................................................................................................... 33 
Go-Live ...................................................................................................................................... 33 
Transition to Client Services ...................................................................................................... 34 
Post Go-Live Activities ............................................................................................................... 35 
Control Point 5: Production Stage Acceptance ......................................................................... 36 

Close .................................................................................................................................................. 36 
Phase Closeout .......................................................................................................................... 37 
Project Closeout ........................................................................................................................ 38 
Control Point 6: Close Stage Acceptance .................................................................................. 39 

General Assumptions ...................................................................................................................... 39 
Project ............................................................................................................................................... 39 
Organizational Change Management ............................................................................................... 39 
Resources and Scheduling ................................................................................................................ 40 
Data ................................................................................................................................................... 40 
Facilities............................................................................................................................................. 41 

Glossary ......................................................................................................................................... 42 

PART 4: APPENDICES ............................................................................................................................... 45 

Conversion ..................................................................................................................................... 45 
Incode Utility Billing Conversion Summary ....................................................................................... 45 

119

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | iii  

Utility Billing - Standard ............................................................................................................ 45 
Utility Billing – Legacy/Historical Views .................................................................................... 45 

Incode Financials Conversion Summary ........................................................................................... 45 
General Ledger .......................................................................................................................... 45 
Accounts Payable ...................................................................................................................... 45 
Personnel Management ............................................................................................................ 45 
Community Development: Permits .......................................................................................... 46 
Business Management .............................................................................................................. 46 
Community Development: Code Cases..................................................................................... 47 
Community Development: Plans .............................................................................................. 47 

Additional Appendices ................................................................................................................ 48 
Intentionally left blank. ..................................................................................................................... 48 

Project Timeline .......................................................................................................................... 49 
Incode Financial Management Timeline ........................................................................................... 49 
Incode Utility Billing Timeline ........................................................................................................... 50 
MyCivic Timeline ............................................................................................................................... 51 
Intentionally left blank. ..................................................................................................................... 51 

120

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 1  

Part 1: Executive Summary 
Project Overview 

Introduction 

Tyler Technologies (“Tyler”) is the largest and most established provider of integrated software and 
technology services focused solely on the public sector. Tyler’s end-to-end solutions empower public sector 
entities including local, state, provincial and federal government, to operate more efficiently and connect 
more transparently with their constituents and with each other. By connecting data and processes across 
disparate systems, Tyler’s solutions transform how clients gain actionable insights that solve problems in their 
communities.  

Project Goals 

This Statement of Work (“SOW”) documents the methodology, implementation stages, activities, and roles 
and responsibilities, and project scope listed in the Investment Summary of the Agreement between Tyler 
and the City (collectively the “Project”). 

The overall goals of the project are to: 

 Successfully implement the contracted scope on time and on budget
 Increase operational efficiencies and empower users to be more productive
 Improve accessibility and responsiveness to external and internal customer needs
 Overcome current challenges and meet future goals
 Providing a single, comprehensive, and integrated solution to manage business functions
 Streamline business processes through automation, integration, and workflows
 Provide  a user-friendly user interface to promote system use and productivity
 Eliminate redundant data entry

Methodology

This is accomplished by the City and Tyler working as a partnership and Tyler utilizing its depth of 
implementation experience. While each Project is unique, all will follow Tyler’s six-stage methodology. Each 
of the six stages is comprised of multiple work packages, and each work package includes a narrative 
description, objectives, tasks, inputs, outputs/deliverables, assumptions, and a responsibility matrix. 

Tailored specifically for Tyler’s public sector clients, the project methodology contains Stage Acceptance 
Control Points throughout each Phase to ensure adherence to scope, budget, timeline controls, effective 
communications, and quality standards. Clearly defined, the project methodology repeats consistently across 
Phases, and is scaled to meet the City’s complexity and organizational needs. 

121

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 2  

 

The methodology adapts to both single-phase and multiple-phase projects.  

To achieve Project success, it is imperative that both the City and Tyler commit to including the necessary 
leadership and governance. During each stage of the Project, it is expected that the City and Tyler Project 
teams work collaboratively to complete tasks. An underlying principle of Tyler’s Implementation process is to 
employ an iterative model where the City’s business processes are assessed, configured, validated, and 
refined cyclically in line with the project budget. This approach is used in multiple stages and work packages 
as illustrated in the graphic below. 

 

The delivery approach is systematic, which reduces variability and mitigates risks to ensure Project success. As 
illustrated, some stages, along with work packages and tasks, are intended to be overlapping by nature to 
complete the Project efficiently and effectively.  

122

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 3  

Part 2: Project Foundation 
Project Governance 

Project governance is the management framework within which Project decisions are made. The role of 
Project governance is to provide a decision-making approach that is logical, robust, and repeatable. This 
allows organizations to have a structured approach for conducting its daily business in addition to project 
related activities. 

This section outlines the resources required to meet the business needs, objectives, and priorities for the 
Project, communicate the goals to other Project participants, and provide support and guidance to 
accomplish these goals. Project governance defines the structure for escalation of issues and risks, Change 
Control review and authority, and Organizational Change Management activities. Throughout the Statement 
of Work Tyler has provided RACI Matrices for activities to be completed throughout the implementation 
which will further outline responsibilities of different roles in each stage. Further refinement of the 
governance structure, related processes, and specific roles and responsibilities occurs during the Initiate & 
Plan Stage. 

The chart below illustrates an overall team perspective where Tyler and the City collaborate to resolve Project 
challenges according to defined escalation paths. If project managers do not possess authority to determine a 
solution, resolve an issue, or mitigate a risk, Tyler implementation management and the City Steering 
Committee become the escalation points to triage responses prior to escalation to the City and Tyler 
executive sponsors. As part of the escalation process, each Project governance tier presents 
recommendations and supporting information to facilitate knowledge transfer and issue resolution. The City 
and Tyler executive sponsors serve as the final escalation point.  

123

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 4  

 Project Scope Control 

 Managing Scope and Project Change 

Project Management governance principles contend that there are three connected constraints on a Project: 
budget, timeline, and scope. These constraints, known as the “triple constraints” or project management 
triangle, define budget in terms of financial cost, labor costs, and other resource costs. Scope is defined as the 
work performed to deliver a product, service or result with the specified features and functions, while time is 
simply defined as the schedule. The Triple Constraint theory states that if you change one side of the triangle, 
the other two sides must be correspondingly adjusted. For example, if the scope of the Project is increased, 
cost and time to complete will also need to increase. The Project and executive teams will need to remain 
cognizant of these constraints when making impactful decisions to the Project. A simple illustration of this 
triangle is included here, showing the connection of each item and their relational impact to the overall 
Scope. 

 

A pillar of any successful project is the ability to properly manage scope while allowing the appropriate level 
of flexibility to incorporate approved changes. Scope and changes within the project will be managed using 
the change control process outlined in the following section. 

 Change Control 

It may become necessary to change the scope of this Project due to unforeseeable circumstances (e.g., new 
constraints or opportunities are discovered). This Project is being undertaken with the understanding that 
Project scope, schedule, and/or cost may need to change to produce optimal results for stakeholders. 
Changes to contractual requirements will follow the change control process specified in the final contract, 
and as described below. 

 Change Request Management 

Should the need for a change to Project scope, schedule, and/or cost be identified during the Project, the 
change will be brought to the attention of the Steering Committee and an assessment of the change will 
occur. While such changes may result in additional costs and delays relative to the schedule, some changes 
may result in less cost to the City; for example, the City may decide it no longer needs a deliverable originally 
defined in the Project. The Change Request will include the following information:  

124

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 5  

 The nature of the change. 
 A good faith estimate of the additional cost or associated savings to the City, if any. 
 The timetable for implementing the change. 
 The effect on and/or risk to the schedule, resource needs or resource responsibilities. 

The City will use its good faith efforts to either approve or disapprove any Change Request within ten (10) 
Business Days (or other period as mutually agreeable between Tyler and the City). Any changes to the Project 
scope, budget, or timeline must be documented and approved in writing using a Change Request form. These 
changes constitute a formal amendment to the Statement of Work and will supersede any conflicting term in 
the Statement of Work.  

 

125

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 6  

Acceptance Process 
The implementation of a Project involves many decisions to be made throughout its lifecycle. Decisions will 
vary from higher level strategy decisions to smaller, detailed Project level decisions. It is critical to the success 
of the Project that each City office or department designates specific individuals for making decisions on 
behalf of their offices or departments. 

Both Tyler and the City will identify representative project managers. These individuals will represent the 
interests of all stakeholders and serve as the primary contacts between the two organizations.  

The coordination of gaining City feedback and approval on Project deliverables will be critical to the success of 
the Project. The City project manager will strive to gain deliverable and decision approvals from all authorized 
City representatives. Given that the designated decision-maker for each department may not always be 
available, there must be a designated proxy for each decision point in the Project. Assignment of each proxy 
will be the responsibility of the leadership from each City department. The proxies will be named individuals 
that have the authorization to make decisions on behalf of their department. 

The following process will be used for accepting Deliverables and Control Points: 

 The City shall have five (5) business days from the date of delivery, or as otherwise mutually agreed
upon by the parties in writing, to accept each Deliverable or Control Point. If the City does not
provide acceptance or acknowledgement within five (5) business days, or the otherwise agreed upon
timeframe, not to be unreasonably withheld, Tyler deems the Deliverable or Control Point as
accepted.

 If the City does not agree the Deliverable or Control Point meets requirements, the City shall notify
Tyler project manager(s), in writing, with reasoning within five (5) business days, or the otherwise
agreed-upon timeframe, not to be unreasonably withheld, of receipt of the Deliverable.

 Tyler shall address any deficiencies and redeliver the Deliverable or Control Point. The City shall then
have two (2) business days from receipt of the redelivered Deliverable or Control Point to accept or
again submit written notification of reasons for rejecting the milestone. If the City does not provide
acceptance within two (2) business days, or the otherwise agreed upon timeframe, not to be
unreasonably withheld, Tyler deems the Deliverable or Control Point as accepted.

Roles and Responsibilities
The following defines the roles and responsibilities of each Project resource for the City and Tyler. Roles and 
responsibilities may not follow the organizational chart or position descriptions at the City, but are roles 
defined within the Project. It is common for individual resources on both the Tyler and City project teams to 
fill multiple roles. Similarly, it is common for some roles to be filled by multiple people. 

Tyler Roles & Responsibilities 

Tyler assigns a project manager prior to the start of each Phase of the Project (some Projects may only be one 
Phase in duration). Additional Tyler resources are assigned as the schedule develops and as needs arise.  

126

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 7  

 Tyler Executive Manager 

Tyler executive management has indirect involvement with the Project and is part of the Tyler escalation 
process. This team member offers additional support to the Project team and collaborates with other Tyler 
department managers as needed to escalate and facilitate implementation Project tasks and decisions. 

 Provides clear direction for Tyler staff on executing on the Project Deliverables to align with satisfying 
the City ’s overall organizational strategy. 

 Authorizes required Project resources. 
 Resolves all decisions and/or issues not resolved at the implementation management level as part of 

the escalation process. 
 Acts as the counterpart to the City ’s executive sponsor. 

 Tyler Implementation Manager 

 Tyler implementation management has indirect involvement with the Project and is part of the Tyler 
escalation process. The Tyler project managers consult implementation management on issues and 
outstanding decisions critical to the Project. Implementation management works toward a solution 
with the Tyler Project Manager or with City management as appropriate. Tyler executive 
management is the escalation point for any issues not resolved at this level.  

 Assigns Tyler Project personnel. 
 Provides support for the Project team. 
 Provides management support for the Project to ensure it is staffed appropriately and staff have 

necessary resources. 
 Monitors Project progress including progress towards agreed upon goals and objectives. 

 Tyler Project Manager 

 The Tyler project manager(s) provides oversight of the Project, coordination of Tyler resources 
between departments, management of the Project budget and schedule, effective risk, and issue 
management, and is the primary point of contact for all Project related items. As requested by the 
City, the Tyler Project Manager provides regular updates to the City Steering Committee and other 
Tyler governance members. Tyler Project Manager’s role includes responsibilities in the following 
areas: 

 Contract Management 

 Validates contract compliance throughout the Project. 
 Ensures Deliverables meet contract requirements. 
 Acts as primary point of contact for all contract and invoicing questions. 
 Prepares and presents contract milestone sign-offs for acceptance by the City project manager(s). 
 Coordinates Change Requests, if needed, to ensure proper Scope and budgetary compliance. 

 Planning 

 Delivers project planning documents. 
 Defines Project tasks and resource requirements. 
 Develops initial Project schedule and Project Management Plan. 
 Collaborates with the City project manager(s) to plan and schedule Project timelines to achieve on-

time implementation. 

127

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 8  

 Implementation Management 

 Tightly manages Scope and budget of Project to ensure Scope changes and budget planned versus 
actual are transparent and handled effectively and efficiently. 

 Establishes and manages a schedule and Tyler resources that properly support the Project Schedule 
and are also in balance with Scope/budget. 

 Establishes risk/issue tracking/reporting process between the City and Tyler and takes all necessary 
steps to proactively mitigate these items or communicate with transparency to the City any items 
that may impact the outcomes of the Project.  

 Collaborates with the City ’s project manager(s) to establish key business drivers and success 
indicators that will help to govern Project activities and key decisions to ensure a quality outcome of 
the project. 

 Collaborates with the City ’s project manager(s) to set a routine communication plan that will aide all 
Project team members, of both the City and Tyler, in understanding the goals, objectives, status, and 
health of the Project. 

 Resource Management 

 Acts as liaison between Project team and Tyler manager(s). 
 Identifies and coordinates all Tyler resources across all applications, Phases, and activities including 

development, forms, installation, reports, implementation, and billing. 
 Provides direction and support to Project team. 
 Manages the appropriate assignment and timely completion of tasks as defined in the Project 

Schedule, task list, and Go-Live Checklist. 
 Assesses team performance and adjusts as necessary. 
 Consulted on in Scope 3rd party providers to align activities with ongoing Project tasks.  

 Tyler Implementation Consultant 

 Completes tasks as assigned by the Tyler project manager(s). 
 Documents activities for services performed by Tyler. 
 Guides the City through software validation process following configuration. 
 Assists during Go-Live process and provides support until the City transitions to Client Services. 
 Facilitates training sessions and discussions with the City and Tyler staff to ensure adequate 

discussion of the appropriate agenda topics during the allotted time.  
 May provide conversion review and error resolution assistance.  

 Tyler Sales 

 Supports Sales to Implementation knowledge transfer during Initiate & Plan. 
 Provides historical information, as needed, throughout implementation. 
 Participates in pricing activities if additional licensing and/or services are needed. 

 Tyler Technical Services 

 Maintains Tyler infrastructure requirements and design document(s). 
 Involved in system infrastructure planning/review(s). 
 Provides first installation of licensed software with initial database on servers. 
 Supports and assists the project team with technical/environmental issues/needs. 
 Deploys Tyler products.  

128

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 9  

 Conducts GIS Planning. 
 Reviews GIS data and provides feedback to the City. 
 Loads City provided GIS data into the system.  

 City Roles & Responsibilities 

City resources will be assigned prior to the start of each Phase of the Project. One person may be assigned to 
multiple Project roles. 

 City Executive Sponsor 

The City executive sponsor provides support to the Project by providing strategic direction and 
communicating key issues about the Project and its overall importance to the organization. When called 
upon, the executive sponsor also acts as the final authority on all escalated Project issues. The executive 
sponsor engages in the Project, as needed, to provide necessary support, oversight, guidance, and escalation, 
but does not participate in day-to-day Project activities. The executive sponsor empowers the City steering 
committee, project manager(s), and functional leads to make critical business decisions for the City. 

 Champions the project at the executive level to secure buy-in. 
 Authorizes required project resources. 
 Actively participates in organizational change communications. 

 City Steering Committee 

The City steering committee understands and supports the cultural change necessary for the Project and 
fosters an appreciation for the Project’s value throughout the organization. The steering committee oversees 
the City project manager and Project through participation in regular internal meetings. The City steering 
committee remains updated on all Project progress, Project decisions, and achievement of Project 
milestones. The City steering committee also serves as primary level of issue resolution for the Project. 

 Works to resolve all decisions and/or issues not resolved at the project manager level as part of the 
escalation process. 

 Attends all scheduled steering committee meetings. 
 Provides support for the project team. 
 Assists with communicating key project messages throughout the organization. 
 Prioritizes the project within the organization. 
 Ensures the project staffed appropriately and that staff have necessary resources. 
 Monitors project progress including progress towards agreed upon goals and objectives. 
 Has the authority to approve or deny changes impacting the following areas: 

o Cost 
o Scope 
o Schedule 
o Project Goals 
o City Policies 
o Needs of other client projects 

 City Project Manager 

The City shall assign project manager(s) prior to the start of this project with overall responsibility and 
authority to make decisions related to Project Scope, scheduling, and task assignment. The City Project 

129

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 10  

Manager should communicate decisions and commitments to the Tyler project manager(s) in a timely and 
efficient manner. When the City project manager(s) do not have the knowledge or authority to make 
decisions, he or she engages the necessary resources to participate in discussions and make decisions in a 
timely fashion to avoid Project delays. The City project manager(s) are responsible for reporting to the City 
steering committee and determining appropriate escalation points. 

 Contract Management 

 Validates contract compliance throughout the project. 
 Ensures that invoicing and Deliverables meet contract requirements. 
 Acts as primary point of contact for all contract and invoicing questions. Collaborates on and 

approves Change Requests, if needed, to ensure proper scope and budgetary compliance. 

 Planning 

 Reviews and accepts project planning documents. 
 Defines project tasks and resource requirements for the City project team. 
 Collaborates in the development and approval of the project schedule. 
 Collaborates with Tyler project manager(s) to plan and schedule project timelines to achieve on-time 

implementation. 

 Implementation Management 

 Tightly manages project budget and scope. 
 Collaborates with Tyler project manager(s) to establish a process and approval matrix to ensure that 

scope changes and budget (planned versus actual) are transparent and handled effectively and 
efficiently. 

 Collaborates with Tyler project manager to establish and manage a schedule and resource plan that 
properly supports the project schedule as a whole and is also in balance with scope and budget. 

 Collaborates with Tyler project manager(s) to establish risk and issue tracking and reporting process 
between the City and Tyler and takes all necessary steps to proactively mitigate these items or 
communicate with transparency to Tyler any items that may impact the outcomes of the project. 

 Collaborates with Tyler project manager(s) to establish key business drivers and success indicators 
that will help to govern project activities and key decisions to ensure a quality outcome of the project. 

 Routinely communicates with both the City staff and Tyler, aiding in the understanding of goals, 
objectives, current status, and health of the project by all team members. 

 Manages the requirements gathering process and ensure timely and quality business requirements 
are being provided to Tyler. 

 Resource Management 

 Acts as liaison between project team and stakeholders. 
 Identifies and coordinates all City resources across all modules, phases, and activities including data 

conversions, forms design, hardware and software installation, reports building, and satisfying 
invoices. 

 Provides direction and support to project team. 
 Builds partnerships among the various stakeholders, negotiating authority to move the project 

forward. 
 Manages the appropriate assignment and timely completion of tasks as defined. 
 Assesses team performance and takes corrective action, if needed. 

130

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 11 

 Provides guidance to City technical teams to ensure appropriate response and collaboration with
Tyler Technical Support Teams to ensure timely response and appropriate resolution.

 Owns the relationship with in-Scope 3rd party providers and aligns activities with ongoing project
tasks.

 Ensures that users have appropriate access to Tyler project toolsets as required.
 Conducts training on proper use of toolsets.
 Validates completion of required assignments using toolsets.

City Functional Leads

 Makes business process change decisions under time sensitive conditions.
 Communicates existing business processes and procedures to Tyler consultants.
 Assists in identifying business process changes that may require escalation.
 Contributes business process expertise for Current & Future State Analysis.
 Identifies and includes additional subject matter experts to participate in Current & Future State

Analysis.
 Validates that necessary skills have been retained by end users.
 Provides End Users with dedicated time to complete required homework tasks.
 Acts as an ambassador/champion of change for the new process and provide business process

change support.
 Identifies and communicates any additional training needs or scheduling conflicts to the City project

manager.
 Actively participates in all aspects of the implementation, including, but not limited to, the following

key activities:
o Task completion
o Stakeholder Meeting
o Project Management Plan development
o Schedule development
o Maintenance and monitoring of risk register
o Escalation of issues
o Communication with Tyler project team
o Coordination of City resources
o Attendance at scheduled sessions
o Change management activities
o Modification specification, demonstrations, testing and approval assistance
o Data analysis assistance
o Decentralized end user training
o Process testing
o Solution Validation

City Power Users 

 Participate in project activities as required by the project team and project manager(s).
 Provide subject matter expertise on the City business processes and requirements.
 Act as subject matter experts and attend Current & Future State Analysis sessions as needed.
 Attend all scheduled training sessions.
 Participate in all required post-training processes as needed throughout project.
 Test all application configuration to ensure it satisfies business process requirements.
 Become application experts.
 Participate in Solution Validation.

131

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 12 

 Adopt and support changed procedures.
 Complete all deliverables by the due dates defined in the project schedule.
 Demonstrate competency with Tyler products processing prior to Go-live.
 Provide knowledge transfer to the City staff during and after implementation.
 Participate in conversion review and validation.

City End Users

 Attend all scheduled training sessions.
 Become proficient in application functions related to job duties.
 Adopt and utilize changed procedures.
 Complete all deliverables by the due dates defined in the project schedule.
 Utilize software to perform job functions at and beyond Go-live.

City Technical Lead

 Coordinates updates and releases with Tyler as needed.
 Coordinates the copying of source databases to training/testing databases as needed for training

days.
 Coordinates and adds new users, printers and other peripherals as needed.
 Validates that all users understand log-on process and have necessary permission for all training

sessions.
 Coordinates interface development for City third party interfaces.
 Develops or assists in creating reports as needed.
 Ensures on-site system meets specifications provided by Tyler.
 Assists with software installation as needed.
 Extracts and transmits conversion data and control reports from the City’s legacy system per the

conversion schedule set forth in the project schedule.

City GIS

 Participates in GIS planning activities.
 Responsible for management and maintenance of City GIS infrastructure and data.
 Ensures GIS data/service endpoints are in alignment with Tyler software requirements.
 Provides Tyler implementation team with GIS data/service access information.

City Upgrade Coordination

 Becomes familiar with the software upgrade process and required steps.
 Becomes familiar with Tyler’s releases and updates.
 Utilizes Tyler resources to stay abreast of the latest Tyler releases and updates, as well as the latest

helpful tools to manage the City’s software upgrade process.
 Assists with the software upgrade process during implementation.
 Manages software upgrade activities post-implementation.
 Manages software upgrade plan activities.
 Coordinates software upgrade plan activities with City and Tyler resources.
 Communicates changes affecting users and department stakeholders.
 Obtains department stakeholder acceptance to upgrade production environment.

132

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 13 

City Change Management Lead 

 Validates that users receive timely and thorough communication regarding process changes.
 Provides coaching to supervisors to prepare them to support users through the project changes.
 Identifies the impact areas resulting from project activities and develops a plan to address them

proactively.
 Identifies areas of resistance and develops a plan to reinforce the change.
 Monitors post-production performance and new process adherence.

133

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 14  

Part 3: Project Plan 
 Project Stages  

Work Breakdown Structure 

The Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) is a hierarchical representation of a Project or Phase broken down into 
smaller, more manageable components. The top-level components are called “Stages” and the second level 
components are called “Work Packages”. The work packages, shown below each stage, contain the high-level 
work to be done. The detailed Project Schedule, developed during Project/Phase Planning and finalized during 
subsequent stages, lists the tasks to be completed within each work package. Each stage ends with a “Control 
Point”, confirming the work performed during that stage of the Project has been accepted by the City. 

 

*Items noted with an asterisk in the graphic above relate to specific products and services. If those products and services are not included in the scope 
of the contract, these specific work packages will be noted as “Intentionally Left Blank” in Section 6 of the Statement of Work. 

  

134

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 15 

Initiate and Plan 

The Initiate and Plan stage involves Project initiation, infrastructure, and planning. This stage creates a 
foundation for the Project by identifying and establishing sequence and timing for each Phase as well as 
verifying scope for the Project. This stage will be conducted at the onset of the Project, with a few unique 
items being repeated for the additional Phases as needed.  

Initial Coordination 

Prior to Project commencement, Tyler management assigns project manager(s). Additional Project resources 
will be assigned later in the Project as a Project schedule is developed. Tyler provides the City with initial 
Project documents used to gather names of key personnel, their functional role as it pertains to the Project, 
as well as any blackout dates to consider for future planning. the City gathers the information requested by 
the provided deadline ensuring preliminary planning and scheduling can be conducted moving the Project 
forward in a timely fashion. Internally, the Tyler Project Manager(s) coordinate with sales to ensure transfer 
of vital information from the sales process prior to scheduling a Project Planning Meeting with the City’s 
team. During this step, Tyler will work with the City to establish the date(s) for the Project and Phase Planning 
session.  

Objectives: 

 Formally launch the project.
 Establish project governance.
 Define and communicate governance for Tyler.
 Identify City project team.

STAGE 1 Initial Coordination 

Tyler City 

RACI MATRIX KEY: 
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
)

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Tyler project team is assigned A R C I I I I I I 
Cityproject team is assigned A I R I I I 
Provide initial project 
documents to the City 

A R C C I I 

Gather preliminary information 
requested 

I A R C C C C 

Sales to implementation 
knowledge transfer 

A R I I I I I 

Create Project Portal to store 
project artifacts and facilitate 
communication 

A R I 

135

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 16  

Inputs Contract documents 
  Statement of Work 

 
Outputs/Deliverables Completed initial project documents 
  Project portal 

 

Work package assumptions: 

 Project activities begin after the agreement has been fully executed. 

 Project/Phase Planning 

Project and Phase planning provides an opportunity to review the contract, software, data conversions and 
services purchased, identify applications to implement in each Phase (if applicable), and discuss 
implementation timeframes.  

During this work package Tyler will work with the City to coordinate and plan a formal Project planning 
meeting(s). This meeting signifies the start of the Project and should be attended by all City Project team 
members and the Tyler Project Manager. The meeting provides an opportunity for Tyler to introduce its 
implementation methodology, terminology, and Project management best practices to the City’s Project 
Team. This will also present an opportunity for project managers and Project sponsors to begin to discuss 
Project communication, metrics, status reporting and tools to be used to measure Project progress and 
manage change.  

Tyler will work with the City Project Team to prepare and deliver the Project Management Plan as an output 
of the planning meeting. This plan will continue to evolve and grow as the Project progresses and will 
describe how the project will be executed, monitored, and controlled. 

During project planning, Tyler will introduce the tools that will be used throughout the implementation. Tyler 
will familiarize the City with these tools during project planning and make them available for review and 
maintenance as applicable throughout the project. Some examples are Solution validation plan, issue log, and 
go-live checklist. 

STAGE 1 Project/Phase Planning 

  Tyler City  
RACI MATRIX KEY:  
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
) 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Schedule and 
conduct planning 
session(s) 

 A R      I  C C I     

136

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 17 

Develop Project 
Management Plan 

A R I C C I 

Develop initial 
project schedule 

A R I I I I I I C C I I C I 

Inputs Contract documents 
Statement of Work 
Guide to Starting Your Project 

Outputs / Deliverables Acceptance Criteria [only] for Deliverables 

Project Management Plan Delivery of document 
Project Operational Plan Delivery of document 
Initial Project Schedule City provides acceptance of schedule based 

on resource availability, project budget, and 
goals. 

Work package assumptions: 

 City has reviewed and completed the Guide to Starting Your Project document.

Infrastructure Planning

Procuring required hardware and setting it up properly is a critical part of a successful implementation. This 
task is especially important for Tyler-hosted/SaaS deployment models. Tyler will be responsible for building 
the environments for a hosted/SaaS deployment, unless otherwise identified in the Agreement. Tyler will 
install Licensed Software on application server(s) or train the City to install License Software. The City is 
responsible for the installation and setup of all peripheral devices. 

Objectives: 

 Ensure the City’s infrastructure meets Tyler’s application requirements.
 Ensure the City’s infrastructure is scheduled to be in place and available for use on time.

STAGE 1 Infrastructure Planning 

Tyler City 
RACI MATRIX KEY: 
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 
(P

ow
er

 U
se

rs
)

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Provide Infrastructure 
Requirements and Design 
Document 

A R C C I I 

Initial Infrastructure 
Meeting 

A R C C C C 

137

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 18 

*Schedule SaaS
Environment Availability

A R C I 

*Schedule Hardware to
be Available for
Installation

I I A R C 

Schedule Installation of 
All Licensed Software 

A R C I I 

Infrastructure Audit A R C I C 

Inputs 1. Initial Infrastructure Requirements and Design Document

Outputs / 
Deliverables 

Acceptance Criteria [only] for Deliverables 

1. Completed Infrastructure Requirements
and Design Document

Delivery of Document 

2. Infrastructure Audit System Passes Audit Criteria 

Stakeholder Meeting 

Communication of the Project planning outcomes to the City Project team, executives and other key 
stakeholders is vital to Project success. The Stakeholder meeting is a strategic activity to inform, engage, gain 
commitment, and instill confidence in the City team. During the meeting, the goals and objectives of the 
Project will be reviewed along with detail on Project scope, implementation methodology, roles and 
responsibilities, Project timeline and schedule, and keys to Project success. 

Objectives: 

 Formally present and communicate the project activities and timeline.
 Communicate project expectations.

STAGE 1 Stakeholder Meeting 

Tyler City 
RACI MATRIX KEY: 
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
)

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Create Stakeholder 
Meeting Presentation 

I A R I I I I C I 

Review Stakeholder 
Meeting Presentation 

I C A R C 

Perform Stakeholder 
Meeting Presentation 

I A R I I I I C I I I I I I 

138

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 19 

Inputs Agreement 
SOW 
Project Management Plan 

Outputs / 
Deliverables 

Acceptance Criteria [only] for Deliverables 

Stakeholder Meeting Presentation 

Work package assumptions: 

 None

GIS Preparation

GIS data is a core part of many Tyler applications. Other City offices/products may also use this data and have 
different GIS requirements. A key focus of this preparation will be the process for developing the GIS data for 
use with Tyler applications. This can be an iterative process, so it is important to begin preparation early. 

Objectives: 

 Identify all City GIS data sources and formats.
 Tyler to understand the City’s GIS needs and practices.
 Ensure the City’s GIS data meets Tyler product requirements.

STAGE 1 GIS Preparation 

Tyler City 
RACI MATRIX KEY: 
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
)

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Initial GIS Planning 
Meeting 

A R C C C 

Determine all GIS Data 
Sources I I A R C 

Provide Source GIS Data I I A R C 
Review GIS Data and 
Provide Feedback 

A R C I C 

Inputs GIS Requirements Document 

Outputs / 
Deliverables 

Acceptance Criteria [only] for Deliverables 

Production Ready Map Data Meets Tyler GIS Requirements. 

139

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 20 

Work package assumptions: 

 GIS data provided to Tyler is accurate and complete.
 GIS data provided to Tyler is current.
 City is responsible for maintaining the GIS data.

Control Point 1: Initiate & Plan Stage Acceptance

Acceptance criteria for this stage includes completion of all criteria listed below.  

Note: Advancement to the Assess & Define stage is not dependent upon Tyler’s receipt of this stage 
acceptance. 

Initiate & Plan Stage Deliverables: 

 Project Management Plan
 Initial Project Schedule

Initiate & Plan stage acceptance criteria: 

 All stage deliverables accepted based on acceptance criteria previously defined
 Project governance defined
 Project portal made available to the City
 Stakeholder meeting complete
 GIS Data Production Ready
 Completed Infrastructure Requirements and Design Document
 System Passes Infrastructure Audit (as applicable)

Assess & Define

The Assess & Define stage will provide an opportunity to gather information related to current City business 
processes. This information will be used to identify and define business processes utilized with Tyler software. 
The City collaborates with Tyler providing complete and accurate information to Tyler staff and assisting in 
analysis, understanding current workflows and business processes. 

Solution Orientation 

The Solution Orientation provides the Project stakeholders a high-level understanding of the solution 
functionality prior to beginning the current and future state analysis. The primary goal is to establish a 
foundation for upcoming conversations regarding the design and configuration of the solution.  

Tyler utilizes a variety of tools for the Solution Orientation, focusing on City team knowledge transfer such as: 
eLearning, documentation, or walkthroughs. The City team will gain a better understanding of the major 
processes and focus on data flow, the connection between configuration options and outcome, integration, 
and terminology that may be unique to Tyler’s solution.  

Objectives: 

 Provide a basic understanding of system functionality.
 Prepare the City for current and future state analysis.

140

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 21  

STAGE 2 Solution Orientation 

  Tyler City  
RACI MATRIX KEY:  
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
) 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Provide pre-requisites     A R             I I   I I   I 
Complete pre-requisites                     A R   C     C 
Conduct orientation     A R             I I   I  I   I  

 
Inputs Solution orientation materials 
 Training Plan  

 

 Current & Future State Analysis 

The Current & Future State Analysis provides the Project stakeholders and Tyler an understanding of process 
changes that will be achieved with the new system. 

The City and Tyler will evaluate current state processes, options within the new software, pros and cons of 
each based on current or desired state and make decisions about the future state configuration and 
processing. This may occur before or within the same timeframe as the configuration work package. The 
options within the new software will be limited to the scope of this implementation and will make use of 
standard Tyler functionality.  

The City will adopt the existing Tyler solution wherever possible to avoid project schedule and quality risk 
from over customization of Tyler products. It is the City’s responsibility to verify that in-scope requirements 
are being met throughout the implementation if functional requirements are defined as part of the contract. 
The following guidelines will be followed when evaluating if a modification to the product is required:  

 A reasonable business process change is available. 
 Functionality exists which satisfies the requirement. 
 Configuration of the application satisfies the requirement. 
 An in-scope modification satisfies the requirement. 

Requirements that are not met will follow the agreed upon change control process and can have impacts on 
the project schedule, scope, budget, and resource availability. 

STAGE 2 Current & Future State Analysis 

  Tyler City  

141

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 22  

RACI MATRIX KEY:  
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
) 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Current State process 
review 

    A R I I I       C C C C     C 

Discuss future-state 
options 

    A R C C C       C C C C     C 

Make future-state 
decisions (non-COTS) 

    C C C C C       A R I C     C 

Document anticipated 
configuration options 
required to support 
future state 

    A R C C C       I I I I     I 

 
Inputs Citycurrent state documentation 
 Solution Orientation completion 

 
Outputs / 
Deliverables 

 Acceptance Criteria [only] for Deliverables 

 Documentation that describes future-state 
decisions and configuration options to support 
future-state decisions. 

Delivery of document 

 

Work package assumptions: 

 City attendees possess sufficient knowledge and authority to make future state decisions. 
 The City is responsible for any documentation of current state business processes. 
 The City can effectively communicate current state processes.  

 Conversion Assessment 

Data Conversions are a major effort in any software implementation. Tyler’s conversion tools facilitate the 
predictable, repeatable conversion process that is necessary to support a successful transition to the Tyler 
system. The first step in this process is to perform an assessment of the existing (“legacy”) system(s), to 
better understand the source data, risks, and options available. Once the data has been analyzed, the plan for 
data conversion is completed and communicated to the appropriate stakeholders.  

Objectives: 

 Communicate a common understanding of the project goals with respect to data. 
 Ensure complete and accurate source data is available for review/transfer. 
 Map the data from the source to the Tyler system. 
 Document the data conversion/loading approach. 

142

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 23 

STAGE 2 Data Conversion Assessment 

Tyler City 
RACI MATRIX KEY: 
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
)

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Extract Data from 
Source Systems I C A R 

Review and Scrub 
Source Data 

I I I A R C I 

Build/Update Data 
Conversion Plan 

R C C C I I I I 

Inputs City Source data 

City Source data Documentation (if available) 

Outputs / 
Deliverables 

Acceptance Criteria [only] for Deliverables 

Data Conversion Plan built/updated City Acceptance of Data Conversion Plan, if 
Applicable 

Work package assumptions: 

 Tyler will be provided with data from the Legacy system(s) in a mutually agreed upon format.
 Tyler will work with the City representatives to identify business rules before writing the conversion.
 City subject matter experts and resources most familiar with the current data will be involved in the

data conversion planning effort.

Intentionally left blank.

Intentionally left blank.

Control Point 2: Assess & Define Stage Acceptance

Acceptance criteria for this Stage includes completion of all criteria listed below.  

Note: Advancement to the Prepare Solution Stage is dependent upon Tyler’s receipt of the Stage Acceptance. 

Assess & Define Stage Deliverables: 

 Documentation of future state decisions and configuration options to support future state decisions.
 Modification specification document.

143

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 24 

 Assess & Define Stage Acceptance Criteria:
 All stage deliverables accepted based on criteria previously defined.
 Solution Orientation is delivered.
 Conversion data extracts are received by Tyler.
 Data conversion plan built.

Prepare Solution

During the Prepare Solution stage, information gathered during the Initiate & Plan and Assess & Define stages 
will be used to install and configure the Tyler software solution. Software configuration will be validated by 
the City against future state decisions defined in previous stages and processes refined as needed to ensure 
business requirements are met.  

Initial System Deployment 

The timely availability of the Tyler Solution is important to a successful Project implementation. The success 
and timeliness of subsequent work packages are contingent upon the initial system deployment of Tyler 
Licensed Software on an approved network and infrastructure. Delays in executing this work package can 
affect the project schedule. 

Objectives: 

 All licensed software is installed and operational.
 The City can access the software.

STAGE 3 Initial System Deployment (Hosted/SaaS)* 

Tyler City 
RACI MATRIX KEY: 
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
)

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Prepare hosted 
environment A R I C 

Install Licensed 
Software with 
Initial Database on 
Server(s) for 
Included 
Environments 

A R I C 

Install Licensed 
Software on City 
Devices (if 
applicable) 

I C A R 

144

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 25 

Tyler System 
Administration 
Training (if 
applicable) 

A R I C 

Outputs / 
Deliverables 

Acceptance Criteria [only] for Deliverables 

Licensed Software is Installed on the Server(s) Software is accessible 
Licensed Software is Installed on City Devices 
(if applicable) 

Software is accessible 

Installation Checklist/System Document System Passes 
Infrastructure Design Document (C&J – If 
Applicable) 

Work package assumptions: 

 The most current available version of the Tyler Licensed Software will be installed.
 The City will provide network access for Tyler modules, printers, and Internet access to all applicable

City and Tyler Project staff.

Configuration

The purpose of Configuration is to prepare the software product for validation. 

Tyler staff collaborates with the City to complete software configuration based on the outputs of the future 
state analysis performed during the Assess and Define Stage. The City collaborates with Tyler staff iteratively 
to validate software configuration. 

Objectives: 

 Software is ready for validation.
 Educate the City Power User how to configure and maintain software.
 Prepare standard interfaces for process validation (if applicable).

STAGE 3 Configuration 

Tyler City 
RACI MATRIX KEY: 
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
)

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Conduct configuration 
training 

A R I C C 

145

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 26 

Complete Tyler 
configuration tasks 
(where applicable)  

A R I I I 

Complete City 
configuration tasks 
(where applicable) 

I C A R C 

Standard interfaces 
configuration and 
training (if applicable) 

A R C I C C  C  

Updates to Solution 
Validation testing plan 

C C A R C C 

Inputs Documentation that describes future state decisions and configuration options to support future 
state decisions. 

Outputs / 
Deliverables 

Acceptance Criteria [only] for Deliverables 

Configured System N/A 

Work package assumptions: 

 Tyler provides guidance for configuration options available within the Tyler software. The City is
responsible for making decisions when multiple options are available.

Process Refinement

Tyler will educate the City users on how to execute processes in the system to prepare them for the 
validation of the software. The City collaborates with Tyler staff iteratively to validate software configuration 
options to support future state.  

Objectives: 

 Ensure that the City understands future state processes and how to execute the processes in the
software.

 Refine each process to meet the business requirements.
 Validate standard interfaces, where applicable.
 Validate forms and reports, where applicable.

STAGE 3 Process Refinement 

Tyler City 
RACI MATRIX KEY: 
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
)

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

146

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 27 

Conduct process 
training 

A R I C I C  

Confirm process 
decisions 

I C A R C I C 

Test configuration I C  A R C  
Refine 
configuration (City 
Responsible) 

I C A R C 

Refine 
configuration (Tyler 
Responsible) 

A R I I I 

Validate interface 
process and results I C C A R C C 

Update City-
specific process 
documentation (if 
applicable) 

I C A R C 

Updates to 
Solution Validation 
testing plan 

C C A R C C 

Inputs Initial Configuration 
Documentation that describes future state decisions and configuration options to support 
future state decisions. 
Solution validation test plan 

Outputs / 
Deliverables 

Acceptance Criteria [only] for Deliverables 

Updated solution validation test plan 
Completed City-specific process 
documentation (completed by City) 

Work package assumptions: 

 None

Conversion Delivery

The purpose of this task is to transition the City’s data from their source (“legacy”) system(s) to the Tyler 
system(s). The data will need to be mapped from the legacy system into the new Tyler system format. A well-
executed data conversion is key to a successful cutover to the new system(s).  

With guidance from Tyler, the City will review specific data elements within the system and identify / report 
discrepancies. Iteratively, Tyler will collaborate with the City to address conversion discrepancies. This process 
will allow for clean, reconciled data to transfer from the source system(s) to the Tyler system(s). Reference 
Conversion Appendix for additional detail. 

147

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 28  

 

Objectives: 

 Data is ready for production (Conversion). 

STAGE 3 Data Delivery & Conversion 

  Tyler City  
RACI MATRIX 
KEY:  
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
) 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Provide data 
crosswalks/code 
mapping tool 

  A C R        I I  I       

Populate data 
crosswalks/code 
mapping tool 

  I C C      A R  C    

Iterations: 
Conversion 
Development 

    A C R         I        I 

Iterations: 
Deliver 
converted data  

  A  R  I    I      I 

Iterations: 
Proof/Review 
data and 

  C C C      A R  C   C 

148

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 29  

reconcile to 
source system 

 
 

Inputs  
 Data Conversion Plan 
 Configuration 

 
Outputs / 
Deliverables 

 Acceptance Criteria [only] for Deliverables 

 Code Mapping Complete / Validated N/A 
 Conversion Iterations / Reviews Complete Conversion complete, verified, and ready for 

final pass 
 
Work package assumptions: 

 The City will provide a single file layout per source system as identified in the investment summary.  
 The City subject matter experts and resources most familiar with the current data will be involved in 

the data conversion effort. 
 The City project team will be responsible for completing the code mapping activity, with assistance 

from Tyler.  

 Intentionally left blank.  

 Intentionally left blank.  

 Control Point 3: Prepare Solution Stage Acceptance 

Acceptance criteria for this Stage includes all criteria listed below in each Work Package. 

Note: Advancement to the Production Readiness Stage is dependent upon Tyler’s receipt of the Stage 
Acceptance. 

Prepare Solution Stage Deliverables: 

 Licensed software is installed. 
 Installation checklist/system document.  
 Conversion iterations and reviews complete.  

Prepare Solution Stage Acceptance Criteria: 

 All stage deliverables accepted based on criteria previously defined. 
 Software is configured. 
 Solution validation test plan has been reviewed and updated if needed.  

 Production Readiness 

Activities in the Production Readiness stage will prepare the City team for go-live through solution validation, 
the development of a detailed go-live plan and end user training. A readiness assessment will be conducted 
with the City to review the status of the project and the organizations readiness for go-live.  

149

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 30 

Solution Validation 

Solution Validation is the end-to-end software testing activity to ensure that the City verifies all aspects of the 
Project (hardware, configuration, business processes, etc.) are functioning properly, and validates that all 
features and functions per the contract have been deployed for system use. 

Objectives: 

 Validate that the solution performs as indicated in the solution validation plan.
 Ensure the City organization is ready to move forward with go-live and training (if applicable).

STAGE 4 Solution Validation 

Tyler City 
RACI MATRIX KEY: 
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
)

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Update Solution 
Validation plan 

A R C  C C C  

Update test scripts (as 
applicable) 

C C C  A R C 

Perform testing C C C  A R C  
Document issues from 
testing 

C C C  A R C 

Perform required follow-
up on issues 

A R C C C C 

Inputs Solution Validation plan 
Completed work product from prior stages (configuration, business process, etc.) 

Outputs / 
Deliverables 

Acceptance Criteria [only] for Deliverables 

Solution Validation Report City updates report with testing results 

Work package assumptions: 

 Designated testing environment has been established.
 Testing includes current phase activities or deliverables only.

Go-Live Readiness

Tyler and the City will ensure that all requirements defined in Project planning have been completed and the 
Go-Live event can occur, as planned. A go-live readiness assessment will be completed identifying risks or 
actions items to be addressed to ensure the City has considered its ability to successfully Go-Live. Issues and 

150

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 31  

concerns will be discussed, and mitigation options documented. Tyler and the City will jointly agree to move 
forward with transition to production. Expectations for final preparation and critical dates for the weeks 
leading into and during the Go-Live week will be planned in detail and communicated to Project teams. 

Objectives: 

 Action plan for go-live established. 
 Assess go-live readiness. 
 Stakeholders informed of go-live activities. 

STAGE 4 Go-Live Readiness 

  Tyler City  
RACI MATRIX KEY:  
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
) 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Perform Readiness 
Assessment 

I A R C C I C I I I I   I       I 

Conduct Go-Live planning 
session 

  A R C             C C C C C   C 

Order peripheral 
hardware (if applicable) 

    I             A R           C 

Confirm procedures for 
Go-Live issue reporting & 
resolution 

   A R I I I I        C C I I I I I 

Develop Go-Live checklist   A R C C           C C I C     C 
Final system 
infrastructure review 
(where applicable) 

    A       R       C           C 

 
Inputs Future state decisions  
 Go-live checklist 

 
Outputs / 
Deliverables 

 Acceptance Criteria [only] for Deliverables 

 Updated go-live checklist Updated Action plan and Checklist for go-live 
delivered to the City 

Work package assumptions: 

 None 

 End User Training 

End User Training is a critical part of any successful software implementation. Using a training plan previously 
reviewed and approved, the Project team will organize and initiate the training activities.  

151

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 32 

Tyler Led: Tyler provides training for all applicable users. One or multiple occurrences of each scheduled 
training or implementation topic will be covered.  

Tyler will provide standard application documentation for the general use of the software. It is not Tyler’s 
responsibility to develop City specific business process documentation. City-led training labs using City 
specific business process documentation if created by the City can be added to the regular training 
curriculum, enhancing the training experiences of the end users.  

Objectives: 

 End users are trained on how to use the software prior to go-live.
 The City is prepared for on-going training and support of the application.

STAGE 4 End User Training 

Tyler City 
RACI MATRIX KEY: 
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
)

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Update training plan A R C C I C  
End User training (Tyler-
led) 

A R C C C I C C C  

Train-the-trainer A R C C C I C 
End User training (City-
led) 

C C A R I C C C 

Inputs Training Plan 
List of End Users and their Roles / Job Duties 
Configured Tyler System 

Outputs / 
Deliverables 

Acceptance Criteria [only] for Deliverables 

End User Training City signoff that training was delivered 

Work package assumptions: 

 The City project team will work with Tyler to jointly develop a training curriculum that identifies the
size, makeup, and subject-area of each of the training classes.

 Tyler will work with the City as much as possible to provide end-user training in a manner that
minimizes the impact to the daily operations of City departments.

 The City will be responsible for training new users after go-live (exception—previously planned or
regular training offerings by Tyler).

152

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 33  

 Control Point 4: Production Readiness Stage Acceptance 

Acceptance criteria for this stage includes all criteria listed below. Advancement to the Production stage is 
dependent upon Tyler’s receipt of the stage acceptance. 

Production Readiness stage deliverables: 

 Solution Validation Report. 
 Update go-live action plan and checklist. 
 End user training. 

Production Readiness stage acceptance criteria: 

 All stage deliverables accepted based on criteria previously defined. 
 Go-Live planning session conducted.  

 Production 

Following end user training the production system will be fully enabled and made ready for daily operational 
use as of the scheduled date. Tyler and the City will follow the comprehensive action plan laid out during Go-
Live Readiness to support go-live activities and minimize risk to the Project during go-live. Following go-live, 
Tyler will work with the City to verify that implementation work is concluded, post go-live activities are 
scheduled, and the transition to Client Services is complete for long-term operations and maintenance of the 
Tyler software.  

 Go-Live 

Following the action plan for Go-Live, defined in the Production Readiness stage, the City and Tyler will 
complete work assigned to prepare for Go-Live.  

The City provides final data extract and Reports from the Legacy System for data conversion and Tyler 
executes final conversion iteration, if applicable. If defined in the action plan, the City manually enters any 
data added to the Legacy System after final data extract into the Tyler system.  

Tyler staff collaborates with the City during Go-Live activities. The City transitions to Tyler software for day-to 
day business processing. 

Some training topics are better addressed following Go-Live when additional data is available in the system or 
based on timing of applicable business processes and will be scheduled following Go-Live per the Project 
Schedule.  

Objectives: 

 Execute day to day processing in Tyler software. 
 City data available in Production environment. 

STAGE 5 Go-Live 

  Tyler City  

153

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 34 

RACI MATRIX KEY: 
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
)

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Provide final source data 
extract, if applicable 

C C A R 

Final source data pushed 
into production 
environment, if 
applicable 

A C R I C C C 

Proof final converted 
data, if applicable 

C C C A R C  

Complete Go-Live 
activities as defined in 
the Go-Live action plan 

C C C A R C I C 

Provide Go-Live 
assistance 

A R C C I C C I C I C 

Inputs Comprehensive Action Plan for Go-Live 
Final source data (if applicable)  

Outputs / 
Deliverables 

Acceptance Criteria [only] for Deliverables 

Data is available in production environment City confirms data is available in production 
environment 

Work package assumptions: 

 The City will complete activities documented in the action plan for Go-Live as scheduled.
 External stakeholders will be available to assist in supporting the interfaces associated with the Go-

Live live process.
 The City business processes required for Go-Live are fully documented and tested.
 The City Project team and subject matter experts are the primary point of contact for the end users

when reporting issues during Go-Live.
 The City Project Team and Power User’s provide business process context to the end users during Go-

Live.
 The Tyler Go-Live support team is available to consult with the City teams as necessary.
 The Tyler Go-Live support team provides standard functionality responses, which may not be tailored

to the local business processes.

Transition to Client Services

This work package signals the conclusion of implementation activities for the Phase or Project with the 
exception of agreed-upon post Go-Live activities. The Tyler project manager(s) schedules a formal transition 

154

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 35 

of the City onto the Tyler Client Services team, who provides the City with assistance following Go-Live, 
officially transitioning the City to operations and maintenance. 

Objectives: 

 Ensure no critical issues remain for the project teams to resolve.
 Confirm proper knowledge transfer to the City teams for key processes and subject areas.

STAGE 5 Transition to Client Services 

Tyler City 
RACI MATRIX KEY: 
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
)

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Transfer City to Client 
Services and review 
issue reporting and 
resolution processes 

I I A I I R I I C C C  

Review long term 
maintenance and 
continuous 
improvement 

A R C C C 

Inputs Open item/issues List 

Outputs / 
Deliverables 

Acceptance Criteria [only] for Deliverables 

Client Services Support Document 

Work package assumptions: 

 No material project issues remain without assignment and plan.

Post Go-Live Activities

Some implementation activities are provided post-production due to the timing of business processes, the 
requirement of actual production data to complete the activities, or the requirement of the system being 
used in a live production state.  

Objectives: 

 Schedule activities that are planned for after Go-Live.
 Ensure issues have been resolved or are planned for resolution before phase or project close.

155

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 36 

STAGE 5 Post Go-Live Activities 

Tyler City 
RACI MATRIX KEY: 
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
)

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Schedule contracted 
activities that are 
planned for delivery 
after go-live 

A R C C C C I C C I  C C 

Determine resolution 
plan in preparation for 
phase or project close 
out 

A R C C C I C C I C 

Inputs List of post Go-Live activities 

Outputs / 
Deliverables 

Acceptance Criteria [only] for 
Deliverables 

Updated issues log 

Work package assumptions: 

 System is being used in a live production state.

Control Point 5: Production Stage Acceptance

Acceptance criteria for this Stage includes completion of all criteria listed below: 

 Advancement to the Close stage is not dependent upon Tyler’s receipt of this Stage Acceptance.
 Converted data is available in production environment.

Production Stage Acceptance Criteria: 

 All stage deliverables accepted based on criteria previously defined.
 Go-Live activities defined in the Go-Live action plan completed.
 Client services support document is provided.

Close

The Close stage signifies full implementation of all products purchased and encompassed in the Phase or 
Project. The City transitions to the next cycle of their relationship with Tyler (next Phase of implementation or 
long-term relationship with Tyler Client Services). 

156

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 37 

Phase Closeout 

This work package represents Phase completion and signals the conclusion of implementation activities for 
the Phase. The Tyler Client Services team will assume ongoing support of the City for systems implemented in 
the Phase.  

Objectives: 

 Agreement from Tyler and the City teams that activities within this phase are complete.

STAGE 6 Phase Close Out 

Tyler City 
RACI MATRIX KEY: 
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
)

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Reconcile project budget 
and status of contract 
Deliverables 

I A R I I C 

Hold post phase review 
meeting A R C C C C C C C C C 

Release phase-
dependent Tyler project 
resources 

A R I I 

Participants Tyler City 
Project Leadership Project Manager 
Project Manager Project Sponsor(s) 
Implementation Consultants Functional Leads, Power Users, 

Technical Leads 
Technical Consultants (Conversion, Deployment, 
Development) 
Client Services 

Inputs Contract 
Statement of Work 
Project artifacts 

Outputs / 
Deliverables 

Acceptance Criteria [only] for Deliverables 

Final action plan (for outstanding items) 
Reconciliation Report 
Post Phase Review 

157

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 38  

Work package assumptions: 

 Tyler deliverables for the phase have been completed. 

 Project Closeout 

Completion of this work package signifies final acceptance and formal closing of the Project. 

At this time the City may choose to begin working with Client Services to look at continuous improvement 
Projects, building on the completed solution. 

Objectives: 

 Confirm no critical issues remain for the project teams to resolve. 
 Determine proper knowledge transfer to the City teams for key processes and subject areas has 

occurred. 
 Verify all deliverables included in the Agreement are delivered. 

STAGE 6 Project Close Out 

  Tyler City  
RACI MATRIX KEY:  
R = Responsible  
A = Accountable  
C = Consulted  
I = Informed 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 

Da
ta

 E
xp

er
ts

 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Cl
ie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Sp

on
so

r 

St
ee

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l L
ea

ds
 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
ea

ds
 

Su
bj

ec
t M

at
te

r E
xp

er
ts

 (P
ow

er
 

U
se

rs
) 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 

En
d 

U
se

rs
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l L
ea

ds
 

Conduct post project 
review 

  A R C C C C       C C C C     C 

Deliver post project 
report to City and Tyler 
leadership 

I A R           I I C             

Release Tyler project 
resources 

A R I               I             

 
Inputs Contract 
 Statement of Work 

 
Outputs / 
Deliverables 

 Acceptance Criteria [only] for Deliverables 

 Post Project Report City acceptance; Completed report indicating 
all project Deliverables and milestones have 
been completed 

 

Work package assumptions: 

 All project implementation activities have been completed and approved. 

158

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 39  

 No critical project issues remain that have not been documented and assigned. 
 Final project budget has been reconciled and invoiced. 
 All Tyler deliverables have been completed. 

 Control Point 6: Close Stage Acceptance 

Acceptance criteria for this Stage includes completion of all criteria listed below. 

Close Stage Deliverables: 

 Post Project Report. 

Close Stage Acceptance Criteria: 

 Completed report indicating all Project deliverables and milestones have been completed.  

 General Assumptions 
Tyler and the City will use this SOW as a guide for managing the implementation of the Tyler Project as 
provided and described in the Agreement. There are a few assumptions which, when acknowledged and 
adhered to, will support a successful implementation. Assumptions related to specific work packages are 
documented throughout the SOW. Included here are general assumptions which should be considered 
throughout the overall implementation process.  

 Project 

 Project activities will begin after the Agreement has been fully executed. 
 The City Project Team will complete their necessary assignments in a mutually agreed upon 

timeframe to meet the scheduled go-live date, as outlined in the Project Schedule. 
 Sessions will be scheduled and conducted at a mutually agreeable time. 
 Additional services, software modules and modifications not described in the SOW or Agreement will 

be considered a change to this Project and will require a Change Request Form as previously 
referenced in the definition of the Change Control Process. 

 Tyler will provide a written agenda and notice of any prerequisites to the City project manager(s) ten 
(10) business days or as otherwise mutually agreed upon time frame prior to any scheduled on-site or 
remote sessions, as applicable.  

 Tyler will provide guidance for configuration and processing options available within the Tyler 
software. If multiple options are presented by Tyler, the City is responsible for making decisions 
based on the options available.  

 Implementation of new software may require changes to existing processes, both business and 
technical, requiring the City to make process changes.  

 The City is responsible for defining, documenting, and implementing their policies that result from 
any business process changes.  

 Organizational Change Management 

Unless otherwise contracted by Tyler, City is responsible for managing Organizational Change. Impacted City 
resources will need consistent coaching and reassurance from their leadership team to embrace and accept 
the changes being imposed by the move to new software. An important part of change is ensuring that 
impacted City resources understand the value of the change, and why they are being asked to change. 

159

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 40 

Resources and Scheduling 

 City resources will participate in scheduled activities as assigned in the Project Schedule.
 The City team will complete prerequisites prior to applicable scheduled activities. Failure to do so

may affect the schedule.
 Tyler and the City will provide resources to support the efforts to complete the Project as scheduled

and within the constraints of the Project budget.
 Abbreviated timelines and overlapped Phases require sufficient resources to complete all required

work as scheduled.
 Changes to the Project Schedule, availability of resources or changes in Scope will be requested

through a Change Request. Impacts to the triple constraints (scope, budget, and schedule) will be
assessed and documented as part of the change control process.

 The City will ensure assigned resources will follow the change control process and possess the
required business knowledge to complete their assigned tasks successfully. Should there be a change
in resources, the replacement resource should have a comparable level of availability, change control
process buy-in, and knowledge.

 The City makes timely Project related decisions to achieve scheduled due dates on tasks and prepare
for subsequent training sessions. Failure to do so may affect the schedule, as each analysis and
implementation session is dependent on the decisions made in prior sessions.

 The City will respond to information requests in a comprehensive and timely manner, in accordance
with the Project Schedule.

 The City will provide adequate meeting space or facilities, including appropriate system connectivity,
to the project teams including Tyler team members.

 For on-site visits, Tyler will identify a travel schedule that balances the needs of the project and the
employee.

Data

 Data will be converted as provided and Tyler will not create data that does not exist.
 The City is responsible for the quality of legacy data and for cleaning or scrubbing erroneous legacy

data.
 Tyler will work closely with the City representatives to identify business rules before writing the

conversion. The City must confirm that all known data mapping from source to target have been
identified and documented before Tyler writes the conversion.

 All in-scope source data is in data extract(s).
 Each legacy system data file submitted for conversion includes all associated records in a single

approved file layout.
 The City will provide the legacy system data extract in the same format for each iteration unless

changes are mutually agreed upon in advance. If not, negative impacts to the schedule, budget and
resource availability may occur and/or data in the new system may be incorrect.

 The City Project Team is responsible for reviewing the converted data and reporting issues during
each iteration, with assistance from Tyler.

 The City is responsible for providing or entering test data (e.g., data for training, testing interfaces,
etc.)

160

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 41 

Facilities 

 The City will provide dedicated space for Tyler staff to work with City resources for both on-site and
remote sessions. If Phases overlap, City will provide multiple training facilities to allow for
independent sessions scheduling without conflict.

 The City will provide staff with a location to practice what they have learned without distraction.

161

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 42 

Glossary 
Word or Term Definition 
Acceptance Confirming that the output or deliverable is suitable and 

conforms to the agreed upon criteria. 

Accountable The one who ultimately ensures a task or deliverable is 
completed; the one who ensures the prerequisites of the task are 
met and who delegates the work to those responsible. [Also see 
RACI]  

Application A computer program designed to perform a group of coordinated 
functions, tasks, or activities for the benefit of the user. 

Application Programming Interface (API) A defined set of tools/methods to pass data to and received data 
from Tyler software products 

Agreement This executed legal contract that defines the products and 
services to be implemented or performed. 

Business Process The practices, policy, procedure, guidelines, or functionality that 
the client uses to complete a specific job function.  

Business Requirements Document A specification document used to describe Client requirements 
for contracted software modifications. 

Change Request A form used as part of the Change Control process whereby 
changes in the scope of work, timeline, resources, and/or budget 
are documented and agreed upon by participating parties.  

Change Management Guides how we prepare, equip and support individuals to 
successfully adopt change in order to drive organizational success 
& outcomes 

Code Mapping [where applicable] An activity that occurs during the data conversion process 
whereby users equate data (field level) values from the old 
system to the values available in the new system. These may be 
one to one or many to one. Example: Old System [Field = eye 
color] [values = BL, Blu, Blue] maps to New Tyler System [Field = 
Eye Color] [value = Blue]. 

Consulted Those whose opinions are sought, typically subject matter 
experts, and with whom there is two-way communication. [Also 
see RACI]  

Control Point This activity occurs at the end of each stage and serves as a 
formal and intentional opportunity to review stage deliverables 
and required acceptance criteria for the stage have been met. 

Data Mapping [where applicable] The activity determining and documenting where data from the 
legacy system will be placed in the new system; this typically 
involves prior data analysis to understand how the data is 
currently used in the legacy system and how it will be used in the 
new system. 

Deliverable A verifiable document or service produced as part of the Project, 
as defined in the work packages. 

Go-Live The point in time when the Client is using the Tyler software to 
conduct daily operations in Production. 

Informed Those who are kept up-to-date on progress, often only on 
completion of the task or deliverable, and with whom there is 
just one-way communication. [Also see RACI]  

162

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 43 

Infrastructure The composite hardware, network resources and services 
required for the existence, operation, and management of the 
Tyler software. 

Interface A connection to and potential exchange of data with an external 
system or application. Interfaces may be one way, with data 
leaving the Tyler system to another system or data entering Tyler 
from another system, or they may be bi-directional with data 
both leaving and entering Tyler and another system. 

Integration A standard exchange or sharing of common data within the Tyler 
system or between Tyler applications 

Legacy System The software from which a client is converting. 

Modification Custom enhancement of Tyler’s existing software to provide 
features or functions to meet individual client requirements 
documented within the scope of the Agreement. 

On-site Indicates the work location is at one or more of the client’s 
physical office or work environments. 

Organizational Change The process of changing an organization's strategies, processes, 
procedures, technologies, and culture, as well as the effect of 
such changes on the organization.  

Output A product, result or service generated by a process. 

Peripheral devices An auxiliary device that connects to and works with the computer 
in some way. Some examples: scanner, digital camera, printer. 

Phase A portion of the Project in which specific set of related 
applications are typically implemented. Phases each have an 
independent start, Go-Live and closure dates but use the same 
Implementation Plans as other Phases of the Project. Phases may 
overlap or be sequential and may have different Tyler resources 
assigned. 

Project The delivery of the software and services per the agreement and 
the Statement of Work. A Project may be broken down into 
multiple Phases. 

RACI A matrix describing the level of participation by various roles in 
completing tasks or Deliverables for a Project or process. 
Individuals or groups are assigned one and only one of the 
following roles for a given task: Responsible (R), Accountable (A), 
Consulted (C), or Informed (I). 

Remote Indicates the work location is at one or more of Tyler’s physical 
offices or work environments. 

Responsible Those who ensure a task is completed, either by themselves or 
delegating to another resource. [Also see RACI]  

Scope Products and services that are included in the Agreement. 

163

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 44 

Solution The implementation of the contracted software product(s) 
resulting in the connected system allowing users to meet Project 
goals and gain anticipated efficiencies.  

Stage The top-level components of the WBS. Each Stage is repeated for 
individual Phases of the Project. 

Standard Software functionality that is included in the base software (off-
the-shelf) package; is not customized or modified. 

Statement of Work (SOW) Document which will provide supporting detail to the Agreement 
defining Project-specific activities, services, and Deliverables. 

System The collective group of software and hardware that is used by the 
organization to conduct business.  

Test Scripts The steps or sequence of steps that will be used to validate or 
confirm a piece of functionality, configuration, enhancement, or 
Use Case Scenario. 

Training Plan Document(s) that indicate how and when users of the system will 
be trained relevant to their role in the implementation or use of 
the system. 

Validation (or to validate) The process of testing and approving that a specific Deliverable, 
process, program, or product is working as expected. 

Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) A hierarchical representation of a Project or Phase broken down 
into smaller, more manageable components. 

Work Package A group of related tasks within a project. 

164

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 45 

Part 4: Appendices 
Conversion 

Incode Utility Billing Conversion Summary 

Utility Billing - Standard 

 Utility Contact Information
 Utility Mailing and Billing Addresses
 Utility Parcels
 Account Master - (Average monthly payment, deposits, bank drafts, comments/notes)
 Meters/Services
 Transaction History – Includes current year plus one prior year
 Read History

Utility Billing – Legacy/Historical Views

 Unlimited historical transactions provided by the City can be converted by Tyler into historical views

Incode Financials Conversion Summary

General Ledger

Standard Conversion Includes: 
 Full chart of accounts listing, descriptions, and corresponding account types
 Element (segment) values and descriptions
 Summarized budget figures for current fiscal year
 Unlimited historical transactions as provided by client.

NOTE: Training will be provided on how to import additional budget years from Excel.  

Accounts Payable 

Standard Conversion Includes: 
 Vendor master information, address, primary contact, and NOTEs
 Unlimited historical transactions as provided by client.

Personnel Management

Standard Conversion Includes: 
 Basic employee information – employee master, address, primary contact, dates, phone numbers,

dependents, NOTEs
 Employee Deductions & Taxes
 Employee Direct Deposit Information
 Employee Leave Balances
 Employee Retirement
 Rates/Base Pay (salary / hourly compensation)

165

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 46 

 Unlimited historical transactions provided by client.

NOTE: Employee positions/deductions will be created according to recommended best business 
practices.  

Community Development: Permits 

 Permit master basic information
 Parcels and Addresses
 Inspections – Converted to one legacy Inspection type. Original Inspection type will be visible in the

workflow section
 Sub-Permit Associations – Visible in workflow and attached records section
 Fees – Converted to one legacy Fee type. Original Fee type will be visible in fees tab
 Type – Converted to one legacy Permit type. Original Permit type will be converted as a memo

custom field
 Classification – Converted to one legacy Permit classification. Original Permit classification will be

converted as a memo custom field
 Notes
 Payment and Fee history – Converted to one legacy Fee type
 Converted as Memo Custom fields
 Contacts and Contact Addresses
 Type
 Classification
 Bonds and Escrow
 Zones
 Activities and Actions
 Holds
 Conditions

Business Management

 Business entity
 License master basic information
 Contacts – Unique (keyed) contacts converted to global contacts
 Non-keyed contacts converted to Memo Custom field
 Parcel and Addresses
 Inspections – Converted to one legacy Inspection type. Original Inspection type will be visible in the

workflow section
 Fees
 Holds
 Conditions
 Notes
 Contractors
 Business Types & NAICS codes
 Payment and Fee history
 Converted as memo custom fields

o Bonds and Escrow
o Activities and Actions

166

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 47 

Community Development: Code Cases 

 Code Case master basic information
 Parcels and Addresses
 Inspections – Converted to one legacy Inspection type. Original Inspection type will be visible in the

workflow section
 Violations – Converted to one legacy Violation type. Original Violation type will be visible in the

workflow section
 Fees – Converted to one legacy Fee type. Original Fee type will be visible in fees tab
 Type – Converted to one legacy Code type. Original Code type will be converted as a memo custom

field
 Notes
 Payment and Fee history – Converted to one legacy Fee type
 Converted as memo custom fields

o Contacts and Contact Addresses
o Type
o Bonds and Escrow
o Zones
o Activities and Actions
o Holds
o Conditions

Community Development: Plans 

 Plan master basic information
 Parcels and Addresses
 Inspections – Converted to one legacy Inspection type. Original Inspection type will be visible in the

workflow section
 Fees – Converted to one legacy Fee type. Original Fee type will be visible in fees tab
 Type – Converted to one legacy Plan type. Original Plan type will be converted as a memo custom

field
 Classification – Converted to one legacy Plan classification. Original Plan classification will be

converted as a memo custom field
 Notes
 Payment and Fee history – Converted to one legacy Fee type
 Converted as memo custom fields

o Contacts and Contact Addresses
o Type
o Classification
o Bonds and Escrow
o Zones
o Activities and Actions
o Holds
o Conditions

167

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 48 

Additional Appendices 

Intentionally left blank.  

168

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 49  

 Project Timeline 

 Incode Financial Management Timeline 

 

169

Item 10 
Attachment 3



 

City of Suisun City  
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 50  

 Incode Utility Billing Timeline 

 

170

Item 10 
Attachment 3



City of Suisun City 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Page | 51 

MyCivic Timeline 

Intentionally left blank. 

171

Item 10 
Attachment 3



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

172



PREPARED BY:  Rowland Roberts, IT Systems Manager 

REVIEWED BY: Lakhwinder Deol, Finance Director 

APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  February 15, 2022 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-__:  Authorizing the City 

Manager to purchase two StarWind SANs (storage area network) information technology servers: 

one for the Police Department and one for City Hall. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  This purchase does not have any fiscal impact on the General Fund. The total 

cost of the two SANS will be $79,085.79 which includes $41,566.14 for City Hall and $37,519.65 

for the Police Department. The appropriate budget is available for this purchase under the American 

Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) fund (Account No. 167-93130-1917). 

STRATEGIC PLAN: Provide good governance. 

BACKGROUND:  Much of the current Information Technology infrastructure for the City is end 

of life. Change is the only constant thing where information technology is considered. Currently, 

many of the City’s servers are single servers which store less data and take more physical space. 

The current servers have served their purpose and some are no longer under warranty. It is very 

crucial for the City to have reliable servers so we do not lose any data in case the server fails. The 

City will not be able to function if the server stops working especially in the Police and Dispatch 

departments. To provide efficient and effective services, upgrading the informational technology 

is very vital.  

STAFF REPORT:  The current City servers are on old hardware and running out of, or already 

out of, warranty.   The new server appliances will allow the City to combine all of the existing 

servers onto the same physical hardware, placing all servers back under a five year hardware 

warranty. They will also provide hardware redundancy for all servers, increased server 

performance, increased storage space, and allow City staff to manage them more easily from the 

same management console.  The City will be able to create/add new servers without having to 

purchase new physical hardware, and the appliances are capable of further increasing storage and 

performance in the future if needed.  Increasing server performance and increasing server 

redundancy will improve City productivity and reduce City downtime due to hardware issues.  

Computer Logistics will handle the server migrations to the new hardware, requiring little city 

staff time. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 

2022-___:  Authorizing the City Manager to purchase two StarWind SANs (storage area network) 

information technology servers: one for the Police Department and one for City Hall  

Item 11

173



ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2022-___:  Authorizing the City Manager to purchase two StarWind SANs

(storage area network) information technology servers: one for the Police Department and one

for City Hall

2. Suisun City Police Dept - C-Spec Custom - City Hall - REF - 5 Years Quote

3. Suisun City Police Dept - C-Spec Custom - Police Department - REF - 5 Years Quote

Item 11

174



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO PURCHASE OF TWO STARWIND 

SANS (STORAGE AREA NETWORK) INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVERS: 

ONE FOR THE POLICE DEPARTMENT AND ONE FOR CITY HALL 

WHEREAS, the City desires to purchase two StarWind SANs (storage area network) 

Information Technology servers; and   

WHEREAS, the proposed purchase will upgrade outdated information technology 

infrastructure to a more manageable and reliable system; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed purchase will improve data storage, maintenance and 

reliability of information technology servers for the Police and Administration departments; 

and 

WHEREAS, the proposed system will increase departmental capabilities and allows 

staff to work remotely without any connection and service interruptions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby authorizes 

the City Manager, to purchase two StarWind SANs (storage area network) information 

technology servers for Police and Administration departments. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of said City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 15th day of February 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers: 

NOES: Councilmembers: 

ABSENT: Councilmembers: 

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of February 2022. 

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

Item 11 
Attachment 1

175



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

176



One Stop Virtualization Shop

Prepared for

Issue date/Valid to 1/28/2022

Line Item Description Product QTY Subtotal Discount Extended

Specifications
StarWind H-CA C-Spec Custom w/ 5yrs Support
& Warranty

2 $25,978.84 20% $41,566.14 

Services Description
Standard StarWind HCA Pre-sale services plan 
(included in appliance price)

HRS
Subtotal(per 

hour)
Discount Extended

Sizing and provisioning; RAID, firmware, drivers, 
hypervisor, and networking preconfiguration 
according to StarWind Hardware Compatibility List; 
Domain Controller Deployment; vCenter 
preconfiguration (for Vmware environments); 
Veeam Backup & Replication preconfiguration; 5nine 
preconfiguration; Stress testing; Performance 
testing; Network testing/tuning; Data Migration 
Services; StarWind Appliance Management Training

48* $13,301.17 100% $0.00 

List price Discount Sales Price

$51,957.68 20% $41,566.14 

$13,301.17 100% $0.00 

$300.00 

41,866.14$    

Suisun City Police Dept - C-Spec Custom - City Hall - REF - 5 Years

2/27/2022

Project Totals

*May vary depending on infrastructure

Grand Total

Shipping 

Hardware

Services

©2017 StarWind Software, Inc. All rights reserved. To learn more, visit www.starwind.com

Item 11 
Attachment 2

177



One Stop Virtualization Shop

Individual server 
details

Quantity Product Description

Chassis 1 Dell PowerEdge R740xd 24x2.5" Servers with Dell Warranty

CPU 2 Intel Silver 4208 8C 2.1Ghz 11M DDR4-2400 85W

RAM 10 Dell 16GB DDR4 ECC RDIMM 2400Mhz

SSD Drives 12 Dell 1.92TB 6Gbps SATA Mix Use TLC 2.5 SSD SM883

SSD Raw Capacity - 23.04 TBs

SSD Useable Capacity - 21.12 TBs

Networking 1 Dell Intel X520 Dual Port 10Gb SFP & I350 Dual Port 1Gb RJ45 rNDC

Additional 
Networking

1 Dell Broadcom 57414 Dual Port 25GbE SFP+ Low Profile

Support plan - NBD-on site 5 years

*May vary depending on infrastructure

©2017 StarWind Software, Inc. All rights reserved. To learn more, visit www.starwind.com

Item 11 
Attachment 2

178



One Stop Virtualization Shop

Service Service Description Deliverables

Sizing and Provisioning
Architecting the environment according to existing 
storage and performance requirement, as well as growth 
tendencies

Quotation with specification sheet

RAID, Firmware, Drivers, 
Hypervisor and 
networking 
preconfiguration 
according to StarWind 
Hardware Compatibility 
List

RAID configuration using settings optimal for the 
customer's requirements, driver and firmware updates. 
StarWind and OS configuration with optimal updates, 
registry updates as well as StarWind devices creation 
according to the customer needs and optimal settings 
specification.

iDRAC report of the performed 
configurations

Domain Controller 
Deployment

DC configuration and tailoring the settings to customer's 
needs.

Configuration checklist

vCenter preconfiguration 
(for vSphere 
environments)

vCenter configuration and tailoring the settings to the 
customer's requirements.

Configuration checklist

Veeam Backup & 
Replication 
preconfiguration (if 
applicable)

Veeam Backup & Replication backup job configuration 
assistance.

Configuration checklist

5nine preconfiguration(if 
applicable) 

5nine installation and preconfiguration. Configuration checklist

Performance testing 
Performance testing using benchmarking scripts that 
cover all production R/W patterns.

StarWind device performance report for 
each HCA node and StarWind Testing 
Certificate

*May vary depending on infrastructure

©2017 StarWind Software, Inc. All rights reserved. To learn more, visit www.starwind.com

Item 11 
Attachment 2

179



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

180



One Stop Virtualization Shop

Prepared for

Issue date/Valid to 1/28/2022

Line Item Description Product QTY Subtotal Discount Extended

Specifications
StarWind H-CA C-Spec Custom w/ 5yrs Support
& Warranty

2 $23,262.28 20% $37,219.65 

Services Description
Standard StarWind HCA Pre-sale services plan 
(included in appliance price)

HRS
Subtotal(per 

hour)
Discount Extended

Sizing and provisioning; RAID, firmware, drivers, 
hypervisor, and networking preconfiguration 
according to StarWind Hardware Compatibility List; 
Domain Controller Deployment; vCenter 
preconfiguration (for Vmware environments); 
Veeam Backup & Replication preconfiguration; 5nine 
preconfiguration; Stress testing; Performance 
testing; Network testing/tuning; Data Migration 
Services; StarWind Appliance Management Training

48* $11,910.29 100% $0.00 

List price Discount Sales Price

$46,524.56 20% $37,219.65 

$11,910.29 100% $0.00 

$300.00 

37,519.65$    

Suisun City Police Dept - C-Spec Custom - Police Department - REF - 5 Years

2/27/2022

Project Totals

*May vary depending on infrastructure

Grand Total

Shipping 

Hardware

Services

©2017 StarWind Software, Inc. All rights reserved. To learn more, visit www.starwind.com

Item 11 
Attachment 3

181



One Stop Virtualization Shop

Individual server 
details

Quantity Product Description

Chassis 1 Dell PowerEdge R740xd 24x2.5" Servers with Dell Warranty

CPU 2 Intel Silver 4208 8C 2.1Ghz 11M DDR4-2400 85W

RAM 8 Dell 16GB DDR4 ECC RDIMM 2400Mhz

SSD Drives 9 Dell 1.92TB 6Gbps SATA Mix Use TLC 2.5 SSD SM883

SSD Raw Capacity - 17.28 TBs

SSD Useable Capacity - 15.36 TBs

Networking 1 Dell Intel X520 Dual Port 10Gb SFP & I350 Dual Port 1Gb RJ45 rNDC

Additional 
Networking

1 Dell Broadcom 57414 Dual Port 25GbE SFP+ Low Profile

Support plan - NBD-on site 5 years

*May vary depending on infrastructure

©2017 StarWind Software, Inc. All rights reserved. To learn more, visit www.starwind.com

Item 11 
Attachment 3

182



One Stop Virtualization Shop

Service Service Description Deliverables

Sizing and Provisioning
Architecting the environment according to existing 
storage and performance requirement, as well as growth 
tendencies

Quotation with specification sheet

RAID, Firmware, Drivers, 
Hypervisor and 
networking 
preconfiguration 
according to StarWind 
Hardware Compatibility 
List

RAID configuration using settings optimal for the 
customer's requirements, driver and firmware updates. 
StarWind and OS configuration with optimal updates, 
registry updates as well as StarWind devices creation 
according to the customer needs and optimal settings 
specification.

iDRAC report of the performed 
configurations

Domain Controller 
Deployment

DC configuration and tailoring the settings to customer's 
needs.

Configuration checklist

vCenter preconfiguration 
(for vSphere 
environments)

vCenter configuration and tailoring the settings to the 
customer's requirements.

Configuration checklist

Veeam Backup & 
Replication 
preconfiguration (if 
applicable)

Veeam Backup & Replication backup job configuration 
assistance.

Configuration checklist

5nine preconfiguration(if 
applicable) 

5nine installation and preconfiguration. Configuration checklist

Performance testing 
Performance testing using benchmarking scripts that 
cover all production R/W patterns.

StarWind device performance report for 
each HCA node and StarWind Testing 
Certificate

*May vary depending on infrastructure

©2017 StarWind Software, Inc. All rights reserved. To learn more, visit www.starwind.com

Item 11 
Attachment 3

183



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

184



PREPARED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  February 15, 2022 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-____: Amending the Council 

Norms and Procedures Manual. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  There would be a no fiscal impact to the City. 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Provide Good Governance. 

STAFF REPORT:  On July 30, 2019 the City Council adopted a Council Norms and Procedures 

Manual.  The document includes operational procedures, policies, and practices.  On February 18, 

2020 the City Council approved amendments to Section 5.7, Attendance, of the City Council Norms 

and Procedures Manual.   

Staff has reviewed the Norms and Procedures manual and has the following minor edits to 

recommend: 

• Update Councilmembers on front page.

• Amend Section 5.5 to allow incumbents to reapply via email.

• Amend Section 6.3 to reflect the Municipal Code that each Tuesday is a regular meeting day

if necessary to carry out the business of the city.

• Amend Section 7.2  Location of Posting, to add the Fire Department as an additional posting

place and remove the Senior Center as an additional posting place.

• Amend the order of business in Section 8.6.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council Adopt Resolution No. 

2022-____: Amending the Council Norms and Procedures Manual. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2022-____: Amending the Council Norms and Procedures Manual

2. Amended Draft Council Norms and Procedures Manual (clean)

3. Amended Draft Council Norms and Procedures Manual (redlined)

Item 12185

Item 12



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

186



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-__ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

AMENDING THE COUNCIL NORMS AND PROCEDURES  

WHEREAS, on July 30, 2019 the City Council of the City of Suisun City established the 

Norms and Procedures to promote communication, understanding, fairness, and trust among the 

members of the City Council and staff concerning their roles, responsibilities, and expectations for 

management of the business of the City of Suisun City; and 

WHEREAS, on February 18, 2020 the City Council of the City of Suisun City amended 

the Council Norms and Procedures; and 

WHEREAS, staff has reviewed the Council Norms and Procedures and has recommended 

some minor changes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Suisun 

City hereby amends the Council Norms and Procedures as follows: 

   5.5 Incumbents. 

(a) At the end of the first term, the incumbent board, commission, or committee member

may, at the discretion of the Mayor, be reappointed for an additional term without

the need to apply or interview for re-appointment.  In lieu of an application, the

board, commission, or committee member shall submit to the City Clerk a letter of

or email expressing interest in re-appointment 60 days prior to the expiration of the

member’s first term.

    6.3 Regular Meetings. 

(a) …The City Council shall convene its regular City Council meetings at 6:30p.m. on

the first and third Tuesday of each month.  However, each Tuesday is a regular

meeting day if necessary to carry out the business of the city and Council members

should be prepared to meet on any Tuesday evening.

    7.2 Location of Posting. 

The notice and agenda shall be posted at City Hall in a place to which the public has 

unrestricted access and where the notice and agenda are not likely to be removed or 

obscured by other posted material, and to the City website.  

Although not required, additional posting places have been identified to increase 

civic engagement: 

• Joseph Nelson Center

• Senior Center

• Fire Department

• Harbor Master Building

• City Controlled Social Media

• Non-City Partnership Buildings

Item 12 
Attachment 1

187



Resolution No. 2022- 

Adopted  

Page 2 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

    8.6 Order of Agenda - Regular Meeting. 

(a) The prescribed order of the agenda for Regular Meetings of the Council will be as

follows: Roll Call, Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, Conflict of Interest

Notification, Public Comments on Items not on the Agenda, Conflict of Interest

Notification, Informational Reports (City Manager/Executive Director/Staff),

Consent Calendar, Presentations/Appointments, Consent Calendar, Public

Comments on Items not on the Agenda, Public Hearings, General Business Items,

City Council Reports, Mayor Report, Non-presented Reports, and Adjournment.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of said City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 15th day of February 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members: 

NOES: Council Members: 

ABSENT: Council Members: 

ABSTAIN: Council Members: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of February 2022. 

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

Item 12 
Attachment 1

188



COUNCIL
Norms & Procedures

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL: 
Mayor Lori Wilson 

Mayor Pro Tem Alma Hernandez 

Councilmember Jane Day 

Councilmember Michael J. Hudson 

Councilmember Wanda Williams 

ORIGINAL ADOPTION: 
July 30, 2019 

AMENDED: 
FEBRUARY 18, 2020 
FEBRUARY 15, 2022 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

189



1 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL NORMS & PROCEDURES 

Table of Contents 
Section 1. GENERAL....................................................................................................................................... 4 

1.1 Purpose. ........................................................................................................................................ 4 

1.2 Code of Conduct............................................................................................................................ 4 

1.3 Decorum. ....................................................................................................................................... 4 

1.4 Overview of Council responsibilities. ............................................................................................ 4 

1.5 Overview of City Manager responsibilities. .................................................................................. 5 

1.6 Annual Review. ............................................................................................................................. 6 

1.7 Ralph M. Brown Act. ..................................................................................................................... 6 

SECTION 2. COUNCIL REORGANIZATION ...................................................................................................... 6 

2.1 Mayor Pro Tem Selection Process. ............................................................................................... 6 

2.2 Duties of the Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Mayor .................................................................................... 6 

2.3 Appointment of a Council Vacancy. .............................................................................................. 7 

SECTION 3. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS ....................................................................................................... 7 

3.1 Attendance. ................................................................................................................................... 7 

3.2 Correspondence. ........................................................................................................................... 7 

3.3 Regional Boards, Committees and Ad Hocs .................................................................................. 8 

3.4 Distribution of Information. .......................................................................................................... 8 

3.5 Reimbursement............................................................................................................................. 8 

3.6 Ethics and Sexual Harassment Prevention & Education Training. ................................................ 9 

3.7 City Seal. ........................................................................................................................................ 9 

3.8 Use of City Email and Social Media. .............................................................................................. 9 

3.9 Compensation. ............................................................................................................................ 10 

SECTION 4. COUNCIL RELATIONSHIP WITH STAFF ...................................................................................... 11 

4.1 City Manager. .............................................................................................................................. 11 

4.2 Agenda Item Questions. .............................................................................................................. 11 

4.3 Interaction of City Council with Staff. ......................................................................................... 11 

4.4 Individual Council Member’s Requests. ...................................................................................... 11 

SECTION 5. PROCEDURES FOR APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS/COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES ................... 12 

5.1 Definitions. .................................................................................................................................. 12 

5.2 Recruitment Process. .................................................................................................................. 12 

5.3 Requirement for Appointment. .................................................................................................. 13 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

190



2 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

5.4 Council Notification. .................................................................................................................... 13 

5.5 Incumbents. ................................................................................................................................ 13 

5.6 Application. ................................................................................................................................. 14 

5.7 Attendance. ................................................................................................................................. 14 

5.8 Norms and Procedures and Conflicts of Interest. ....................................................................... 14 

5.9 Conflicts with Federal, State or Local Law. ................................................................................. 14 

SECTION 6. MEETINGS ................................................................................................................................ 14 

6.1 Open to Public. ............................................................................................................................ 14 

6.2 Broadcasting of City Council Meetings. ...................................................................................... 15 

6.3 Regular Meetings. ....................................................................................................................... 15 

6.4 Cancelling Meetings. ................................................................................................................... 15 

6.5 Special Meetings. ........................................................................................................................ 15 

6.6 Closed Sessions. .......................................................................................................................... 16 

6.7 Quorum. ...................................................................................................................................... 16 

6.8 Minutes. ...................................................................................................................................... 16 

6.9 Adjourned Meetings. .................................................................................................................. 16 

SECTION 7. POSTING NOTICE AND AGENDA ............................................................................................... 16 

7.1 Posting of Notice and Agenda. .................................................................................................... 16 

7.2 Location of Posting. ..................................................................................................................... 16 

SECTION 8. AGENDA CONTENTS ................................................................................................................. 17 

8.1 Mayor’s Responsibility. ............................................................................................................... 17 

8.2 Description of Matters. ............................................................................................................... 17 

8.3 Availability to the Public. ............................................................................................................ 17 

8.4 Limitation to Act Only on Items on the Agenda.......................................................................... 17 

8.5 "Timing" of Agenda. .................................................................................................................... 17 

8.6 Order of Agenda – Regular Meeting. .......................................................................................... 17 

8.7 Order of Agenda – Closed Session. ............................................................................................. 18 

8.8 Change in Order of Business. ...................................................................................................... 18 

8.9 Agenda Request Policy. ............................................................................................................... 18 

8.10 Presentations. ............................................................................................................................. 18 

8.11 Proclamations. ............................................................................................................................ 18 

8.12 Redress. ....................................................................................................................................... 18 

SECTION 9. PROCEDURES FOR THE CONDUCT OF PUBLIC MEETINGS ........................................................ 19 

9.1 Role of Mayor. ............................................................................................................................. 19 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

191



3 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

9.2 Rules of Order. ............................................................................................................................ 19 

9.3 Appeal Procedures. ..................................................................................................................... 20 

9.4 Applicants. ................................................................................................................................... 20 

9.5 Staff and Consultant Reports. ..................................................................................................... 20 

9.6 Public Comment. ......................................................................................................................... 20 

9.7 Motions. ...................................................................................................................................... 21 

9.8 Reconsideration. ......................................................................................................................... 21 

9.9 Discussion.................................................................................................................................... 22 

9.10 Council Member Respect. ........................................................................................................... 24 

9.11 Council and Staff Reports and Directions on Future Agenda Items. .......................................... 24 

SECTION 10. CLOSED SESSIONS .................................................................................................................. 24 

10.1 Purpose. ...................................................................................................................................... 24 

10.2 Rule of Confidentiality. ............................................................................................................... 24 

10.3 Breach of Rule of Confidentiality. ............................................................................................... 25 

10.4 Agenda. ....................................................................................................................................... 25 

10.5 Permissible Topics. ...................................................................................................................... 25 

10.6 Rules of Decorum. ....................................................................................................................... 25 

10.7 Conduct of Meeting. ................................................................................................................... 25 

10.8 Public Disclosure After Final Action. ........................................................................................... 26 

SECTION 11. DECORUM .............................................................................................................................. 26 

11.1 Council Members. ....................................................................................................................... 26 

11.2 City Employees. ........................................................................................................................... 26 

11.3 Public. .......................................................................................................................................... 27 

11.4 Noise in the Chambers. ............................................................................................................... 27 

11.5 Removal. ..................................................................................................................................... 27 

11.6 Dangerous Instruments. ............................................................................................................. 27 

11.7 Prosecution. ................................................................................................................................ 27 

SECTION 12. ENFORCEMENT OF DECORUM ............................................................................................... 27 

SECTION 13. PUBLIC RELATIONS ................................................................................................................. 28 

13.1 City Spokesperson. ...................................................................................................................... 28 

13.2 Press Release............................................................................................................................... 28 

SECTION 14. MAYOR’S OFFICE .................................................................................................................... 28 

SECTION 15. VIOLATIONS OF PROCEDURES ............................................................................................... 28 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

192



4 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 
NORMS & PROCEDURES 

Section 1. GENERAL 

1.1 Purpose. 
The purpose of these Norms and Procedures is to promote communication, understanding, 
fairness, and trust among the members of the City Council and staff concerning their roles, 
responsibilities, and expectations for management of the business of the City of Suisun City. 

In the interest of promoting best practices in our local government as Municipal Legislators, this 
document will include operational procedures, policies, and practices.  

1.2 Code of Conduct. 
The residents and businesses of Suisun City are entitled to have a fair, ethical and accountable 
local government, which has earned the public’s full confidence for integrity. The effective 
function of our democratic government requires that: 

• Our public officials, both elected and appointed, comply with both the letter and spirit of
the laws and policies affecting the operations of government;

• Our public officials be independent, impartial and fair in their judgment and actions;

• Public office be used for the public good, and not for personal gain; and

• Public deliberations and processes be conducted openly, unless legally confidential, in an
atmosphere of respect and civility.

1.3 Decorum.
All Council Members shall practice a high degree of decorum and courtesy. Respect for each
Council Member’s interpersonal style will be the standard of operation. Courtesy and respect for
individual points of view will be practiced at all times.

All Council Members shall respect each other’s right to disagree. Council Members shall commit 
to avoiding personal attacks, using language that is demeaning, or using words or phrases that 
tend to “shut others down.” 

When addressing the public in any way, all Council Members shall make certain their opinions 
are expressed solely as their own, and do not in any way necessarily reflect the opinions of any 
other Council Member or the City.  

This subject is expanded in Section 11. 

1.4 Overview of Council responsibilities.  
Suisun City is a California General Law city with a council/manager form of government. The City 
Council, which is elected directly by city voters, is assisted by a number of appointed and 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

193



5 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

separately elected officials to provide services for City residents. The City Council has the 
following duties and responsibilities: 

(a) Appointment of the City Manager and City Attorney.  The City Council shall appoint
the City Manager and the City Attorney.  The City Manager shall implement City
Council policy and run day-to-day operations of Suisun City. The City Attorney shall
provide legal advice and act as counsel to elected officials and city staff in adherence
to all federal, state and local laws pertaining to city operations and public policy. There
should be an annual review for the City Manager and the City Attorney.

The City Manager’s annual review shall follow closely the format included in the City 
Manager’s contract and include goals for the next period. Less formal evaluations may 
take place quarterly or every six months at the pleasure of the Council. A separate 
procedure will be established for this evaluation. 

The City Attorney’s annual review shall be at a format proposed by the Mayor and 
agreed upon by the Council informally. 

The Mayor at his/her discretion may annually create an ad hoc to oversee annual 
review process and prepare a summary evaluation. 

(b) Establishment of boards and appointment of members.  With the consent of the
Council, the Mayor may establish Boards, Commissions, and Committees, and make
appointments of members of all Boards, Commissions, and Committees.  The Mayor
may, from time to time, cede this authority by resolution of the Council.

(c) Legislative decisions.  The Council is the legislative body; its members are the
community’s decision makers.  Power is centralized in the elected City Council
collectively and not in individual members of the Council.  The City Council approves
the budget and determines the public services.  It focuses on the community’s goals,
major projects and such long term considerations as community growth, financing
and strategic planning.  The City Council hires a professional City Manager to carry out
administrative responsibilities and they collectively supervise the City Manager’s
performance.

1.5 Overview of City Manager responsibilities. 
The City Manager is hired to serve the City Council and the community and to bring the benefits 
of education, training and experience in administering the City’s projects, programs, and public 
services on behalf of the City Council. The City Manager follows the direction of the entire City 
Council and not individual members of the Council or the public, and serves at the sole discretion 
of the Council. 

As the City’s Chief Executive Officer, the City Manager oversees: 

• Department heads and department operations

• Budget development and fiscal management

Item 12 
Attachment 2

194



6 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

• Policy implementation

• Personnel administration and human resources

• Labor relations

• Intergovernmental relations

• Service delivery

• Elected official support

• A variety of special projects and assignments

The City Manager appoints, removes, promotes, and demotes any and all officers and employees 
of the city except the City Clerk, City Attorney, and City Treasurer.  Appointment, removal, 
promotion, or demotion of department heads shall require prior approval of the City Council. 
(Ord § 2.08.110) 

Among the chief duties, the City Manager will implement the Council’s policies, projects, 
programs, and public services in an effective and efficient manner, providing professional advice 
on policy matters, intergovernmental affairs, economic development, and environmental issues. 

1.6 Annual Review. 
The City Council shall conduct a review of this document annually within three months prior to 
the start of a new fiscal year, or whenever Council deems necessary, to assist Council Members 
in being more productive in management of the business of the City.  

1.7 Ralph M. Brown Act.  
All conduct of the City Council, Commissions, Committees and Subcommittees shall be in full 
compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act.  

SECTION 2. COUNCIL REORGANIZATION 

2.1 Mayor Pro Tem Selection Process.  
In December of each year, the Mayor shall select and appoint a Mayor Pro Tem, with consent of 
the City Council, from among the members of the Council. Selection and appointment shall be at 
the first meeting of a new term following each General Municipal Election or at the first meeting 
in December during non-election years.  For all intents and purposes, the title Mayor Pro Tem 
and Vice Mayor are used interchangeably. The term of the appointment shall be for a 12-month 
period commencing on January 1st of each year, unless otherwise provided for by majority vote 
of the Council.   

2.2 Duties of the Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Mayor 
The Vice Mayor remains as one member of the City Council and has no rights or authority 
different from any other member of the Council.  The Vice Mayor is the designated individual to 
represent the Mayor and perform any duties as required when the Mayor is unavailable.  If the 
Mayor will be unavailable for an extended period of time, the Mayor shall provide notification to 
the Vice Mayor, City Manager, and City Clerk, in addition to outlining any additional duties. 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

195



7 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

2.3 Appointment of a Council Vacancy. 
In the event of a vacancy of office or the death or resignation of any Council Member, the Mayor 
shall appoint a new Council Member, with the consent of the Council, within sixty (60) days after 
a vacancy or death or resignation becomes effective in compliance with the California Elections 
Code, unless the Council, by resolution, decides to instead call a special election. In the event of 
appointment, the Mayor, with the consent of the Council, shall determine by resolution the 
process for appointment prior to the application process and in accordance with State law.  

SECTION 3. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

3.1 Attendance. 
City Council Members acknowledge that attendance at lawful meetings of the City Council is part 
of their official duty. Council Members shall make a good faith effort to attend all such meetings 
unless unable. Council Members will notify the Mayor, City Manager, and City Clerk, if they will 
be absent from a meeting.  

Per Gov Code §36513, “if a city councilmember is absent without permission from all regular city 
council meetings for 60 days consecutively from the last regular meeting he or she attended, his 
or her office becomes vacant and shall be filled as any other vacancy.” 

3.2 Correspondence.  
With some exceptions, proposed correspondence (including electronic) from individual Council 
Members/Mayor on City stationery shall be reviewed by the Council in draft form prior to release. 

On occasion, there are urgent requests from the League of California Cities for correspondence 
concerning legislation directly affecting municipalities. Assuming there is agreement between the 
Mayor and City Manager that the League’s position corresponds with that of the Council, the 
Mayor may send a letter without first obtaining Council review.  

City letterhead will be made available for routine, discretionary correspondence (e.g., thank you 
notes, etc.), or such correspondence will be prepared by staff for signature, without prior consent 
of the Council.  

The City will provide stationary designated as “The Office of” for each member of the Council to 
use for correspondence as it relates to your elected position (e.g., thank you notes, letters of 
recommendation, direct communication to residents or businesses, etc).  This letterhead will 
have the same information as provided on your business card.  Any views expressed in this 
correspondence (including electronic) are solely your own and do not represent the views of the 
City or the Council. 

E-mails from Council Members should be respectful and professional. This form of
correspondence is a public record subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act.

Item 12 
Attachment 2

196



8 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

3.3 Regional Boards, Committees and Ad Hocs 
The role of the Council on regional boards will vary depending on the nature of the appointment. 
Representing the interests of Suisun City is appropriate on some boards; this is generally the case 
when other local governments have their own representation. The positions taken by the 
appointed representatives are to be in alignment with the positions that the Council has taken 
on issues that directly impact Suisun City. If an issue should arise that is specific to Suisun City 
and the Council has not taken a position, the issue should be discussed by the Council prior to 
taking a formal position at a regional board meeting, to assure that it is in alignment with a 
majority of the Council’s position.  

Council representatives to such various boards shall keep the Council informed of ongoing 
business through brief oral or written reports to the Council during properly posted Council 
meetings.  

Council Members shall make a good faith effort to attend all regional meetings to which they are 
assigned. Attendance should not be less than 75% of all annual scheduled meetings and all 
absences should be reported to the Mayor. If a Council Member is unable to attend, the Council 
Member shall notify his/her alternate as far in advance of the meeting as possible so as to allow 
the alternate to attend.  

A list of these assignments are maintained by the Deputy City Clerk and will be distributed to the 
Council when updated. 

3.4 Distribution of Information. 
It is essential that every member of the City Council have the same information from which to 
form decisions and actions.  Any information distributed to one Council Member shall also be 
distributed to all Council Members. 

The Mayor, by virtue of the position, may receive information in advance of other members of 
the Council in order for the City Manager to effectively proceed with the day-to-day operation of 
the City.  The City Manager will make every effort to disseminate this information to the 
remaining members of the Council in a timely manner, whether through the City Manager Report 
or Council Member/Manager 1:1. 

3.5 Reimbursement. 
Every effort shall be made to limit the need to reimburse Council Members for expenses. City 
Council Members may be reimbursed for personal expenses for travel to and lodging at 
conferences or meetings related to their role as a Council Member. The reimbursement of 
expenses is limited in the following manner: Members shall be reimbursed subject to the 
Administrative Directive related to travel expense (AD1.) Any additional expenses that fall 
outside the scope of this policy may be reimbursed only if approved by the City Council, at a 
public meeting, before the expenses are incurred. Any request for reimbursement of expenses 
shall be accompanied by an expense form and receipts to document the expenditure. These 
documents are public records subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act.  

Item 12 
Attachment 2

197



9 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

Brief reports must be given on any outside meeting attended at the expense of the City at the 
next regular Council meeting.  

3.6 Ethics and Sexual Harassment Prevention & Education Training. 
Any member of the City Council and commissions, or advisory committees formed by the City 
Council, shall receive at least two hours of ethics training in general ethics principles and ethics 
laws relevant to his/her public service every two years, as mandated by AB 1234, and at least two 
hours of sexual harassment prevention training, as mandated by AB 1661. New members must 
receive this training within their first year of service for ethics and six months for sexual 
harassment prevention training and education, and file a certificate of completion with the City 
Clerk. Members shall attend training sessions that are offered through the League of California 
Cities or locally in the immediate vicinity of Solano County, or by completing online a state-
approved public service ethics education program.  

An individual who serves on multiple legislative bodies need only receive two hours of each 
training every two years to satisfy this requirement for all applicable public service positions. If 
the City offers either course, the City will use a course that has been reviewed and approved by 
the Fair Political Practices Commission and the California Secretary of State.   

The City Clerk is required to keep ethics training records for five years to document and prove 
that these continuing education requirements have been satisfied. These documents are public 
records subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act.  

3.7 City Seal. 
The City Seal is an important symbol of Suisun City. No change to the City Seal shall be made 
without Council approval.  Individual Council Members shall be careful in use of the City Seal so 
as not to create an appearance that the Council Member is acting on behalf of or with official 
endorsement of Suisun City.  

3.8 Use of City Email and Social Media. 
Except for emergencies, public officials who are not City employees (“public officials”) conducting 
City business should not create any “public record” (as that term is defined in California 
Government Code § 6253(e)) by using any email account that is not a City email account, or by 
using any non-City-controlled social media account. Instead, public officials should use a City 
email or City-controlled social media account.   

In an emergency, a public official may send an email on a non-City email account, but only if a 
copy of any public record that is created as a result is contemporaneously copied to the City email 
account of that same public official, or a hard copy is provided to the City for retention in City 
records.    

Practically speaking, this means that public officials should rarely, if ever, use a personal email 
account to conduct City business, and should never use personal social media accounts to 
conduct City business. Nothing in this policy is intended to limit a public official’s use of private 
email and social media accounts for non-City business such as personal communications and 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

198



10 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

campaign related activities. Nor is this policy intended to require public officials to provide 
privileged communications or documents to the City, or to waive any applicable privileges which 
may apply to documents purely because they have been turned over to the City in compliance 
with this policy.   

For purposes of this policy “City-controlled social media account” is an account on a social media 
platform (e.g. Facebook, Instagram, Twitter) that is created and used by the City (e.g. the City’s 
official Facebook page, if any). 

Use of City Electronic Devices.  In general, when creating or modifying public records in the 
conduct of City business on an electronic device that can create and modify public records (e.g. 
computers, mobile phones, tablets), public officials should only use City-issued devices. There are 
two exceptions: 

Exception: Using City Accounts.  Public officials may use non-City electronic devices when 
accessing an official City account (e.g. City email address, City-controlled social media account).   

Exception: Contemporaneous Copying. If, in a given situation, using a City electronic device is 
clearly impractical or if a public official has not been issued or does not have in the public official’s 
possession a City electronic device, a public official may use a non-City device, but only if a copy 
of each affected public record is contemporaneously copied to a City account of that same public 
official, or to the related City-controlled social media account, or a hard copy is provided to the 
City for retention in City records. 

Texting Only on City Devices.  Except for emergencies or when communicating with the City 
Attorney’s Office, public officials conducting City business shall not send or receive texts on any 
device other than a City owned device. In an emergency, a public official may use a non-City 
device to text, but only if a copy of any public record that is created as a result is 
contemporaneously copied to a City account of that same public official, or a hard copy is 
provided to the City for retention in City records.  Practically speaking, this means that public 
officials should rarely, if ever, use a non-City owned device to text in the conduct of City business. 

Provide Copies to City.  If a public official has possession of a public record that is not in the 
possession of the City, the public official shall promptly provide a copy of the record to the City, 
and take reasonable precautions to prevent this from occurring again.  For example, if a public 
official receives an email regarding City business on a non-City email account, and the email was 
not sent to or from a City email account (i.e. the City doesn’t already have a copy), the public 
official shall promptly forward a copy of the email to the public official’s City email account, or 
provide a hard copy to the City for retention in City records, and should request that the sender 
send future correspondence to a City controlled email account.    

3.9 Compensation.  
Council members are compensated in accordance with California Government Code Sections 
36516 and 36516.5.  The amount is memorialized in the City’s Municipal Code. 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

199



 

 

11 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

 

SECTION 4. COUNCIL RELATIONSHIP WITH STAFF  
 
Note: The foundation of a healthy and productive relationship between City Council and all City 
Staff is based on staying within the chain of command. 
 

4.1 City Manager.  
City Council Members are always free to go to the City Manager to discuss City business. Issues 
concerning the performance of a Department or any employee must be directed to the City 
Manager. Direction to City employees, other than the City Manager or City Attorney, is the 
prerogative of the City Manager. In passing along critical information, the City Manager will be 
responsible for contacting all Council Members. The City Manager may delegate this 
responsibility to Department Heads.  
 

4.2 Agenda Item Questions.  
If a Council Member has a question on an agenda item, the Council Member should contact the 
City Manager, if at all possible, prior to any meeting at which the item may be discussed. This 
does not restrict Council Members from asking questions during a Council meeting.  
 

4.3 Interaction of City Council with Staff.  
The Council shall treat staff with respect and shall not abuse staff, nor embarrass staff in public. 
The City Council Members are welcome to have contact with any city employee.  However, the 
Council are to work through the City Manager or City Attorney on all issues, concerns and 
questions. This is to allow the senior professional staff, with the proper education, training, 
experience and knowledge of issues, laws and City Council’s policies to coordinate a full and 
complete response and reduce error or misunderstanding by staff members not necessarily 
knowledgeable on all issues.  This can provide a better overall response, allow any new issues to 
properly be considered and avoid unintended redirection of staff efforts.  
 
Council Members are free to speak to Department Heads and may ask for information related to 
their department or agenda items.  However, at no point is it acceptable to provide direction. All 
direction should be given to the City Manager, and the City Manager should be informed of 
contacts made with Department Heads. This informal system of direct communication is not to 
be abused.  
 
City Council Members shall not meet with groups of management employees for the purpose of 
discussing terms of employment or establishing employee policy. 
 

4.4 Individual Council Member’s Requests.  
Council Members shall make their requests for information to the City Manager and not directly 
to individual members of staff.  The use of City staff, including the City Manager, to respond to 
an individual Council Member’s request for any purpose that exceeds more than one hour of 
total staff time must be approved by the majority vote of the full Council.  The individual City 
Council Member may make his/her request orally or in writing to the City Manager.  The City 
Manager shall provide an estimate of the cost and how the request affects the Council’s Goals 
and Objectives.  This request will then be considered by the City Council at the next possible City 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

200



12 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

Council meeting.  Irrespective of the amount of staff time required to respond to each Council 
Member’s request, individual Council Member’s requests should be limited to no more than 
three to five requests per week. 

SECTION 5. PROCEDURES FOR APPOINTMENTS TO 
BOARDS/COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES  

5.1 Definitions. 
(a) Task Force:  A temporary grouping of individuals and resources for the accomplishment

of a specific objective.

(b) Committee:  A group of people officially delegated to perform a function, such as
investigating, considering reporting, or acting on a matter.

(c) Ad Hoc:  Committees established for a specific purpose.  Formed for or concerned with
one specific purpose (e.g. ad hoc compensation committee); for the particular end or case
at hand without consideration of wider application; formed or used for specific or
immediate problems or needs; often improvised or impromptu; contrived purely for the
purpose in hand rather than carefully planned in advance.

(d) Commission:  A group of people officially authorized to perform certain duties or
functions with certain powers or authority granted; the act of granting certain powers or
the authority to carry out a particular task or duty; the rank and powers so conferred.

(e) Board:  A group of persons having managerial, supervisory, or advisory powers.  In
parliamentary law, a board is a form of deliberative assembly and is distinct from a
committee, which is usually subordinate to a board or other deliberative assembly – in
having greater autonomy and authority.

5.2 Recruitment Process. 
(a) On or before December 31st of each year, the City Clerk shall prepare and post a list of all

Council-appointed board, commission and committee terms that expire during the next
calendar year in compliance with the Maddy Act (Government Code Section 54972).

(b) The City Clerk shall annually advertise in a newspaper and on the City’s website for
applicants wishing to be considered for appointment to boards, commissions and
committees.

(c) Although there may be multiple applicants, the Mayor is not required to choose from the
pool of applicants and may nominate his/her own appointee, provided the appointee
qualifies.  This applies to individual Council Members where the Mayor has ceded his/her
authority.

Item 12 
Attachment 2

201



13 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

(d) All persons seeking appointment to a City board, commission or committee shall
complete and submit an application form to the City Clerk as set forth in Section 5.6.
Applications shall be kept on file for two years in the City Clerk’s office and vacancies may
be considered from applications on file, as well as new applications.

(e) If an unscheduled board or commission vacancy occurs during the year, the following
steps should be taken to publicize vacancies on boards, commissions and committees:

1. Public announcement of the vacancy at a Council meeting.
2. A newspaper advertisement announcing the vacancy.
3. A recruitment period of at least ten (10) days.
4. A vacancy notice posted at City Hall, the Nelson Center, and on the City’s website

for at least 20 days.
5. Announcements in the local media, such as press releases, online news outlets

and free weekly sales papers.
6. Distribution to appropriate professional and community organizations and all

groups that have requested notification.

5.3 Requirement for Appointment. 
(a) All persons appointed to City boards, commissions and committees shall be residents of

the City of Suisun City at the time of their appointment and shall remain so throughout
their term of appointment.  Should any person so appointed move from the City during
their term of office, such office shall be forfeited.  The Mayor with the consent of the
Council shall, upon forfeiture, make a new appointment to fill the unexpired term.

(b) All persons appointed to City boards, commissions and committees shall complete and
submit an application form to the City Clerk as set forth in Section 5.6.

(c) Except as provided by state or local statute, the appointee shall not be a current City
employee or currently appointed to another City board, committee or commission.

5.4 Council Notification.  
By October 1 of each year, the City Clerk will notify the Mayor of expiring terms for members of 
those City boards, commissions, and committees.  

5.5 Incumbents. 
(a) At the end of the first term, the incumbent board, commission or committee member

may, at the discretion of the Mayor, be reappointed for an additional term without the
need to apply or interview for re-appointment.  In lieu of an application, the board,
commission or committee member shall submit to the City Clerk a letter  or email
expressing interest in re-appointment 60 days prior to the expiration of the member’s
first term.

(b) Any incumbent interested in re-appointment who has served two or more terms must
apply for re-appointment as set forth in Section 5.6.

Item 12 
Attachment 2

202



14 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

5.6 Application. 
Except as set forth in Section 5.5, all persons considered for appointment or re-appointment shall 
complete an application form.  This application form must be received by the City Clerk by the 
required deadline. 

5.7 Attendance. 
(a) Board, commission and committee members are expected to regularly attend and

participate on their respective boards, committees and commissions.

(b) All absences should be reported to the Mayor in advance of missing the meeting.

(c) A board, commission or committee member whose attendance is less than seventy-five
percent (75%) of the required meetings over a period of a year may be subject to removal
at the discretion of the Mayor.  Council will be notified of any actions taken.

(d) The Council may grant an approved leave of absence for a board, commission or
committee member for such reasons as the Mayor determines appropriate.  Council will
be notified of any actions taken

5.8 Norms and Procedures and Conflicts of Interest.
(a) Board, committee and commission members shall be expected to adhere to the Council

Norms and Procedures.

(b) Board, committee and commission members shall comply with all state and local laws
with respect to ethics and conflicts of interests to the extent that such laws apply to their
position, including state and local requirements to timely file Statements of Economic
Disclosure if the member is designated as a filer by state law or by the City’s Conflict of
Interest Code.

(c) Members of City boards, commissions or committees may not use their board,
commission or committee position title for political endorsements.

5.9 Conflicts with Federal, State or Local Law.
In case of a conflict between this section of the Norms and Procedure policy with federal, state
or local law, such federal, state or local law shall be the controlling factor.

SECTION 6. MEETINGS 

6.1  Open to Public. 
All meetings of the City Council whether regular, special, or study sessions, shall be open to the 
public, unless a closed session is held as authorized by law. All meetings shall be noticed as 
required to allow action to be taken by the Council.  

Item 12 
Attachment 2

203



15 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

6.2 Broadcasting of City Council Meetings. 
All regular Council meetings shall be scheduled in the Council Chambers to allow for web 
streaming, unless the number of participants exceeds room capacity. The final decision shall be 
the responsibility of the Mayor.  

6.3  Regular Meetings. 
At the first regular meeting in January, the City Council will approve the schedule of meetings for 
the calendar year, which in addition to the regular meeting schedule, may include the 
cancellation of regular meetings and the addition of special meetings and study sessions. This 
practice does not, however, preclude the Mayor from calling additional meetings pursuant to 
Section 6.5, if necessary.  

The City Council shall convene its regular City Council meetings at 6:30 p.m. on the first and third 
Tuesday of each month.  However, each Tuesday is a regular meeting day if necessary to carry 

out the business of the city and Council members should be prepared to meet on any Tuesday 

evening. 

The City Council hopes to conclude its public business at Regular Meetings by 10:00 p.m.  
Ordinarily, at the discretion of the Mayor, no new items will be taken up after the 10:00 p.m. 
cutoff and any items remaining will be agendized for the next meeting.   

6.4 Cancelling Meetings. 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 36805, City Council shall hold a Regular Meeting at least 
once each month.  Outside of this provision, the Mayor may cancel no more than four (4) Regular 
Meetings at his/her discretion no less than 7 days before the planned meeting. The Mayor may 
cancel a meeting at any time in the case of an emergency or when a majority of members have 
confirmed their unavailability to attend a meeting.  

6.5 Special Meetings. 
A special meeting may be called at any time by the Mayor or by a majority of the City Council in 
accordance with the Brown Act. Written notice of any such meeting must specify the purpose of 
the meeting. Notice of the meeting must be given in accordance with law. Public comments at 
special meetings shall be limited to only those items described on the special meeting 
notice/agenda.  

The City Council may hold study sessions or joint meetings with other boards, commissions, 
committees, or agencies as deemed necessary to resolve City business. These meetings will be 
coordinated by the City Clerk. Study sessions are scheduled to provide Council Members the 
opportunity to better understand a particular item. While Council may legally take action at any 
noticed meeting, generally no formal action is taken at study sessions. If action is to be taken at 
a study session, then the agenda will state that action may be taken.  

Item 12 
Attachment 2

204



16 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

6.6 Closed Sessions. 
The City Council may hold closed sessions at any time authorized by law (and in consultation with 
the City Attorney), to consider or hear any matter, which is authorized by law. The Mayor or any 
three Council Members may call closed session meetings at any time.  

6.7 Quorum. 
Three (3) members of the City Council shall constitute a quorum and shall be sufficient to transact 
business. If fewer than three Council Members appear at a regular meeting, the Mayor, Vice 
Mayor in the absence of the Mayor, any Council Member in the absence of the Mayor and Vice 
Mayor, or in the absence of all Council Members, the City Clerk or Deputy City Clerk, shall adjourn 
the meeting to a stated day and hour. 

Business of the City Council may be conducted with a minimum of three members being present; 
however, pursuant to the California Government Code, matters requiring the expenditure of City 
funds and all resolutions and non-urgency ordinances must receive three affirmative votes for 
approval. 

6.8 Minutes. 
The City Clerk shall prepare minutes of all public meetings of the City Council. Electronic copies 
will be distributed to the Council for review one (1) week following the meeting.  Council 
Members will have one (1) week to provide feedback to the City Clerk for corrections or 
clarifications.  The City Clerk will provide the corrected minutes to the City Manager one (1) week 
before the meeting to ensure inclusion in the Agenda Packet. 

6.9 Adjourned Meetings.  
The City Council may adjourn any regular, adjourned regular, special, or closed session meeting 
to a time and place specified in the order of adjournment and permitted by law.  

SECTION 7. POSTING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

7.1 Posting of Notice and Agenda. 
For every regular, special, or study session meeting, the City Clerk or other authorized person 
shall post a notice of the meeting, specifying the time and place at which the meeting will be 
held, and an agenda containing a brief description of all items of business to be discussed at the 
meeting. This notice and agenda may be combined in a single document. Posting is to be 
according to law.  

7.2 Location of Posting. 
The notice and agenda shall be posted at City Hall in a place to which the public has unrestricted 
access and where the notice and agenda are not likely to be removed or obscured by other posted 
material, and to the City website.  

Although not required, additional posting places have been identified to increase civic 
engagement: 

• Joseph Nelson Center

Item 12 
Attachment 2

205



17 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

• Fire Department

• Harbor Master Building

• City Controlled Social Media

• Non-City Partnership Buildings

SECTION 8. AGENDA CONTENTS 

8.1 Mayor’s Responsibility. 
The Mayor is responsible for running a timely and orderly meeting. If the Mayor is unavailable to 
run a Council meeting, the Vice Mayor shall run the meeting. The Mayor, in consultation with the 
City Manager or his/her designee, shall organize the agenda and agenda forecast.  The agenda 
forecast will be distributed with the City Manager’s report. 

8.2 Description of Matters. 
All items of business to be discussed at a meeting of the City Council shall be briefly described on 
the agenda. The description should set forth the proposed action to be considered so that 
members of the public will know the nature of the action under review and consideration.  

As stated in Section 4.2, if a Council Member has a question on a subject, the Council Member 
should contact the City Manager prior to any meeting at which the subject may be discussed. 

8.3 Availability to the Public. 
The agenda for any regular, special, or study session meeting, shall be made available to the 
general public as required by law.  

8.4 Limitation to Act Only on Items on the Agenda. 
No action shall be taken by the City Council on any item not on the posted agenda, subject only 
to the exceptions listed below:  

(a) Upon a majority determination that an “emergency situation” (as defined by State
Law) exists; or 

(b) Upon determination by a 4/5 vote of the full City Council, or a unanimous vote if less
than a full Council, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need to take the 
action came to the attention of the City Council subsequent to posting of the agenda.  

8.5 "Timing" of Agenda. 
The Mayor may "time" the agenda as a way for the Council to maintain a sense of how much time 
can be committed to any one item without going past an established ending time for the meeting. 

8.6 Order of Agenda – Regular Meeting. 
The prescribed order of the agenda for Regular Meetings of the Council will be as follows: Roll 
Call, Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, Conflict of Interest Notification, Informational Reports (City 
Manager/Executive Director/Staff), Presentations/Appointments, Consent Calendar, Public 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

206



18 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

Comments on Items not on the Agenda, Public Hearings, General Business Items, City Council 
Reports, Mayor Report, Non-presented Reports, and Adjournment.  

8.7 Order of Agenda – Closed Session. 
The prescribed order of the agenda for a Special Meeting – Closed Session of the Council will be 
as follows: Roll Call, Conflict of Interest Notification, Closed Session, Closed Session 
Announcement, and Adjournment.  

8.8 Change in Order of Business. 
The Mayor may decide to take matters listed on the agenda out of the prescribed order. Council 
Members shall be given the opportunity to ask questions about Consent Items for clarification 
without having them removed.  

8.9 Agenda Request Policy. 
Requests for placement of items on the agenda can be submitted to the Mayor or City Manager 
at any time.  The Mayor and City Manager will review the request and determine appropriate 
timing to bring the item forth. 

Also, any member of the Council may request that an item be placed on a future agenda by 
indicating their desire to do so under the Council Member Report portion of the City Council 
agenda. The request will require the consensus of the Council to have the item brought back at 
a certain time versus at the pleasure of the Mayor or City Manager. 

8.10 Presentations. 
Presentations are put on the agenda with concurrence of the Mayor or City Manager.  The Mayor 
or City Manager will use their best judgment on scheduling presentations and recognitions.  Time 
limits shall normally be 5 minutes. Presentations may be extended by special circumstances as 
needed.  Exceptions can be made at the Mayor’s discretion. 

To promote a proactive policy concerning state, regional and federal legislative issues, 
presentations shall include a periodic legislative update by the City Manager (or City Manager 
designee), to include information on important legislative issues and/or those matters that the 
City has a stated a position on during the Legislative Session 

8.11 Proclamations. 
Requests for proclamations can be submitted to the Mayor at any time.  Proclamations or Special 
Recognition are created at the Mayor’s full discretion. 

The agenda will include Proclamations presented during the council meetings and a list provided 
of those for information purposes or presented outside of the meeting.  

8.12 Redress. 
Agenda items for redress or reconsideration are expanded in Section 9.8. 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

207



19 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

SECTION 9. PROCEDURES FOR THE CONDUCT OF PUBLIC MEETINGS 

9.1 Role of Mayor. 
(a) The Mayor shall be responsible for maintaining the order and decorum of meetings.

It shall be the duty and responsibility of the Mayor to ensure that the rules of
operation and decorum contained herein are observed. The Mayor shall maintain
control of communication between Council Members and among Council, staff and
public.  The Mayor shall intervene when a Council Member, staff or other meeting
participant is being verbally or otherwise attacked by a member of the public.

(b) Communication with Council Members:
1. Council Members shall request the floor from the Mayor before speaking.

2. When one member of the Council has the floor and is speaking, other Council
Members shall not interrupt or otherwise disturb the speaker.

(c) Communication with members of the public addressing the Council on agendized
items:

1. The Mayor shall open the floor for public comment as appropriate.

2. Council Members may question a person addressing the Council at the
conclusion of the person’s comments or upon expiration of the person’s time
to speak in order to gain additional information. At no point should Council
Members engage in additional back and forth with members of the public.

3. Any staff member with an item on the agenda will be available to the City
Council to answer questions arising during discussions between Council
Members and among Council Members and members of the public.

4. Members of the public shall direct their questions and comments to the Council.

9.2 Rules of Order. 
The City Council shall follow the “spirit” of Rosenberg’s Rules of Order as a guide for the conduct 
of meetings, with the following modifications:  

(a) A motion is not required prior to a general discussion on an agenda item. A pre-motion
discussion allows the members to share their thoughts on the agendized item so that a motion 
can more easily be made that takes into account what appears to be the majority position.  

(b) All motions require a second.

Item 12 
Attachment 2

208



20 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

(c) A motion may be amended at the request of the maker and the consent of the person
who seconded the motion. Such a procedure is often used to accommodate concerns expressed 
by other members.  

(d) A motion to amend may still be used.

The Mayor has the discretion to impose reasonable rules at any particular meeting based upon 
facts and circumstances found at any particular meeting. 

9.3 Appeal Procedures. 
Appellants shall be given the opportunity to speak first. Appellants and applicants responding to 
appeals may be given a total of up to 10 minutes each to present their positions to the City 
Council prior to hearing public comments. Appellants shall be given up to 5 minutes of rebuttal 
time after public comments are heard. 

9.4 Applicants. 
Persons bringing to the City Council a request for approval shall be given a total of up to 10 
minutes to present their positions/input prior to hearing public comments. An extension can only 
be granted by consent of a majority of the Council Members. Applicants shall be given up to 5 
minutes of rebuttal time after public comments are heard.  

9.5 Staff and Consultant Reports. 
In general, staff and consultant reports should be clear, brief and concise. Staff is to assume that 
the Council has read all materials submitted. Council shall be given an opportunity to ask 
questions of staff prior to hearing public comments.  

9.6 Public Comment. 
(a) Persons present at meetings of the City Council may comment on individual items on the

agenda at the time the items are scheduled to be heard. During Regular City Council
meetings, comments may be offered on items not on the agenda under that portion of
the agenda identified for Public Comment.

(b) The limit for speakers will be up to 3 minutes, depending on the number of speakers.
Speakers are not allowed to delegate their time to another speaker. The Mayor may limit
the time to be spent on an item and may continue the item, with the approval of the
majority of the Council, to a future meeting at his/her discretion.

(c) Upon addressing the Council, each speaker is requested, but not required, to first state
his/her name, whom they represent and/or city of residence.

(d) After the speaker has completed their remarks, the Mayor may direct the City Manager
or City Attorney to briefly address the issues brought forth by the speaker. Council
Members shall be respectful of the speakers and shall not enter into a debate with any
member of the public nor discuss amongst themselves.

Item 12 
Attachment 2

209



21 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

(e) All Council Members shall listen to all public discussion as part of the Council’s community
responsibility. Individual Council Members should remain open-minded to informational
comments made by the public.

(f) The Mayor has the right to ask a member of the public to step down if over the allotted
time or if the speaker’s comments are not within the city’s jurisdiction.

9.7 Motions. 
It will be the practice of the City Council for the Mayor to provide Council Members an 
opportunity to ask questions of staff, comment on, and discuss any agendized item in order to 
help form a consensus before a motion is offered. After such discussion, the Mayor or any Council 
Member may make a motion. Before the motion can be considered or discussed, it must be 
seconded. Once a motion has been properly made and seconded, the Mayor shall open the 
matter to full discussion offering the first opportunity to speak to the moving party, and 
thereafter, to any Council Member recognized by the Mayor. Customarily, the Mayor will take 
the floor after all other Council Members have been given the opportunity to speak.  

If a motion clearly contains divisible parts, any Council Member may request the Mayor or moving 
party divide the motion into separate motions to provide Council Members an opportunity for 
more specific consideration.  

Tie Votes: Tie votes shall be lost motions. When all Council Members are present, a tie vote on 
whether to grant an appeal from official action shall be considered a denial of such appeal, unless 
the Council takes other action to further consider the matter.  If a tie vote results at a time when 
fewer than all members of the Council, who may legally participate in the matter are present, the 
matter shall be automatically continued to the agenda of the next regular meeting of the Council, 
unless otherwise ordered by the Council.  

9.8 Reconsideration. 
(a) Request for reconsideration.

1. Request by a member of the public. Notwithstanding Rosenberg’s Rules of Order, a
request for reconsideration may be made by a member of the public to the City
Council at the next regular meeting of the City Council or at any intervening special
meeting of the City Council.

2. Request by a member of the City Council. Only a member of the City Council who
voted on the prevailing side may request reconsideration. The request may be made
at the same meeting or at the next regular meeting of the City Council or at any
intervening special meeting of the City Council.

3. The member of the public or City Council Member making the request should state
orally or in writing the reason for the request, without dwelling on the specific details
or setting forth various arguments.

(b) Motion to reconsider any Council action.

Item 12 
Attachment 2

210



22 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

1. Reconsideration at the same meeting. A motion to reconsider an action taken by the
City Council may be made at the same meeting at which the action was taken
(including an adjourned or continued meeting).  A motion to reconsider an action
taken by the City Council may be made only by a Council Member who voted on the
prevailing side, but may be seconded by any Council Member and is debatable.  The
motion must be approved by a majority of the entire City Council.

2. Reconsideration at a subsequent meeting. If an intent to request a motion for
reconsideration is communicated to the City Council prior to the deadline for posting
the City Council meeting agenda, then the request for reconsideration may be
agendized if support for said action exists in accordance with the Council Norms
Section 10.8. Otherwise, no City Council discussion or action on a possible
reconsideration may occur unless the item is appropriately added to the agenda
pursuant to Government Code section 54954.2(b), which addresses adding items that
are not listed on a posted agenda (urgency agenda item).  At the time such motion for
reconsideration is heard, testimony shall be limited to the facts giving rise to the
motion.

(c) Effect of approval of motion.
Upon approval of a motion to reconsider, and at such time as the matter is heard, the City
Council shall only consider any new evidence or facts not presented previously with
regard to the item or a claim of error in applying the facts.

If the motion to reconsider is made and approved at the same meeting at which the initial 
action was taken and all interested persons (including applicants, owners, supporters and 
opponents) are still present, the matter may be reconsidered at that meeting or at the 
next regular meeting or intervening special meeting (subject to the discretion of the 
maker of the motion) and no further public notice is required.  

If the motion to reconsider is made and approved at the same meeting at which the initial 
action was taken but all interested persons are not still present, or if the motion is made 
and approved at the next regular meeting or intervening special meeting, the item shall 
be scheduled for consideration at the earliest feasible City Council meeting and shall be 
re-noticed in accordance with the Government Code, the City Municipal Code and the 
Council Norms and Procedures. The Clerk shall provide notice to all interested parties as 
soon as possible when a matter becomes the subject of a motion to reconsider. 

9.9 Discussion. 
(a) The discussion and deliberations at meetings of the City Council are to secure the

mature judgment of Council Members on proposals submitted for decision. This purpose is best 
served by the exchange of thought through discussion and debate.  

To the extent possible, Council Members should disclose any ex parte communication prior to 
discussion on an item.  Ex parte communications are those made in private between an 
interested party and an official in a decision making process. 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

211



23 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

Discussion and deliberation are regulated by these rules in order to assure every member a 
reasonable and equal opportunity to be heard.  

(b) Obtaining the floor for discussion.

After the Council has commented on an issue, and a motion has been stated to the Council 
and seconded, any member of the Council has a right to discuss it after obtaining the floor. The 
member obtains the floor by seeking recognition from the Mayor. A member who has been 
recognized should make their comments clear, brief and concise.  

(c) Speaking more than once.

To encourage the full participation of all members of the Council, no member or members 
shall be permitted to monopolize the discussion of the question. If a Council Member has already 
spoken, other Council Members wishing to speak shall then be recognized. No Council Member 
shall be allowed to speak a second time until after all other Council Members have had an 
opportunity to speak.  

(d) Relevancy of discussion.

All discussion must be relevant to the issue before the City Council. A Council Member is 
given the floor only for the purpose of discussing the pending question; discussion which departs 
is out of order. Council Members shall avoid repetition and strive to move the discussion along.  

A motion, its nature, or consequences, may be attacked vigorously. It is never permissible 
to attack the motives, character, or personality of a member either directly or by innuendo or 
implication. It is the duty of the Mayor to instantly rule out of order any Council Member who 
engages in personal attacks. It is the motion, not its proposer, that is subject to debate.  

Arguments, for or against a measure, should be stated as concisely as possible. It is the 
responsibility of each Council Member to maintain an open mind on all issues during discussion 
and deliberation.  

It is not necessary for all City Council Members to speak or give their viewpoints if another 
Council Member has already addressed their concerns.  Although issues with potential to be 
litigated or otherwise appealed should have comments by each Council Member on the record. 

(e) Mayor’s duties during discussion.

The Mayor has the responsibility of controlling and expediting the discussion. A Council 
Member who has been recognized to speak on a question has a right to the undivided attention 
of the Council.  

Item 12 
Attachment 2

212



24 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

It is the duty of the Mayor to keep the subject clearly before the members, to rule out 
irrelevant discussion, and to restate the question whenever necessary.  

9.10 Council Member Respect. 
At all times, Council Members in the minority on an issue shall respect the decision and authority 
of the majority.  

9.11 Council and Staff Reports and Directions on Future Agenda Items.  
Council and staff reports at the end of Council meetings shall be limited to announcing Mayor-
appointed Regional Board activities on which Council Members serve, City and City-sponsored 
activities and items which directly affect the City. Community groups may announce their 
activities during Public Comments at the beginning of Council meetings. Council Members should 
refrain from making personal comments, stating personal activities, or items that do not impact 
their role as a Council Member. 

SECTION 10. CLOSED SESSIONS 

10.1 Purpose. 
It is the policy of the City Council to conduct its business in public to the greatest extent possible. 
However, state law recognizes that, in certain circumstances, public discussion could potentially 
jeopardize the public interest, compromise the City’s position, and could cost the taxpayers of 
Suisun City financially. Therefore, closed sessions shall be held from time to time as allowed by 
law. The procedures for the conduct of these meetings shall be the same as for public meetings, 
except that the public will be excluded.  

Prior to convening the closed session meeting, the Mayor shall publicly announce the closed 
session items and ask for public input regarding any items on the closed session agenda.  

City Council Members shall keep all written materials and verbal information provided to them 
in closed session in complete confidence to insure that the City’s position is not compromised. 
No mention of information in these materials shall be made to anyone other than Council 
Members, the City Attorney or City Manager, except where authorized by a majority of the City 
Council.  

10.2 Rule of Confidentiality. 
The City Council recognizes that breaches in confidentiality can severely prejudice the City’s 
position in litigation, labor relations and real estate negotiations. Further, breaches of 
confidentiality can create a climate of distrust among Council Members and can harm the 
Council’s ability to communicate openly in closed sessions, thereby impairing the Council’s ability 
to perform its official duties.  

Item 12 
Attachment 2

213



25 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

The City Council further recognizes that confidentiality of discussions and documents are at the 
core of a closed session. Confidentiality is essential if the closed session is to serve its purpose. 
Therefore, the City Council will adhere to a strict policy of confidentiality for closed sessions.  

10.3 Breach of Rule of Confidentiality. 
No person who attends a closed session may disclose any statements, discussions, or documents 
used in a closed session except where specifically authorized by State law. Any authorized 
disclosure shall be in strict compliance with these rules and the Ralph M. Brown Act. Violation of 
this rule shall be considered a breach of this rule of confidentiality.  

10.4 Agenda.  
The City Council agenda will contain a brief general description of the items to be discussed at 
the closed session, as required by law.  

10.5 Permissible Topics. 
All closed sessions will be held in strict compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act. The City 
Attorney, or his/her designee, will advise in advance on topics that may be discussed in a closed 
session.  

10.6 Rules of Decorum. 

(a) The same high standard of respect and decorum as apply to public meetings shall apply
to closed sessions. There shall be courtesy, respect and tolerance for all viewpoints and
for the right of Council Members to disagree. Council Members shall strive to make each
other feel comfortable and safe to express their points of view. All Council Members have
the right to insist upon strict adherence to this rule.

(b) Prior to a vote, the Mayor shall ensure that the motion is clearly stated and clearly
understood by all Council Members.

(c) The Mayor shall keep the discussion moving forward so that debate and a vote can occur
in the time allotted for the closed session. The Mayor will determine the order of debate
in a fair manner.

10.7 Conduct of Meeting. 

(a) The Mayor will call the closed session to order promptly at its scheduled time.

(b) The Mayor will keep discussion focused on the permissible topics.

(c) The use of handouts and visual aids such as charts is encouraged to focus debate and
promote understanding of the topic. All such materials are strictly confidential.

(d) If the City Council in closed session has provided direction to City staff on proposed terms
and conditions for any type of negotiations, whether it be related to property acquisitions

Item 12 
Attachment 2

214



26 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

or disposal, a proposed or pending claim or litigation, or employee negotiations, all 
contact with the other party will be through the designated City person(s) representing 
the City in the handling of the matter. A Council Member, not so designated by the 
Council, will not under any circumstances have any contact or discussion with the other 
party or its representative concerning the matter which was discussed in the closed 
session, and will not communicate any discussions conducted in closed session to such 
party.  

10.8 Public Disclosure After Final Action. 

(a) The Ralph M. Brown Act requires that, as a body, the City Council make certain public
disclosure of closed session decisions when those actions have become final. Accordingly,
the City Council shall publicly report any final action taken in closed session, and the vote,
including abstentions, at a publicly noticed meeting as follows:

1. Real Estate negotiations: After the agreement is final and accepted by the other
party;

2. Litigation: After approval to defend or appeal a lawsuit or to initiate a lawsuit;

3. Settlement: After final settlement of litigation or claims;

4. Employees: Action taken to appoint or dismiss a Council-appointed employee;

5. Labor relations: After the Memorandum of Understanding is final and has been
accepted by both parties.

(b) The report may be oral or written. The report will state only the action taken and the vote.
Unless authorized by the majority of the City Council, the report will not state the debate
or discussion that occurred. Except for the action taken and the vote, all closed session
discussions will remain confidential.

SECTION 11. DECORUM 

11.1 Council Members. 
Members of the City Council value and recognize the importance of the trust invested in them by 
the public to accomplish the business of the City. Council Members shall accord the utmost 
courtesy to each other, City employees, and the public appearing before the City Council. The 
City Manager or his/her designee shall act as the sergeant-at-arms. 

11.2 City Employees. 
Members of the City staff shall observe the same rules of order and decorum applicable to the 
City Council. City staff shall act at all times in a business and professional manner towards Council 
Members and members of the public.  

Item 12 
Attachment 2

215



27 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

11.3 Public. 
Members of the public attending City Council meetings shall observe the same rules of order and 
decorum applicable to the City Council. These Norms and Procedures shall apply to all City Council 
Meetings.  

11.4 Noise in the Chambers. 
Noise emanating from the audience, whether expressing opposition or support within the 
Council Chambers or lobby area, which disrupts City Council meetings, shall not be permitted. All 
cell phones and other electronic devices shall be muted while in the chambers. Refusal is grounds 
for removal.  

11.5 Removal. 
Any member of the public making personal, impertinent, and/or slanderous or profane remarks, 
or who becomes boisterous or belligerent while addressing the City Council, staff or general 
public, or while attending the City Council meeting and refuses to come to order at the direction 
of the Mayor/Presiding Officer, shall be removed from the Council Chambers by the Police Chief, 
or his/her designee, and may be barred from further attendance before the Council during that 
meeting. 

Unauthorized remarks from the audience, stamping of feet, whistles, yells, and similar 
demonstrations shall not be permitted by the Mayor/Presiding Officer. The Mayor/Presiding 
Officer may direct the Police Chief, or his/her designee, to remove such offenders from the room. 

11.6 Dangerous Instruments. 
No person may enter the chambers of a legislative body as defined in Section 54852 of the 
Government Code of the State of California or any place were such legislative body is in session, 
with any firearm, weapon, or explosive device of any nature.  The provisions of this section shall 
not apply to authorized peace officers or to those persons authorized by the Penal Code of the 
State to carry such weapons. 

11.7 Prosecution. 
Aggravated cases shall be prosecuted on appropriate complaint signed by the Mayor/Presiding 
Officer. 

SECTION 12. ENFORCEMENT OF DECORUM 

In extreme cases, such as when a meeting is willfully interrupted by a group or groups of persons 
so as to render the orderly conduct of such meeting unfeasible and order cannot be restored by 
the removal of individuals as provided for in this Policy, the Mayor/Presiding Officer may order 
the meeting room cleared and continue in session. Only matters appearing on the agenda may 
be considered in such a session.  

Duly accredited representatives of the press or other news media, except those participating in 
the disturbance, shall be allowed to attend any session held pursuant to this Section. Nothing in 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

216



28 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

this Section shall prohibit the City Council from establishing a procedure for readmitting an 
individual or individuals not responsible for willfully disturbing the orderly conduct of the 
meeting. 

SECTION 13. PUBLIC RELATIONS 

13.1 City Spokesperson. 
The Mayor will serve as the general spokesperson for the City. When Council has not taken a 
position on an issue, neither the Mayor nor any Council Member will speak on behalf of the 
Council.  In these situations, the Mayor or Council Member will use a phrase such as, “Council 
has not taken an official position, personally I think…” 

13.2 Press Release. 
Any proposed Press Release may only use the City Seal and picture of the Council Member issuing 
such release if the subject matter pertains to official government business of Suisun City. 

The group picture of the Council may only be used on a Press Release if the release is being issued 
on behalf of the entire Council. 

SECTION 14. MAYOR’S OFFICE 

The opportunity to meet with a member of the public is an honor.  It also creates an opportunity 
for our citizens to know that their elected officials are willing to listen and willing to act.  There is 
a place for meeting over coffee or food, as some discussions are best had when “breaking bread.” 
However, some discussions should happen in a professional environment, free from distractions 
allowing for private discussion. 

To help facilitate meetings with members of the public as a Council Member, the Mayor’s office 
is listed as a Resource Room in Outlook for advance scheduling. 

Reach out to the Deputy City Clerk if you have questions regarding scheduling. 

SECTION 15. VIOLATIONS OF PROCEDURES 

Nothing in these Norms and Procedures shall invalidate a properly noticed and acted upon action 
of the City Council in accordance with State Law.  

This document shall remain in effect until modified by resolution of the City Council. 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

217



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

218



  

 

COUNCIL 
Norms & Procedures 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL: 
Mayor Lori Wilson 

Mayor Pro Tem Michael SegalaAlma Hernandez 

Councilmember Jane Day 

Councilmember Michael J. Hudson 

Councilmember Wanda Williams 

Councilmember Anthony Adams 

 

ORIGINAL ADOPTION: 
July 30, 2019 

 

AMENDED: 
FEBRUARY 18, 2020 
FEBRUARY 15, 2022 

 

Item 12 
Attachment 3

219



 

 

1 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL NORMS & PROCEDURES 

Table of Contents 
Section 1. GENERAL....................................................................................................................................... 4 

1.1 Purpose. ........................................................................................................................................ 4 

1.2 Code of Conduct............................................................................................................................ 4 

1.3 Decorum. ....................................................................................................................................... 4 

1.4 Overview of Council responsibilities. ............................................................................................ 4 

1.5 Overview of City Manager responsibilities. .................................................................................. 5 

1.6 Annual Review. ............................................................................................................................. 6 

1.7 Ralph M. Brown Act. ..................................................................................................................... 6 

SECTION 2. COUNCIL REORGANIZATION ...................................................................................................... 6 

2.1 Mayor Pro Tem Selection Process. ............................................................................................... 6 

2.2 Duties of the Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Mayor .................................................................................... 6 

2.3 Appointment of a Council Vacancy. .............................................................................................. 7 

SECTION 3. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS ....................................................................................................... 7 

3.1 Attendance. ................................................................................................................................... 7 

3.2 Correspondence. ........................................................................................................................... 7 

3.3 Regional Boards, Committees and Ad Hocs .................................................................................. 8 

3.4 Distribution of Information. .......................................................................................................... 8 

3.5 Reimbursement............................................................................................................................. 8 

3.6 Ethics and Sexual Harassment Prevention & Education Training. ................................................ 9 

3.7 City Seal. ........................................................................................................................................ 9 

3.8 Use of City Email and Social Media. .............................................................................................. 9 

3.9 Compensation. ............................................................................................................................ 10 

SECTION 4. COUNCIL RELATIONSHIP WITH STAFF ...................................................................................... 11 

4.1 City Manager. .............................................................................................................................. 11 

4.2 Agenda Item Questions. .............................................................................................................. 11 

4.3 Interaction of City Council with Staff. ......................................................................................... 11 

4.4 Individual Council Member’s Requests. ...................................................................................... 11 

SECTION 5. PROCEDURES FOR APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS/COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES ................... 12 

5.1 Definitions. .................................................................................................................................. 12 

5.2 Recruitment Process. .................................................................................................................. 12 

5.3 Requirement for Appointment. .................................................................................................. 13 

Item 12 
Attachment 3

220



2 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

5.4 Council Notification. .................................................................................................................... 13 

5.5 Incumbents. ................................................................................................................................ 13 

5.6 Application. ................................................................................................................................. 14 

5.7 Attendance. ................................................................................................................................. 14 

5.8 Norms and Procedures and Conflicts of Interest. ....................................................................... 14 

5.9 Conflicts with Federal, State or Local Law. ................................................................................. 14 

SECTION 6. MEETINGS ................................................................................................................................ 14 

6.1 Open to Public. ............................................................................................................................ 14 

6.2 Broadcasting of City Council Meetings. ...................................................................................... 15 

6.3 Regular Meetings. ....................................................................................................................... 15 

6.4 Cancelling Meetings. ................................................................................................................... 15 

6.5 Special Meetings. ........................................................................................................................ 15 

6.6 Closed Sessions. ...................................................................................................................... 1615 

6.7 Quorum. ...................................................................................................................................... 16 

6.8 Minutes. ...................................................................................................................................... 16 

6.9 Adjourned Meetings. .................................................................................................................. 16 

SECTION 7. POSTING NOTICE AND AGENDA ............................................................................................... 16 

7.1 Posting of Notice and Agenda. .................................................................................................... 16 

7.2 Location of Posting. ..................................................................................................................... 16 

SECTION 8. AGENDA CONTENTS ................................................................................................................. 17 

8.1 Mayor’s Responsibility. ............................................................................................................... 17 

8.2 Description of Matters. ............................................................................................................... 17 

8.3 Availability to the Public. ............................................................................................................ 17 

8.4 Limitation to Act Only on Items on the Agenda.......................................................................... 17 

8.5 "Timing" of Agenda. .................................................................................................................... 17 

8.6 Order of Agenda – Regular Meeting. .......................................................................................... 17 

8.7 Order of Agenda – Closed Session. ............................................................................................. 18 

8.8 Change in Order of Business. ...................................................................................................... 18 

8.9 Agenda Request Policy. ............................................................................................................... 18 

8.10 Presentations. ............................................................................................................................. 18 

8.11 Proclamations. ............................................................................................................................ 18 

8.12 Redress. ....................................................................................................................................... 18 

SECTION 9. PROCEDURES FOR THE CONDUCT OF PUBLIC MEETINGS ........................................................ 19 

9.1 Role of Mayor. ............................................................................................................................. 19 

Item 12 
Attachment 3

221



 

 

3 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

 

9.2 Rules of Order. ............................................................................................................................ 19 

9.3 Appeal Procedures. ..................................................................................................................... 20 

9.4 Applicants. ................................................................................................................................... 20 

9.5 Staff and Consultant Reports. ..................................................................................................... 20 

9.6 Public Comment. ......................................................................................................................... 20 

9.7 Motions. ...................................................................................................................................... 21 

9.8 Reconsideration. ......................................................................................................................... 21 

9.9 Discussion.................................................................................................................................... 22 

9.10 Council Member Respect. ........................................................................................................... 24 

9.11 Council and Staff Reports and Directions on Future Agenda Items. .......................................... 24 

SECTION 10. CLOSED SESSIONS .................................................................................................................. 24 

10.1 Purpose. ...................................................................................................................................... 24 

10.2 Rule of Confidentiality. ............................................................................................................... 24 

10.3 Breach of Rule of Confidentiality. ............................................................................................... 25 

10.4 Agenda. ....................................................................................................................................... 25 

10.5 Permissible Topics. ...................................................................................................................... 25 

10.6 Rules of Decorum. ....................................................................................................................... 25 

10.7 Conduct of Meeting. ................................................................................................................... 25 

10.8 Public Disclosure After Final Action. ........................................................................................... 26 

SECTION 11. DECORUM .............................................................................................................................. 26 

11.1 Council Members. ....................................................................................................................... 26 

11.2 City Employees. ........................................................................................................................... 26 

11.3 Public. .......................................................................................................................................... 27 

11.4 Noise in the Chambers. ............................................................................................................... 27 

11.5 Removal. ..................................................................................................................................... 27 

11.6 Dangerous Instruments. ............................................................................................................. 27 

11.7 Prosecution. ................................................................................................................................ 27 

SECTION 12. ENFORCEMENT OF DECORUM ............................................................................................... 27 

SECTION 13. PUBLIC RELATIONS ................................................................................................................. 28 

13.1 City Spokesperson. ...................................................................................................................... 28 

13.2 Press Release............................................................................................................................... 28 

SECTION 14. MAYOR’S OFFICE .................................................................................................................... 28 

SECTION 15. VIOLATIONS OF PROCEDURES ............................................................................................... 28 

 

 

Item 12 
Attachment 3

222



 

 

4 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 
NORMS & PROCEDURES 

Section 1. GENERAL 
 

1.1 Purpose.  
The purpose of these Norms and Procedures is to promote communication, understanding, 
fairness, and trust among the members of the City Council and staff concerning their roles, 
responsibilities, and expectations for management of the business of the City of Suisun City. 
 
In the interest of promoting best practices in our local government as Municipal Legislators, this 
document will include operational procedures, policies, and practices.  
 

1.2 Code of Conduct.  
The residents and businesses of Suisun City are entitled to have a fair, ethical and accountable 
local government, which has earned the public’s full confidence for integrity. The effective 
function of our democratic government requires that: 

• Our public officials, both elected and appointed, comply with both the letter and spirit of 
the laws and policies affecting the operations of government; 

• Our public officials be independent, impartial and fair in their judgment and actions; 

• Public office be used for the public good, and not for personal gain; and  

• Public deliberations and processes be conducted openly, unless legally confidential, in an 
atmosphere of respect and civility.  

 

1.3 Decorum.  
All Council Members shall practice a high degree of decorum and courtesy. Respect for each 
Council Member’s interpersonal style will be the standard of operation. Courtesy and respect for 
individual points of view will be practiced at all times.  
 
All Council Members shall respect each other’s right to disagree. Council Members shall commit 
to avoiding personal attacks, using language that is demeaning, or using words or phrases that 
tend to “shut others down.” 
 
When addressing the public in any way, all Council Members shall make certain their opinions 
are expressed solely as their own, and do not in any way necessarily reflect the opinions of any 
other Council Member or the City.  
 
This subject is expanded in Section 11. 
 
1.4 Overview of Council responsibilities.  
Suisun City is a California General Law city with a council/manager form of government. The City 
Council, which is elected directly by city voters, is assisted by a number of appointed and 

Item 12 
Attachment 3

223



5 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

separately elected officials to provide services for City residents. The City Council has the 
following duties and responsibilities: 

(a) Appointment of the City Manager and City Attorney.  The City Council shall appoint
the City Manager and the City Attorney.  The City Manager shall implement City
Council policy and run day-to-day operations of Suisun City. The City Attorney shall
provide legal advice and act as counsel to elected officials and city staff in adherence
to all federal, state and local laws pertaining to city operations and public policy. There
should be an annual review for the City Manager and the City Attorney.

The City Manager’s annual review shall follow closely the format included in the City 
Manager’s contract and include goals for the next period. Less formal evaluations may 
take place quarterly or every six months at the pleasure of the Council. A separate 
procedure will be established for this evaluation. 

The City Attorney’s annual review shall be at a format proposed by the Mayor and 
agreed upon by the Council informally. 

The Mayor at his/her discretion may annually create an ad hoc to oversee annual 
review process and prepare a summary evaluation. 

(b) Establishment of boards and appointment of members.  With the consent of the
Council, the Mayor may establish Boards, Commissions, and Committees, and make
appointments of members of all Boards, Commissions, and Committees.  The Mayor
may, from time to time, cede this authority by resolution of the Council.

(c) Legislative decisions.  The Council is the legislative body; its members are the
community’s decision makers.  Power is centralized in the elected City Council
collectively and not in individual members of the Council.  The City Council approves
the budget and determines the public services.  It focuses on the community’s goals,
major projects and such long term considerations as community growth, financing
and strategic planning.  The City Council hires a professional City Manager to carry out
administrative responsibilities and they collectively supervise the City Manager’s
performance.

1.5 Overview of City Manager responsibilities. 
The City Manager is hired to serve the City Council and the community and to bring the benefits 
of education, training and experience in administering the City’s projects, programs, and public 
services on behalf of the City Council. The City Manager follows the direction of the entire City 
Council and not individual members of the Council or the public, and serves at the sole discretion 
of the Council. 

As the City’s Chief Executive Officer, the City Manager oversees: 

• Department heads and department operations

• Budget development and fiscal management

Item 12 
Attachment 3

224



6 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

• Policy implementation

• Personnel administration and human resources

• Labor relations

• Intergovernmental relations

• Service delivery

• Elected official support

• A variety of special projects and assignments

The City Manager appoints, removes, promotes, and demotes any and all officers and employees 
of the city except the City Clerk, City Attorney, and City Treasurer.  Appointment, removal, 
promotion, or demotion of department heads shall require prior approval of the City Council. 
(Ord § 2.08.110) 

Among the chief duties, the City Manager will implement the Council’s policies, projects, 
programs, and public services in an effective and efficient manner, providing professional advice 
on policy matters, intergovernmental affairs, economic development, and environmental issues. 

1.6 Annual Review. 
The City Council shall conduct a review of this document annually within three months prior to 
the start of a new fiscal year, or whenever Council deems necessary, to assist Council Members 
in being more productive in management of the business of the City.  

1.7 Ralph M. Brown Act.  
All conduct of the City Council, Commissions, Committees and Subcommittees shall be in full 
compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act.  

SECTION 2. COUNCIL REORGANIZATION 

2.1 Mayor Pro Tem Selection Process.  
In December of each year, the Mayor shall select and appoint a Mayor Pro Tem, with consent of 
the City Council, from among the members of the Council. Selection and appointment shall be at 
the first meeting of a new term following each General Municipal Election or at the first meeting 
in December during non-election years.  For all intents and purposes, the title Mayor Pro Tem 
and Vice Mayor are used interchangeably. The term of the appointment shall be for a 12-month 
period commencing on January 1st of each year, unless otherwise provided for by majority vote 
of the Council.   

2.2 Duties of the Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Mayor 
The Vice Mayor remains as one member of the City Council and has no rights or authority 
different from any other member of the Council.  The Vice Mayor is the designated individual to 
represent the Mayor and perform any duties as required when the Mayor is unavailable.  If the 
Mayor will be unavailable for an extended period of time, the Mayor shall provide notification to 
the Vice Mayor, City Manager, and City Clerk, in addition to outlining any additional duties. 

Item 12 
Attachment 3

225



7 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

2.3 Appointment of a Council Vacancy. 
In the event of a vacancy of office or the death or resignation of any Council Member, the Mayor 
shall appoint a new Council Member, with the consent of the Council, within sixty (60) days after 
a vacancy or death or resignation becomes effective in compliance with the California Elections 
Code, unless the Council, by resolution, decides to instead call a special election. In the event of 
appointment, the Mayor, with the consent of the Council, shall determine by resolution the 
process for appointment prior to the application process and in accordance with State law.  

SECTION 3. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

3.1 Attendance. 
City Council Members acknowledge that attendance at lawful meetings of the City Council is part 
of their official duty. Council Members shall make a good faith effort to attend all such meetings 
unless unable. Council Members will notify the Mayor, City Manager, and City Clerk, if they will 
be absent from a meeting.  

Per Gov Code §36513, “if a city councilmember is absent without permission from all regular city 
council meetings for 60 days consecutively from the last regular meeting he or she attended, his 
or her office becomes vacant and shall be filled as any other vacancy.” 

3.2 Correspondence.  
With some exceptions, proposed correspondence (including electronic) from individual Council 
Members/Mayor on City stationery shall be reviewed by the Council in draft form prior to release. 

On occasion, there are urgent requests from the League of California Cities for correspondence 
concerning legislation directly affecting municipalities. Assuming there is agreement between the 
Mayor and City Manager that the League’s position corresponds with that of the Council, the 
Mayor may send a letter without first obtaining Council review.  

City letterhead will be made available for routine, discretionary correspondence (e.g., thank you 
notes, etc.), or such correspondence will be prepared by staff for signature, without prior consent 
of the Council.  

The City will provide stationary designated as “The Office of” for each member of the Council to 
use for correspondence as it relates to your elected position (e.g., thank you notes, letters of 
recommendation, direct communication to residents or businesses, etc).  This letterhead will 
have the same information as provided on your business card.  Any views expressed in this 
correspondence (including electronic) are solely your own and do not represent the views of the 
City or the Council. 

E-mails from Council Members should be respectful and professional. This form of
correspondence is a public record subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act.

Item 12 
Attachment 3

226



8 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

3.3 Regional Boards, Committees and Ad Hocs 
The role of the Council on regional boards will vary depending on the nature of the appointment. 
Representing the interests of Suisun City is appropriate on some boards; this is generally the case 
when other local governments have their own representation. The positions taken by the 
appointed representatives are to be in alignment with the positions that the Council has taken 
on issues that directly impact Suisun City. If an issue should arise that is specific to Suisun City 
and the Council has not taken a position, the issue should be discussed by the Council prior to 
taking a formal position at a regional board meeting, to assure that it is in alignment with a 
majority of the Council’s position.  

Council representatives to such various boards shall keep the Council informed of ongoing 
business through brief oral or written reports to the Council during properly posted Council 
meetings.  

Council Members shall make a good faith effort to attend all regional meetings to which they are 
assigned. Attendance should not be less than 75% of all annual scheduled meetings and all 
absences should be reported to the Mayor. If a Council Member is unable to attend, the Council 
Member shall notify his/her alternate as far in advance of the meeting as possible so as to allow 
the alternate to attend.  

A list of these assignments are maintained by the Deputy City Clerk and will be distributed to the 
Council when updated. 

3.4 Distribution of Information. 
It is essential that every member of the City Council have the same information from which to 
form decisions and actions.  Any information distributed to one Council Member shall also be 
distributed to all Council Members. 

The Mayor, by virtue of the position, may receive information in advance of other members of 
the Council in order for the City Manager to effectively proceed with the day-to-day operation of 
the City.  The City Manager will make every effort to disseminate this information to the 
remaining members of the Council in a timely manner, whether through the City Manager Report 
or Council Member/Manager 1:1. 

3.5 Reimbursement. 
Every effort shall be made to limit the need to reimburse Council Members for expenses. City 
Council Members may be reimbursed for personal expenses for travel to and lodging at 
conferences or meetings related to their role as a Council Member. The reimbursement of 
expenses is limited in the following manner: Members shall be reimbursed subject to the 
Administrative Directive related to travel expense (AD1.) Any additional expenses that fall 
outside the scope of this policy may be reimbursed only if approved by the City Council, at a 
public meeting, before the expenses are incurred. Any request for reimbursement of expenses 
shall be accompanied by an expense form and receipts to document the expenditure. These 
documents are public records subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act.  

Item 12 
Attachment 3

227



9 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

Brief reports must be given on any outside meeting attended at the expense of the City at the 
next regular Council meeting.  

3.6 Ethics and Sexual Harassment Prevention & Education Training. 
Any member of the City Council and commissions, or advisory committees formed by the City 
Council, shall receive at least two hours of ethics training in general ethics principles and ethics 
laws relevant to his/her public service every two years, as mandated by AB 1234, and at least two 
hours of sexual harassment prevention training, as mandated by AB 1661. New members must 
receive this training within their first year of service for ethics and six months for sexual 
harassment prevention training and education, and file a certificate of completion with the City 
Clerk. Members shall attend training sessions that are offered through the League of California 
Cities or locally in the immediate vicinity of Solano County, or by completing online a state-
approved public service ethics education program.  

An individual who serves on multiple legislative bodies need only receive two hours of each 
training every two years to satisfy this requirement for all applicable public service positions. If 
the City offers either course, the City will use a course that has been reviewed and approved by 
the Fair Political Practices Commission and the California Secretary of State.   

The City Clerk is required to keep ethics training records for five years to document and prove 
that these continuing education requirements have been satisfied. These documents are public 
records subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act.  

3.7 City Seal. 
The City Seal is an important symbol of Suisun City. No change to the City Seal shall be made 
without Council approval.  Individual Council Members shall be careful in use of the City Seal so 
as not to create an appearance that the Council Member is acting on behalf of or with official 
endorsement of Suisun City.  

3.8 Use of City Email and Social Media. 
Except for emergencies, public officials who are not City employees (“public officials”) conducting 
City business should not create any “public record” (as that term is defined in California 
Government Code § 6253(e)) by using any email account that is not a City email account, or by 
using any non-City-controlled social media account. Instead, public officials should use a City 
email or City-controlled social media account.   

In an emergency, a public official may send an email on a non-City email account, but only if a 
copy of any public record that is created as a result is contemporaneously copied to the City email 
account of that same public official, or a hard copy is provided to the City for retention in City 
records.    

Practically speaking, this means that public officials should rarely, if ever, use a personal email 
account to conduct City business, and should never use personal social media accounts to 
conduct City business. Nothing in this policy is intended to limit a public official’s use of private 
email and social media accounts for non-City business such as personal communications and 

Item 12 
Attachment 3

228



10 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

campaign related activities. Nor is this policy intended to require public officials to provide 
privileged communications or documents to the City, or to waive any applicable privileges which 
may apply to documents purely because they have been turned over to the City in compliance 
with this policy.   

For purposes of this policy “City-controlled social media account” is an account on a social media 
platform (e.g. Facebook, Instagram, Twitter) that is created and used by the City (e.g. the City’s 
official Facebook page, if any). 

Use of City Electronic Devices.  In general, when creating or modifying public records in the 
conduct of City business on an electronic device that can create and modify public records (e.g. 
computers, mobile phones, tablets), public officials should only use City-issued devices. There are 
two exceptions: 

Exception: Using City Accounts.  Public officials may use non-City electronic devices when 
accessing an official City account (e.g. City email address, City-controlled social media account).   

Exception: Contemporaneous Copying. If, in a given situation, using a City electronic device is 
clearly impractical or if a public official has not been issued or does not have in the public official’s 
possession a City electronic device, a public official may use a non-City device, but only if a copy 
of each affected public record is contemporaneously copied to a City account of that same public 
official, or to the related City-controlled social media account, or a hard copy is provided to the 
City for retention in City records. 

Texting Only on City Devices.  Except for emergencies or when communicating with the City 
Attorney’s Office, public officials conducting City business shall not send or receive texts on any 
device other than a City owned device. In an emergency, a public official may use a non-City 
device to text, but only if a copy of any public record that is created as a result is 
contemporaneously copied to a City account of that same public official, or a hard copy is 
provided to the City for retention in City records.  Practically speaking, this means that public 
officials should rarely, if ever, use a non-City owned device to text in the conduct of City business. 

Provide Copies to City.  If a public official has possession of a public record that is not in the 
possession of the City, the public official shall promptly provide a copy of the record to the City, 
and take reasonable precautions to prevent this from occurring again.  For example, if a public 
official receives an email regarding City business on a non-City email account, and the email was 
not sent to or from a City email account (i.e. the City doesn’t already have a copy), the public 
official shall promptly forward a copy of the email to the public official’s City email account, or 
provide a hard copy to the City for retention in City records, and should request that the sender 
send future correspondence to a City controlled email account.    

3.9 Compensation.  
Council members are compensated in accordance with California Government Code Sections 
36516 and 36516.5.  The amount is memorialized in the City’s Municipal Code. 

Item 12 
Attachment 3

229



11 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

SECTION 4. COUNCIL RELATIONSHIP WITH STAFF 

Note: The foundation of a healthy and productive relationship between City Council and all City 
Staff is based on staying within the chain of command. 

4.1 City Manager. 
City Council Members are always free to go to the City Manager to discuss City business. Issues 
concerning the performance of a Department or any employee must be directed to the City 
Manager. Direction to City employees, other than the City Manager or City Attorney, is the 
prerogative of the City Manager. In passing along critical information, the City Manager will be 
responsible for contacting all Council Members. The City Manager may delegate this 
responsibility to Department Heads.  

4.2 Agenda Item Questions. 
If a Council Member has a question on an agenda item, the Council Member should contact the 
City Manager, if at all possible, prior to any meeting at which the item may be discussed. This 
does not restrict Council Members from asking questions during a Council meeting.  

4.3 Interaction of City Council with Staff. 
The Council shall treat staff with respect and shall not abuse staff, nor embarrass staff in public. 
The City Council Members are welcome to have contact with any city employee.  However, the 
Council are to work through the City Manager or City Attorney on all issues, concerns and 
questions. This is to allow the senior professional staff, with the proper education, training, 
experience and knowledge of issues, laws and City Council’s policies to coordinate a full and 
complete response and reduce error or misunderstanding by staff members not necessarily 
knowledgeable on all issues.  This can provide a better overall response, allow any new issues to 
properly be considered and avoid unintended redirection of staff efforts.  

Council Members are free to speak to Department Heads and may ask for information related to 
their department or agenda items.  However, at no point is it acceptable to provide direction. All 
direction should be given to the City Manager, and the City Manager should be informed of 
contacts made with Department Heads. This informal system of direct communication is not to 
be abused.  

City Council Members shall not meet with groups of management employees for the purpose of 
discussing terms of employment or establishing employee policy. 

4.4 Individual Council Member’s Requests. 
Council Members shall make their requests for information to the City Manager and not directly 
to individual members of staff.  The use of City staff, including the City Manager, to respond to 
an individual Council Member’s request for any purpose that exceeds more than one hour of 
total staff time must be approved by the majority vote of the full Council.  The individual City 
Council Member may make his/her request orally or in writing to the City Manager.  The City 
Manager shall provide an estimate of the cost and how the request affects the Council’s Goals 
and Objectives.  This request will then be considered by the City Council at the next possible City 

Item 12 
Attachment 3

230



12 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

Council meeting.  Irrespective of the amount of staff time required to respond to each Council 
Member’s request, individual Council Member’s requests should be limited to no more than 
three to five requests per week. 

SECTION 5. PROCEDURES FOR APPOINTMENTS TO 
BOARDS/COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES  

5.1 Definitions. 
(a) Task Force:  A temporary grouping of individuals and resources for the accomplishment

of a specific objective.

(b) Committee:  A group of people officially delegated to perform a function, such as
investigating, considering reporting, or acting on a matter.

(c) Ad Hoc:  Committees established for a specific purpose.  Formed for or concerned with
one specific purpose (e.g. ad hoc compensation committee); for the particular end or case
at hand without consideration of wider application; formed or used for specific or
immediate problems or needs; often improvised or impromptu; contrived purely for the
purpose in hand rather than carefully planned in advance.

(d) Commission:  A group of people officially authorized to perform certain duties or
functions with certain powers or authority granted; the act of granting certain powers or
the authority to carry out a particular task or duty; the rank and powers so conferred.

(e) Board:  A group of persons having managerial, supervisory, or advisory powers.  In
parliamentary law, a board is a form of deliberative assembly and is distinct from a
committee, which is usually subordinate to a board or other deliberative assembly – in
having greater autonomy and authority.

5.2 Recruitment Process. 
(a) On or before December 31st of each year, the City Clerk shall prepare and post a list of all

Council-appointed board, commission and committee terms that expire during the next
calendar year in compliance with the Maddy Act (Government Code Section 54972).

(b) The City Clerk shall annually advertise in a newspaper and on the City’s website for
applicants wishing to be considered for appointment to boards, commissions and
committees.

(c) Although there may be multiple applicants, the Mayor is not required to choose from the
pool of applicants and may nominate his/her own appointee, provided the appointee
qualifies.  This applies to individual Council Members where the Mayor has ceded his/her
authority.

Item 12 
Attachment 3

231



13 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

(d) All persons seeking appointment to a City board, commission or committee shall
complete and submit an application form to the City Clerk as set forth in Section 5.6.
Applications shall be kept on file for two years in the City Clerk’s office and vacancies may
be considered from applications on file, as well as new applications.

(e) If an unscheduled board or commission vacancy occurs during the year, the following
steps should be taken to publicize vacancies on boards, commissions and committees:

1. Public announcement of the vacancy at a Council meeting.
2. A newspaper advertisement announcing the vacancy.
3. A recruitment period of at least ten (10) days.
4. A vacancy notice posted at City Hall, the Nelson Center, and on the City’s website

for at least 20 days.
5. Announcements in the local media, such as press releases, online news outlets

and free weekly sales papers.
6. Distribution to appropriate professional and community organizations and all

groups that have requested notification.

5.3 Requirement for Appointment. 
(a) All persons appointed to City boards, commissions and committees shall be residents of

the City of Suisun City at the time of their appointment and shall remain so throughout
their term of appointment.  Should any person so appointed move from the City during
their term of office, such office shall be forfeited.  The Mayor with the consent of the
Council shall, upon forfeiture, make a new appointment to fill the unexpired term.

(b) All persons appointed to City boards, commissions and committees shall complete and
submit an application form to the City Clerk as set forth in Section 5.6.

(c) Except as provided by state or local statute, the appointee shall not be a current City
employee or currently appointed to another City board, committee or commission.

5.4 Council Notification.  
By October 1 of each year, the City Clerk will notify the Mayor of expiring terms for members of 
those City boards, commissions, and committees.  

5.5 Incumbents. 
(a) At the end of the first term, the incumbent board, commission or committee member

may, at the discretion of the Mayor, be reappointed for an additional term without the
need to apply or interview for re-appointment.  In lieu of an application, the board,
commission or committee member shall submit to the City Clerk a letter of  or email
expressing interest in re-appointment 60 days prior to the expiration of the member’s
first term. 

(b) Any incumbent interested in re-appointment who has served two or more terms must
apply for re-appointment as set forth in Section 5.6.

Item 12 
Attachment 3

232



14 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

5.6 Application. 
Except as set forth in Section 5.5, all persons considered for appointment or re-appointment shall 
complete an application form.  This application form must be received by the City Clerk by the 
required deadline. 

5.7 Attendance. 
(a) Board, commission and committee members are expected to regularly attend and

participate on their respective boards, committees and commissions.

(b) All absences should be reported to the Mayor in advance of missing the meeting.

(c) A board, commission or committee member whose attendance is less than seventy-five
percent (75%) of the required meetings over a period of a year may be subject to removal
at the discretion of the Mayor.  Council will be notified of any actions taken.

(d) The Council may grant an approved leave of absence for a board, commission or
committee member for such reasons as the Mayor determines appropriate.  Council will
be notified of any actions taken

5.8 Norms and Procedures and Conflicts of Interest.
(a) Board, committee and commission members shall be expected to adhere to the Council

Norms and Procedures.

(b) Board, committee and commission members shall comply with all state and local laws
with respect to ethics and conflicts of interests to the extent that such laws apply to their
position, including state and local requirements to timely file Statements of Economic
Disclosure if the member is designated as a filer by state law or by the City’s Conflict of
Interest Code.

(c) Members of City boards, commissions or committees may not use their board,
commission or committee position title for political endorsements.

5.9 Conflicts with Federal, State or Local Law.
In case of a conflict between this section of the Norms and Procedure policy with federal, state
or local law, such federal, state or local law shall be the controlling factor.

SECTION 6. MEETINGS 

6.1  Open to Public. 
All meetings of the City Council whether regular, special, or study sessions, shall be open to the 
public, unless a closed session is held as authorized by law. All meetings shall be noticed as 
required to allow action to be taken by the Council.  

Item 12 
Attachment 3

233



15 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

6.2 Broadcasting of City Council Meetings. 
All regular Council meetings shall be scheduled in the Council Chambers to allow for web 
streaming, unless the number of participants exceeds room capacity. The final decision shall be 
the responsibility of the Mayor.  

6.3  Regular Meetings. 
At the first regular meeting in January, the City Council will approve the schedule of meetings for 
the calendar year, which in addition to the regular meeting schedule, may include the 
cancellation of regular meetings and the addition of special meetings and study sessions. This 
practice does not, however, preclude the Mayor from calling additional meetings pursuant to 
Section 6.5, if necessary.  

The City Council shall convene its regular City Council meetings at 6:30 p.m. on the first and third 
Tuesday of each month.  However, each Tuesday is a regular meeting day if necessary to carry 

out the business of the city and Council members should be prepared to meet on any Tuesday 

evening. 

The City Council hopes to conclude its public business at Regular Meetings by 10:00 p.m.  
Ordinarily, at the discretion of the Mayor, no new items will be taken up after the 10:00 p.m. 
cutoff and any items remaining will be agendized for the next meeting.   

6.4 Cancelling Meetings. 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 36805, City Council shall hold a Regular Meeting at least 
once each month.  Outside of this provision, the Mayor may cancel no more than four (4) Regular 
Meetings at his/her discretion no less than 7 days before the planned meeting. The Mayor may 
cancel a meeting at any time in the case of an emergency or when a majority of members have 
confirmed their unavailability to attend a meeting.  

6.5 Special Meetings. 
A special meeting may be called at any time by the Mayor or by a majority of the City Council in 
accordance with the Brown Act. Written notice of any such meeting must specify the purpose of 
the meeting. Notice of the meeting must be given in accordance with law. Public comments at 
special meetings shall be limited to only those items described on the special meeting 
notice/agenda.  

The City Council may hold study sessions or joint meetings with other boards, commissions, 
committees, or agencies as deemed necessary to resolve City business. These meetings will be 
coordinated by the City Clerk. Study sessions are scheduled to provide Council Members the 
opportunity to better understand a particular item. While Council may legally take action at any 
noticed meeting, generally no formal action is taken at study sessions. If action is to be taken at 
a study session, then the agenda will state that action may be taken.  

Item 12 
Attachment 3

234



16 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

6.6 Closed Sessions. 
The City Council may hold closed sessions at any time authorized by law (and in consultation with 
the City Attorney), to consider or hear any matter, which is authorized by law. The Mayor or any 
three Council Members may call closed session meetings at any time.  

6.7 Quorum. 
Three (3) members of the City Council shall constitute a quorum and shall be sufficient to transact 
business. If fewer than three Council Members appear at a regular meeting, the Mayor, Vice 
Mayor in the absence of the Mayor, any Council Member in the absence of the Mayor and Vice 
Mayor, or in the absence of all Council Members, the City Clerk or Deputy City Clerk, shall adjourn 
the meeting to a stated day and hour. 

Business of the City Council may be conducted with a minimum of three members being present; 
however, pursuant to the California Government Code, matters requiring the expenditure of City 
funds and all resolutions and non-urgency ordinances must receive three affirmative votes for 
approval. 

6.8 Minutes. 
The City Clerk shall prepare minutes of all public meetings of the City Council. Electronic copies 
will be distributed to the Council for review one (1) week following the meeting.  Council 
Members will have one (1) week to provide feedback to the City Clerk for corrections or 
clarifications.  The City Clerk will provide the corrected minutes to the City Manager one (1) week 
before the meeting to ensure inclusion in the Agenda Packet. 

6.9 Adjourned Meetings.  
The City Council may adjourn any regular, adjourned regular, special, or closed session meeting 
to a time and place specified in the order of adjournment and permitted by law.  

SECTION 7. POSTING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

7.1 Posting of Notice and Agenda. 
For every regular, special, or study session meeting, the City Clerk or other authorized person 
shall post a notice of the meeting, specifying the time and place at which the meeting will be 
held, and an agenda containing a brief description of all items of business to be discussed at the 
meeting. This notice and agenda may be combined in a single document. Posting is to be 
according to law.  

7.2 Location of Posting. 
The notice and agenda shall be posted at City Hall in a place to which the public has unrestricted 
access and where the notice and agenda are not likely to be removed or obscured by other posted 
material, and to the City website.  

Although not required, additional posting places have been identified to increase civic 
engagement: 

• Joseph Nelson Center

Item 12 
Attachment 3

235



17 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

• Senior Center

• Harbor Master Building

• City Controlled Social Media

• Non-City Partnership Buildings

SECTION 8. AGENDA CONTENTS 

8.1 Mayor’s Responsibility. 
The Mayor is responsible for running a timely and orderly meeting. If the Mayor is unavailable to 
run a Council meeting, the Vice Mayor shall run the meeting. The Mayor, in consultation with the 
City Manager or his/her designee, shall organize the agenda and agenda forecast.  The agenda 
forecast will be distributed with the City Manager’s report. 

8.2 Description of Matters. 
All items of business to be discussed at a meeting of the City Council shall be briefly described on 
the agenda. The description should set forth the proposed action to be considered so that 
members of the public will know the nature of the action under review and consideration.  

As stated in Section 4.2, if a Council Member has a question on a subject, the Council Member 
should contact the City Manager prior to any meeting at which the subject may be discussed. 

8.3 Availability to the Public. 
The agenda for any regular, special, or study session meeting, shall be made available to the 
general public as required by law.  

8.4 Limitation to Act Only on Items on the Agenda. 
No action shall be taken by the City Council on any item not on the posted agenda, subject only 
to the exceptions listed below:  

(a) Upon a majority determination that an “emergency situation” (as defined by State
Law) exists; or 

(b) Upon determination by a 4/5 vote of the full City Council, or a unanimous vote if less
than a full Council, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need to take the 
action came to the attention of the City Council subsequent to posting of the agenda.  

8.5 "Timing" of Agenda. 
The Mayor may "time" the agenda as a way for the Council to maintain a sense of how much time 
can be committed to any one item without going past an established ending time for the meeting. 

8.6 Order of Agenda – Regular Meeting. 
The prescribed order of the agenda for Regular Meetings of the Council will be as follows: Roll 
Call, Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, Public Comments on Items not on the Agenda, Conflict of 
Interest Notification, Informational Reports (City Manager/Executive Director/Staff), 

Item 12 
Attachment 3

236



18 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

Presentations/Appointments, Consent Calendar, Presentations/Appointments, Public Comments 
on Items not on the Agenda, Public Hearings, General Business Items, City Council Reports, Mayor 
Report, City Manager/Executive StaffNon-presented Reports, Public Comments, and 
Adjournment.  

8.7 Order of Agenda – Closed Session. 
The prescribed order of the agenda for a Special Meeting – Closed Session of the Council will be 
as follows: Roll Call, Conflict of Interest Notification, Closed Session, Closed Session 
Announcement, and Adjournment.  

8.8 Change in Order of Business. 
The Mayor may decide to take matters listed on the agenda out of the prescribed order. Council 
Members shall be given the opportunity to ask questions about Consent Items for clarification 
without having them removed.  

8.9 Agenda Request Policy. 
Requests for placement of items on the agenda can be submitted to the Mayor or City Manager 
at any time.  The Mayor and City Manager will review the request and determine appropriate 
timing to bring the item forth. 

Also, any member of the Council may request that an item be placed on a future agenda by 
indicating their desire to do so under the Council Member Report portion of the City Council 
agenda. The request will require the consensus of the Council to have the item brought back at 
a certain time versus at the pleasure of the Mayor or City Manager. 

8.10 Presentations. 
Presentations are put on the agenda with concurrence of the Mayor or City Manager.  The Mayor 
or City Manager will use their best judgment on scheduling presentations and recognitions.  Time 
limits shall normally be 5 minutes. Presentations may be extended by special circumstances as 
needed.  Exceptions can be made at the Mayor’s discretion. 

To promote a proactive policy concerning state, regional and federal legislative issues, 
presentations shall include a periodic legislative update by the City Manager (or City Manager 
designee), to include information on important legislative issues and/or those matters that the 
City has a stated a position on during the Legislative Session 

8.11 Proclamations. 
Requests for proclamations can be submitted to the Mayor at any time.  Proclamations or Special 
Recognition are created at the Mayor’s full discretion. 

The agenda will include Proclamations presented during the council meetings and a list provided 
of those for information purposes or presented outside of the meeting.  

8.12 Redress. 
Agenda items for redress or reconsideration are expanded in Section 9.8. 

Item 12 
Attachment 3

237



19 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

SECTION 9. PROCEDURES FOR THE CONDUCT OF PUBLIC MEETINGS 

9.1 Role of Mayor. 
(a) The Mayor shall be responsible for maintaining the order and decorum of meetings.

It shall be the duty and responsibility of the Mayor to ensure that the rules of
operation and decorum contained herein are observed. The Mayor shall maintain
control of communication between Council Members and among Council, staff and
public.  The Mayor shall intervene when a Council Member, staff or other meeting
participant is being verbally or otherwise attacked by a member of the public.

(b) Communication with Council Members:
1. Council Members shall request the floor from the Mayor before speaking.

2. When one member of the Council has the floor and is speaking, other Council
Members shall not interrupt or otherwise disturb the speaker.

(c) Communication with members of the public addressing the Council on agendized
items:

1. The Mayor shall open the floor for public comment as appropriate.

2. Council Members may question a person addressing the Council at the
conclusion of the person’s comments or upon expiration of the person’s time
to speak in order to gain additional information. At no point should Council
Members engage in additional back and forth with members of the public.

3. Any staff member with an item on the agenda will be available to the City
Council to answer questions arising during discussions between Council
Members and among Council Members and members of the public.

4. Members of the public shall direct their questions and comments to the Council.

9.2 Rules of Order. 
The City Council shall follow the “spirit” of Rosenberg’s Rules of Order as a guide for the conduct 
of meetings, with the following modifications:  

(a) A motion is not required prior to a general discussion on an agenda item. A pre-motion
discussion allows the members to share their thoughts on the agendized item so that a motion 
can more easily be made that takes into account what appears to be the majority position.  

(b) All motions require a second.

Item 12 
Attachment 3

238



20 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

(c) A motion may be amended at the request of the maker and the consent of the person
who seconded the motion. Such a procedure is often used to accommodate concerns expressed 
by other members.  

(d) A motion to amend may still be used.

The Mayor has the discretion to impose reasonable rules at any particular meeting based upon 
facts and circumstances found at any particular meeting. 

9.3 Appeal Procedures. 
Appellants shall be given the opportunity to speak first. Appellants and applicants responding to 
appeals may be given a total of up to 10 minutes each to present their positions to the City 
Council prior to hearing public comments. Appellants shall be given up to 5 minutes of rebuttal 
time after public comments are heard. 

9.4 Applicants. 
Persons bringing to the City Council a request for approval shall be given a total of up to 10 
minutes to present their positions/input prior to hearing public comments. An extension can only 
be granted by consent of a majority of the Council Members. Applicants shall be given up to 5 
minutes of rebuttal time after public comments are heard.  

9.5 Staff and Consultant Reports. 
In general, staff and consultant reports should be clear, brief and concise. Staff is to assume that 
the Council has read all materials submitted. Council shall be given an opportunity to ask 
questions of staff prior to hearing public comments.  

9.6 Public Comment. 
(a) Persons present at meetings of the City Council may comment on individual items on the

agenda at the time the items are scheduled to be heard. During Regular City Council
meetings, comments may be offered on items not on the agenda under that portion of
the agenda identified for Public Comment.

(b) The limit for speakers will be up to 3 minutes, depending on the number of speakers.
Speakers are not allowed to delegate their time to another speaker. The Mayor may limit
the time to be spent on an item and may continue the item, with the approval of the
majority of the Council, to a future meeting at his/her discretion.

(c) Upon addressing the Council, each speaker is requested, but not required, to first state
his/her name, whom they represent and/or city of residence.

(d) After the speaker has completed their remarks, the Mayor may direct the City Manager
or City Attorney to briefly address the issues brought forth by the speaker. Council
Members shall be respectful of the speakers and shall not enter into a debate with any
member of the public nor discuss amongst themselves.

Item 12 
Attachment 3

239



 

 

21 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

 

(e) All Council Members shall listen to all public discussion as part of the Council’s community 
responsibility. Individual Council Members should remain open-minded to informational 
comments made by the public.  

 
(f) The Mayor has the right to ask a member of the public to step down if over the allotted 

time or if the speaker’s comments are not within the city’s jurisdiction.  
 

9.7 Motions. 
It will be the practice of the City Council for the Mayor to provide Council Members an 
opportunity to ask questions of staff, comment on, and discuss any agendized item in order to 
help form a consensus before a motion is offered. After such discussion, the Mayor or any Council 
Member may make a motion. Before the motion can be considered or discussed, it must be 
seconded. Once a motion has been properly made and seconded, the Mayor shall open the 
matter to full discussion offering the first opportunity to speak to the moving party, and 
thereafter, to any Council Member recognized by the Mayor. Customarily, the Mayor will take 
the floor after all other Council Members have been given the opportunity to speak.  
 
If a motion clearly contains divisible parts, any Council Member may request the Mayor or moving 
party divide the motion into separate motions to provide Council Members an opportunity for 
more specific consideration.  
 
Tie Votes: Tie votes shall be lost motions. When all Council Members are present, a tie vote on 
whether to grant an appeal from official action shall be considered a denial of such appeal, unless 
the Council takes other action to further consider the matter.  If a tie vote results at a time when 
fewer than all members of the Council, who may legally participate in the matter are present, the 
matter shall be automatically continued to the agenda of the next regular meeting of the Council, 
unless otherwise ordered by the Council.  
 

9.8 Reconsideration. 
(a) Request for reconsideration.  

1. Request by a member of the public. Notwithstanding Rosenberg’s Rules of Order, a 
request for reconsideration may be made by a member of the public to the City 
Council at the next regular meeting of the City Council or at any intervening special 
meeting of the City Council.  

 
2. Request by a member of the City Council. Only a member of the City Council who 

voted on the prevailing side may request reconsideration. The request may be made 
at the same meeting or at the next regular meeting of the City Council or at any 
intervening special meeting of the City Council.  

 
3. The member of the public or City Council Member making the request should state 

orally or in writing the reason for the request, without dwelling on the specific details 
or setting forth various arguments.  

 
(b) Motion to reconsider any Council action.  

Item 12 
Attachment 3

240



22 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

1. Reconsideration at the same meeting. A motion to reconsider an action taken by the
City Council may be made at the same meeting at which the action was taken
(including an adjourned or continued meeting).  A motion to reconsider an action
taken by the City Council may be made only by a Council Member who voted on the
prevailing side, but may be seconded by any Council Member and is debatable.  The
motion must be approved by a majority of the entire City Council.

2. Reconsideration at a subsequent meeting. If an intent to request a motion for
reconsideration is communicated to the City Council prior to the deadline for posting
the City Council meeting agenda, then the request for reconsideration may be
agendized if support for said action exists in accordance with the Council Norms
Section 10.8. Otherwise, no City Council discussion or action on a possible
reconsideration may occur unless the item is appropriately added to the agenda
pursuant to Government Code section 54954.2(b), which addresses adding items that
are not listed on a posted agenda (urgency agenda item).  At the time such motion for
reconsideration is heard, testimony shall be limited to the facts giving rise to the
motion.

(c) Effect of approval of motion.
Upon approval of a motion to reconsider, and at such time as the matter is heard, the City
Council shall only consider any new evidence or facts not presented previously with
regard to the item or a claim of error in applying the facts.

If the motion to reconsider is made and approved at the same meeting at which the initial 
action was taken and all interested persons (including applicants, owners, supporters and 
opponents) are still present, the matter may be reconsidered at that meeting or at the 
next regular meeting or intervening special meeting (subject to the discretion of the 
maker of the motion) and no further public notice is required.  

If the motion to reconsider is made and approved at the same meeting at which the initial 
action was taken but all interested persons are not still present, or if the motion is made 
and approved at the next regular meeting or intervening special meeting, the item shall 
be scheduled for consideration at the earliest feasible City Council meeting and shall be 
re-noticed in accordance with the Government Code, the City Municipal Code and the 
Council Norms and Procedures. The Clerk shall provide notice to all interested parties as 
soon as possible when a matter becomes the subject of a motion to reconsider. 

9.9 Discussion. 
(a) The discussion and deliberations at meetings of the City Council are to secure the

mature judgment of Council Members on proposals submitted for decision. This purpose is best 
served by the exchange of thought through discussion and debate.  

To the extent possible, Council Members should disclose any ex parte communication prior to 
discussion on an item.  Ex parte communications are those made in private between an 
interested party and an official in a decision making process. 

Item 12 
Attachment 3

241



23 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

Discussion and deliberation are regulated by these rules in order to assure every member a 
reasonable and equal opportunity to be heard.  

(b) Obtaining the floor for discussion.

After the Council has commented on an issue, and a motion has been stated to the Council 
and seconded, any member of the Council has a right to discuss it after obtaining the floor. The 
member obtains the floor by seeking recognition from the Mayor. A member who has been 
recognized should make their comments clear, brief and concise.  

(c) Speaking more than once.

To encourage the full participation of all members of the Council, no member or members 
shall be permitted to monopolize the discussion of the question. If a Council Member has already 
spoken, other Council Members wishing to speak shall then be recognized. No Council Member 
shall be allowed to speak a second time until after all other Council Members have had an 
opportunity to speak.  

(d) Relevancy of discussion.

All discussion must be relevant to the issue before the City Council. A Council Member is 
given the floor only for the purpose of discussing the pending question; discussion which departs 
is out of order. Council Members shall avoid repetition and strive to move the discussion along.  

A motion, its nature, or consequences, may be attacked vigorously. It is never permissible 
to attack the motives, character, or personality of a member either directly or by innuendo or 
implication. It is the duty of the Mayor to instantly rule out of order any Council Member who 
engages in personal attacks. It is the motion, not its proposer, that is subject to debate.  

Arguments, for or against a measure, should be stated as concisely as possible. It is the 
responsibility of each Council Member to maintain an open mind on all issues during discussion 
and deliberation.  

It is not necessary for all City Council Members to speak or give their viewpoints if another 
Council Member has already addressed their concerns.  Although issues with potential to be 
litigated or otherwise appealed should have comments by each Council Member on the record. 

(e) Mayor’s duties during discussion.

The Mayor has the responsibility of controlling and expediting the discussion. A Council 
Member who has been recognized to speak on a question has a right to the undivided attention 
of the Council.  

Item 12 
Attachment 3

242



24 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

It is the duty of the Mayor to keep the subject clearly before the members, to rule out 
irrelevant discussion, and to restate the question whenever necessary.  

9.10 Council Member Respect. 
At all times, Council Members in the minority on an issue shall respect the decision and authority 
of the majority.  

9.11 Council and Staff Reports and Directions on Future Agenda Items.  
Council and staff reports at the end of Council meetings shall be limited to announcing Mayor-
appointed Regional Board activities on which Council Members serve, City and City-sponsored 
activities and items which directly affect the City. Community groups may announce their 
activities during Public Comments at the beginning of Council meetings. Council Members should 
refrain from making personal comments, stating personal activities, or items that do not impact 
their role as a Council Member. 

SECTION 10. CLOSED SESSIONS 

10.1 Purpose. 
It is the policy of the City Council to conduct its business in public to the greatest extent possible. 
However, state law recognizes that, in certain circumstances, public discussion could potentially 
jeopardize the public interest, compromise the City’s position, and could cost the taxpayers of 
Suisun City financially. Therefore, closed sessions shall be held from time to time as allowed by 
law. The procedures for the conduct of these meetings shall be the same as for public meetings, 
except that the public will be excluded.  

Prior to convening the closed session meeting, the Mayor shall publicly announce the closed 
session items and ask for public input regarding any items on the closed session agenda.  

City Council Members shall keep all written materials and verbal information provided to them 
in closed session in complete confidence to insure that the City’s position is not compromised. 
No mention of information in these materials shall be made to anyone other than Council 
Members, the City Attorney or City Manager, except where authorized by a majority of the City 
Council.  

10.2 Rule of Confidentiality. 
The City Council recognizes that breaches in confidentiality can severely prejudice the City’s 
position in litigation, labor relations and real estate negotiations. Further, breaches of 
confidentiality can create a climate of distrust among Council Members and can harm the 
Council’s ability to communicate openly in closed sessions, thereby impairing the Council’s ability 
to perform its official duties.  

Item 12 
Attachment 3

243



25 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

The City Council further recognizes that confidentiality of discussions and documents are at the 
core of a closed session. Confidentiality is essential if the closed session is to serve its purpose. 
Therefore, the City Council will adhere to a strict policy of confidentiality for closed sessions.  

10.3 Breach of Rule of Confidentiality. 
No person who attends a closed session may disclose any statements, discussions, or documents 
used in a closed session except where specifically authorized by State law. Any authorized 
disclosure shall be in strict compliance with these rules and the Ralph M. Brown Act. Violation of 
this rule shall be considered a breach of this rule of confidentiality.  

10.4 Agenda.  
The City Council agenda will contain a brief general description of the items to be discussed at 
the closed session, as required by law.  

10.5 Permissible Topics. 
All closed sessions will be held in strict compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act. The City 
Attorney, or his/her designee, will advise in advance on topics that may be discussed in a closed 
session.  

10.6 Rules of Decorum. 

(a) The same high standard of respect and decorum as apply to public meetings shall apply
to closed sessions. There shall be courtesy, respect and tolerance for all viewpoints and
for the right of Council Members to disagree. Council Members shall strive to make each
other feel comfortable and safe to express their points of view. All Council Members have
the right to insist upon strict adherence to this rule.

(b) Prior to a vote, the Mayor shall ensure that the motion is clearly stated and clearly
understood by all Council Members.

(c) The Mayor shall keep the discussion moving forward so that debate and a vote can occur
in the time allotted for the closed session. The Mayor will determine the order of debate
in a fair manner.

10.7 Conduct of Meeting. 

(a) The Mayor will call the closed session to order promptly at its scheduled time.

(b) The Mayor will keep discussion focused on the permissible topics.

(c) The use of handouts and visual aids such as charts is encouraged to focus debate and
promote understanding of the topic. All such materials are strictly confidential.

(d) If the City Council in closed session has provided direction to City staff on proposed terms
and conditions for any type of negotiations, whether it be related to property acquisitions

Item 12 
Attachment 3

244



26 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

or disposal, a proposed or pending claim or litigation, or employee negotiations, all 
contact with the other party will be through the designated City person(s) representing 
the City in the handling of the matter. A Council Member, not so designated by the 
Council, will not under any circumstances have any contact or discussion with the other 
party or its representative concerning the matter which was discussed in the closed 
session, and will not communicate any discussions conducted in closed session to such 
party.  

10.8 Public Disclosure After Final Action. 

(a) The Ralph M. Brown Act requires that, as a body, the City Council make certain public
disclosure of closed session decisions when those actions have become final. Accordingly,
the City Council shall publicly report any final action taken in closed session, and the vote,
including abstentions, at a publicly noticed meeting as follows:

1. Real Estate negotiations: After the agreement is final and accepted by the other
party;

2. Litigation: After approval to defend or appeal a lawsuit or to initiate a lawsuit;

3. Settlement: After final settlement of litigation or claims;

4. Employees: Action taken to appoint or dismiss a Council-appointed employee;

5. Labor relations: After the Memorandum of Understanding is final and has been
accepted by both parties.

(b) The report may be oral or written. The report will state only the action taken and the vote.
Unless authorized by the majority of the City Council, the report will not state the debate
or discussion that occurred. Except for the action taken and the vote, all closed session
discussions will remain confidential.

SECTION 11. DECORUM 

11.1 Council Members. 
Members of the City Council value and recognize the importance of the trust invested in them by 
the public to accomplish the business of the City. Council Members shall accord the utmost 
courtesy to each other, City employees, and the public appearing before the City Council. The 
City Manager or his/her designee shall act as the sergeant-at-arms. 

11.2 City Employees. 
Members of the City staff shall observe the same rules of order and decorum applicable to the 
City Council. City staff shall act at all times in a business and professional manner towards Council 
Members and members of the public.  

Item 12 
Attachment 3

245



27 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

11.3 Public. 
Members of the public attending City Council meetings shall observe the same rules of order and 
decorum applicable to the City Council. These Norms and Procedures shall apply to all City Council 
Meetings.  

11.4 Noise in the Chambers. 
Noise emanating from the audience, whether expressing opposition or support within the 
Council Chambers or lobby area, which disrupts City Council meetings, shall not be permitted. All 
cell phones and other electronic devices shall be muted while in the chambers. Refusal is grounds 
for removal.  

11.5 Removal. 
Any member of the public making personal, impertinent, and/or slanderous or profane remarks, 
or who becomes boisterous or belligerent while addressing the City Council, staff or general 
public, or while attending the City Council meeting and refuses to come to order at the direction 
of the Mayor/Presiding Officer, shall be removed from the Council Chambers by the Police Chief, 
or his/her designee, and may be barred from further attendance before the Council during that 
meeting. 

Unauthorized remarks from the audience, stamping of feet, whistles, yells, and similar 
demonstrations shall not be permitted by the Mayor/Presiding Officer. The Mayor/Presiding 
Officer may direct the Police Chief, or his/her designee, to remove such offenders from the room. 

11.6 Dangerous Instruments. 
No person may enter the chambers of a legislative body as defined in Section 54852 of the 
Government Code of the State of California or any place were such legislative body is in session, 
with any firearm, weapon, or explosive device of any nature.  The provisions of this section shall 
not apply to authorized peace officers or to those persons authorized by the Penal Code of the 
State to carry such weapons. 

11.7 Prosecution. 
Aggravated cases shall be prosecuted on appropriate complaint signed by the Mayor/Presiding 
Officer. 

SECTION 12. ENFORCEMENT OF DECORUM 

In extreme cases, such as when a meeting is willfully interrupted by a group or groups of persons 
so as to render the orderly conduct of such meeting unfeasible and order cannot be restored by 
the removal of individuals as provided for in this Policy, the Mayor/Presiding Officer may order 
the meeting room cleared and continue in session. Only matters appearing on the agenda may 
be considered in such a session.  

Duly accredited representatives of the press or other news media, except those participating in 
the disturbance, shall be allowed to attend any session held pursuant to this Section. Nothing in 

Item 12 
Attachment 3

246



 

 

28 Suisun City Council Norms & Procedures 

 

this Section shall prohibit the City Council from establishing a procedure for readmitting an 
individual or individuals not responsible for willfully disturbing the orderly conduct of the 
meeting. 

SECTION 13. PUBLIC RELATIONS 
 

13.1 City Spokesperson. 
The Mayor will serve as the general spokesperson for the City. When Council has not taken a 
position on an issue, neither the Mayor nor any Council Member will speak on behalf of the 
Council.  In these situations, the Mayor or Council Member will use a phrase such as, “Council 
has not taken an official position, personally I think…” 
 

13.2 Press Release. 
Any proposed Press Release may only use the City Seal and picture of the Council Member issuing 
such release if the subject matter pertains to official government business of Suisun City. 
 
The group picture of the Council may only be used on a Press Release if the release is being issued 
on behalf of the entire Council. 

SECTION 14. MAYOR’S OFFICE 
 

The opportunity to meet with a member of the public is an honor.  It also creates an opportunity 
for our citizens to know that their elected officials are willing to listen and willing to act.  There is 
a place for meeting over coffee or food, as some discussions are best had when “breaking bread.”  
However, some discussions should happen in a professional environment, free from distractions 
allowing for private discussion. 
 
To help facilitate meetings with members of the public as a Council Member, the Mayor’s office 
is listed as a Resource Room in Outlook for advance scheduling. 
 
Reach out to the Deputy City Clerk if you have questions regarding scheduling. 

SECTION 15. VIOLATIONS OF PROCEDURES  
 
Nothing in these Norms and Procedures shall invalidate a properly noticed and acted upon action 
of the City Council in accordance with State Law.  
 
This document shall remain in effect until modified by resolution of the City Council.  
 

Item 12 
Attachment 3

247



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

248



PREPARED BY:  Elizabeth N. Luna, Accounting Services Manager 

REVIEWED BY: Lakhwinder Deol, Finance Director 

APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  February 15, 2022 

JOINT AGENDA ITEM:  Accept the Investment Report for the Quarter Ending December 31, 

2021. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  No fiscal impact; informational only. 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Ensure Fiscal Solvency; Provide Good Governance. 

BACKGROUND:  Each quarter it is necessary to produce an Investment Report showing how all 

City, Housing Authority, Successor Agency and Suisun-Solano Water Authority’s available cash 

is invested, in terms of the type of investment, what institution it is invested in, and current value 

and interest earnings. 

STAFF REPORT:  The total cash and investments (par amount) equaled to $41,775,842 for the 

period ending December 31, 2021. In summary, the cash and investment portfolio consists of the 

following governmental funds: 

In terms of return on our investment managed by PFM Asset Management LLC, the current yield 

to maturity at cost of 0.97% with an average life of 790 days. The average Local Agency 

Investment Fund return for the current quarter is 0.21%.  For additional detail, please refer to the 

PFM Managed Account summary Statement attached to this staff report.  

As can be seen in the Pie Chart on the last page of the attached Investment Report, nearly 76% of 

the cash (other than cash in checking accounts) is invested in federally insured CD’s, US 

Treasuries, Agency Notes, or LAIF, all of which generate higher yields.   

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the Council/Authority accept the Quarter Ending 

December 31, 2021 Financial Officer’s Investment Report. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Financial Officer’s Investment Report, for the Quarter Ending December 31, 2021.

2. PFM Managed Account Summary Statement for the month ending December 31, 2021.

SSWA 2019 Series Bond Proceeds 2,803,684$    

Energy Conservation Project-ENGIE 375,851$        

Debt Service Reserves 1,423,618$    

General Fund 6,021,534$    

Trust/Fiduciary Funds 8,703,104$    

All Other Funds 22,448,051$  

Total 41,775,842$  

Item 13

249



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

250



Item 13 
Attachment 1

251



Item 13 
Attachment 1

252



Item 13 
Attachment 1

253



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

254



p
fm

)
a

s
s

e
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

C
ITY

 O
F
 S

U
IS

U
N

 C
ITY

 -
8
2

1
4

0
1

0
0

 

T
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 -

M
a

n
a

g
e

d
 A

cc
o

u
n

t 

O
p

e
n

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

M
at

u
ri

ti
es

/C
al

ls
 

P
ri

n
ci

p
al

 D
is

p
o

si
ti

o
n

s 

P
ri

n
ci

p
al

 A
cq

u
is

it
io

n
s 

U
n

se
tt

le
d

 T
ra

d
es

 

C
h

an
g

e 
in

 C
u

rr
en

t 
V

al
u

e
 

C
lo

s
in

g
 M

a
rk

e
t 

V
a

lu
e

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

d
 A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 

$
2

2
,1

7
0

,2
6

3
.3

9
 

(8
0

,0
5

4
.7

2
) 

(2
0

6
,0

9
3

.7
5

) 

2
1

9
,9

3
7

.5
0

 

0
.0

0
 

(6
7

,0
1

8
.5

9
) 

$
2

2
,0

3
7

,0
3

3
.8

3
 

E
a

rn
in

g
s

 R
e

c
o

n
c

il
ia

ti
o

n
 (

C
a

s
h

 B
a

s
is

) 
-

M
a

n
a

g
e

d
 A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

Fo
r 

th
e

 M
o

n
th

 E
n

d
in

g
 D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 

2
0

2
1

 

C
a

s
h

 T
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 -
M

a
n

a
g

e
d

 A
c

c
o

u
n

t 

M
at

u
ri

ti
es

/C
al

ls
 

0
.0

0
 

S
al

e 
P

ro
ce

ed
s 

2
0

7
,8

3
2

.8
8

 

C
o

u
p

o
n

/I
n

te
re

st
/D

iv
id

en
d

 I
n

co
m

e
 

2
1

,7
8

8
.5

5
 

P
ri

n
ci

p
al

 P
ay

m
e

n
ts

 
8

0
,0

5
4

.7
2

 

S
ec

u
ri

ty
 P

u
rc

h
as

es
 

(2
2

0
,1

2
0

.3
1

) 

N
et

 C
as

h
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 
(0

.0
2

) 

R
ec

o
n

ci
lin

g
 T

ra
n

sa
ct

io
n

s 
0

.0
0

 

C
a

s
h

 B
a

la
n

c
e

 

In
te

re
st

/D
iv

id
en

d
s/

C
o

u
p

o
n

s 
R

ec
ei

ve
d

 
2

3
,5

2
7

.6
8

 
C

lo
s

in
g

 C
a

s
h

 B
a

la
n

c
e

 
$

4
9

5
,9

1
7

.6
6

 
Le

ss
 P

u
rc

h
as

ed
 I

n
te

re
st

 R
el

at
ed

 t
o

 I
n

te
re

st/
C

o
u

p
o

n
s 

P
lu

s 
N

et
 R

ea
liz

ed
 G

ai
n

s/
Lo

ss
es

 

T
o

ta
l 

C
a

s
h

 B
a

s
is

 E
a

rn
in

g
s

 

(1
8

2
.8

1
) 

(4
,5

7
6

.2
6

) 

$
1

8
,7

6
8

.6
1

 

E
a

rn
in

g
s

 R
e

c
o

n
c

il
ia

ti
o

n
 (

A
c

c
ru

a
l 

B
a

s
is

) 
T

o
ta

l 

En
d

in
g

 A
m

o
rt

iz
ed

 V
al

u
e 

o
f 

S
ec

u
ri

ti
es

 

En
d

in
g

 A
cc

ru
ed

 I
n

te
re

st
 

P
lu

s 
P

ro
ce

ed
s 

fr
o

m
 S

al
es

 

P
lu

s 
P

ro
ce

ed
s 

o
f 

M
at

u
ri

ti
es

/c
al

ls
/P

ri
n

ci
p

al
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 

P
lu

s 
C

o
u

p
o

n
s/

D
iv

id
en

d
s 

R
ec

ei
ve

d
 

Le
ss

 C
o

st
 o

f 
N

ew
 P

u
rc

h
as

es
 

Le
ss

 B
eg

in
n

in
g 

A
m

o
rt

iz
ed

 V
al

u
e

 o
f 

S
ec

u
ri

ti
es

 

Le
ss

 B
eg

in
n

in
g 

A
cc

ru
e

d
 I

n
te

re
st

 

T
o

ta
l 

A
c

c
ru

a
l 

B
a

s
is

 E
a

rn
in

g
s

 

P
F
M

 A
s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
l
l
C

 
P

a
g

e
 5

 o
f 

2
6

 

�

2
2

,0
5

0
,6

4
1

.8
3

 

5
8

,5
9

2
.8

0
 

2
0

7
,8

3
2

.8
8

 

8
0

,0
5

4
.7

2
 

2
1

,7
8

8
.5

5
 

(2
2

0
,1

2
0

.3
1

) 

(2
2

,1
2

3
,8

3
0

.2
9

) 

(5
9

,1
8

9
.4

4
) 

$
1

5
,7

7
0

.7
4

 

A
cc

o
u

n
t 

8
2

1
4

0
1

0
0

 P
ag

e 
1

 

A
tt

a
c

h
m

e
n

t 
2

Item 13 
Attachment 2

255



Item 13 
Attachment 2

256



Item 13 
Attachment 2

257



Item 13 
Attachment 2

258



Item 13 
Attachment 2

259



Item 13 
Attachment 2

260



Item 13 
Attachment 2

261



Item 13 
Attachment 2

262



Item 13 
Attachment 2

263



Item 13 
Attachment 2

264



Item 13 
Attachment 2

265



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

266



01107.0001/748302.1  DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  

ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0  ◼  PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5  ◼  BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0  ◼  FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3  ◼  RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0  ◼  POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3  ◼  PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

CITY COUNCIL 

Lori Wilson, Mayor 

Alma Hernandez, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Jane Day 

Michael J. Hudson 

Wanda Williams 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 

Every Month 

MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2022 

5:30 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, subdivision (b), and in accordance with the provisions of SB 361 

(2021), the following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting includes teleconference participation 

by: Council/Board Members Jane Day, Michael Hudson, Wanda Williams, Mayor Pro Tem Alma Hernandez, and 

Mayor/Chair Lori Wilson. Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 

94585. 

THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH REQUIRES MASKING FOR ALL INDOOR PUBLIC 

SETTINGS. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE REQUIRED TO WEAR FACE MASKS WHILE IN CITY 

FACILITIES, IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU.  

DUE TO CORONAVIRUS COVID-19 CITY HALL IS CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC, RESIDENTS MAY 

 ATTEND THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING VIA THE APPLICATION, ZOOM.  

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION: 

WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID:  837 9412 8046 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 4pm) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 

ROLL CALL 

Mayor Wilson called the meeting to order at 5:39pm with the following Council Members present: 

PRESENT:  Hernandez, Hudson, Williams, Wilson 

ABSENT:  Day 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  None 
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers/Boardmembers should be 

identified at this time.) 

Item 14

267

https://zoom.us/join
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


February 1, 2022 City Council Page 2 

PUBLIC COMMENT  NONE 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 

California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 

Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 

City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 

period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 

future agenda.) 

CLOSED SESSION 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54950 the Suisun City Council will hold a Closed 

Session for the purpose of: 

1. Conference with Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation

Name of case: Louisa Pickering and Michael Pickering (Plaintiffs) v. City of Suisun City 

(Defendants), et al - Case # FCS055707 

2. PERSONNEL MATTERS

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957(b)(1) et seq. the Suisun City Council

will hold a Closed Session for the purpose of Public Employee Performance Evaluation: City

Manager

Council entered into Closed Session at 5:44 pm. 

CONVENE OPEN SESSION 

Council reconvened and made no announcements. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 6:33pm. 

___________________________ 

Anita Skinner, City Clerk 

Item 14

268



DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  

ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0  ◼  PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5  ◼  BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0  ◼  FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3  ◼  RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0  ◼  POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3  ◼  PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

CITY COUNCIL 

Lori Wilson, Mayor 

Alma Hernandez, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Jane Day 

Michael J. Hudson 

Wanda Williams 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 

Every Month 
, 

MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY, 

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2022 

6:30 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, subdivision (b), and in accordance with the provisions of SB 361 

(2021), the following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting includes teleconference participation 

by: Council/Board Members Jane Day, Michael Hudson, Wanda Williams, Mayor Pro Tem Alma Hernandez, and 

Mayor/Chair Lori Wilson. Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 

94585. 

THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH REQUIRES MASKING FOR ALL INDOOR PUBLIC 

SETTINGS.  MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE REQUIRED TO WEAR FACE MASKS WHILE IN CITY 

FACILITIES, IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU.  

DUE TO CORONAVIRUS COVID-19 CITY HALL IS CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC, RESIDENTS MAY 

 ATTEND THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING VIA THE APPLICATION, ZOOM.  

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION: 

WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID:  857 8223 4133 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6 PM) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 

(Next Ord. No. – 791) 

 (Next City Council Res. No. 2022 – 08) 

Next Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency Res. No. SA2022 - 01) 

 (Next Housing Authority Res. No. HA2022 – 01) 

Item 14

269

https://zoom.us/join
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


February 1, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 2 

 

 

 

ROLL CALL 

Mayor Wilson called the meeting to order at 6:47pm with the following Council Members present: 

PRESENT:  Day, Hernandez, Hudson, Williams, Wilson 

ABSENT:  None 

Pledge of Allegiance was led by Vice Mayor Hernandez. 

Invocation was given by Council Member Hudson. 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  NONE 
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers should be 

identified at this time.) 

REPORTS:  (Informational items only) 

1. Fairfield Suisun Sewer District Asset Management Plan – Impact to Suisun City Budget – 

(Vue: nvue@suisun.com).  

Public Works Director Nouae Vue gave a brief report explaining that all the pipelines in the 

city were videoed which projected what lines may need replacement or repair; creating a 

vehicle for rate increase, maintenance or replacement. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Steve Olry commented wouldn’t this have been a good time to have a funded Measure S instead 

of raising our rates. 

Mayor Wilson commented that even though Measure S is a General Fund the people set 

priorities for how funds could be spend and this was not listed as a priority; also funds from 

Measure S could not be transferred to an outside agency. 

2. City Manager/Executive Director/Staff 

Mr. Folsom gave a brief COVID update stating the city is experiencing impacts from COVID 

with multiple staff members testing positive, others having recovered.  This has affected all 

departments which has led to limited hours and appointment only transactions. 

Human Resource Administrator, Christine Penland has returned from maternity leave and new 

Development Services Director, Jim Bermudez has joined the city staff. 

 

Council Members congratulated Ms. Penland and welcomed Mr. Bermudez.  Mayor Wilson 

stated that Empower Solano received grant monies and is working on getting rapid test sites in 

Suisun City.  She also welcomed new Fire Marshall Jose Colin. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

George Guynn commented that he has been attending Board of Supervisor meetings for 2 years 

and has not gotten sick; he feels the city needs to try and open up. 

 

Steve Olry asked with COVID restrictions why are we waiting to react to Thanksgiving and 

Christmas COVID spikes.  Many restrictions are beginning to relax; city meetings only have 

5 people all sitting apart; thinks issue is employees not masking and keeping their distance. 

 

 

 

 

Item 14

270

mailto:nvue@suisun.com


February 1, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 3 

PRESENTATION/APPOINTMENTS 
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments). 

3. Housing Authority Update:  Community Action Partnership Solano (CAP Solano) Joint

Powers Authority– (Lawton:  klawton@suisun.com).

Housing Supervisor Kathy Lawton, presented the update as provided in the packet.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Patricia Matteson asked if CAP has been approached about providing assistance to newly

arrived Afghan refugees.  That is a group that needs a lot of services CAP provides.

Donna LeBlanc asked if Suisun City numbers could have a separate break out rather than be

combined with Fairfield.

Michael Zeiss thanked Ms. Lawton for a great report.  He further commented the Board of

Supervisors accepted the Regional Action Plan of the Regional Impact Council as the

countywide framework for reducing homelessness.  He asked if Ms. Lawton was familiar with

that plan and if so, does that mean any change to what our organization is doing.

Ms. Lawton responded to public comments.

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion. 

City Council 

4. Council Consideration and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 2022-08:  A Resolution of

the City Council of the City of Suisun City proclaiming a local emergency persists and

authorizing the use of remote teleconference meeting procedures by the City’s legislative

bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) et seq., through March 2, 2022 –

(Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com).

5. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-09:  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with the Solano Transportation Authority for the State Route Highway 12

Beautification Project – (Vue: nvue@suisun.com).

6. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-10:  Accepting the 2021 Cost Allocation Plan and

Analysis – (Deol:  ldeol@suisun.com).

7. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-11:  Authorizing the Submittal of Application(s) for

All CalRecycle Grant and Payment Programs for Which the City of Suisun City is Eligible –

Vue: nvue@suisun.com).

8. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-12:  Authorizing the City Manager to enter a three-

year contract with TPx Communications to replace land lines with VoIP managed system – (Deol:

ldeol@suisun.com).

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency / Housing Authority 

9. Council/Agency/Authority Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and/or Special Meetings of

the Suisun City Council, Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency, and Housing

Authority held on January 18, 2022 - (Skinner: askinner@suisun.com).

Council Member Hudson pulled Items #5 and #6 

Item 14

271

mailto:klawton@suisun.com
mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:nvue@suisun.com
mailto:ldeol@suisun.com
mailto:nvue@suisun.com
mailto:ldeol@suisun.com
mailto:askinner@suisun.com


February 1, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 4 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

George Guynn spoke on Item #4 and feels there are those with no cellphone, hearing problems, 

handicapped or health issues other than COVID are being discriminated against.  City needs to get 

back to business. 

Motion by Vice Mayor Hernandez and seconded by Council Member Williams to approve 

Consent Calendar Items #4, 7, 8 & 9.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Day, Hernandez, Hudson, Williams, Wilson 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT:  None 

ITEM #5 

Council Member Hudson had clarifying questions: STA is loaning/paying ahead to the City 

$250,000; STA is not taking a percentage to manage this; if STA comes up with a beautification 

plan does Council have the option to veto that plan. 

STA Darryl Halls was in attendance to respond to Council concerns. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mike Zeiss asked if city can afford this.  He feels main problems on Highway 12 is litter and 

homelessness.  He asked could staff explain agreement with CalTrans; provide estimate; what are 

safety requirements that would prevent volunteers from cleaning along Highway 12; public input 

is very important for this project. 

Donna LeBlanc understand the agreement is for STA to manage project and pre-pay for us; are we 

committing to a new fence which only collects debris; where is gravel being proposed; no mention 

of trees or benches that were suggested at the November meeting; concerned we are not being 

heard; if being locked into fence and gravel we should say no and resubmit for direction. 

Steve Olry seconds Mike Zeiss comments; needs more clarification; why is Measure S money 

being used; Highway 12 needs beautification and should use ARPA monies; need to regroup and 

eliminate any confusion on this. 

Patricia Matteson commented that a fence and gravel is not beautification. 

Greg Folsom, Nouae Vue and Darryl Halls responded to comments. 

Motion by Council Member Hudson to approve Item #5 and seconded by Vice May 

Hernandez.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Day, Hernandez, Hudson, Williams, Wilson 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT:  None 

Item 14

272



February 1, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 5 

Item #6 

Council Member Hudson commented that cost allocation plan was in place in the past; a reasonable 

way to do cost recovery and surprised it hasn’t been done for 5 years.  Would like to propose that 

we put an auto inflator in there whether it is 3%, 5% or tying it to another indexes.  Can we put an 

auto inflator in and what would it look like? 

Ms. Deol commented she did not have information on adding an auto inflator and would look into 

it; but moving forward the plan is to update the plan annually or on a regular basis. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Steve Olry commented he feels there is a lack of fiscal transparency; in the last year or two our 

government leaders lack integrity and are hiding fiscal honesty; feels we are bankrupt and painting 

a rosy picture. 

Motion made by Council Member Hudson to approve Item #6 and seconded by Council 

Member Williams.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Day, Hernandez, Hudson, Williams, Wilson 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT:  None 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 

California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 

Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 

City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 

period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 

future agenda.) 

Patricia Matteson stated this was a rezoning request for amendment of the Suisun City Specific 

Plan urging Council action in response to a letter addressed to the Council.  The letter requests 

Council to put rezoning of the land around the proposed self-storage business at Marina Shopping 

Center on the Council agenda for discussion and direction to staff.  Forty-three homeowners of the 

Victorian Harbor and Village neighborhoods, adjacent to the project site, signed the letter to 

encourage development that is more beneficial to the city and more compatible to adjacent 

neighborhood.  She thanked Council in advance for their attention to this rezoning request. 

Donna LeBlanc commented there have been some improvements to the city website but not all 

Council and staff members emails are listed and requesting that they be added.  Thanked the Clean 

Team for a great job on their first 2022 project.  Adopt a Neighborhood is working on their first 

project but no date has been set.  Hoping for lots of volunteers because they have great plans for 

the new year. 

Steve Olry commented that there was a tent on the Grizzly Island Trail along Highway 12 at the 

observation point.  He tried to attend the 1/20/22 General Tax Oversight Measure S Committee 

Item 14

273



February 1, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 6 

meeting and could not get on.  He would like to declare that meeting null and void as he could not 

attend in person, denied access on phone and wants something done or will take it to the DA; $86K 

spent on legal fees for December and it’s no wonder Suisun doesn’t want public meetings; finds 

unacceptable the staff commentary on acceptance of the Environmental Impact Report regarding 

project at Marina Blvd last week denying the findings that the project would create a disturbance 

on Marina Blvd and feels staff refusing to take traffic gridlock, exhaust pollution, potential water 

rationing into consideration incompetent and raises concerns of integrity. 

Mike Zeiss commented the city has been talking for 3 years about the need of a single webpage 

where any resident can go and see what is happening.  Would really like to see this happen and 

have a convenient website as it is to much to ask the public to track the agenda of every meeting 

each week. 

George Guynn commented that he too could not get to the tax meeting and tried on multiple times 

before and after the published start time.  Doesn’t feel this was a public meeting and agrees with 

Mr. Olry’s comments.  Would like to see fewer items on the agenda and spend more time going 

into greater detail on the items.   

PUBLIC HEARING  

Housing Authority 

10. Housing Authority Board Adoption of Resolution No. HA 2022-___:  Consider Approval of

an Amendment to the Disposition and Development Agreement Between the Housing

Authority and Harbor Park LLC, Regarding Parcels Located at 707-815 Almond Street in the

City of Suisun City Consisting of Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 0032-101-420 and 0032-102-

160 - (Kearns: jkearns@suisun.com).  (This item is being removed from the agenda and

will be re-noticed for a future date.)

City Attorney Gerli stated the applicant requested the item removed.

GENERAL BUSINESS  

City Council 

11. Council Consideration and Authorization to Initiate a Proposition 218 Process and Setting the

Associated Public Hearing Date – (Vue: nvue@suisun.com).

Public Works Director Vue gave the staff report and power point presentation as provided in the 

packet. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Donna LeBlanc commented she likes we are getting the dump passes bac but would like 

additional information on what they entail; does the 8500 kitchen pails that were ordered include 

apartments as the number seems inadequate; asked for an explanation on what the Senior 

Lifeline is; explanation of the compost give away and how it will work in the coming years. 

Steve Olry feels this rate increase is going to put a burden on some; have a high rate of garbage 

Item 14

274

mailto:jkearns@suisun.com
mailto:nvue@suisun.com


February 1, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 7 

liens now and should proceed with extreme caution on this. 

George Guynn commented that the city should look around for other suppliers; residents can’t 

afford another rate increase; he hopes the public pays attention and opposes this rate increase. 

Jeanie Gong commented that she was speaking specifically on SB1383 on reducing food waste.  

She stated that her neighbors are not aware of this bill.  She has been separating her food waste 

but does not know if she is doing it correctly.  Feels there needs to be a lot of community 

education on this matter. 

Motion by Vice Mayor Hernandez to approved Item #11 and seconded by Council Member 

Williams.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Hernandez, Williams, Wilson 

NOES:  Day, Hudson 

ABSENT:  None 

Motion by Vice Mayor Hernandez to extend the Council meeting for Item 12 only and 

seconded by Council Member Williams.  Motion passed by the following vote: 

AYES:  Hernandez, Hudson, Williams, Wilson 

NOES:  Day 

ABSENT:  None 

12. Fiscal Year 2021-22 Mid-Year Fiscal Review

Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-13: Adopting the 6th Amendment to the Annual

Appropriation Resolution No. 2021-57 to Appropriate Mid-Year Budget Adjustments for

Additional Costs in Various Accounts Organization – (Doel: ldoel@suisun.com).

Mayor Wilson briefly explained these mid-year adjustments had previous been discussed and

made and are now coming before the Council for approval.

Ms. Deol thanked her team and Council for all the hard work that went into making the

adjustments.

Motion by Council Member Williams to adopt Resolution No. 2022-13 and seconded by

Vice Mayor Hernandez.  Motion passed by the following vote:

AYES:  Day, Hernandez, Hudson, Williams, Wilson

NOES:  None

ABSENT:  None

REPORTS:  (Informational items only) 

13. Council Updates

a. Council/Boardmembers

b. Mayor

14. Non-Discussion Items

Item 14

275

mailto:ldoel@suisun.com


February 1, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 8 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 10:15pm. 

___________________________________ 

Anita Skinner, City Clerk 

Item 14

276



PREPARED BY:  Lakhwinder Deol, City Manager 

REVIEWED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  February 15, 2022 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  HEARING: Adoption of Council Resolution No. 2022-___:  Placing 

Liens for Unpaid Waste Collection Service Charges on Certain Lands Situated in the City of 

Suisun City, County of Solano, State of California. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Republic Services, Inc. is requesting that the City Council place liens on 224 

delinquent solid waste accounts representing approximately $61,904.90 in uncollected solid waste 

collection service charges.  The City’s General Fund will receive twenty dollars per lien and 1.0 

percent of the total levy amount to be used as the recording fee and to offset the administrative 

costs associated with the lien and levy process.  Through the lien and levy process, the City will 

collect on outstanding franchise fees totaling 10.0 percent of the uncollected solid waste service 

charges when the money actually is received.   

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance, Ensure Fiscal Solvency. 

BACKGROUND:  Republic Services, Inc. provides solid waste collection service for properties 

located in the City of Suisun City.  The Suisun City Code (SCC) Section 8.08.015 requires 

subscribers to pay the collection charge directly to Republic Services, Inc.  In the event that a 

customer does not pay the collection charges, Republic Services, Inc. must prepare delinquent 

notices to notify each customer that the account is delinquent and could be subject to a lien/levy 

process whereby charges would be recorded against the property.   

Republic Services, Inc. began actively pursuing collection of delinquent accounts in December 

2001.  Republic Services, Inc. will request hearings three times per year in order for the Suisun 

City Council to consider enforcing the lien/levy process for delinquent waste charges. 

STAFF REPORT:  Republic Services, Inc. customers were compared with the owners of record 

to the parcel information database obtained from Solano County property records.  Notification 

letters were mailed to all known property owners advising them of the lien and levy process.  The 

letters informed the property owners that they could present their reasons for disputing the waste 

collection charges by either attending the hearing, or by sending letters to the Council prior to the 

hearing.   

Republic Services, Inc. is asking that the City enforce SCC Section 8.08.170 by placing a special 

assessment/levying a lien on the properties that have delinquent charges.  Republic Services, Inc. 

will verify accounts for payments prior to recording the special assessments. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council: 

1. Conduct a Hearing on the proposed liens; and

2. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-___: Placing Liens for Unpaid Waste Collection Service

Charges on Certain Lands Situated in the City of Suisun City, County of Solano, State of

California.

Item 16

277



ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2022-___:  Placing Liens for Unpaid Waste Collection Service Charges on

Certain Lands Situated in the City of Suisun City, County of Solano, State of California.

2. Exhibit A provides a listing of delinquent accounts, as compiled by Republic Services, Inc.,

and it will be updated and made available to the City Council in advance of the meeting.

Item 16

278



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

PLACING LIENS FOR UNPAID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE CHARGES 

ON CERTAIN LANDS SITUATED IN THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY,  

COUNTY OF SOLANO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Suisun City Code (SCC) Section 8.08.015 owners of all 

occupied premises must subscribe to and pay for weekly waste collection service; and 

WHEREAS, the premises located in the City of Suisun City, County of Solano, State 

of California, and described in Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 

herein, were provided with waste collection service as required by the SCMC Section 

8.08.015; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of SCC Section 8.08.015, all required notices 

were directed to owners of said properties and said owners failed to make payment for waste 

collection services as required; and 

WHEREAS, as a result thereof, the City of Suisun City has incurred charges for 

delinquent waste collection charges and administrative costs, which amounts remain unpaid. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Suisun 

City that pursuant to SCC Section 8.08.170, the City Council does hereby lien said premises, in 

the amounts applicable to each specific premise as identified in Exhibit A attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Exhibit A may be amended to delete any 

enumerated waste collection service charges and administrative costs paid before liens 

authorized hereby are forwarded to the County Recorder of Solano County, California. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is hereby directed to record this 

Resolution, together with Exhibit A as may be amended, with the Office of the County Recorder 

of Solano County, California. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager of the City of Suisun City is 

authorized to take such further actions as are necessary or appropriate to implement this 

Resolution and is also authorized to execute any other document(s) that may be necessary or 

appropriate to process or release said liens. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City held on Tuesday the 15th day of February 2022 by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers: 

NOES: Councilmembers: 

ABSENT: Councilmembers: 

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of February 2022. 

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

Item 16 
Attachment 1

279



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

280



PR
EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
LI
EN

 L
IS
TS

HE
AR

IN
G
 D
AT

ES
10

/2
02

1 
  0
2/
20

22
   
06

/2
02

2

PR
EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
LI
EN

 L
IS
T 
N
O
 C
O
N
SO

LI
DA

TI
O
N

Se
rv
ic
e

RS
S

Ci
ty

AP
N

O
w
ne

rs
 N
am

e
Bi
lli
ng

 A
dd

re
ss

Bi
lli
ng

 A
dd

re
ss

Se
rv
ic
e 
Ad

dr
es
s

Se
rv
ic
e 
Ad

dr
es
s

Th
ru

Ch
ar
ge
s

Ch
ar
ge

To
ta
l D

ue
Ac
co
un

t N
um

be
r

32
35

11
9

CA
ST
IL
LO

 P
O
RS
CH

A
60

3 
AL
EX
AN

DE
R 
CT

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

60
3

AL
EX
AN

DE
R 
CO

U
RT

21
/1
2

48
.5
3

25
73

.5
3

29
52

1
17

37
90

1 8
EL
VI
RA

 &
 N
O
EL
 A
Q
U
IN
O

10
05

 A
LM

A 
CT

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
10

05
AL
M
A 
CO

U
RT

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

19
93

32
10

14
4

M
AK

IN
 JO

HN
/M

AK
IN
 S
O
LE
IL
   
 

70
6‐
A 
AL
M
O
N
D 
ST

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
70

6
AL
M
O
N
D 
ST
RE

ET
21

/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

16
58

7
17

32
14

0 9
LE
U
N
G
 M

IC
HA

EL
 &
 H
EL
EN

 W
 T
R 

40
 A
N
G
U
ID
O
 C
T

HI
LL
SB
O
RO

U
G
H 
CA

 9
40

10
13

15
AM

AD
O
R 
W
AY

21
/1
2

12
5.
86

25
15

0.
86

16
58

7
17

32
14

1 1
RE

Y 
M
IC
HA

EL
 JT

13
19

 A
M
AD

O
R 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
13

19
AM

AD
O
R 
W
AY

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

53
52

3
37

35
10

7
G
AG

U
CA

S 
LU

Z 
JT

41
6 
AM

BE
R 
DR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
41

6
AM

BE
R 
DR

IV
E

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
16

96
2

37
35

21
4

M
YL
ES
 D
EI
RD

RE
 L
 &
 B
RY

AN
 JT

13
05

 A
M
BE

R 
DR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
13

05
AM

BE
R 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
1

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
18

22
0

17
37

82
21

BR
IT
T 
SA

RI
TA

10
16

 A
N
DE

RS
O
N
 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
10

16
AN

DE
RS
O
N
 D
RI
VE

21
/1
1

89
.2
2

25
11

4.
22

20
25

0
17

43
81

0 9
EV

AN
S 
FR
ED

DI
E 
J &

 T
ER

ES
A 
JT

17
60

 A
N
DR

EW
S 
CR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
17

60
AN

DR
EW

S 
CI
RC

LE
21

/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
12

75
2

17
34

62
13

IS
AA

CS
 A
AR

O
N
 D
/I
SA

AC
S 
M
EL
IN
DA

 M
  

49
0 
AR

M
SB
Y 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
49

0
AR

M
SB
Y 
W
AY

21
/0
9

15
8.
00

25
18

3.
00

17
36

6
17

33
54

0 9
M
O
N
TE
RR

O
ZA

 JU
AN

 R
U
IZ

10
23

 B
AR

RO
W
S 
DR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

10
23

BA
RR

O
W
S 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
2

46
4.
28

25
48

9.
28

22
22

3
17

35
12

1 6
N
EL
IS
 M

AR
TI
N

20
5 
W
ES
TE
RN

 H
IL
LS
 D
R.

PL
EA

SA
N
T 
HI
LL
 C
A 
94

52
3

94
0

BE
EC

HW
O
O
D 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
0

11
0.
40

25
13

5.
40

22
97

17
35

12
3 1

JO
N
ES
 D
AV

ID
 &
 D
O
RO

TH
Y 
JT

91
6 
BE

EC
HW

O
O
D 
CR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
91

6
BE

EC
HW

O
O
D 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
16

87
0

17
35

03
08

AY
M
AR

 P
AT

RI
CK

 M
94

2 
BE

EC
HW

O
O
D 
CI
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
‐1
76

94
2

BE
EC

HW
O
O
D 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
10

02
3

17
35

02
0 4

PR
AT

ER
 N
IC
O
LE
/R
EY
ES
M
IS
TY

94
7 
BE

EC
HW

O
O
D 
CI
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
94

7
BE

EC
HW

O
O
D 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

36
77

17
42

33
0 8

PE
PP

ER
S 
M
IC
HA

EL
 &
 B
RA

N
DI
 L
 JT

53
4 
BE

LL
A 
VI
ST
A 
DR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
53

4
BE

LL
A 
VI
ST
A 
DR

IV
21

/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
11

37
3

17
33

75
1 4

JO
HN

ST
O
N
 M

IC
HA

EL
/A
G
U
IL
AR

‐JO
HN

ST
O
N
 M

81
7 
BE

RI
N
G
 W

Y
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
81

7
BE

RI
N
G
 W

AY
21

/0
9

40
.7
0

25
65

.7
0

28
95

1
17

33
75

1 4
JO
HN

ST
O
N
 M

IC
HA

EL
/A
G
U
IL
AR

‐JO
HN

ST
O
N
 M

 
81

7 
BE

RI
N
G
 W

Y
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
81

7
BE

RI
N
G
 W

AY
21

/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

15
36

3
32

39
13

5
TR

O
U
TN

ER
 R
O
N
AL
D 
D 
&
 E
N
M
A 
V 
JT
  

12
3 
BI
RC

HW
O
O
D 
CT

.
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
12

3
BI
RC

HW
O
O
D 
CO

U
RT

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

50
07

3
17

34
96

02
FI
N
LE
Y 
M
AU

RI
CE

/F
IN
LE
Y 
RA

M
O
N
A 

12
03

 B
IT
TE
RN

 W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
12

03
BI
TT
ER

N
 W

AY
21

/1
2

25
3.
60

25
27

8.
60

13
88

2
17

34
96

0 6
RO

U
SE
 L
AM

AR
RE

12
11

 B
IT
TE
RN

 W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
12

11
BI
TT
ER

N
 W

AY
21

/0
9

31
0.
66

25
33

5.
66

22
62

9
17

33
74

13
M
CC

LI
N
TO

N
 R
O
O
SE
VE

LT
JR
 JT

  
10

05
 B
LA
CK

SP
U
R 
C T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
10

05
BL
AC

KS
PU

R 
CO

U
RT

21
/0
9

33
9.
26

25
36

4.
26

42
09

47
0

17
33

74
05

CA
ST
AN

O
N
 L
IN
A

PO
 B
O
X 
15

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
81

1
BL
AC

KS
PU

R 
DR

IV
E

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

31
20

17
33

74
0 9

M
CN

AU
G
HT

O
N
 JA

SO
N
/M

CN
AU

G
HT

O
N
 C
EC

IL
E

21
08

 F
O
X 
G
LE
N
 D
R

FA
IR
FI
EL
D 
CA

 9
45

34
81

9
BL
AC

KS
PU

R 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
2

39
0.
47

25
41

5.
47

23
91

3
17

30
46

0 7
BO

RL
EK

 M
IC
HA

EL
 R
 &
 C
HA

RI
TY
 A
  

81
3 
BL
O
SS
O
M
 A
VE

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
81

3
BL
O
SS
O
M
 A
VE

N
U
E

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
11

45
6

17
30

92
04

HU
EY
 W

IL
LI
E 
JT

50
7 
BL
U
E 
W
IN
G
 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
50

7
BL
U
E 
W
IN
G
 D
RI
VE

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
00

88
2

17
34

93
1 9

O
LI
VE

R 
JO
YC

E 
V

10
02

 B
LU

EJ
AY

 D
R.

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
10

02
BL
U
EJ
AY

 D
RI
VE

21
/1
1

20
2.
97

25
22

7.
97

42
00

93
2

32
47

22
0

VU
 C
U
O
N
G
 &
 JU

LI
E

71
8 
BR

EA
KW

AT
ER

 C
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
71

8
BR

EA
KW

AT
ER

 C
IR
CL

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
11

91
9

17
35

61
02

CR
AT

ER
 T
HO

M
AS

 &
 L
AT

W
AN

 A
 J T

22
3 
BR

ID
G
EW

AT
ER

 C
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
22

3
BR

ID
G
EW

AT
ER

 C
IR
C

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
13

76
0

32
36

21
6

G
O
N
ZA

LE
Z 
DA

VI
D

75
 B
U
EN

A 
VI
ST
A 
AV

E
SU

IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

75
BU

EN
A 
VI
ST
A 
AV

EN
U
E

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
01

09
6

17
33

13
08

RO
G
ER

S,
 E
RW

IN
71

5 
SK
YL
IN
E 
DR

.
VA

LL
EJ
O
 C
A 
94

59
1

14
03

BU
RN

EY
 C
O
U
RT

21
/0
9

26
4.
94

25
28

9.
94

42
14

64
1

17
31

24
1 4

CH
HI
N
 C
HA

N
TH

A
81

9 
CR

AC
KL
IN
G
 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
‐2
12

81
9

CA
CK

LI
N
G
 D
RI
VE

21
/1
1

25
1.
71

25
27

6.
71

66
55

32
15

11
7

CR
AT

Z 
AN

TH
O
N
Y 
L 
TR

21
5 
CA

LI
FO

RN
IA
 S
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
21

5
CA

LI
FO

RN
IA
 S
TR

EE
21

/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
01

17
2

17
33

01
0 7

SM
IT
H 
CH

ER
YL
 D

91
0 
CA

N
AD

A 
G
O
O
SE
 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

91
0

CA
N
AD

A 
G
O
O
SE
 D
RI

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
01

22
2

17
34

73
1 8

TS
AO

 C
HI
‐W

IN
G

17
46

7 
AL
M
O
N
D 
RD

CA
ST
RO

 V
AL
LE
Y 
CA

 9
45

46
‐1

42
1

CA
N
FI
EL
D 
CO

U
RT

21
/1
2

41
.9
5

25
66

.9
5

27
96
4

17
34

73
15

G
U
M
BA

 G
IL
BE

RT
 D

42
0 
CA

N
FI
EL
D 
CT

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
42

0
CA

N
FI
EL
D 
CO

U
RT

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

19
65

3
17

31
12

1 8
DR

AG
G
ES
 N
IC
O
LE
 M

61
2 
CA

N
VA

SB
AC

K 
DR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
61

2
CA

N
VA

SB
AC

K 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
19

24
2

17
42

84
0 4

IH
6 
PR

O
PE
RT

Y 
W
ES
T 
LP

17
17

 M
AI
N
 S
T 
#2
00

0
DA

LL
AS

 T
X 
75

20
1

72
5

CA
PI
ST
RA

N
O
 D
RI
VE

21
/1
2

21
6.
05

25
24

1.
05

53
77

7
17

42
24

1 1
JO
SE
PH

 T
O
M
LI
N
SO

N
71

0 
CA

PI
ST
RA

N
O
 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

71
0

CA
PI
ST
RA

N
O
 D
RI
VE

21
/1
2

25
1.
71

25
27

6.
71

20
88

17
42

95
0 8

M
AR

CE
LL
U
S 
M
IK
KA

H/
M
AR

CE
LL
U
S 
LA
U
RE

N
 O

81
9 
CA

PI
ST
RA

N
O
 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

81
9

CA
PI
ST
RA

N
O
 D
RI
VE

21
/1
2

39
0.
47

25
41

5.
47

20
95

3
32

47
20

5
BU

IE
 S
AM

U
EL
 &
 A
LA
N
AJ
T

71
1 
CA

TA
LI
N
A 
CR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
71

1
CA

TA
LI
N
A 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
11

78
7

17
35

72
08

FU
LL
EN

 S
TE
VE

/F
U
LL
EN

 C
RI
ST
IN
A

31
1 
CH

IL
DS

 C
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
31

1
CH

IL
DS

 C
O
U
RT

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

26
08

0
37

23
21

1
LO

VE
LA
N
D 
ES
TH

ER
 G

41
2 
CH

YR
L 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
41

2
CH

YR
L 
W
AY

21
/1
2

25
1.
71

25
27

6.
71

44
73

17
37

33
13

SA
U
CE

DO
 M

AN
U
EL
/S
AU

CE
 D
O
 R
EG

IN
A

25
1 
CL
O
VE

RL
EA

F 
C R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

25
1

CL
O
VE

RL
EA

F 
CI
RC

L
21

/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

96
60

17
37

43
0 7

W
AT

SO
N
 D
AN

IE
LL
E

26
8 
CL
O
VE

RL
EA

F 
CR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
26

8
CL
O
VE

RL
EA

F 
CI
RC

L
21

/1
0

27
8.
94

25
30

3.
94

14
08

6
17

37
43

0 1
W
HI
TE
 T
IM

O
TH

Y
24

4 
CL
O
VE

RL
EA

F 
CI
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
24

4
CL
O
VE

RL
EA

F 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
2

23
6.
16

25
26

1.
16

20
55

3
32

34
30
6

LA
W
SO

N
‐B
RO

AD
N
AX

 C
O
N
ST
AN

CE
 JT

   
   

85
 C
O
RA

L 
LN

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
85

CO
RA

L 
LA
N
E

21
/1
0

38
.4
6

25
63

.4
6

42
17

96
8

17
32

11
13

FA
VI
O
LA

 R
EY
ES
 &
 D
AN

IE
L 
 

70
1 
CR

AN
E 
DR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
70

1
CR

AN
E 
DR

IV
E

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

41
10

73
9

17
32

51
0 8

CE
RV

AN
TE
S,
 R
AM

IR
O
 O
RO

ZC
O

13
05

 C
RA

N
E 
DR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
13

05
CR

AN
E 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
18

95
4

17
32

11
12

HI
N
CH

CL
IF
F 
BE

TH
20

31
 S
TA

RL
IN
G
 W

AY
FA

IR
FI
EL
D 
CA

 9
45

33
62

5
CR

AN
E 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
0

26
4.
59

25
28

9.
59

41
21

11
17

35
52

0 6
PE
RK

IN
S 
SM

IT
H 
EL
AI
N
EY
VO

N
N
E

91
4 
CR

AV
EN

 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
91

4
CR

AV
EN

 D
RI
VE

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

10
55
4

17
33

68
06

TI
N
A 
W
IL
LI
AM

S
60

7 
CR

ES
TE
D 
DR

.
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IY
T 
CA

 9
45

85
60

7
CR

ES
TE
D 
DR

IV
E

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

17
45

8
17

35
32

1 1
M
EZ
A 
EL
IA
S

40
6 
DI
CK

EY
 C
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
40

6
DI
CK

EY
 C
O
U
RT

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
16

95
3

32
29

61
3

JO
HN

SO
N
 H
AR

O
LD

 JR
 &
 L
EI
SA

 J T
91

0 
DR

IF
TW

O
O
D 
DR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
91

0
DR

IF
TW

O
O
D 
DR

IV
E

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
16

52
5

17
45

03
03

M
AB

RA
 M

AR
Y 
AN

N
 &
 F
RE

D 
J J
R 
JT
   
 

16
44

 D
U
LU

TH
 L
N

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
16

44
DU

LU
TH

 L
AN

E
21

/1
1

26
1.
76

25
28

6.
76

15
91

8
17

30
93

02
M
U
RR

 A
U
TU

M
N
 C

71
4 
G
RE

EN
W
O
O
D 
DR

.
BA

KE
RS
FI
EL
D 
CA

 9
33

06
‐5
9 2

53
6

E.
 W

IG
EO

N
 W

AY
21

/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

48
34

1
17

31
43

12
TH

PI
 A
CQ

U
IS
IT
IO
N
 H
O
LD

IN
G
S 
LL
C

12
92

 L
IN
CO

LN
 A
VE

SA
N
 R
AF

AE
L 
CA

 9
49

01
54

4
EA

ST
 W

IG
EO

N
 W

A Y
21

/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

41
09

81
4

17
31

32
02

G
O
RB

Y 
LI
N
DA

 L
57

7 
E 
W
IG
EO

N
 W

Y
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
57

7
EA

ST
 W

IG
EO

N
 W

AY
21

/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
02

13
1

17
31

43
1 0

RI
AD

Y 
HI
CH

AM
54

8 
E 
W
IG
EO

N
 W

AY
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
54

8
EA

ST
 W

IG
EO

N
 W

AY
21

/1
2

27
6.
89

25
30

1.
89

28
50

0
17

35
12

0 6
KR

U
M
M
ES
 M

IC
HA

EL
 S

92
8 
ED

G
EW

O
O
D 
CR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
92

8
ED

G
EW

O
O
D 
CI
RC

LE
21

/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
20

61
8

Item 16 
Attachment 2

281



17
35

12
07

EL
LI
N
G
SO

N
 D
AR

LA
92

6 
ED

G
EW

O
O
D 
CR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
92

6
ED

G
EW

O
O
D 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
0

29
2.
36

25
31

7.
36

62
46

17
41

82
4 1

CO
LE
M
AN

 JU
AN

 S
51

0 
EL
 M

AR
 C
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
51

0
EL
 M

AR
 C
O
U
RT

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
18

54
0

17
42

24
06

W
AG

N
ER

 L
IN
DA

 J
15

11
 E
L 
M
O
RR

O
 L
N

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

15
11

EL
 M

O
RR

O
 L
AN

E
21

/1
2

12
6.
88

25
15

1.
88

30
19

1
17

42
24

22
RO

CK
Y 
RA

Q
U
ED

AN
15

02
 E
L 
PR

AD
O
 L
AN

E
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
15

02
EL
 P
RA

DO
 L
AN

E
21

/1
1

13
8.
24

25
16

3.
24

59
43

5
32

24
41

1 0
RA

U
M
A 
BE

AT
RI
CE

24
1 
EL
W
O
O
D 
ST
.

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
24

1
EL
W
O
O
D 
ST

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

52
24

9
32

24
40

5
HE

DG
E 
LA
RR

Y 
L 
&
 T
O
SH

 IK
O
 JT

  
21

7 
EL
W
O
O
D 
S T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
21

7
EL
W
O
O
D 
ST
RE

ET
21

/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
02

29
9

17
34

42
0 8

W
O
O
DR

U
FF
 C
O
RY

 M
90

4 
EM

PE
RO

R 
DR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
90

4
EM

PE
RO

R 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
1

15
4.
79

25
17

9.
79

42
15

93
4

17
34

43
29

AR
M
AN

DO
 L
O
PE
Z

91
1 
EM

PE
RO

R 
DR

.
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
25

91
1

EM
PE
RO

R 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

15
15

9
17

35
74

0 6
HO

SK
IN
S 
DI
M
AR

CO
33

1 
EN

G
EL
L 
CT

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
33

1
EN

G
EL
L 
CO

U
RT

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

13
27

1
17

36
51

12
G
AT

RE
LL
 M

IC
HA

EL
 R

32
32

 E
CC

LE
ST
O
N
 A
V E

W
AL
N
U
T 
CR

EE
K 
CA

 9
45

97
20

8
FA

IR
BR

O
O
K 
CO

U
RT

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

41
02

01
8

17
35

81
04

SU
M
 L
AR

RY
 C
 Y
/H
U
AN

G
 W

EI
 H

13
0 
EA

ST
M
O
O
R 
AV

E
DA

LY
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
40

15
10

54
FE
N
N
IE
 C
O
U
RT

21
/1
2

17
.7
0

25
42

.7
0

29
20

5
17

35
82

05
AL
LE
N
 R
AH

SA
AN

10
59

 F
EN

N
IE
 C
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
10

59
FE
N
N
IE
 C
O
U
RT

21
/1
1

29
2.
12

25
31

7.
12

27
10

9
17

37
51

1 6
TH

O
RN

TO
N
 C
AR

O
L 
&
 B
ER

N
AR

D 
JT

35
0 
FL
AG

ST
O
N
E 
CR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
35

0
FL
AG

ST
O
N
E 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
06

97
3

17
37

32
05

SI
M
M
O
N
S 
G
EN

N
AR

Y 
S

33
4 
FL
AG

ST
O
N
E 
C R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
33

4
FL
AG

ST
O
N
E 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
2

32
6.
84

25
35

1.
84

29
28

3
17

37
32

0 9
N
IC
AR

AG
U
A 
N
EL
LY

32
8 
FL
AG

ST
O
N
E 
CR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
32

8
FL
AG

ST
O
N
E 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
2

35
4.
91

25
37

9.
91

29
60

7
17

41
84

02
FI
G
U
ER

O
A 
RA

M
O
N

51
7 
FO

RT
U
N
A 
D R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
51

7
FO

RT
U
N
A 
DR

IV
E

21
/0
9

20
2.
63

25
22

7.
63

31
47

17
41

84
05

TO
RR

ES
 V
ER

O
N
IC
A 
L

51
1 
FO

RT
U
N
A 
DR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
51

1
FO

RT
U
N
A 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
20

67
5

32
29

32
1 0

SI
N
G
H 
SA

N
DH

U
13

4 
TE
RR

AZ
ZO

 L
AN

E
AM

ER
IC
AN

 C
AN

YO
N
 C
A 
94

50
3

10
27

FR
EE
DO

M
 D
R

21
/1
2

96
.4
9

25
12

1.
49

17
40

3
37

19
24

5
G
AL
LA
RD

O
 JA

VI
ER

 &
 L
ET
IC
IA
 JT

  
60

3 
FR
EI
DA

 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
60

3
FR
IE
DA

 D
RI
VE

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
08

58
6

17
30

32
24

AU
ST
IN
 T
RE

SA
N
DR

A 
C 
&
T 
L 
JT

50
2 
G
AD

W
AL
L 
DR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
50

2
G
AD

W
AL
L 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
2

91
.3
8

25
11

6.
38

29
49

0
17

30
54

1 6
BO

RJ
A 
BE

RN
AR

D 
P 
I J
T

80
9 
G
O
LD

EN
 E
YE
 W

Y
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
80

9
G
O
LD

EN
 E
YE
 W

AY
21

/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

41
09

31
2

17
30

54
1 9

BR
IT
TO

N
 M

IC
HA

EL
 R

81
5 
G
O
LD

EN
 E
YE
 W

Y
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
81

5
G
O
LD

EN
 E
YE
 W

AY
21

/1
1

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

43
10

0
17

38
12

0 9
W
AL
KE
R 
VA

LE
N
TI
N
O

12
37

 G
RA

Y 
HA

W
K 
LA
N
E

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
12

37
G
RA

Y 
HA

W
K 
LA
N
E

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

27
30

3
17

38
12

12
RU

IZ
 C
AR

RI
LL
O
 W

EN
DY

 F
RA

N
CE

LA
12

25
 G
RA

Y 
HA

W
K 
LA
N
E

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
12

25
G
RA

Y 
HA

W
K 
LA
N
E

21
/1
2

40
6.
32

25
43

1.
32

29
24

8
17

30
44

0 1
M
O
N
RO

Y 
IL
U
M
IN
AD

A 
JT

86
75

 F
AL
M
O
U
TH

 A
VE

 #
31

2
PL
AY

A 
DE

L 
RE

Y 
CA

 9
02

93
80

1
G
RE

EN
HE

AD
 W

AY
21

/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

20
10

3
17

33
65

0 8
W
O
O
DS

 L
AW

RE
N
CE

 W
 &
 L
D 
JT
 

10
15

 G
RE

YL
AG

 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
10

15
G
RE

YL
AG

 D
RI
VE

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
14

71
5

17
42

31
03

ST
RO

U
D 
KE
AR

IN
51

2 
HA

CI
EN

DA
 L
N

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
51

2
HA

CI
EN

DA
 L
AN

E
21

/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

41
14

77
9

32
47

41
8

N
O
JO
O
M
I R

EZ
A 
JT

91
2 
DO

W
N
IN
G
 C
IR
CL
E

LI
N
CO

LN
 C
A 
95

64
8

73
4

HA
RB

O
R 
PA

RK
 D
RI
V

21
/1
2

83
.9
0

25
10

8.
90

45
84

3
17

34
03

03
M
AT

A 
JE
SU

S 
R/
M
AT

A 
G
EN

O
VE

VA
 A
  

80
5 
HA

RR
IE
R 
DR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
80

5
HA

RR
IE
R 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
2

12
2.
17

25
14

7.
17

29
44

0
17

45
02

0 8
BA

RR
ET
T 
JO
HN

 N
 JR

 &
D 
E 
JT
 

16
28

 H
AR

RI
SB
U
RG

 L
N

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
16

28
HA

RR
IS
BU

RG
 L
AN

E
21

/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

45
74

6
17

31
74

02
DU

TT
 V
IN
EE
TA

  A
82

6 
HE

RO
N
 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
82

6
HE

RO
N
 D
RI
VE

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
18

0
17

43
62

02
G
AR

DN
ER

 L
EO

N
AR

D 
G
 &
 T
ER

IE
 L
 J T

16
93

 H
IC
KA

M
 C
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
16

93
HI
CK

AM
 C
IR
CL
E

21
/0
9

8.
28

25
33

.2
8

16
05

5
17

43
62

0 4
HE

AR
D 
CH

AR
LE
S 
&
 T
AM

Y 
RA

 JT
16

85
 H
IC
KA

M
 C
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
16

85
HI
CK

AM
 C
IR
CL
E

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
15

57
4

17
31

03
37

SW
AY

 2
01

4‐
1 
BO

RR
O
W
ER

LL
C 
   
 

86
65

 E
 H
AR

TF
O
RD

 D
R 
#2
00

SC
O
TT
SD

AL
E 
AZ

 8
52

55
41

4
HO

N
KE
R 
LA
N
E

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

55
76

0
17

31
03

43
W
YD

ER
M
YE
R 
BI
LL
Y 
R 
J R

40
2 
HO

N
KE
R 
LA
N
E

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
40

2
HO

N
KE
R 
LA
N
E

21
/1
2

31
4.
54

25
33

9.
54

25
36

0
37

19
31

3
SA

LA
S 
RO

LA
N
D 
V

13
01

 H
U
M
PH

RE
Y 
DR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
13

01
HU

M
PH

RE
Y 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
1

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
03

12
8

37
19

11
1

EI
SL
EY
 L
ES
LI
E 
K

13
02

 H
U
M
PH

RE
Y 
DR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
13

02
HU

M
PH

RE
Y 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
1

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
10

45
9

37
31

21
4

CH
IL
TO

N
 V
IV
IA
N
 D

35
1 
JA
CA

RA
N
DA

 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
35

1
JA
CA

RA
N
DA

 D
RI
VE

21
/0
9

25
6.
42

25
28

1.
42

42
09

78
2

37
31

31
5

W
O
O
DA

RD
, E
DW

AR
D 
&
 G
RA

CI
E

36
0 
JA
CA

RA
N
DA

 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
36

0
JA
CA

RA
N
DA

 D
RI
VE

21
/0
9

29
8.
69

25
32

3.
69

57
27

5
17

33
82

13
N
EW

KI
RK

 T
HO

M
AS

 W
 &
 T
IN
A 
D 
TR

   
70

38
 R
O
BI
N
DA

LE
 L
N

VA
CA

VI
LL
E 
CA

 9
56

88
90

6
JA
VA

N
 W

AY
21

/1
0

41
.9
5

25
66

.9
5

22
36

7
37

24
13

7
CH

U
N
G
 A
N
N
A 
M
/H
EM

RY
 JU

AN
IT
A 
J  
 

11
00

 JE
AN

N
E 
CT

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
11

00
JE
AN

N
E 
CO

U
RT

21
/1
0

25
5.
55

25
28

0.
55

11
92

1
17

44
03

05
SO

LI
S 
LE
O
N
IE
  A

17
79

 K
EE
SL
ER

 C
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
17

79
KE
ES
LE
R 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
1

12
5.
86

25
15

0.
86

42
14

59
7

17
44

03
03

O
KO

RO
DU

DU
 G
EO

RG
E 
A 
&
 A
 E
 JT

17
71

 K
EE
SL
ER

 C
IR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
17

71
KE
ES
LE
R 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

56
95

2
17

36
13

15
G
LA
N
DT

 B
LA
IN
E 
P 
&
 R
O
SE
 M

 JT
 

20
5 
KE
YE
S 
LN

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
20

5
KE
YE
S 
LA
N
E

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
08

62
6

17
34

82
17

VI
CT

O
R 
SH

IR
LE
Y

13
15

 K
IM

BE
RL
Y 
CT

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
13

15
KI
M
BE

RL
Y 
CO

U
RT

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
10

51
9

37
23

10
3

S/
S 
IN
VE

ST
S

34
23

4 
RE

D 
CE

DA
R 
 L
N

U
N
IO
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

87
40

5
KI
N
G
S 
W
AY

21
/1
1

20
71

.3
1

25
20

96
.3
1

29
27

9
17

32
93

12
CH

AV
AR

RI
A 
G
RE

G
O
RI
O

50
9 
LA
BR

AD
O
R 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
50

9
LA
BR

AD
O
R 
W
AY

21
/0
9

23
0.
82

25
25

5.
82

13
74

5
17

33
02

0 6
G
U
IN
AS

SO
 L
AU

RA
 A

90
4 
LA
BR

AD
O
R 
W
AY

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
90

4
LA
BR

AD
O
R 
W
AY

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
03

40
4

17
32

92
25

SP
RE

N
G
EL
M
EY
ER

 R
 J 
&
JA
N
 L
 JT

 
90

7 
LA
BR

AD
O
R 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

90
7

LA
BR

AD
O
R 
W
AY

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
03

40
7

32
43

12
1

AL
M
Y 
DE

RR
IC
K 
D/
W
ES
LE
Y 
G
EN

N
Y 

22
2 
LE
AF

W
O
O
D 
CT

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
22

2
LE
AF

W
O
O
D 
CO

U
RT

21
/0
9

25
1.
71

25
27

6.
71

58
97

32
43

20
3

M
O
RR

IS
 R
O
SE
M
AR

IE
22

9 
LE
AF

W
O
O
D 
C T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
22

9
LE
AF

W
O
O
D 
CO

U
RT

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
03

53
4

32
29

32
3

YO
U
N
G
 W

IL
LI
AM

 T
 &
 A
LI
CE

 V
 JT

 
10

14
 L
IB
ER

TY
 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
10

14
LI
BE

RT
Y 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
18

35
4

32
17

10
4

M
O
U
SA

 A
RI
J B

12
24

0 
W
ES
TW

O
O
D 
DR

AU
BU

RN
 C
A 
95

60
3

51
5

LI
N
E 
ST
RE

ET
21

/1
0

27
6.
89

25
30

1.
89

19
16

6
32

24
30

5
LE
N
TZ
 P
IE
TE
R 
JR

21
7 
LO

N
G
 S
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
21

7
LO

N
G
 S
TR

EE
T

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

24
15

5
32

24
22
0

HA
RD

IN
 S
AM

U
EL
 C
 II
I

20
8 
LO

N
G
 S
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
20

8
LO

N
G
 S
TR

EE
T

21
/1
0

31
4.
66

25
33

9.
66

17
69

0
32

07
31
6

M
IC
HA

EL
 R
U
IZ

82
7 
LO

TZ
 W

AY
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
82

7
LO

TZ
 W

AY
21

/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

41
05

55
5

32
16

44
8

JO
HN

SE
N
 A
RE

S/
JO
HN

SE
N
 H
AR

LE
EN

11
02

 M
AI
N
 S
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

11
02

M
AI
N
 S
TR

EE
T

21
/1
2

20
.7
7

25
45

.7
7

29
26

6
32

15
80

2
VI
CT

O
R 
D 
&
 R
EB

EC
CA

 L
AR

SO
N

90
9 
G
RA

N
AD

A 
LA
N
E

VA
CA

VI
LL
E 
CA

 9
56

88
10

01
M
AI
N
 S
TR

EE
T

21
/1
0

25
1.
71

25
27

6.
71

50
86

17
38

03
2 4

HO
LL
EN

SH
EA

D 
ED

W
AR

D 
D 
&
 S
 J 
JT

44
1 
M
AL
O
N
EY
 C
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
44

1
M
AL
O
N
EY
 C
O
U
RT

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

27
04

8
32

24
41
8

M
AR

TI
N
EZ
 JO

SE
 A

22
4 
M
AP

LE
 S
T.

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
22

4
M
AP

LE
 S
TR

EE
T

21
/0
9

21
5.
00

25
24

0.
00

80
71

32
24

50
9

KR
IP
AI
TI
S 
M
IC
HA

EL
 J

23
3 
M
AP

LE
 S
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

23
3

M
AP

LE
 S
TR

EE
T

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

24
83

1
17

44
05

0 7
SO

RI
AN

O
 V
AL
EN

TI
N
 R
 &
 H
 M

 JT
16

21
 M

AX
W
EL
L 
LN

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
16

21
M
AX

W
EL
L 
LA
N
E

21
/1
1

16
4.
70

25
18

9.
70

42
13

25
8

17
44

05
09

VI
LA
LO

N
 JO

SE
/A
RG

U
EL
LE
S 
PR

IS
CI
LA

41
4 
SE
AH

O
RS
E 
DR

VA
LL
EJ
O
 C
A 
94

59
1

16
13

M
AX

W
EL
L 
LA
N
E

21
/1
1

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

18
26

8
17

36
02

1 1
HU

M
PH

RE
Y 
W
IL
LI
E 
B 
&
 J 
M
 JT

33
3 
M
AY

FI
EL
D 
CR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
33

3
M
AY

FI
EL
D 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
0

29
1.
31

25
31

6.
31

82
76

17
37

90
0 1

YA
ZA

DI
, A

BD
EL
 N
 T
O
D

32
37

 B
EA

RD
 R
D

N
AP

A 
CA

 9
45

58
‐3
44

5
10

07
M
AY

FI
EL
D 
W
AY

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

11
64

8
17

44
32

0 9
M
AX

IE
 R
U
SS
EL
L 
D/
M
AX

IE
 S
IN
AM

I R
16

65
 M

CG
U
IR
E 
CR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
16

65
M
CG

U
IR
E 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

15
06

1
17

38
03

0 6
W
IL
LI
E 
TU

RN
ER

43
0 
M
EE
HA

N
 C
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
43

0
M
EE
HA

N
 C
O
U
RT

21
/0
9

23
9.
42

25
26

4.
42

42
10

68
6

17
38

04
19

BU
RT

O
N
 T
U
RH

AN
 &
 G
LO

RI
A 
S 
JT

43
3 
M
EE
HA

N
 C
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
43

3
M
EE
HA

N
 C
O
U
RT

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
10

51
8

32
15

60
7

W
EI
SS
 D
IA
N
N
E

24
28

 N
 H
U
M
BO

LD
T 
BL
VD

M
IL
W
AU

KE
E 
W
I 5
32

12
40

6
M
O
RG

AN
 S
TR

EE
T

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

41
31
4

Item 16 
Attachment 2

282



32
40

10
2

BR
AN

DO
N
 S
PH

AR
50

 M
O
SS
W
O
O
D 
DR

.
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
‐1
71

50
M
O
SS
W
O
O
D 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

36
71

17
34

92
1 6

RA
N
EL
 C
 D
EL
CA

ST
IL
LO

10
08

 M
U
RR

E 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
10

08
M
U
RR

E 
W
AY

21
/1
2

10
5.
86

25
13

0.
86

89
5

17
31

76
0 7

CO
RT

ES
 JO

SE
 L
U
IS
 G
O
DI
N
EZ
 JT

57
0 
CL
O
VE

R 
DR

TU
RL
O
CK

 C
A 
95

38
0

90
2

M
U
RR

E 
W
AY

21
/1
0

25
3.
50

25
27

8.
50

41
07

45
0

17
34

93
03

TO
N
G
A 
TE
VI
TA

10
05

 M
U
RR

E 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
10

05
M
U
RR

E 
W
AY

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
13

45
5

32
34

10
6

W
EL
CH

 N
AN

CY
 &
 JI
M
 JT

50
8 
N
AD

EL
 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
50

8
N
AD

EL
 D
RI
VE

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
11

92
0

32
39

20
2

CH
U
AT

AK
O
O
N
 R
YA

N
96

 N
EW

PO
RT

 W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
96

N
EW

PO
RT

 W
AY

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

18
49

6
32

39
20

1
PH

IP
PS
 K
EV

IN
 M

11
4 
CO

RR
IN
N
E 
C T

SA
N
 R
AM

O
N
 C
A 
94

58
3

98
N
EW

PO
RT

 W
AY

21
/1
0

31
3.
58

25
33

8.
58

27
86
4

17
34

55
14

W
IL
LI
AM

S 
DW

IG
HT

 L
 &
 D
O
RI
 JT

  
83

3 
O
SP
RE

Y 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
83

3
O
SP
RE

Y 
W
AY

21
/1
2

15
4.
56

25
17

9.
56

42
11

69
8

17
34

55
09

RU
BI
O
 JO

HN
 T
 &
 S
U
SY
JT
  

82
3 
O
SP
RE

Y 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

82
3

O
SP
RE

Y 
W
AY

21
/1
2

26
4.
61

25
28

9.
61

55
59

17
43

13
05

M
EN

DO
ZA

 A
N
DR

EA
 R
/M

EN
DO

ZA
‐R
AM

O
S 
LA
U
R

74
6 
PA

LE
RM

O
 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
74

6
PA

LE
RM

O
 D
RI
VE

21
/1
0

12
.9
8

25
37

.9
8

42
12

46
1

17
38

05
1 0

DA
VI
D 
M
IL
LE
R

42
5 
PE
AR

CE
 C
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
42

5
PE
AR

CE
 C
O
U
RT

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
10

21
1

17
32

63
15

HO
U
TM

AN
 R
AY

M
O
N
D 
C 
&
N
O
BU

KO
 J T

14
31

 P
EL
IC
AN

 W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

14
31

PE
LI
CA

N
 W

AY
21

/1
1

12
6.
72

25
15

1.
72

42
04

49
0

17
32

62
29

JO
SE
 P
AL
M
A

14
12

 P
EL
IC
AN

 W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
14

12
PE
LI
CA

N
 W

AY
21

/1
1

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

44
70

1
17

36
21

45
W
IL
LI
AM

S 
LO

U
IS
E 
TR

60
7 
PE
YT
O
N
IA
 C
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
60

7
PE
YT
O
N
IA
 C
O
U
RT

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
13

72
3

17
36

21
3 0

BA
RL
AS

 JA
M
ES
 G

57
8 
PE
YT
O
N
IA
 C
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
‐4
12

57
8

PE
YT
O
N
IA
 C
O
U
RT

21
/1
1

33
9.
26

25
36

4.
26

42
19

70
8

37
33

10
90

TO
DD

 H
O
G
LU

N
D

13
39

 P
HI
LL
IP
 W

AY
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
13

39
PH

IL
LI
P 
W
AY

21
/1
2

31
3.
93

25
33

8.
93

88
95

17
30

62
08
0

JA
CK

SO
N
‐M

CC
LA
IN
 K
IR
ST
EN

   
34

3 
PI
N
TA

IL
 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
34

3
PI
N
TA

IL
 D
R.

21
/1
2

31
6.
18

25
34

1.
18

19
96

2
17

31
87

2 0
G
O
N
ZA

LE
Z 
JO
SE
/G

O
N
ZA

LE
Z 
SA

N
DR

A 
11

17
 P
IN
TA

IL
 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
11

17
PI
N
TA

IL
 D
RI
VE

21
/1
1

25
3.
07

25
27

8.
07

91
25

17
30

44
3 8

JO
VI
AN

 C
O
LB
ER

T
31

8 
PI
N
TA

IL
 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
31

8
PI
N
TA

IL
 D
RI
VE

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
20

57
7

17
30

62
11

LY
LE
S 
TH

O
M
AS

 R
40

3 
PI
N
TA

IL
 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

40
3

PI
N
TA

IL
 D
RI
VE

21
/1
2

39
7.
61

25
42

2.
61

27
53

3
17

34
12

3 0
G
RE

ER
 V
IR
G
IN
IA

32
75

 Q
U
AI
L 
HO

LL
O
W
 D
R.

FA
IR
FI
EL
D 
CA

 9
45

34
‐8
30
0

14
25

PL
U
M
AS

 D
RI
VE

21
/1
2

25
5.
48

25
28

0.
48

24
27

2
17

31
33

03
BE

RD
AK

, S
AL
VA

TO
RE

  D
81

3 
PO

CH
AR

D 
W
AY

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
81

3
PO

CH
AR

D 
W
AY

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

41
09

76
5

17
37

22
12

BU
RR

IS
 C
AR

LA
14

10
 P
O
TR

ER
O
 S
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
14

10
PO

TR
ER

O
 S
TR

EE
T

21
/1
2

33
7.
01

25
36

2.
01

29
18

1
17

33
55

12
M
CE

LR
O
Y 
PA

TR
IC
K 
H 
&
JA
N
 M

 JT
  

10
13

 P
RA

IR
IE
 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

10
13

PR
AI
RI
E 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
04

91
4

17
37

53
05

SM
IT
H 
W
IL
LI
E 
CL
AU

DE
TT
E 
TR

 
31

7 
PR

O
M
EN

AD
E 
CR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
31

7
PR

O
M
EN

AD
E 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
13

23
2

17
34

12
15

DA
RD

EN
 B
EV

ER
L Y

14
04

 P
RO

SP
EC

T 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
14

04
PR

O
SP
EC

T 
W
AY

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
15

57
7

17
34

13
13

TE
EL
 JU

ST
IN
 D
 &
 K
IM

BE
RL
Y 
A 
JT
 

14
25

 P
RO

SP
EC

T 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
14

25
PR

O
SP
EC

T 
W
AY

21
/0
9

30
4.
43

25
32

9.
43

42
18

95
6

37
08

00
6

G
VR

E 
LL
C

12
0 
VI
A 
TR

IE
ST
E

N
EW

PO
RT

 B
EA

CH
 C
A 
92

66
3

52
1

RA
IL
RO

AD
 A
VE

N
U
E

21
/1
2

49
1.
27

25
51

6.
27

29
35

2
17

37
43

2 0
N
AZ

AR
EN

O
 B
RY

AN
 J/
N
AZ

AR
EN

O
 M

 P
23

6 
RE

DS
TO

N
E 
CR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
23

6
RE

DS
TO

N
E 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

23
20

5
37

19
20

9
PE
DR

AZ
A 
PE
DR

O
12

16
 R
IC
KY

 C
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
12

16
RI
CK

Y 
CO

U
RT

21
/1
2

39
0.
47

25
41

5.
47

21
28

7
17

36
52

05
ST
EW

AR
T 
DE

BR
A 
J &

 G
LE
N
N
 K
 JT

 
32

8 
RI
DG

EC
RE

ST
 C
IR
CL
E

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
32

8
RI
DG

EC
RE

ST
 C
IR
CL

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
13

94
0

17
30

84
08

TU
BB

S 
TE
AN

ET
A

70
0 
RI
N
G
 N
EC

K 
LN

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
70

0
RI
N
G
 N
EC

K 
LA
N
E

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

10
88

3
32

40
50
4

PA
N
G
IL
IN
AN

 L
IG
AY

A 
H

77
 R
O
DO

N
DO

 A
VE

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
77

RO
DO

N
DO

 A
VE

N
U
E

21
/1
0

41
.9
5

25
66

.9
5

42
05

26
6

32
40

41
1

O
CH

O
A 
JU
AN

67
 R
ED

O
N
DO

 A
VE

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

67
RO

DO
N
DO

 A
VE

N
U
E

21
/1
1

69
.0
9

25
94

.0
9

21
47

7
32

40
31

3
PH

O
N
G
SA

 B
O
U
N
O
U
M
 &
 V
AN

SH
A 
V 
JT
  

68
 R
O
DO

N
DO

 A
V

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
68

RO
DO

N
DO

 A
VE

N
U
E

21
/1
0

16
5.
82

25
19

0.
82

24
73

6
32

40
50

8
AB

AD
 R
AF

AE
L 
G
 &
 K
IK
U
O
 JT

   
 

85
 R
O
DO

N
DO

 A
V

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

85
RO

DO
N
DO

 A
VE

N
U
E

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
05

27
3

32
12

11
1

RO
BE

RT
SO

N
 E
LI
ZA

BE
TH

AN
N

30
9 
SA

CR
AM

EN
TO

 S
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

30
9

SA
CR

AM
EN

TO
 S
TR

EE
T

21
/1
2

42
.9
1

25
67

.9
1

20
29

5
32

12
11

0
SC
HE

TT
LE
R 
ER

N
ES
T 
B

PO
 B
O
X 
20

11
2

PO
RT

LA
N
D 
O
R 
97

29
4‐
01

12
30

1
SA

CR
AM

EN
TO

 S
TR

EE
T

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
16

21
6

32
12

11
3

SM
IT
H 
LO

RE
LE
N
E 
J

30
5 
SA

CR
AM

EN
TO

 S
T 
#B

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
30

5
SA

CR
AM

EN
TO

 S
TR

EE
T

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
11

81
8

37
18

02
7

RU
TT
EN

BE
RG

 JO
SE
PH

 A
&
 J 
L 
JT
   
 

40
9 
SA

RA
H 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
40

9
SA

RA
H 
W
AY

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
08

72
0

17
30

35
03

TA
YL
O
R 
RO

BE
RT

 J 
&
 P
AU

LI
N
E 
M
 JT

82
7 
SC
AU

P 
LN

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
82

7
SC
AU

P 
LA
N
E

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
05

39
9

32
12

10
8

TR
AH

AN
 V
AL
ER

IE
 T

61
2 
SC
HO

O
L 
ST
.

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
61

2
SC
HO

O
L 
ST
RE

ET
21

/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

22
87

0
32

15
40
6

CR
U
Z 
RU

TH
 L

91
2 
SC
HO

O
L 
ST

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

91
2

SC
HO

O
L 
ST
RE

ET
21

/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
05

40
6

17
30

38
02

AR
ZA

DO
N
 L
EI
LA

 C
 &
 JE

SU
S 
C 
 

82
5 
SC
O
TE
R 
W
AY

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
82

5
SC
O
TE
R 
W
AY

21
/0
9

26
4.
23

25
28

9.
23

47
20

17
31

94
03

M
IC
HA

EL
 &
 N
AK

IA
 S
AC

U
70

5 
SE
AG

U
LL
 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
70

5
SE
AG

U
LL
 D
RI
VE

21
/1
0

25
1.
71

25
27

6.
71

13
09

7
17

36
33

1 1
M
O
O
RE

 W
AN

DA
91

8 
SH

AD
YW

O
O
D 
CR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
91

8
SH

AD
YW

O
O
D 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
0

27
7.
94

25
30

2.
94

42
12

16
7

17
36

45
26

PU
RV

IS
 L
A 
TA

M
EI
N
IA
 JA

N
EA

N
94

0 
SH

AD
YW

O
O
D 
CR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
94

0
SH

AD
YW

O
O
D 
CI
RC

LE
21

/0
9

39
1.
48

25
41

6.
48

22
37

5
17

32
53

05
M
AR

TI
N
EZ
 L
EO

N
AR

DO
50

8 
SH

RI
KE

 C
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

50
8

SH
RI
KE

 C
O
U
RT

21
/1
2

21
1.
57

25
23

6.
57

66
90

37
32

20
7

FO
RT

IN
 C
HR

IS
 D

36
9 
SI
LK
 O
AK

 D
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
36

9
SI
LK
 O
AK

 D
RI
VE

21
/0
9

39
1.
48

25
41

6.
48

41
11

01
7

17
32

04
13

RU
VA

LC
AB

A 
M
AR

CO
 A
 JR

/R
U
VA

LC
AB

A 
M
AR

C
60

4 
SK
YL
AR

K 
DR

.
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
‐2
22

60
4

SK
YL
AR

K 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
1

20
3.
00

25
22

8.
00

14
98

1
17

32
05

05
W
AL
LE
R 
M
IC
HA

EL
 E
 II

61
3 
SK
YL
AR

K 
D R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
61

3
SK
YL
AR

K 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
2

22
0.
51

25
24

5.
51

42
19

61
9

17
32

05
0 1

RY
AN

 F
EN

N
IE

60
5 
SK
YL
AR

K 
DR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
60

5
SK
YL
AR

K 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

57
54

7
32

11
31

2 0
CA

M
PO

S 
DA

N
IE
L 
RU

ED
A

17
7 
M
O
LI
N
A 
ST

VA
LL
EJ
O
 C
A 
94

59
1

20
6

SO
LA
N
O
 S
T

21
/1
2

34
8.
19

25
37

3.
19

25
57

9
32

11
30
7

HA
LL
 S
TE
PH

EN
 E

22
4 
SO

LA
N
O
 S
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
22

4
SO

LA
N
O
 S
TR

EE
T

21
/1
1

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

49
00

17
30

44
3 0

N
YL
A 
HE

CK
N
AN

N
80

0 
SP
O
O
N
BI
LL

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
80

0
SP
O
O
N
BI
LL
 L
AN

E
21

/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

22
00

17
37

21
0 8

VA
LE
N
TI
N
 B
RI
AN

 R
/V
AL
EN

TI
N
 V
AL
ER

IE
 L

36
4 
ST
AM

PE
R 
CR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
36

4
ST
AM

PE
R 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
0

43
.9
1

25
68

.9
1

23
21

7
17

33
81

2 6
PR

U
IT
T 
HA

IL
EY
 S

91
0 
ST
EL
LE
R 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
91

0
ST
EL
LE
R 
W
AY

21
/0
9

25
1.
71

25
27

6.
71

81
76

17
33

81
23

JO
HN

 A
 &
 N
AN

CY
 K
 F
O
RD

  
91

6 
ST
EL
LE
R 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

91
6

ST
EL
LE
R 
W
AY

21
/1
0

25
9.
04

25
28

4.
04

42
05

90
0

17
33

81
27

AL
EM

U
 D
ER

EJ
E

90
8 
ST
EL
LE
R 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

90
8

ST
EL
LE
R 
W
AY

21
/1
2

26
3.
48

25
28

8.
48

25
11

6
17

33
81

3 0
IN
G
RA

M
 JE

N
N
IF
ER

/I
N
G
RA

M
 M

IC
HA

EL
 

90
2 
ST
EL
LE
R 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
90

2
ST
EL
LE
R 
W
AY

21
/1
2

39
0.
47

25
41

5.
47

15
20

7
37

37
03

2
KH

EH
RA

 S
AR

AB
P

18
1 
SU

M
M
ER

TI
M
E 
LA
N
E

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
11

25
ST
RA

W
BE

RR
Y 
LA
N
E

21
/1
2

25
1.
71

25
27

6.
71

58
36

1
37

38
02

5
PE
RI
O
N
 B
RI
AN

 &
 K
AM

M
Y

11
61

 S
TR

AW
BE

RR
Y 
LA
N
E

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
11

61
ST
RA

W
BE

RR
Y 
LA
N
E

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

56
99

3
37

38
02

4
JA
CK

SO
N
 T
AW

HN
EE
 L

11
57

 S
TR

AW
BE

RR
Y 
LA
N
E

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
11

57
ST
RA

W
BE

RR
Y 
LA
N
E

21
/1
2

29
2.
92

25
31

7.
92

56
96

7
17

32
03

1 0
BA

LA
N
DR

AN
 A
DR

IA
N
A 
G

40
8 
CH

YR
L 
W
AY

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
60

3
SW

AL
LO

W
 C
O
U
RT

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

41
01

37
1

17
37

71
1 8

JU
ST
IN
 P
HI
LL
IP

20
3 
TA

M
AR

IS
K 
CR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
20

3
TA

M
AR

IS
K 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

13
56

17
37

62
0 8

KE
ET
O
N
 T
AR

O
YL
 T
 &
 Z
EN

O
BI
A 
N
 JT

27
5 
TA

M
AR

IS
K 
CR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
27

5
TA

M
AR

IS
K 
CI
RC

LE
21

/1
0

33
7.
61

25
36

2.
61

42
09

61
9

37
30

22
5

M
CL
EM

O
RE

 R
 E
/D
VA

 C
HE

RY
L 
M
   

52
7 
TH

O
M
AS

 C
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
52

7
TH

O
M
AS

 C
IR
CL
E

21
/0
9

14
7.
89

25
17

2.
89

93
75

17
37

03
1 4

M
CC

U
RN

 JU
LI
U
S 
SR

 JT
14

06
 T
IL
LM

AN
 S
T

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
14

06
TI
LL
M
AN

 S
TR

EE
T

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
17

84
2

17
37

03
1 0

TA
H 
20

17
‐1
 B
O
RR

O
W
ER

 L
LC

15
08

 B
RO

O
KH

O
LL
O
W
 D
R

SA
N
TA

 A
N
A 
CA

 9
27

05
14

22
TI
LL
M
AN

 S
TR

EE
T

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

27
70

5

Item 16 
Attachment 2

283



17
34

92
10

TI
EN

DA
 M

O
N
IQ
U
E

10
19

 T
O
W
HE

E 
W
AY

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
10

19
TO

W
HE

E 
W
AY

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

19
94

17
44

73
05

AN
TH

O
N
Y 
ED

DI
E 
&
 A
TR

ES
E

51
6 
SK
YL
AR

K 
DR

.
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
16

16
TU

CS
O
N
 C
IR
CL
E

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

57
17

7
17

34
35

02
DE

N
IS
E 
YA

P
83

1 
TU

LA
RE

 C
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

83
1

TU
LA
RE

 C
IR
CL
E

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

41
66

9
17

31
13

12
G
RE

ER
 W

AY
N
E 
&
 V
IR
G
IN
IA
 J T

32
33

 L
A 
CO

ST
A 
CT

FA
IR
FI
EL
D 
CA

 9
45

34
62

0
TU

LE
 G
O
O
SE
 D
RI
VE

21
/1
2

32
2.
90

25
34

7.
90

29
52

7
17

43
72

02
ST
AR

KS
 R
EN

AU
LD

16
75

 V
AN

DE
N
BE

RG
 C
R

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
16

75
VA

N
DE

N
BE

RG
 C
IR
CL
E

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

94
22

17
42

54
03

RI
O
JA
S 
AR

TH
U
R 
R

56
08

 1
78

TH
 P
L 
S W

LY
N
W
O
O
D 
W
A 
98

03
7

17
28

VE
N
TU

RA
 W

AY
21

/0
9

24
2.
40

25
26

7.
40

22
03

0
17

42
54

1 0
SM

IT
H 
JO
E 
R 
&
 E
U
N
IC
EM

17
14

 V
EN

TU
RA

 W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
17

14
VE

N
TU

RA
 W

AY
21

/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
16

06
4

17
42

54
09

HE
AT

H 
JO
SE
PH

 E
 &
 JU

LI
A 
F 
JT
  

17
16

 V
EN

TU
RA

 W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
17

16
VE

N
TU

RA
 W

AY
21

/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
10

58
3

17
42

45
22

M
AT

TH
EW

S 
KA

RE
N
 L
YN

N
E

17
34

 V
EN

TU
RA

 W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
17

34
VE

N
TU

RA
 W

AY
21

/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
10

75
8

32
29

40
7

LO
W
E 
BA

RB
AR

A 
J

10
2 
TA

RT
AN

 W
AY

 S
T

FA
IR
FI
EL
D 
CA

 9
45

34
22

1
VI
CT

O
RY

 W
AY

21
/0
9

12
.5
6

25
37

.5
6

12
10

9
17

34
43

1 1
M
U
N
O
Z 
JO
SE
 JT

10
19

 W
ES
TW

IN
D 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
10

19
W
ES
TW

IN
D 
W
AY

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

17
54

3
17

32
02

0 4
HU

KI
LL
 W

IL
LI
AM

 M
11

14
 W

HI
PP

O
RW

IL
L 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
11

14
W
HI
PP

O
RW

IL
L 
W
AY

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

55
98

8
17

32
02

02
AR

JE
N
IZ
 R
AY

G
O
ZA

11
18

 W
HI
PP

O
RW

IL
L 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
11

18
W
HI
PP

O
RW

IL
L 
W
AY

21
/1
2

26
4.
61

25
28

9.
61

41
13

53
1

32
32

10
6

W
IL
LI
AM

S 
TE
N
IS
HA

 M
72

7 
W
HI
SP
ER

IN
G
 B
AY

 L
AN

E
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
72

7
W
HI
SP
ER

IN
G
 B
AY

 L
AN

E
21

/1
0

14
9.
82

25
17

4.
82

14
62

6
32

32
30

3
M
O
RG

AN
 V
AL
EN

TI
N
A

72
2 
W
HI
SP
ER

IN
G
 B
AY

 L
N

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
72

2
W
HI
SP
ER

IN
G
 B
AY

 L
AN

E
21

/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
16

57
9

17
34

33
02

DA
LL
IN
 L
LC

19
99

‐H
AR

RI
SO

N
 S
T

O
AK

LA
N
D 
CA

 9
46

12
90

7
W
HI
TN

EY
 A
VE

N
U
E

21
/1
0

20
4.
44

25
22

9.
44

51
38

6
17

30
82

0 1
RO

SA
LE
S 
JO
RG

E 
R 
C/
AR

AN
G
O
 N
AT

HA
LI
E 
M

62
6 
W
IG
EO

N
 W

Y
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
62

6
W
IG
EO

N
 W

AY
21

/1
0

25
1.
71

25
27

6.
71

13
13

0
17

31
02

0 8
G
RE

EN
W
AY

 JE
N
N
IF
ER

41
5 
W
IG
EO

N
 W

Y
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
41

5
W
IG
EO

N
 W

AY
21

/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
10

80
0

17
30

61
06

M
AR

TI
N
EZ
 M

AR
IA
 E
LE
N
AT

R 
18

6 
AS

HT
O
N
 A
V

SA
N
 F
RA

N
CI
SC
O
 C
A 
94

11
2‐
2

72
0

W
IG
EO

N
 W

AY
21

/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

16
10

2
17

34
43

05
CA

RR
BR

ID
G
E 
LL
C

PO
 B
O
X 
12

2 6
O
AK

LA
N
D 
CA

 9
46

04
‐1
22

6
10

18
W
IN
TE
RS

 W
AY

21
/1
2

25
1.
71

25
27

6.
71

47
77

17
32

32
13

TO
W
N
SE
N
D 
KE
N
N
ET
H 
D 
&
 S
U
SA

N
 JT

  
35

25
 V
AL
LE
Y 
VI
EW

 C
T

FA
IR
FI
EL
D 
CA

 9
45

34
‐8
63

3
51

5
W
O
O
DL

AR
K 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

52
06

1
17

31
82

0 4
G
IV
EN

S,
 G
RE

G
O
RY

 R
70

4 
W
O
O
DL

AR
K 
DR

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
‐2
24

70
4

W
O
O
DL

AR
K 
DR

IV
E

21
/1
0

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
08

19
9

37
19

24
2

SC
HU

LT
 G
LO

RI
A 
L

12
15

 W
O
RL
EY
 W

Y
SU

IS
U
N
 C
A 
94

58
5

12
15

W
O
RL
EY
 R
O
AD

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
14

24
9

37
19

11
0

CH
U
RC

HW
EL
L 
N
IC
KO

LA
U
SA

13
01

 W
O
RL
EY
 R
D

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
13

01
W
O
RL
EY
 R
O
AD

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

42
20

30
4

17
34

55
02

VA
RG

AS
‐D
U
RA

N
 E
LI
AS

83
0 
YO

SE
M
IT
E 
W
Y

SU
IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
83

0
YO

SE
M
IT
E 
W
AY

21
/0
9

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

92
28

17
32

62
2 4

SM
IT
H 
BE

N
JA
M
IN
/S
M
IT
H 
CA

M
IL
LA

  
63

00
 F
AC

TO
R 
AV

E
SU

IS
U
N
 C
IT
Y 
CA

 9
45

85
50

5
YU

BA
 C
O
U
RT

21
/1
2

25
8.
00

25
28

3.
00

24
26

9

22
4 
 R
ec
or
ds

56
30

4.
90

56
00

.0
0

61
90

4.
90

Item 16 
Attachment 2

284



PREPARED /APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE: February 15, 2022 

CITY AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING:  Council Decision to Implement a Major Service 

Change to Fairfield and Suisun Transit Fixed Route Services within Suisun City effective April 1, 

2022 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Fairfield and Suisun Transit (FAST) service is primarily funded through 

State Transportation Development Act (TDA) funding and does not impact the General Fund. 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT: Provide Good Governance, Ensure Fiscal Solvency 

BACKGROUND:   Fairfield and Suisun Transit (FAST) is operated by the City of Fairfield.  Since 

1990, Suisun City has partnered with the City of Fairfield to provide local transit services linking 

Fairfield and Suisun City.  Suisun City has historically utilized its annual allocation of Transportation 

Development Act (TDA) to fund FAST services.  Current FAST services provided within Suisun 

City include:      

• FAST Route 5 (operates solely within Suisun City),

• FAST Route 6 (operates within Suisun City and Fairfield), and the

• DART ADA Paratransit services for disabled individuals.

At its August 17, 2021 meeting, the City Council voted to reallocate use of its annual TDA funding 

towards micro transit to service the public transportation needs within the city.  As part of that action, 

City Council voted to discontinue funding of FAST Route 5, Route 6, and local reduced taxi services 

effective January 1, 2022.  Concurrently, Suisun City partnered with Solano Transportation 

Authority (STA) in implementing a Community Based Transportation Plan (CBTP) to study new 

technologies and trends in transit and listen to transportation challenges facing Suisun City residents. 

The CBTP process is underway. 

A public hearing was held on October 19, 2021 where the City Council declared their intention to 

end bus routes 5 and 6 within Suisun City as of the end of the year.  Suisun City initially planned 

to partner with STA and Rio Vista Delta Breeze transit service to provide continuity for Suisun 

City students needing transportation to school.  However, since this option could not be 

implemented timely, Suisun City asked Fairfield to continue providing Routes 5 and 6 service during 

2022.  Fairfield agreed to continue service uninterrupted and Federal Transit Administration Section 

5307 funding would be used as a match to continue Suisun City transit service.  The Suisun City 

Council authorized on December 21, 2022 entering into a funding agreement continuing routes 5 

and 6 service in Suisun City at full schedule through March 31, 2022 and at a 75% reduced level 

from April through December 2022. 

STAFF REPORT:   This public hearing is to consider reducing service on FAST routes 5 and 6 

by 75% effective April 1, 2022 through the end of the calendar year.  This is consistent with the 

City Council action taken on December 21, 2021.  The proposed reductions will be primarily 

during the middle of the day allowing for school children to be able to continue to utilize the bus 

service. 

Item 17

285



When undergoing major service changes, the Federal Transit Administration requires FAST follow 

policies outlined in FAST’s Title VI Plan.  Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity that receives 

Federal funds or other Federal financial assistance.  FAST’s Title VI fare and service policy requires 

a public hearing be held when more than 25% of revenue miles, revenue hours, or ridership on any 

individual route are proposed to change.  Because FAST receives federal operating funds that are 

matched dollar for dollar by Suisun City and Fairfield’s TDA funding, Suisun City is also subject to 

these overall federal transit requirements and impacts.    

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council: 

1. Open the Public Hearing; and

2. Take Public Comment; and

3. Close the Public Hearing; and

4. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-___:  Authorizing a reduction in service levels on Fairfield and

Suisun Transit (FAST) Routes 5 and 6 within Suisun City by 75% effective April 1, 2022.

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2022-___:  Authorizing a reduction in service levels on Fairfield and Suisun

Transit (FAST) Routes 5 and 6 within Suisun City by 75% effective April 1, 2022.

2. Proposed bus route schedules

3. PowerPoint Presentation

Item 17

286



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

AUTHORIZING A REDUCTION IN SERVICE LEVELS ON FAIRFIELD AND 

SUISUN TRANSIT (FAST) ROUTES 5 AND 6 WITHIN SUISUN CITY BY 75% 

EFFECTIVE APRIL 1, 2022 

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City is planning to reduce service on FAST Routes 5 

and 6 to focus future funding on implementing micro transit for the provision of public 

transportation; and 

WHEREAS, on December 21, 2022, Suisun City Council authorized entering into a 

funding agreement with FAST to continue providing fixed route transit at current service 

levels through March 31, 2022 and to continue providing limited service in Suisun City from 

April-December 2022 to ensure Suisun City children have alternative transportation available 

to get to and from school; and    

WHEREAS, FAST is required to follow policies outlined in its Title VI Plan that 

includes holding a public hearing to receive resident input when more than 25% of revenue 

miles, revenue hours, or ridership on any individual route are proposed to change. 

WHEREAS, City Council held a public hearing to receive community input on the 

proposed reduction of service action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby authorizes 

a reduction in service levels on FAST bus routes 5 and 6 in Suisun City by 75% effective 

April 1, 2022. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 15th day of February 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers: 

NOES: Councilmembers: 

ABSENT: Councilmembers: 

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of February 2022. 

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

Item 17 
Attachment 1

287



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

288



 Fairfield Suisun Transit (FAST) Proposed Routes 5 and 6 Schedule
25% of Prior Service Hours

Effective April 2, 2022

Fairfield 
Transportation 

Center (FTC)

Suisun-Fairfield 
Amtrak

Driftwood/ 
Josiah

Suisun City 
Senior 
Center  
Arrive 

Suisun City 
Senior 
Center  
Depart

Driftwood/
Josiah

Suisun-
Fairfield 
Amtrak

Fairfield 
Transportation 

Center (FTC)

-- -- -- -- 6:31 6:40 6:43 6:54
7:00 7:14 7:18 7:27 7:31 7:40 7:43 7:54
8:00 8:14 8:18 8:27 8:31 8:40 8:43 8:54
9:00 9:14 9:18 9:27 9:31 9:40 9:43 9:54

-- -- -- -- -- -- -- --
12:31 12:40 12:43 12:54

-- -- -- -- -- -- -- --
14:00 14:14 14:18 14:27 14:31 14:40 14:43 14:54
15:00 15:14 15:18 15:27 15:31 15:40 15:43 15:54
16:00 16:14 16:18 16:27 16:31 16:40 16:43 16:54
17:00 17:14 17:18 17:27 17:31 17:40 17:43 17:54
18:00 18:14 18:18 18:27 18:31 18:40 18:43 18:54

PM in Bold 
Sample Route 5 weekday student return home trip options
Armijo HS:
Fairfield HS:   
Rodriquez HS: 

Solano Town 
Center

Fairfield Civic 
Center

Suisun City 
Senior 
Center  

BellaVista/ 
Ventura

Suisun 
Walmart 

Mayfield 
Arrive

Mayfield 
Depart 

Suisun Walmart 
BellaVista/

Ventura

Suisun City 
Senior 
Center  

Fairfield Civic 
Center

Solano Town 
Center

6:15 6:20 6:40 6:48 6:52 6:58 7:01 7:05 7:07 7:16 7:29 7:33
7:00 7:05 7:25 7:33 7:37 7:43 7:46 7:50 7:52 8:01 8:14 8:18
7:45 7:50 8:10 -- -- -- -- -- -- 8:16 8:29 8:33
8:45 8:50 9:10 -- -- -- -- -- -- 9:16 9:29 9:33
9:45 9:50 10:10 -- -- -- -- -- -- 10:16 10:29 10:33

10:45 10:50 11:10 -- -- -- -- -- -- 11:16 11:29 11:33
11:15 11:20 11:40 11:48 11:52 11:58 12:01 12:05 12:07 12:16
11:45 11:50 12:10 -- -- -- -- -- -- 12:16 12:29 12:33
12:45 12:50 13:10 -- -- -- -- -- -- 13:16 13:29 13:33
13:45 13:50 14:10 -- -- -- -- -- -- 14:16 14:29 14:33
14:45 14:50 15:10 -- -- -- -- -- -- 15:16 15:29 15:33
15:45 15:50 16:10 16:18 16:22 16:28 16:31 16:35 16:37 16:46 16:59 17:03
16:30 16:35 16:55 17:03 17:07 17:13 17:16 17:20 17:22 17:31 17:44 17:48
17:15 17:20 17:40 -- -- -- -- -- -- 17:46 17:59 18:03
18:15 18:20 18:40 18:48 18:52 18:58 19:01 19:05 19:07 19:16 19:29 19:33

PM in Bold 
Sample Route 6 weekday student return home trip options
Armijo HS: Board Route 1 Northbound (NB) at 3:25 pm to Texas/Travis (Starbucks), request transfer,

cross street to bus stop at Carriage House Apts. on Travis Blvd.  Board Route 6 at 3:53 pm.
Fairfield HS: Board Route 3 at 3:26 pm/4:06 pm SB to Solano Mall, request transfer. Board Route 6 at Solano 

Mall at 3:45 pm/4:30 pm.
Board Route 1 at 3:28  pm to Texas/Travis (IHOP), request transfer,
cross street to Route 6 bus stop at Carriage House Apts on Travis Blvd.  Board Route 6 at 3:53 pm.

Rodriquez HS:    Board Route 8  Northbound at 3:03 pm to Cordelia Library. Transfer to Route 7 at 3:26 pm to FTC.  Transfer
to Route 3 at 3:56 pm to Solano Mall,  Transfer to Route 6 at 4:30 pm.

Solano Town 
Center

Fairfield 
Civic Center

Suisun City 
Senior 
Center  
Arrive 

Suisun City 
Senior 
Center  
Depart

Fairfield 
Civic Center

Solano 
Town 
Center

-- -- -- 9:15 AM 9:28 AM 9:32 AM
9:45 AM 9:52 AM 10:09 AM 10:15 AM 10:28 AM 10:32 AM

10:45 AM 10:52 AM 11:09 AM 11:15 AM 11:28 AM 11:32 AM
11:45 AM 11:52 AM 12:09 PM 12:15 PM 12:28 PM 12:32 PM
12:45 PM 12:52 PM 1:09 PM 1:15 PM 1:28 PM 1:32 PM
1:45 PM 1:52 PM 2:09 PM 2:15 PM 2:28 PM 2:32 PM
2:45 PM 2:52 PM 3:09 PM 3:15 PM 3:28 PM 3:32 PM
3:45 PM 3:52 PM 4:09 PM 4:15 PM 4:28 PM 4:32 PM

Note:  Saturdays - Go to Suisun Senior Center Only PM in Bold 

Route 6 - Saturday 

Route 6 bus will become a Route 5 bus

Route 5 - Weekday  

becomes Route 5

Route 6 - Weekday 

Board Route 1 Southbound (SB) at Armijo Stop at 3:13 pm to FTC or board SB at 3:43 pm to FTC.  Transfer at FTC to Route 5 at 3:56 pm.
Board Route 3 SB at 3.26 pm to FTC.  Transfer at FTC to Route 5 at 3:56 pm.
Board Route 8 Northbound at 3:03 pm to Cordelia Library.   Transfer to Route 7 at 3:26 pm to FTC.  Transfer at FTC to Route 5 at 3:56 pm.  

  Route 5 - No Saturday Service 

Item 17 
Attachment 2

289



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

290



1

Public Hearing 
Bus Routes 5&6 Proposed 
Schedule Reductions

February 15, 2022

Background

 FAST currently operates Bus Routes 5 and 6
within Suisun City
 On August 17, 2021 Council voted to
reallocate TDA funds that pay for transit and
end service as of December 31, 2021
 In November, Lyft began providing door to
door subsidized service in Suisun City
 City is moving to micro transit model

1

2

Item 17 
Attachment 3

291



2

Current 
Status 

 Federal Transit Administration Section 5307
funding was granted by STA to fund extending
full bus service through March 31, 2022 and
reduced service through end of year
 Public Hearing is required to substantially
reduce transit service

Route 5 - Weekday

Fairfield  
Transportatio

n  Center
(FTC)

Suisun-
Fairfield  
Amtrak

Driftwood/  
Josiah

Suisun City  
Senior
Center  
Arrive

Suisun
City  
Senior  
Center  
Depart

Driftwood/  
Josiah

Suisun-
Fairfiel
d
Amtrak

Fairfield  
Transportatio

n  Center
(FTC)

‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 6:31 6:40 6:43 6:54

7:00 7:14 7:18 7:27 7:31 7:40 7:43 7:54

8:00 8:14 8:18 8:27 8:31 8:40 8:43 8:54

9:00 9:14 9:18 9:27 9:31 9:40 9:43 9:54

‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐

Route 6 bus will become a Route 5 bus 12:31 12:40 12:43 12:54

‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐

14:00 14:14 14:18 14:27 14:31 14:40 14:43 14:54

15:00 15:14 15:18 15:27 15:31 15:40 15:43 15:54

16:00 16:14 16:18 16:27 16:31 16:40 16:43 16:54

17:00 17:14 17:18 17:27 17:31 17:40 17:43 17:54

18:00 18:14 18:18 18:27 18:31 18:40 18:43 18:54

3

4

Item 17 
Attachment 3

292



3

Route 6 - Weekday

Solano Town  
Center

Fairfield Civic  
Center

SuisunCity  
Senior  
Center

BellaVista/  
Ventura

Suisun  
Walmart

Mayfield  
Arrive

Mayfield  
Depart SuisunWalmart

BellaVista/  
Ventura

SuisunCity  
Senior  
Center

Fairfield Civic  
Center

Solano Town  
Center

6:40 6:48 6:52 6:58 7:01 7:05 7:07 7:16 7:29 7:33

7:00 7:05 7:25 7:33 7:37 7:43 7:46 7:50 7:52 8:01 8:14 8:18

7:45 7:50 8:10 -- -- -- -- -- -- 8:16 8:29 8:33

8:45 8:50 9:10 -- -- -- -- -- -- 9:16 9:29 9:33

9:45 9:50 10:10 -- -- -- -- -- -- 10:16 10:29 10:33

10:45 10:50 11:10 -- -- -- -- -- -- 11:16 11:29 11:33

11:15 11:20 11:40 11:48 11:52 11:58 12:01 12:05 12:07 12:16 becomes Route 5

11:45 11:50 12:10 -- -- -- -- -- -- 12:16 12:29 12:33

12:45 12:50 13:10 -- -- -- -- -- -- 13:16 13:29 13:33

13:45 13:50 14:10 -- -- -- -- -- -- 14:16 14:29 14:33

14:45 14:50 15:10 -- -- -- -- -- -- 15:16 15:29 15:33

15:45 15:50 16:10 16:18 16:22 16:28 16:31 16:35 16:37 16:46 16:59 17:03

16:30 16:35 16:55 17:03 17:07 17:13 17:16 17:20 17:22 17:31 17:44 17:48

17:15 17:20 17:40 -- -- -- -- -- -- 17:46 17:59 18:03

18:15 18:20 18:40 18:48 18:52 18:58 19:01 19:05 19:07 19:16 19:29 19:33

Saturdays – Senior Center only

Recommendation

It is recommended that the City Council:

1. Open the public hearing

2. Take public comment

3. Close the public hearing

4. Adopt resolution

5

6

Item 17 
Attachment 3

293



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

294



PREPARED BY: Lakhwinder Deol, Finance Manager 

REVIEWED & APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  February 15, 2022 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-__:  Authorizing the City 

Manager to execute the First Amendment to the Granicus Service Agreement between Granicus, LLC 

and Suisun City.    

FISCAL IMPACT:  Executing the first amendment to the Granicus Service Agreement to obtain 

website design and hosting services will not impact the General Fund. The website design and 

hosting services agreement is budgeted under the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) fund. The FY 

2021-22 Budget includes $60,000 for these services under account 167-91140-1917. The one-time 

fees are $36,190, first year annual payment is $23,000, and subsequent years of the agreement has a 

seven percent cost increase.  

STRATEGIC PLAN: Ensure fiscal solvency; Provide good governance. 

BACKGROUND:  The City of Suisun City maintains its official government website. The 

existing website consists of approximately: 

o 232 webpages

o 2,211 documents

o 85 active content form links

o 5 content authors/providers

o 8,766 average visitors per month

o 22,000 page views per month

The current city website was launched in 2012 and is overdue for a redesign/update. The content 

management system was a leap forward at the time but is now outdated. Improvements in site search, 

mobile-responsiveness and accessibility are needed to provide efficient service to the community. 

STAFF REPORT:  City Councilmembers, residents and staff have identified the need for a robust 

website that is easier to use     and capable of meeting the needs of today and the future. City staff 

evaluated several website providers that were capable of meeting the technical needs, hosting and 

support requirements and budget limitations  from the city. Staff sought a “best-of-breed” solution and 

recommends OpenCities for website design and hosting solutions. Additional factors that led to this 

recommendation are the vendor’s focus on the digital customer experience, quick launch of a beta 

site for public experience/evaluation and enhanced staff training related to workflows, customer 

service and writing for the web. This integration will preserve and enhance the functionality of our 

current online services. 

Item 18

295



Scope of work: 

The project will deliver a managed cloud solution, including: 

• Enterprise grade hosting, security, bandwidth (to limit) and storage using Microsoft Azure 

Gov Data Center with 99.9 percent up-time services level agreement (SLA); DDOS 

mitigation 

• Maintenance, upgrades and new functionality (continuous releases) 

• Accessibility commitment to global standard (WCAG 2.1 AA) 

• Unlimited 24/7 telephone help desk for Priority level 1 severity issues 

• Unlimited online help desk for all other support and issues per SLA 

• Regular “checkup” meetings with the customer success team to explore site improvements 

focused on  enhancing usability 

• Ability to continually evolve the site design at no additional cost 
 

The primary variable for the launch timeline is the amount of time needed by the city for the visual 

design process and the initial staff training. The project can be ready to launch a beta website within 

a matter of weeks, and our goal would be to have the beta site up by summer 2022. This would leave 

our main website  operating simultaneously.  

 

This is an amendment because Suisun City has an existing agreement with Granicus to provide 

Agenda Management software Solutions.  Staff is currently working with Granicus on 

implementation. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 

2022-___: Authorizing the City Manager to execute the First Amendment to the Granicus Service 

Agreement between Granicus, LLC and Suisun City.    

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___: Authorizing the City Manager to execute the First 

Amendment to the Granicus Service Agreement between Granicus, LLC and Suisun City.  

2. OpenCities Proposal 

3. First Amendment – Granicus Service Agreement 

4. PowerPoint Presentation 

 

Item 18

296



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE FIRST AMENDMENT 

TO THE GRANICUS SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN GRANICUS, LLC AND 

SUISUN CITY 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires to redesign and update its official government website; 

and   

WHEREAS, the proposed redesign and update will upgrade the outdated website with 

a robust website that is easier to use and capable of meeting the needs of today and the 

future;and 

WHEREAS, the proposed update will improve customer service efficiency and 

effectivity during business operations; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed system will increase departmental capabilities and allow 

staff to work remotely without any communication and service interruptions; and   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby authorizes 

the City Manager, to execute First Amendment to the Granicus Service Agreement between 

Granicus, LLC and Suisun City. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of said City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 15th day of February 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers:    

NOES: Councilmembers:    

ABSENT: Councilmembers:    

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of February 2022. 

 

   

 Anita Skinner 

 City Clerk 

 

 

Item 18 
Attachment 1

297



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

298



 
 

Su
is

u
n

 C
it

y,
 C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 

G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

e
n

C
it

ie
s 

W
e

b
si

te
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l I
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

C
o

m
p

an
y 

N
am

e:
 G

ra
n

ic
u

s 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 n

am
e:

 K
e

vi
n

 S
ta

y 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 e

m
ai

l:
 k

ev
in

.s
ta

y@
gr

an
ic

u
s.

co
m

 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 p

h
o

n
e:

 (
4

1
2

) 
2

2
5

-8
3

8
4

 

St
ri

ct
ly

 C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 –

 In
 C

o
n

fi
d

en
ce

 

Tr
an

sf
o

rm
 y

o
u

r 
w

e
b

si
te

, f
o

rm
s,

 a
n

d
 

d
ig

it
al

 c
u

st
o

m
e

r 
e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

, w
it

h
o

u
t 

an
y 

cu
st

o
m

 c
o

d
e

. 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

299



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

1
 

Ta
b

le
 o

f 
co

n
te

n
ts

 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

...
..

..
. 3

 

Se
rv

e 
B

e
tt

e
r 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.. 

3
 

A
b

o
u

t 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
...

..
..

. 5
 

C
o

m
p

an
y 

H
is

to
ry

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
...

..
..

..
. 6

 

P
h

ilo
so

p
h

y 
an

d
 K

ey
 V

al
u

es
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 7
 

R
ec

en
t 

A
w

ar
d

s 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

...
..

..
..

..
. 8

 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 1

4
 

R
ef

e
re

n
ce

s 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 1
7

 

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Te
am

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 2
0

 

P
ro

je
ct

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 2

6
 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
h

as
e 

1
: K

ic
ko

ff
, D

is
co

ve
ry

, a
n

d
 D

at
a 

A
n

al
ys

is
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
...

..
..

..
..

.. 
2

6
 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
h

as
e 

2
: D

es
ig

n
, C

o
n

fi
gu

ra
ti

o
n

, a
n

d
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
M

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 2
7

 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

M
ig

ra
ti

o
n

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
...

..
. 2

8
 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
h

as
e 

3
: T

ra
in

in
g 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 2
9

 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
h

as
e 

4
: C

o
n

te
n

t 
C

re
at

io
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 a
n

d
 B

et
a 

La
u

n
ch

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

...
 3

0
 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
h

as
e 

5
: L

au
n

ch
 a

n
d

 E
vo

lv
e 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

...
..

..
..

. 3
1

 

Su
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 S
LA

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
...

..
..

. 3
2

 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

300



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

2
 

C
u

st
o

m
er

 A
d

vo
ca

cy
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.. 

3
3

 

D
ig

it
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

ca
d

em
y 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 3
4

 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

M
ig

ra
ti

o
n

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
...

..
. 3

5
 

W
ri

ti
n

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
W

eb
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.. 

3
6

 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 A
rc

h
it

e
ct

u
re

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 3
6

 

En
h

an
ce

d
 D

es
ig

n
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

...
..

..
. 3

6
 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

R
at

io
n

al
iz

at
io

n
 a

n
d

  N
av

ig
at

io
n

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.. 

3
6

 

P
ri

ci
n

g.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.E
rr

o
r!

 B
o

o
km

ar
k 

n
o

t 
d

e
fi

n
ed

. 

A
n

n
u

al
 S

u
b

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

 F
ee

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.E
rr

o
r!

 B
o

o
km

ar
k 

n
o

t 
d

e
fi

n
ed

. 

O
n

e 
Ti

m
e 

Fe
e

s.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..E
rr

o
r!

 B
o

o
km

ar
k 

n
o

t 
d

e
fi

n
ed

. 

To
ta

l F
ee

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.E

rr
o

r!
 B

o
o

km
ar

k 
n

o
t 

d
e

fi
n

ed
. 

Fu
tu

re
-p

ro
o

f 
yo

u
r 

d
ig

it
al

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

...
..

..
. 3

8
 

In
cr

ea
se

 c
u

st
o

m
er

 s
el

f-
se

rv
e,

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

h
e

lp
 o

f 
d

ee
p

 d
at

a 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

...
..

..
. 3

9
 

In
cr

ea
se

 e
n

ga
ge

m
en

t 
w

it
h

 t
im

el
y,

 r
el

ev
an

t 
co

n
te

n
t .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.. 
4

0
 

P
u

b
lis

h
 o

n
ce

, p
re

se
n

t 
ev

er
yw

h
er

e 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

...
..

..
..

..
. 4

1
 

C
o

-c
re

at
e

 w
it

h
 y

o
u

r 
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s,
 v

ia
 o

n
lin

e 
co

n
su

lt
at

io
n

s 
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
...

 4
2

 

Su
p

p
o

rt
 lo

ca
l b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

an
d

 g
ro

u
p

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
...

..
..

. 4
3

 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

in
si

gh
ts

 a
n

d
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

...
. 4

4
 

Si
n

gl
e 

so
u

rc
e 

o
f 

tr
u

th
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 4

5
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

301



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

3
 

In
te

gr
at

e 
w

it
h

 in
te

rn
al

 s
ys

te
m

s 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 4

6
 

H
o

st
in

g 
an

d
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 4
7

 

A
zu

re
 G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

C
lo

u
d

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.. 

4
8

 

A
ct

iv
e 

D
ir

ec
to

ry
 C

o
n

n
ec

to
r 

(p
re

m
iu

m
*)

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
...

 4
8

 

Im
p

er
va

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 4

9
 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
A

rc
h

it
ec

tu
ra

l D
ia

gr
am

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
...

...
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
...

..
..

..
..

.. 
5

0
 

     O
p

e
n

C
it

ie
s 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

Se
rv

e
 B

e
tt

e
r 

Th
e 

m
o

st
 d

ir
ec

t 
in

te
ra

ct
io

n
s 

b
et

w
ee

n
 p

eo
p

le
 a

n
d

 g
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t 

h
ap

p
e

n
 a

t 
th

e
 lo

ca
l l

e
ve

l.
 W

h
en

 is
 m

y 
n

ex
t 

tr
as

h
 c

o
lle

ct
io

n
? 

P
le

as
e 

re
p

ai
r 

th
is

 
p

o
th

o
le

. H
o

w
 d

o
 I 

ge
t 

a 
p

er
m

it
? 

 

Ev
er

y 
d

ay
 lo

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
ts

 p
ro

ce
ss

 t
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s 

o
f 

th
es

e 
re

q
u

es
ts

. T
h

e
 m

o
re

 t
h

at
 p

eo
p

le
 e

n
ga

ge
 w

it
h

 t
h

ei
r 

ci
ty

 o
n

lin
e,

 t
h

e 
m

o
re

 y
o

u
r 

w
eb

si
te

 
b

ec
o

m
es

 t
h

e 
d

ig
it

al
 f

ro
n

t 
d

o
o

r 
to

 t
h

e 
ci

ty
. B

u
ilt

 w
it

h
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
lo

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
ts

, O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
p

ro
vi

d
es

 a
ll 

th
e 

fu
n

ct
io

n
al

it
y 

a 
ci

ty
 n

ee
d

s 
to

 h
el

p
 

cu
st

o
m

er
s 

w
it

h
 e

ve
ry

 s
te

p
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

jo
u

rn
ey

.  

W
e

 b
u

ild
: 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

302



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

4
 

  
  

  

W
e
b
si

te
s 

 

C
re

at
e 

b
ea

u
ti

fu
l, 

cu
st

o
m

er
-f

o
cu

se
d

  
w

eb
si

te
s 

th
at

 m
ak

e 
it

 e
as

y 
fo

r 
p

eo
p

le
  

to
 f

in
d

 w
h

at
 t

h
ey

 n
ee

d
.  

F
o
rm

s 
 

C
o

n
ve

rt
 P

D
Fs

 a
n

d
 o

ff
lin

e 
p

ro
ce

ss
es

  
in

to
 s

im
p

le
, i

n
tu

it
iv

e 
d

ig
it

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

 
th

at
 a

n
yo

n
e 

ca
n

 u
se

.  

In
tr

a
n
e
ts

 

Em
p

o
w

er
 s

ta
ff

 w
it

h
 a

n
 in

tr
an

et
  

th
at

 h
el

p
s 

th
em

 b
et

te
r 

se
rv

e 
th

em
se

lv
es

  
an

d
 t

h
ei

r 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y.

  

W
it

h
 a

 c
o

d
e

-f
re

e
, d

ra
g 

an
d

 d
ro

p
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 t

o
 d

ig
it

iz
in

g 
ev

er
y 

st
ag

e 
o

f 
yo

u
r 

cu
st

o
m

er
 jo

u
rn

ey
, O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

em
p

o
w

e
rs

 g
o

ve
rn

m
en

ts
 o

f 
ev

er
y 

si
ze

 t
o

 c
re

at
e 

a 
w

o
rl

d
 c

la
ss

 d
ig

it
al

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

 in
 a

 f
ra

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
ti

m
e

, c
o

st
, a

n
d

 e
ff

o
rt

 o
f 

tr
ad

it
io

n
al

 w
eb

si
te

 a
n

d
 s

er
vi

ce
 t

ra
n

sf
o

rm
at

io
n

 
p

ro
je

ct
s.

   

A
n

d
 a

s 
a 

So
ft

w
ar

e 
as

 a
 S

er
vi

ce
 (

Sa
aS

) 
p

la
tf

o
rm

 t
h

at
 p

o
w

e
rs

 m
ill

io
n

s 
o

f 
re

si
d

en
t-

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

in
te

ra
ct

io
n

s,
 O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

le
ve

ra
ge

s 
o

u
r 

d
at

a 
an

d
 

kn
o

w
le

d
ge

 t
o

 o
p

ti
m

iz
e 

yo
u

r 
cu

st
o

m
er

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

 a
n

d
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

yo
u

r 
st

af
f 

w
it

h
 t

o
o

ls
 t

o
 e

as
ily

 u
p

d
at

e
 y

o
u

r 
w

eb
si

te
 a

s 
yo

u
r 

n
ee

d
s 

ev
o

lv
e

.  
 

  
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

303



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

5
 

A
b

o
u

t 
O

p
e

n
C

it
ie

s 
 

 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
e

xi
st

s 
to

 h
el

p
 lo

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
ts

 s
e

rv
e 

b
et

te
r.

 
W

h
en

 w
e 

st
ar

te
d

 t
h

is
 jo

u
rn

ey
 t

h
ir

te
en

 y
ea

rs
 a

go
, w

e 
re

al
iz

ed
 

th
is

 v
is

io
n

 b
y 

b
u

ild
in

g 
cu

st
o

m
 c

it
y 

w
eb

si
te

s 
th

at
 p

u
t 

re
si

d
e

n
t 

n
ee

d
s 

at
 t

h
e

 f
ro

n
t 

an
d

 c
en

te
r 

o
f 

ev
er

y 
d

es
ig

n
 d

ec
is

io
n

. 

B
y 

m
ak

in
g 

it
 e

as
y 

fo
r 

ev
er

yo
n

e
 in

 t
h

e 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y 

to
 f

in
d

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 s
el

f-
se

rv
e 

at
 a

n
y 

ti
m

e 
o

f 
d

ay
 o

n
 a

n
y 

d
ev

ic
e

, 
w

e
 h

el
p

ed
 r

eb
u

ild
 t

ru
st

 a
n

d
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n

 b
et

w
ee

n
 lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
ei

r 
re

si
d

en
ts

. B
u

t 
it

 d
id

 n
o

t 
la

st
. 

In
fl

u
en

ce
d

 b
y 

co
n

su
m

er
-g

ra
d

e 
d

ig
it

al
, r

es
id

e
n

t 
ex

p
ec

ta
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
w

eb
si

te
s 

an
d

 o
n

lin
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
e

re
 e

vo
lv

in
g 

fa
st

er
 

th
an

 c
it

ie
s 

an
d

 c
o

u
n

ti
es

 c
o

u
ld

 p
o

ss
ib

ly
 k

e
ep

 u
p

 w
it

h
. 

R
ec

o
gn

iz
in

g 
h

o
w

 m
an

y 
ci

ti
es

 f
ac

ed
 t

h
e 

ve
ry

 s
am

e 
ch

al
le

n
ge

, 
w

e
 h

ad
 t

o
 f

in
d

 a
 w

ay
 f

o
r 

ci
ti

es
 t

o
 c

re
at

e 
d

ig
it

al
 e

xp
er

ie
n

ce
s 

th
at

 w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
ex

p
ir

e.
 A

n
d

 n
o

t 
ju

st
 b

ig
 c

it
ie

s 
w

it
h

 b
ig

 t
ea

m
s 

an
d

 b
u

d
ge

ts
, b

u
t 

ev
er

y 
ci

ty
. 

 
Th

o
se

 c
h

al
le

n
ge

s 
ar

e
 w

h
y 

w
e

 c
re

at
ed

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s.
  

O
u

r 
p

la
tf

o
rm

: 

•
 

ev
o

lv
es

 in
 s

te
p

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

w
o

rl
d

's
 b

es
t 

in
 d

ig
it

al
 g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t,

 
h

el
p

in
g 

ci
ti

es
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 a

p
p

ly
in

g 
p

ro
ve

n
 b

es
t 

p
ra

ct
ic

es
, r

at
h

er
 

th
an

 c
re

at
in

g 
th

em
. 

•
 

al
lo

w
s 

ci
ti

es
 t

o
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
te

, c
re

at
e

, a
n

d
 s

h
ar

e 
n

ew
 d

ig
it

al
 id

ea
s 

w
it

h
 e

ac
h

 o
th

er
, c

re
at

in
g 

p
ee

r-
to

-p
ee

r 
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
o

f 
ex

ce
lle

n
ce

, r
at

h
er

 t
h

an
 c

it
ie

s 
go

in
g 

it
 a

lo
n

e.
 

•
 

h
ar

n
es

se
s 

m
ac

h
in

e 
le

ar
n

in
g,

 h
el

p
in

g 
u

se
rs

 d
el

iv
er

 b
et

te
r 

d
ig

it
al

 
o

u
tc

o
m

es
 b

y 
m

ak
in

g 
sm

ar
t,

 d
at

a 
d

ri
ve

n
 d

ec
is

io
n

s.
 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
is

 m
o

re
 

th
an

 ju
st

 a
 C

M
S,

 it
 

is
 a

n
 e

n
ti

re
ly

 n
ew

 
w

ay
 o

f 
th

in
ki

n
g 

ab
o

u
t 

h
o

w
 y

o
u

r 
ci

ty
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
es

 it
s 

d
ig

it
al

 c
u

st
o

m
er

 
ex

p
er

ie
n

ce
. 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

304



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
e

d
 s

ty
le

 in
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
t.

  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

6
 

C
o

m
p

an
y 

H
is

to
ry

 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

w
as

 f
o

u
n

d
ed

 a
s 

Se
am

le
ss

C
M

S 
in

 2
00

8
 w

h
en

 w
e 

b
eg

an
 b

u
ild

in
g 

w
eb

si
te

s 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ts

. O
u

r 
U

.S
. o

p
er

at
io

n
 is

 h
ea

d
q

u
ar

te
re

d
 in

 K
an

sa
s 

C
it

y 
w

it
h

 k
ey

 m
em

b
er

s 
lo

ca
te

d
 in

 D
en

ve
r,

 
Sa

n
 F

ra
n

ci
sc

o
, W

as
h

in
gt

o
n

 D
C

, a
n

d
 S

an
 D

ie
go

. O
u

r 
U

n
it

ed
 S

ta
te

s 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 t
ea

m
 is

 le
d

 b
y 

Lu
ke

 N
o

rr
is

 
an

d
 C

yn
th

ia
 F

ra
n

ci
s.

 P
ri

o
r 

to
 jo

in
in

g 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s,

 b
o

th
 L

u
ke

 a
n

d
 C

yn
th

ia
 w

o
rk

e
d

 a
t 

th
e 

n
at

io
n

al
 n

o
n

p
ro

fi
t 

C
o

d
e 

fo
r 

A
m

er
ic

a 
w

h
ic

h
 h

el
p

ed
 le

ad
 t

h
e 

w
ay

 a
ro

u
n

d
 d

ig
it

al
 t

ra
n

sf
o

rm
at

io
n

 in
 lo

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t.

 T
o

d
ay

 
o

u
r 

te
am

 in
cl

u
d

es
 o

ve
r 

5
0

 s
ta

ff
, m

an
y 

o
f 

w
h

o
m

 p
re

vi
o

u
sl

y 
w

o
rk

ed
 f

o
r 

1
8

F 
(a

 F
ed

er
al

 G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
d

es
ig

n
 a

ge
n

cy
) 

an
d

 v
ar

io
u

s 
m

u
n

ic
ip

al
 g

o
ve

rn
m

en
ts

. 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
fo

cu
se

s 
EX

C
LU

SI
V

EL
Y 

o
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g 

lo
ca

l g
o

ve
rn

m
en

ts
 b

y 
b

u
ild

in
g 

w
eb

si
te

s,
 in

tr
an

et
s,

 
an

d
 d

ig
it

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 T
o

d
ay

, O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
p

o
w

er
s 

m
o

re
 t

h
an

 5
0

0
 w

e
b

si
te

s 
fo

r 
o

ve
r 

12
0

 c
it

ie
s 

an
d

 
co

u
n

ti
es

. O
u

r 
cl

ie
n

ts
 r

an
ge

 f
ro

m
 s

ev
er

al
 o

f 
th

e 
1

0 
la

rg
es

t 
ci

ti
es

 in
 t

h
e

 U
n

it
ed

 S
ta

te
s 

to
 s

m
al

l c
it

ie
s 

an
d

 c
o

u
n

ti
es

 r
an

gi
n

g 
fr

o
m

 1
0

,0
00

 t
o

 o
ve

r 
8

00
,0

00
 in

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

. 

 
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

305



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

7
 

P
h

ilo
so

p
h

y 
a

n
d

 K
e

y 
V

al
u

e
s 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
u

se
s 

u
se

r-
ce

n
te

re
d

 d
es

ig
n

 p
ri

n
ci

p
al

s 
to

 c
re

at
e 

d
ig

it
al

 s
e

rv
ic

es
 t

h
at

 p
ro

vi
d

es
 s

e
lf

-s
er

vi
ce

 o
p

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

yo
u

r 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y,

 r
at

h
er

 t
h

an
 ju

st
 

m
ig

ra
ti

n
g 

cu
rr

en
t 

co
n

te
n

t 
to

 a
 m

o
re

 b
ea

u
ti

fu
l c

o
n

ta
in

er
. T

h
is

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
sa

ti
sf

ac
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

ru
st

 in
 g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

fo
r 

yo
u

r 
re

si
d

en
ts

, b
u

si
n

es
se

s,
 a

n
d

 
vi

si
to

rs
.  

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
u

se
s 

d
at

a 
d

ri
ve

n
 d

ec
is

io
n

 m
ak

in
g.

 W
e

 a
re

 u
n

iq
u

el
y 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

ed
 t

o
 le

ar
n

 f
ro

m
 r

ea
l w

o
rl

d
 b

eh
av

io
r 

b
y 

lo
o

ki
n

g 
at

 h
o

w
 e

xi
st

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 
ar

e 
u

se
d

 in
 y

o
u

r 
ci

ty
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
ac

ro
ss

 a
ll 

o
u

r 
cu

st
o

m
er

s.
  

If
 y

o
u

 c
an

n
o

t 
fi

n
d

 it
, y

o
u

 c
an

n
o

t 
u

se
 it

! 
W

e 
b

el
ie

ve
 t

h
at

 s
it

e 
vi

si
to

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
h

av
e 

to
 k

n
o

w
 h

o
w

 lo
ca

l g
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t 

o
p

er
at

es
 t

o
 f

in
d

 t
h

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

ey
 a

re
 s

ee
ki

n
g.

 A
 p

o
w

er
fu

l p
re

d
ic

ti
ve

 s
ea

rc
h

 e
n

gi
n

e 
u

ti
liz

in
g 

n
at

u
ra

l l
an

gu
ag

e,
 a

n
d

 a
 c

le
ar

 s
et

 o
f 

to
p

 t
as

ks
 o

n
 t

h
e 

h
o

m
ep

ag
e 

m
ea

n
 m

o
st

 u
se

rs
 f

in
d

 w
h

at
 t

h
ey

 n
ee

d
 in

 o
n

e 
cl

ic
k.

 Y
o

u
r 

ci
ty

’s
 t

as
ks

 a
re

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
ze

d
 b

y 
YO

U
R

 u
sa

ge
 d

at
a 

(n
o

t 
ex

tr
ap

o
la

te
d

 f
ro

m
 

ag
gr

eg
at

e
 d

at
a)

.  

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
is

 m
o

b
ile

 f
ir

st
, a

n
d

 o
u

r 
p

ro
d

u
ct

 t
em

p
la

te
s 

an
d

 y
o

u
r 

co
n

te
n

t 
ar

e 
te

st
ed

 f
o

r 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 r
e

ad
ab

ili
ty

. O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
o

ff
er

s 
a 

se
le

ct
io

n
 o

f 
te

st
ed

 a
n

d
 p

ro
ve

n
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
te

m
p

la
te

s 
th

at
 c

re
at

e 
b

et
te

r 
d

ig
it

al
 e

xp
er

ie
n

ce
s 

fo
r 

yo
u

r 
u

se
rs

. E
ve

ry
 p

at
te

rn
 in

 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

m
ee

ts
 t

h
e 

h
ig

h
 a

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 
o

u
tl

in
e

d
 in

 W
C

A
G

 2
.1

 A
A

 a
n

d
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 
5

08
 a

n
d

 u
se

s 
re

sp
o

n
si

ve
 m

o
b

ile
 r

ea
d

y 
fr

am
ew

o
rk

s.
 O

u
r 

p
at

te
rn

s 
an

d
 d

es
ig

n
s 

ar
e 

e
as

y 
to

 
ad

ap
t 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e 

d
iv

er
se

 s
co

p
e 

an
d

 n
ee

d
s 

o
f 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

d
ig

it
al

 s
e

rv
ic

es
.  

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
p

ro
vi

d
es

 t
ra

in
in

g 
an

d
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 w

o
rk

sh
o

p
s 

sp
ec

if
ic

al
ly

 t
ai

lo
re

d
 t

o
 e

ac
h

 t
yp

e 
o

f 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
u

se
r.

 O
u

r 
ro

b
u

st
 o

n
lin

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

ct
 f

ee
d

b
ac

k 
p

o
rt

al
 e

n
co

u
ra

ge
 

yo
u

r 
st

af
f’

s 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

at
io

n
 in

 o
u

r 
o

n
go

in
g 

p
ro

d
u

ct
 im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t.

  

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
gi

ve
s 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

st
af

f 
th

e 
to

o
ls

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

e
 w

o
rk

fl
o

w
 a

n
d

 p
er

m
is

si
o

n
s 

to
 c

h
an

ge
 h

o
m

ep
ag

e 
im

ag
es

/l
o

o
k-

an
d

-f
ee

l, 
ad

d
 f

o
rm

s 
an

d
 s

e
rv

ic
es

, a
d

d
 C

SS
 t

o
 t

h
e 

si
te

 
w

h
en

/w
h

er
e 

n
ee

d
ed

, a
n

d
 m

an
ag

e 
th

e 
p

ag
es

 a
n

d
 n

av
ig

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

si
te

 w
it

h
o

u
t 

co
m

in
g 

b
ac

k 
to

 o
u

r 
te

am
 f

o
r 

ch
an

ge
s 

o
r 

o
n

go
in

g 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t.
 

 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

306



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

8
 

R
e

ce
n

t 
A

w
ar

d
s 

 

In
 2

02
1

, O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
w

as
 r

ec
o

gn
iz

ed
 a

s 
a 

G
o

vT
ec

h
 1

00
 c

o
m

p
an

y 
fo

r 
2

02
1

. T
h

e 
G

o
vT

ec
h

 1
0

0 
is

 t
h

e 
m

ar
ke

t-
le

ad
in

g 
cu

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

to
p

 1
00

 c
o

m
p

an
ie

s 
in

 g
o

v 
te

ch
 r

el
ea

se
d

 e
ac

h
 y

ea
r 

b
y 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
Te

ch
n

o
lo

gy
 

m
ag

az
in

e.
 

 

In
 2

02
0

, t
h

e 
C

it
y 

o
f 

Ly
n

n
w

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 C
it

y 
o

f 
Sa

n
 A

n
to

n
io

 e
ac

h
 w

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xp

e
ri

en
ce

 A
w

ar
d

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
C

e
n

te
r 

fo
r 

D
ig

it
al

 G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

th
ei

r 
D

ig
it

al
 C

it
y 

H
al

l a
n

d
 C

o
vi

d
1

9
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 a

n
d

 R
ec

o
ve

ry
 W

eb
si

te
s,

 r
e

sp
ec

ti
ve

ly
, 

ea
ch

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 w
as

 b
u

ilt
 u

si
n

g 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s.

  

 

In
 2

01
9

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
w

o
n

 s
ev

er
al

 a
w

ar
d

s 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
it

y 
o

f 
La

ke
w

o
o

d
 in

cl
u

d
in

g 
th

e
 P

in
n

ac
le

 
A

w
ar

d
 a

n
d

 S
it

eI
m

p
ro

ve
 A

w
ar

d
 f

o
r 

th
e 

M
o

st
 A

cc
es

si
b

le
 W

e
b

si
te

 a
t 

th
e 

N
at

io
n

al
 A

ss
o

ci
at

io
n

 o
f 

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t 

W
eb

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
s 

co
n

fe
re

n
ce

. 

 

In
 2

01
8

, O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
it

y 
o

f 
G

ra
n

d
 R

ap
id

s 
w

o
n

 t
h

e 
P

in
n

ac
le

 A
w

ar
d

 a
t 

th
e

 N
at

io
n

al
 

A
ss

o
ci

at
io

n
 o

f 
G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t 
W

e
b

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
s 

co
n

fe
re

n
ce

. 

 

In
 2

01
6

, O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
w

o
n

 2
n

d
 p

la
ce

 a
t 

a 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
te

ch
n

o
lo

gy
 p

it
ch

 c
o

m
p

et
it

io
n

 s
p

o
n

so
re

d
 b

y 
th

e 
U

S 
C

o
n

fe
re

n
ce

 o
f 

M
ay

o
rs

; o
ve

r 
3

00
 M

ay
o

rs
 v

o
te

d
. 

 
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

307



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

9
 

            
 

C
as

e
 s

tu
d

ie
s 

Ev
er

y 
d

ay
, l

o
ca

l g
o

ve
rn

m
en

ts
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e 
w

o
rl

d
 

re
ly

 o
n

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
to

 h
el

p
 t

h
em

 s
er

ve
 b

et
te

r.
  

Item 18 
Attachment 2

308



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

1
0
 

 

G
R
A
N

D
 R

A
P
ID

S
 

w
w

w
.g

ra
n

d
ra

p
id

sm
i.g

o
v 

 Fo
r 

th
is

 c
it

y 
o

f 
1

9
2

,0
00

 r
es

id
en

ts
, t

h
e 

w
eb

si
te

 

p
ro

je
ct

 w
as

 f
ar

 f
ro

m
 a

 b
u

si
n

es
s-

as
-u

su
al

 

in
it

ia
ti

ve
. L

ed
 b

y 
o

u
r 

C
u

st
o

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 t
e

am
, t

h
e 

ci
ty

 o
f 

G
ra

n
d

 R
ap

id
s 

em
b

ar
ke

d
 o

n
 a

 w
eb

si
te

 

re
d

es
ig

n
 p

ro
ce

ss
 t

h
at

 p
u

t 
re

si
d

en
ts

 a
t 

th
e 

ce
n

te
r 

o
f 

ev
er

y 
d

ec
is

io
n

.  

W
it

h
in

 t
h

re
e 

m
o

n
th

s 
o

f 
la

u
n

ch
, t

h
e 

C
it

y 
sa

w
 a

 

7
9

%
 s

h
if

t 
fr

o
m

 o
ff

lin
e 

to
 o

n
lin

e 
in

te
ra

ct
io

n
s 

fo
r 

it
s 

p
o

p
u

la
r 

re
q

u
es

t 
to

 t
u

rn
 o

n
 w

at
e

r.
 In

 t
h

e 
9

 

m
o

n
th

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g,

 G
ra

n
d

 R
ap

id
s 

w
as

 a
b

le
 t

o
 s

h
if

t 

a 
fu

rt
h

er
 2

35
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

o
n

lin
e,

 r
es

u
lt

in
g 

in
 a

 1
9

%
 

o
ve

ra
ll 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

w
al

k-
in

s 
to

 c
it

y 
h

al
l, 

an
d

 a
 

p
ro

je
ct

io
n

 o
f 

$
9.

2m
 in

 c
o

st
 s

av
in

gs
 a

n
d

 n
ew

 

re
ve

n
u

e
. 

 W
at

ch
 t

h
e 

st
o

ry
 h

er
e 

 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

309

https://resources.opencities.com/case-studies/city-of-grand-rapids-revolutionizes-customer-experience
https://resources.opencities.com/case-studies/city-of-grand-rapids-revolutionizes-customer-experience


G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

1
1
 

 
 

T
E
A
 T

R
E
E
 G

U
L
L
Y

 
w

w
w

.t
ea

tr
ee

gu
lly

.s
a.

go
v.

au
 

 A
s 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
it

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
tr

an
sf

o
rm

at
io

n
, C

TT
G

 w
as

 

ch
al

le
n

ge
d

 t
o

 f
in

d
 a

n
 o

n
lin

e 
fo

rm
s 

p
la

tf
o

rm
 t

h
at

 w
as

 

ea
sy

 t
o

 u
se

 f
o

r 
b

o
th

 c
it

y 
st

af
f 

an
d

 r
es

id
en

ts
, w

h
ils

t 

ac
co

m
m

o
d

at
in

g 
th

e 
co

m
p

le
x 

fu
n

ct
io

n
al

 n
ee

d
s 

o
f 

th
e 

ci
ty

, i
n

cl
u

d
in

g 
in

te
gr

at
io

n
 w

it
h

 it
s 

le
ga

cy
 b

u
si

n
es

s 

sy
st

em
s.

 

 W
it

h
in

 a
 y

ea
r 

o
f 

su
b

sc
ri

b
in

g 
to

 O
p

en
Fo

rm
s,

 t
h

e 
C

it
y 

d
ig

it
iz

ed
 o

ve
r 

1
70

 f
o

rm
s,

 w
h

ic
h

 r
e

su
lt

ed
 in

 o
ve

r 

1
3

,0
0

0
 r

eq
u

es
ts

 p
ro

ce
ss

ed
 o

n
lin

e
. “

W
e 

w
o

u
ld

 s
ee

 

u
p

 t
o

 7
0

 c
u

st
o

m
er

s 
w

ai
ti

n
g 

in
 li

n
e 

in
 o

u
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

. 

N
o

w
, w

it
h

 O
p

en
Fo

rm
s,

 w
e 

h
av

e
 h

ad
 u

p
 t

o
 9

0%
 s

h
if

t 

o
n

lin
e 

fo
r 

so
m

e 
o

f 
o

u
r 

ke
y 

se
rv

ic
es

, a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 in
 f

ac
e

-t
o

-f
ac

e 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n
s.

 T
h

e 
C

it
y 

al
so

 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

 3
1%

 r
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 c

al
l v

o
lu

m
es

, w
it

h
 

3
6

,0
0

0
 le

ss
 c

al
ls

 a
n

n
u

al
ly

.”
 s

h
ar

es
 E

lis
sa

 G
ra

ve
s,

 

M
an

ag
er

 o
f 

C
u

st
o

m
er

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s.

  

 W
at

ch
 t

h
e 

st
o

ry
 h

er
e 

 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

310

https://au.opencities.com/Case-studies/City-of-Tea-Tree-Gully


G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
ex

t 
o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
e

d
 s

ty
le

 in
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
t.

  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

1
2
 

 
 

A
U

S
T
IN

 
Se

cu
re

 In
tr

an
et

 
 A

ft
e

r 
a 

tw
o

-y
ea

r,
 r

es
o

u
rc

e 
in

te
n

si
ve

 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

cy
cl

e 
fo

r 
it

s 
D

ru
p

al
-b

as
ed

 C
it

y 

w
e

b
si

te
, C

it
y 

o
f 

A
u

st
in

 n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 e
xp

lo
re

 a
 m

o
re

 

ag
ile

 a
n

d
 in

n
o

va
ti

ve
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 t

o
 d

el
iv

er
 a

 n
ew

 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 in

tr
an

et
 f

o
r 

1
3

,0
0

0
 s

ta
ff

 a
n

d
 4

5 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

.  

B
y 

p
ar

tn
er

in
g 

w
it

h
 O

p
e

n
C

it
ie

s,
 in

 ju
st

 t
h

re
e 

w
e

ek
s,

 t
h

e 
C

it
y 

o
f 

A
u

st
in

 w
as

 a
b

le
 t

o
 n

o
t 

o
n

ly
 

d
es

ig
n

, c
o

n
fi

gu
re

 a
n

d
 p

o
p

u
la

te
 it

s 
n

ew
 in

tr
an

et
, 

b
u

t 
al

so
 a

ch
ie

ve
 f

u
ll 

in
te

gr
at

io
n

 w
it

h
 it

s 
A

zu
re

A
D

 

au
th

en
ti

ca
ti

o
n

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 a
ll 

ev
er

y 
st

af
f 

m
em

b
er

 

en
jo

ye
d

 a
 p

e
rs

o
n

al
iz

ed
, s

in
gl

e 
si

gn
-i

n
 in

tr
an

et
 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

.  
 

To
d

ay
, c

it
y 

st
af

f 
ca

n
 u

se
 t

h
ei

r 
A

zu
re

A
D

 lo
gi

n
 a

n
d

 

to
 s

ec
u

re
ly

 a
cc

es
s 

th
e 

in
tr

an
et

 a
n

yt
im

e,
 

an
yw

h
er

e,
 o

n
 a

n
y 

d
ev

ic
e,

 w
it

h
 a

 p
er

so
n

al
iz

ed
 

vi
ew

 o
f 

co
n

te
n

t 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 t
h

ei
r 

ro
le

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 

o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
. 

   

Item 18 
Attachment 2

311



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

1
3
 

 
 

M
IA

M
I 

w
w

w
.m

ia
m

ig
o

v.
co

m
 

 W
it

h
 a

 d
iv

er
se

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

o
f 

o
ve

r 
45

0
,0

0
0 

re
si

d
en

ts
, 

th
e 

C
it

y 
o

f 
M

ia
m

i w
as

 c
h

al
le

n
ge

d
 t

o
 d

el
iv

er
 a

 n
ew

 

w
e

b
si

te
 t

h
at

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e 

b
o

th
 u

se
fu

l a
n

d
 u

sa
b

le
 t

o
 

ev
er

yo
n

e,
 r

eg
ar

d
le

ss
 o

f 
ag

e,
 t

ec
h

n
ic

al
 a

b
ili

ty
, 

so
ci

o
ec

o
n

o
m

ic
 p

ro
fi

le
, o

r 
En

gl
is

h
 p

ro
fi

ci
en

cy
. 

Le
ve

ra
gi

n
g 

th
e 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
D

ig
it

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
ca

d
em

y,
 

co
m

b
in

ed
 w

it
h

 a
 p

h
as

ed
 la

u
n

ch
 p

ro
ce

ss
, t

h
e 

C
it

y 
o

f 

M
ia

m
i r

ev
o

lu
ti

o
n

iz
ed

 h
o

w
 it

 e
n

ga
ge

d
 w

it
h

 a
n

d
 

d
el

iv
er

ed
 a

 n
ew

 w
eb

si
te

 f
o

r 
it

s 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y.

 

W
it

h
 t

h
e 

h
el

p
 o

f 
th

e 
D

ig
it

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
ca

d
em

y,
 C

it
y 

st
af

f 
le

ar
n

t 
h

o
w

 t
o

 jo
u

rn
ey

 m
ap

 c
o

m
m

o
n

 c
u

st
o

m
er

 

n
ee

d
s,

 a
n

d
 t

h
en

 s
im

p
lif

y,
 d

ig
it

iz
e,

 a
n

d
 t

es
t 

n
ew

 c
o

n
te

n
t 

an
d

 s
e

rv
ic

es
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y.

 

St
ar

ti
n

g 
w

it
h

 a
 li

m
it

e
d

, s
er

vi
ce

 f
o

cu
se

d
 A

lp
h

a 
si

te
, 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

en
 e

vo
lv

ed
 in

to
 a

 f
u

lly
 f

e
at

u
re

d
 B

et
a 

w
eb

si
te

 

an
d

 u
lt

im
at

el
y 

re
p

la
ce

d
 t

h
e 

le
ga

cy
 c

it
y 

w
e

b
si

te
, C

it
y 

o
f 

M
ia

m
i e

n
ga

ge
d

 it
s 

re
si

d
en

ts
 a

lo
n

g 
th

e 
en

ti
re

 jo
u

rn
ey

, 

re
su

lt
in

g 
in

 a
 u

n
iq

u
el

y 
cu

st
o

m
er

 f
o

cu
se

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e.
 

  

Item 18 
Attachment 2

312



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

1
4
 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
w

eb
si

te
s 

ca
n

 v
ar

y 
d

ra
st

ic
al

ly
 in

 lo
o

k 
an

d
 f

ee
l w

h
ile

 s
ti

ll 
m

ai
n

ta
in

in
g 

th
ei

r 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 m
o

b
ile

 r
es

p
o

n
si

ve
n

es
s.

  
So

m
e 

o
f 

o
u

r 
fa

vo
ri

te
 v

is
u

al
 e

xa
m

p
le

s 
ar

e 
lis

te
d

 b
el

o
w

: 

 

 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

313

https://www.lakewood.org/Home
https://www.kirklandwa.gov/Home
https://www.lakewood.org/Home
https://www.kirklandwa.gov/Home
https://www.lakewood.org/Home
https://www.kirklandwa.gov/Home
https://www.lakewood.org/Home
https://www.kirklandwa.gov/Home
https://www.lakewood.org/Home
https://www.kirklandwa.gov/Home
https://www.lakewood.org/Home
https://www.kirklandwa.gov/Home
https://www.lakewood.org/Home
https://www.kirklandwa.gov/Home
https://www.lakewood.org/Home
https://www.lakewood.org/Home
https://www.kirklandwa.gov/Home
https://www.lakewood.org/Home
https://www.kirklandwa.gov/Home
https://www.lakewood.org/Home
https://www.lakewood.org/Home
https://www.kirklandwa.gov/Home
https://www.kirklandwa.gov/Home
https://www.kirklandwa.gov/Home
https://www.lakewood.org/Home
https://www.kirklandwa.gov/Home
https://www.kirklandwa.gov/Home


G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

1
5
 

 
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

314

https://www.lynnwoodwa.gov/Home
https://www.alamedaca.gov/Home
https://www.lynnwoodwa.gov/Home
https://www.alamedaca.gov/Home
https://www.lynnwoodwa.gov/Home
https://www.alamedaca.gov/Home
https://www.lynnwoodwa.gov/Home
https://www.alamedaca.gov/Home
https://www.lynnwoodwa.gov/Home
https://www.alamedaca.gov/Home
https://www.lynnwoodwa.gov/Home
https://www.alamedaca.gov/Home
https://www.lynnwoodwa.gov/Home
https://www.alamedaca.gov/Home
https://www.lynnwoodwa.gov/Home
https://www.lynnwoodwa.gov/Home
https://www.alamedaca.gov/Home
https://www.lynnwoodwa.gov/Home
https://www.alamedaca.gov/Home
https://www.lynnwoodwa.gov/Home
https://www.lynnwoodwa.gov/Home
https://www.alamedaca.gov/Home
https://www.lynnwoodwa.gov/Home
https://www.alamedaca.gov/Home
https://www.alamedaca.gov/Home


G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

1
6
 

 

 

 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

315

https://www.orovalleyaz.gov/Home
https://www.miamigov.com/LHCC/Home
https://www.orovalleyaz.gov/Home
https://www.miamigov.com/LHCC/Home
https://www.orovalleyaz.gov/Home
https://www.miamigov.com/LHCC/Home
https://www.orovalleyaz.gov/Home
https://www.miamigov.com/LHCC/Home
https://www.orovalleyaz.gov/Home
https://www.miamigov.com/LHCC/Home
https://www.orovalleyaz.gov/Home
https://www.miamigov.com/LHCC/Home
https://www.orovalleyaz.gov/Home
https://www.miamigov.com/LHCC/Home
https://www.orovalleyaz.gov/Home
https://www.orovalleyaz.gov/Home
https://www.miamigov.com/LHCC/Home
https://www.miamigov.com/LHCC/Home
https://www.orovalleyaz.gov/Home
https://www.orovalleyaz.gov/Home
https://www.miamigov.com/LHCC/Home
https://www.orovalleyaz.gov/Home
https://www.miamigov.com/LHCC/Home
https://www.miamigov.com/LHCC/Home


G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

1
7
 

R
e

fe
re

n
ce

s 

C
lie

n
t 

C
u

lv
er

 C
it

y,
 C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 

A
n

is
sa

 D
iV

ic
en

te
 

W
eb

m
as

te
r 

9
77

0
 C

u
lv

e
r 

B
lv

d
, C

u
lv

er
 C

it
y,

 C
A

 9
0

2
3

2
 

an
is

sa
.d

iv
in

ce
n

te
@

cu
lv

er
ci

ty
.o

rg
 

W
eb

 li
n

k 
cu

lv
er

ci
ty

.o
rg

/H
o

m
e 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 
A

p
p

ro
xi

m
at

e
ly

 4
0

,0
00

 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
es

 

Fu
ll 

w
eb

 r
ed

es
ig

n
 o

f 
m

ai
n

 s
it

e,
 b

u
s 

si
te

, p
o

lic
e 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

si
te

 in
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 c

o
n

te
n

t 

m
ig

ra
ti

o
n

 

P
ro

je
ct

 D
at

e
s 

M
ar

ch
 2

02
0 

– 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 2

0
20

 

     

 
C

lie
n

t 
G

ra
n

d
 R

ap
id

s,
 M

ic
h

ig
an

 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 

B
ec

ky
 J

o
 G

lo
ve

r 

C
h

ie
f 

In
n

o
va

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
u

st
o

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 O
ff

ic
er

 

6
16

-4
5

6
-3

11
8

 

b
gl

o
ve

r@
gr

ci
ty

.u
s 

W
e

b
 li

n
k 

gr
an

d
ra

p
id

sm
i.g

o
v 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 
A

p
p

ro
xi

m
at

e
ly

 1
8

7
,0

0
0

 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
es

 

A
lp

h
a 

p
ro

je
ct

 p
ro

ce
e

d
ed

 b
y 

fu
ll 

w
eb

si
te

 

re
d

es
ig

n
, O

p
en

Fo
rm

s 
an

d
 D

ig
it

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
ca

d
em

y 

P
ro

je
ct

 D
at

e
s 

Ju
n

e 
2

0
1

6 
- 

Fe
b

ru
ar

y 
2

0
1

8
 

 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

316



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

1
8
 

C
lie

n
t 

O
ro

 V
al

le
y,

 A
ri

zo
n

a
 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 

M
is

ti
 N

o
w

ak
  

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

o
r 

 

1
10

00
 N

. L
a 

C
añ

ad
a 

D
r.

, O
ro

 V
al

le
y,

 A
Z 

8
5

73
7

  

m
n

o
w

ak
@

o
ro

va
lle

ya
z.

go
v 

 

W
eb

 li
n

k 
o

ro
va

lle
ya

z.
go

v 
 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 
A

p
p

ro
xi

m
at

e
ly

 4
5

,0
00

 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
es

 

Fu
ll 

w
eb

si
te

 r
ed

es
ig

n
 a

n
d

  

D
ig

it
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

ca
d

em
y 

P
ro

je
ct

 D
at

e
s 

N
o

v 
2

01
9 

– 
M

ay
 2

0
20

 

 

 
C

lie
n

t 
P

al
o

 A
lt

o
, C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 

G
u

n
ja

n
 K

an
w

al
 

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

, I
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 T

ec
h

n
o

lo
gy

 

6
50

-2
3

9
-2

25
4

 

gu
n

ja
n

.k
an

w
al

@
ci

ty
o

fp
al

o
al

to
.o

rg
 

W
e

b
 li

n
k 

p
al

o
al

to
.p

re
liv

e.
o

p
en

ci
ti

es
.c

o
m

 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 
A

p
p

ro
xi

m
at

e
ly

 6
7

,0
00

 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
es

 

Fu
ll 

w
eb

 r
ed

es
ig

n
, c

o
n

te
n

t 
m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

je
ct

 D
at

e
s 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 2
0

19
 -

 P
re

se
n

t 

 

 
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

317



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

1
9
 

 

 
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

  

W
it

h
 a

 s
im

p
le

, p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

-b
as

ed
 s

u
b

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

 m
o

d
el

, 

an
d

 v
er

y 
sh

o
rt

 s
et

u
p

 t
im

e,
 O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

em
p

o
w

er
s 

lo
ca

l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ts

 o
f 

ev
er

y 
si

ze
 t

o
 t

ra
n

sf
o

rm
 t

h
ei

r 
cu

st
o

m
er

 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

.  

Item 18 
Attachment 2

318



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

2
0
 

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
e

m
e

n
t 

Te
am

 
O

n
ce

 a
 c

o
n

tr
ac

t 
is

 s
ig

n
ed

, O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
w

ill
 a

ss
ig

n
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
er

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g 
te

am
 t

o
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
je

ct
. T

h
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
er

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 

fo
r 

th
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
co

n
tr

ac
t 

si
gn

in
g 

to
 s

it
e

 la
u

n
ch

, a
t 

w
h

ic
h

 p
o

in
t 

th
e 

cl
ie

n
t 

w
ill

 t
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

 c
u

st
o

m
er

 a
d

vo
ca

te
 w

h
o

 w
ill

 
b

e 
yo

u
r 

o
n

go
in

g 
re

so
u

rc
e 

an
d

 p
o

in
t 

o
f 

co
n

ta
ct

. 

Th
e 

ro
le

 o
f 

th
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
er

 is
 d

ef
in

in
g 

a 
ti

m
el

in
e 

an
d

 s
e

t 
o

f 
go

al
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

cl
ie

n
t,

 a
n

d
 t

h
en

 e
n

su
ri

n
g 

th
at

 t
h

ey
 a

re
 m

et
 b

y 
th

e 
en

d
 o

f 
th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
. T

h
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
er

 w
ill

 b
e 

su
p

p
o

rt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

co
n

su
lt

in
g 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 
le

ad
 w

h
o

 r
u

n
s 

w
o

rk
sh

o
p

s 
an

d
 t

ra
in

in
gs

, a
s 

w
e

ll 
as

 t
h

e 
p

ro
d

u
ct

 
ap

p
lic

at
io

n
 s

p
ec

ia
lis

t 
w

h
o

 h
el

p
s 

cl
ie

n
ts

 c
re

at
iv

el
y 

so
lv

e 
p

ro
b

le
m

s 
an

d
 m

ax
im

iz
e 

th
ei

r 
u

se
 o

f 
th

e 
so

ft
w

ar
e.

 O
u

r 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
is

 
o

u
tl

in
ed

 in
 t

h
e

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 r

es
p

o
n

se
. W

h
ile

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
p

eo
p

le
 t

h
at

 w
ill

 b
e 

w
o

rk
in

g 
in

 t
h

e 
b

ac
kg

ro
u

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 
th

e 
su

cc
es

s 
o

f 
yo

u
r 

p
ro

je
ct

, t
h

e 
ke

y 
co

n
ta

ct
s 

yo
u

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 t

o
 e

n
ga

ge
 w

it
h

 in
cl

u
d

e:
 

 

R
e

b
e

k
a

h
 A

n
d

e
rs

o
n

, 
S

r.
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
(P

M
P

) 
lin

ke
d

in
.c

o
m

/i
n

/r
eb

ek
ah

-a
n

d
er

so
n

-p
m

p
-m

b
a 

A
s 

a 
ce

rt
if

ie
d

 P
M

P
, R

eb
ek

ah
 h

as
 w

o
rk

ed
 in

 G
o

vt
ec

h
 f

o
r 

3
+ 

ye
ar

s,
 im

p
le

m
en

ti
n

g 
w

eb
 a

n
d

 c
u

st
o

m
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 
ap

p
lic

at
io

n
s 

in
 o

ve
r 

3
0 

go
ve

rn
m

e
n

ts
. S

h
e 

p
re

vi
o

u
sl

y 
se

rv
ed

 a
s 

a 
p

ro
je

ct
 m

an
ag

er
 f

o
r 

o
ve

r 
1

0
 y

ea
rs

 f
o

r 
e

n
te

rp
ri

se
 

b
u

si
n

es
s 

sy
st

em
s.

 S
h

e 
se

rv
es

 a
s 

m
ai

n
 p

o
in

t 
o

f 
co

n
ta

ct
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 t
ea

m
s 

an
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

s 
cl

ie
n

ts
 w

it
h

 b
es

t 
p

ra
ct

ic
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s.

  

 

W
h

it
n

e
y

 F
a

rr
o

w
, 

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  l
in

ke
d

in
.c

o
m

/i
n

/w
h

it
n

ey
-s

an
ti

n
i 

W
h

it
n

ey
 m

an
ag

es
 c

lie
n

t 
p

ro
je

ct
s 

fr
o

m
 o

n
se

t 
to

 c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

, m
ak

in
g 

su
re

 y
o

u
 s

ta
y 

u
p

 t
o

 d
at

e
 o

n
 t

h
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 e
ve

ry
 

st
e

p
 o

f 
th

e 
w

ay
, w

h
ile

 p
u

lli
n

g 
in

 t
h

e 
co

rr
ec

t 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

re
so

u
rc

es
 w

h
en

 n
ee

d
ed

 f
o

r 
co

n
te

n
t,

 d
es

ig
n

, a
n

d
 m

o
re

. 
W

h
it

n
ey

's
 e

xp
er

ie
n

ce
 in

 t
h

e 
Sa

aS
 w

o
rl

d
 in

cl
u

d
es

 c
u

st
o

m
er

 s
u

cc
es

s,
 r

el
at

io
n

sh
ip

 m
an

ag
em

en
t,

 t
ra

in
in

g,
 a

n
d

 o
n

-
b

o
ar

d
in

g 
w

it
h

 a
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 e

n
d

-t
o

-e
n

d
 c

u
st

o
m

er
 jo

u
rn

ey
s.

 H
er

 p
as

si
o

n
 f

o
r 

cu
st

o
m

er
 a

d
vo

ca
cy

 e
n

su
re

s 
th

at
 e

ve
ry

 
p

ro
je

ct
 is

 a
 t

ru
e 

co
lla

b
o

ra
ti

o
n

 b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

cl
ie

n
t 

an
d

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s.
  

 

A
n

d
y
 P

o
rt

w
o

o
d

, 
U

S
 T

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 L

e
a

d
 

lin
ke

d
in

.c
o

m
/i

n
/a

n
d

yp
o

rt
w

o
o

d
 

In
 h

is
 p

re
vi

o
u

s 
ro

le
s,

 A
n

d
y 

h
as

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

 in
 t

h
e 

H
ea

lt
h

ca
re

 In
d

u
st

ry
. H

e 
al

so
 d

ev
el

o
p

ed
 a

n
d

 le
d

 a
 

C
u

st
o

m
er

 S
u

cc
e

ss
 t

ea
m

 t
h

at
 w

o
rk

ed
 w

it
h

 S
m

al
l B

u
si

n
es

s 
O

w
n

er
s 

to
 o

rg
an

iz
e 

O
p

er
at

io
n

s,
 P

ro
sp

ec
ti

n
g,

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s,

 a
n

d
 M

ar
ke

ti
n

g,
 a

n
d

 m
o

re
. H

is
 s

tr
o

n
g 

u
n

d
er

st
an

d
in

g 
o

f 
th

e 
cu

st
o

m
er

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

 a
llo

w
s 

h
im

 t
o

 
gu

id
e 

yo
u

 t
h

ro
u

gh
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
je

ct
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y.

 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

319



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

2
1
 

 

K
a

ri
 D

ie
tr

ic
h

, 
C

o
n

te
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

is
t 

lin
ke

d
in

.c
o

m
/i

n
/k

d
ie

t 

K
ar

i D
ie

tr
ic

h
 is

 a
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
st

ra
te

gi
st

 w
o

rk
in

g 
o

ve
r 

fi
ft

ee
n

 y
ea

rs
 in

 t
h

e 
d

ig
it

al
 s

p
ac

e.
 S

h
e 

is
 c

o
m

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 d
ev

el
o

p
in

g 
co

n
te

n
t 

so
lu

ti
o

n
s 

th
at

 s
im

p
lif

y 
an

d
 e

le
va

te
 t

h
e 

u
se

r 
ex

p
er

ie
n

ce
. D

ra
w

in
g 

o
n

 h
er

 b
ac

kg
ro

u
n

d
 w

o
rk

in
g 

w
it

h
 b

o
th

 
n

o
n

-p
ro

fi
ts

 a
n

d
 in

st
it

u
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
h

ig
h

er
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

, s
h

e 
se

e
ks

 t
o

 b
ri

d
ge

 c
it

y 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
go

al
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

re
al

-w
o

rl
d

 
n

ee
d

s 
o

f 
it

s 
re

si
d

en
ts

 in
 in

tu
it

iv
e,

 s
u

b
st

an
ti

ve
 w

ay
s.

 K
ar

i '
h

ea
rt

s'
 c

o
n

te
n

t,
 a

n
d

 b
el

ie
ve

s 
yo

u
 w

ill
, t

o
o

. 

 

J
o

n
e

 S
a

u
k

it
o

g
a

, 
C

o
n

te
n

t 
S

p
e

c
ia

li
s
t 

lin
ke

d
in

.c
o

m
/i

n
/j

o
n

e
sa

u
ki

to
ga

 

Jo
n

e 
h

as
 o

ve
r 

1
0 

ye
ar

s 
w

o
rk

in
g 

in
 lo

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

an
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

e
n

ga
ge

m
en

t.
 B

ef
o

re
 jo

in
in

g 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s,

 J
o

n
e 

w
o

rk
ed

 f
o

r 
th

e 
C

it
y 

o
f 

P
al

o
 A

lt
o

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

e
d

 w
it

h
 s

ta
ff

 o
n

 c
re

at
in

g 
co

n
te

n
t,

 C
M

S 
tr

ai
n

in
g,

 w
eb

si
te

 a
cc

es
si

b
ili

ty
, 

an
d

 o
ve

ra
ll 

si
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t.

 D
u

ri
n

g 
th

e 
m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 p

h
as

e,
 J

o
n

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
o

n
e 

o
f 

th
e 

co
n

te
n

t 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t 

le
ad

s 
as

si
st

in
g 

w
it

h
 m

ig
ra

ti
n

g 
co

n
te

n
t 

fr
o

m
 y

o
u

r 
cu

rr
en

t 
si

te
 t

o
 y

o
u

r 
n

ew
 p

la
tf

o
rm

. 

 

I
ri

n
a

 T
ik

h
o

n
o

v
a

, 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti

c
e

 L
e

a
d

 
lin

ke
d

in
.c

o
m

/i
n

/i
ri

n
at

ik
h

o
n

o
va

 

Ir
in

a 
m

an
ag

es
 C

o
n

su
lt

in
g 

fo
r 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s.
 Ir

in
a 

h
as

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

 in
 c

lie
n

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d
 c

o
n

su
lt

in
g 

in
 t

h
e 

So
ft

w
ar

e 
as

 a
 S

o
lu

ti
o

n
 s

p
ac

e,
 w

it
h

 a
 s

tr
o

n
g 

fo
cu

s 
o

n
 m

ak
in

g 
p

eo
p

le
, p

ro
ce

ss
, a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

ct
 w

o
rk

 t
o

ge
th

er
 t

o
 

ac
h

ie
ve

 im
p

ac
tf

u
l o

u
tc

o
m

es
. 

H
er

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

 in
 t

h
e 

te
ch

 f
o

r 
go

o
d

 w
o

rl
d

 s
h

ap
ed

 h
er

 s
ki

lls
 in

 s
tr

at
e

gi
c 

p
la

n
n

in
g,

 u
si

n
g 

d
at

a 
to

 m
ak

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 

d
ec

is
io

n
s,

 f
in

d
in

g 
u

n
iq

u
e 

so
lu

ti
o

n
s 

to
 p

ro
b

le
m

s,
 e

n
co

u
ra

gi
n

g 
e

n
ga

ge
m

en
t 

o
n

 a
 d

ee
p

er
 le

ve
l, 

an
d

 m
an

ag
in

g 
p

ro
je

ct
s 

fr
o

m
 o

n
se

t 
to

 c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

. I
ri

n
a 

w
ill

 ju
m

p
 in

 w
h

en
 y

o
u

 n
ee

d
 a

 s
tr

at
e

gi
c 

co
n

su
lt

an
t 

–
 e

ve
ry

th
in

g 
fr

o
m

 
le

ad
in

g 
th

e 
D

ig
it

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
ca

d
em

y 
to

 w
o

rk
in

g 
o

n
 in

te
rn

al
 b

u
si

n
es

s 
p

ro
ce

ss
 im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

. 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

320



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

2
2
 

 
R

a
c
h

e
l 

B
u

rb
a

n
k

, 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

d
v
o

c
a

c
y
 L

e
a

d
 

lin
ke

d
in

.c
o

m
/i

n
/r

ac
h

el
gb

u
rb

an
k 

R
ac

h
el

 w
ill

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 y
o

u
r 

p
ro

je
ct

 p
o

st
 la

u
n

ch
 a

n
d

 b
ey

o
n

d
. Y

o
u

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
si

x-
m

o
n

th
 c

h
ec

k-
in

s 
w

it
h

 h
er

 a
n

d
 h

er
 

te
am

 t
o

 r
ev

is
it

 g
o

al
s 

an
d

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
an

d
 a

ss
e

ss
 c

u
rr

en
t 

u
sa

ge
 o

f 
th

e 
p

la
tf

o
rm

. S
h

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
yo

u
r 

p
o

in
t 

o
f 

co
n

ta
ct

 f
o

r 
an

y 
n

o
n

-s
u

p
p

o
rt

 r
el

at
e

d
 q

u
es

ti
o

n
s,

 li
ke

 s
tr

at
e

gy
 o

r 
cr

ea
ti

ve
 p

ro
b

le
m

 s
o

lv
in

g 
an

d
 p

ro
d

u
ct

 f
ee

d
b

ac
k.

  

R
ac

h
el

 c
am

e 
to

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
in

 2
0

1
9

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

C
it

y 
o

f 
La

ke
w

o
o

d
 in

 C
o

lo
ra

d
o

, w
h

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

 R
FP

 in
 2

0
18

 w
h

er
e 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
w

as
 s

el
ec

te
d

 a
s 

th
ei

r 
ve

n
d

o
r 

o
f 

ch
o

ic
e.

 S
h

e 
le

d
 a

 la
rg

e 
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 r
ed

es
ig

n
 f

o
r 

La
ke

w
o

o
d

 a
n

d
 h

as
 

n
o

w
 t

ra
n

si
ti

o
n

ed
 t

o
 t

h
e 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
te

am
 w

h
er

e 
sh

e 
u

se
s 

h
er

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

 o
n

 t
h

e 
cl

ie
n

t 
si

d
e 

an
d

 e
xp

er
ti

se
 in

 t
h

e 
p

la
tf

o
rm

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 y
o

u
r 

te
am

 w
it

h
 c

re
at

iv
e 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

 s
o

lu
ti

o
n

s 
fr

o
m

 s
ta

rt
 t

o
 f

in
is

h
. 

 

 J
o

s
e

 O
te

ro
, 

U
s
e

r 
E

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 D
e

s
ig

n
, 

a
n

d
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 E
x

p
e

rt
 

o
te

ro
m

ed
ia

.n
et

 

Jo
se

 b
ri

n
gs

 o
ve

r 
1

5
 y

ea
rs

 o
f 

e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
n

g 
w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
an

d
 p

ri
va

te
 s

ec
to

r 
o

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

s 
to

 
im

p
ro

ve
 c

u
st

o
m

er
 e

xp
er

ie
n

ce
s 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
d

ig
it

al
 t

o
u

ch
p

o
in

ts
. H

is
 e

xp
er

ti
se

 a
rc

h
it

ec
ti

n
g 

ex
ce

p
ti

o
n

al
 u

se
r 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

s 
co

u
p

le
d

 w
it

h
 s

tr
o

n
g 

fr
o

n
t-

en
d

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

sk
ill

s 
h

as
 p

ro
ve

d
 t

o
 b

e 
es

se
n

ti
al

 in
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
q

u
al

it
y 

o
u

tc
o

m
es

 o
n

 h
ig

h
-v

al
u

e 
p

ro
je

ct
s.

 A
 r

ar
e 

co
m

b
in

at
io

n
 o

f 
b

u
si

n
es

s 
sa

vv
y 

an
d

 t
ec

h
n

ic
al

 k
n

o
w

le
d

ge
, J

o
se

 h
as

 a
ll 

th
e 

h
ar

d
 a

n
d

 s
o

ft
 s

ki
lls

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 s

ee
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

fr
o

m
 in

ce
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

 
 

 

 C
o

li
n

 M
o

rr
is

, 
E

n
g

in
e

e
ri

n
g

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 L
e

a
d

 
lin

ke
d

in
.c

o
m

/i
n

/c
o

lin
-m

o
rr

is
-9

3
85

a9
5

9
 

W
it

h
 o

ve
r 

1
5

 y
ea

rs
’ e

xp
er

ie
n

ce
 in

 I.
T.

 h
el

p
d

es
k 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 w

it
h

in
 lo

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t,

 C
o

lin
 h

o
ld

s 
a 

d
ee

p
 

u
n

d
er

st
an

d
in

g 
o

f 
th

e 
n

ee
d

s,
 c

h
al

le
n

ge
s,

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

in
gs

 o
f 

ci
ty

 I.
T.

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

. C
o

m
b

in
ed

 w
it

h
 h

is
 w

o
rk

in
g 

kn
o

w
le

d
ge

 o
f 

th
e 

co
m

m
o

n
 s

ys
te

m
s 

u
se

d
 a

cr
o

ss
 lo

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
ts

 a
cr

o
ss

 A
u

st
ra

lia
, C

o
lin

 w
ill

 t
ak

e
 le

ad
 o

n
 

w
o

rk
in

g 
w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

I.
T.

 t
ea

m
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 in

st
al

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

o
u

r 
co

n
n

ec
to

rs
 a

n
d

 3
rd

 p
ar

ty
 s

ys
te

m
 in

te
gr

at
io

n
s,

 h
o

st
in

g 
an

d
 e

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
re

la
te

d
 m

at
te

rs
, a

n
d

 e
n

gi
n

ee
ri

n
g 

ac
ti

vi
ti

es
. 

 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

321



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

2
3
 

 

 

L
u

k
e

 N
o

rr
is

, 
M

a
n

a
g

in
g

 D
ir

e
c
to

r,
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
R

e
la

ti
o

n
s
 

lin
ke

d
in

.c
o

m
/i

n
/l

u
ke

d
n

o
rr

is
 

W
it

h
 o

ve
r 

1
6

 y
ea

rs
 o

f 
e

xp
er

ie
n

ce
, a

n
d

 a
s 

th
e 

fo
rm

er
 s

en
io

r 
d

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
R

el
at

io
n

s 
fo

r 
C

o
d

e 
fo

r 
A

m
e

ri
ca

, L
u

ke
 a

d
vi

se
s 

G
o

ve
rn

o
rs

, M
ay

o
rs

, C
o

u
n

ty
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

s,
 C

h
ie

f 
In

n
o

va
ti

o
n

 O
ff

ic
er

s 
ar

o
u

n
d

 t
h

e 
U

n
it

e
d

 S
ta

te
s 

o
n

 t
h

e 
to

p
ic

s 
o

f 
in

n
o

va
ti

o
n

, g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
te

ch
n

o
lo

gy
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

e
n

ga
ge

m
en

t 
in

 2
1

st
 c

en
tu

ry
 g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t.

 
Lu

ke
 c

an
 a

ss
is

t 
lo

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

w
eb

si
te

 m
an

ag
er

s 
to

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
ly

 e
n

ga
ge

 c
it

y 
le

ad
er

s 
in

 t
h

e 
d

ig
it

al
 t

ra
n

sf
o

rm
at

io
n

 
jo

u
rn

ey
. 

 

T
im

o
th

y
 C

o
n

n
e

ll
, 

P
ro

d
u

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
lin

ke
d

in
.c

o
m

/i
n

/t
ic

o
n

n
el

l 

A
s 

a 
cr

ea
ti

ve
 t

ec
h

n
o

lo
gi

st
, T

im
o

th
y 

h
o

ld
s 

o
ve

r 
2

0
,0

0
0

 h
o

u
rs

 o
f 

h
an

d
s-

o
n

 a
n

d
 e

xe
cu

ti
ve

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

 s
p

an
n

in
g 

St
ra

te
gy

, I
n

n
o

va
ti

o
n

, D
ig

it
al

 T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

at
io

n
, P

ro
d

u
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 D
el

iv
er

y 
fo

r 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
an

d
 c

o
m

m
er

ci
al

 
p

ro
je

ct
s.

 W
it

h
 S

M
E 

kn
o

w
le

d
ge

 a
cr

o
ss

 A
gi

le
, M

ar
ke

ti
n

g 
A

u
to

m
at

io
n

, F
ro

n
t-

en
d

 E
n

gi
n

ee
ri

n
g,

 C
X

, D
es

ig
n

 S
ys

te
m

s,
 

Se
ar

ch
, E

n
te

rp
ri

se
 C

M
S,

 C
o

n
te

n
t 

W
ri

ti
n

g,
 A

n
al

yt
ic

s,
 B

ig
 d

at
a,

 a
n

d
 m

ac
h

in
e 

le
ar

n
in

g.
 

 

  
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

322



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

2
4
 

P
ro

je
ct

 A
p

p
ro

ac
h

 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
h

as
 r

em
o

ve
d

 t
h

e 
ri

sk
 a

n
d

 e
ff

o
rt

 o
f 

tr
ad

it
io

n
al

 w
eb

 
an

d
 in

tr
an

e
t 

re
d

es
ig

n
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

b
y 

d
ev

el
o

p
in

g 
a 

re
p

ea
ta

b
le

 
p

ro
ce

ss
 o

f 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t,
 c

o
n

te
n

t,
 a

n
d

 d
ig

it
al

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

d
el

iv
er

y.
  

Lo
ca

l d
is

tr
ic

ts
 o

ft
en

 a
sk

: 

•
 

H
o

w
 c

an
 w

e 
b

e 
su

re
 w

e 
ar

e 
ch

o
o

si
n

g 
th

e 
ri

gh
t 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
n

d
 

te
ch

n
o

lo
gy

 f
o

r 
o

u
r 

n
ee

d
s?

 

•
 

H
o

w
 c

an
 w

e 
as

su
re

 t
h

at
 w

e 
w

ill
 n

o
t 

se
e 

ch
an

ge
 o

rd
er

s 
th

at
 

af
fe

ct
 o

u
r 

d
ea

d
lin

es
 a

n
d

 b
u

d
ge

t?
 

•
 

H
o

w
 d

o
 w

e
 m

ak
e 

su
re

 o
u

r 
n

ew
 d

ig
it

al
 p

re
se

n
ce

 m
ee

ts
 a

ll 
o

u
r 

go
al

s,
 a

n
d

 is
 o

n
e 

w
e 

ca
n

 b
e 

p
ro

u
d

 o
f?

 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
is

 t
h

e 
an

sw
er

. W
e 

co
n

ti
n

u
o

u
sl

y 
re

fi
n

e 
o

u
r 

te
ch

n
o

lo
gy

 a
n

d
 

o
n

b
o

ar
d

in
g 

p
ro

ce
ss

 t
h

ro
u

gh
 o

u
r 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

 p
ar

tn
er

in
g 

w
it

h
 lo

ca
l 

d
is

tr
ic

ts
 ju

st
 li

ke
 y

o
u

rs
. F

o
r 

yo
u

r 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t,
 y

o
u

 w
ill

 b
e 

as
si

gn
ed

 a
n

 
ex

p
er

ie
n

ce
d

 p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
er

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
le

m
en

ti
n

g 
p

ro
je

ct
 t

ea
m

, w
h

o
 

u
ti

liz
e

 a
n

 a
gi

le
 im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y 

a 
si

m
p

le
 o

n
lin

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
d

as
h

b
o

ar
d

 t
h

at
 m

ak
e

s 
it

 e
as

y 
fo

r 
e

ve
ry

o
n

e 
to

 
tr

ac
k 

p
ro

je
ct

 s
ta

tu
s.

  

 
P

ro
je

ct
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

 is
 k

ey
. W

e 
u

n
d

er
st

an
d

 t
h

at
 t

o
 h

av
e 

a 
su

cc
es

sf
u

l 
p

ro
je

ct
, w

e 
n

ee
d

 m
o

re
 t

h
an

 ju
st

 p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
em

en
t.

 W
e

 w
o

rk
 

to
 u

n
d

er
st

an
d

 w
h

at
 le

ve
l o

f 
re

gu
la

r 
ch

ec
k-

in
’s

 w
ill

 w
o

rk
 m

o
st

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
fo

r 
yo

u
r,

 w
h

et
h

er
 it

’s
 w

ee
kl

y 
o

r 
b

i-
w

ee
kl

y,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
h

o
w

 o
ft

en
 y

o
u

r 
ex

e
cu

ti
ve

s 
o

r 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 t
e

am
 n

ee
d

s 
to

 b
e 

b
ri

ef
ed

 (
th

in
k 

co
u

n
ci

l m
em

b
er

s 
an

d
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

s,
 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

h
ea

d
s,

 c
it

y 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
o

rs
– 

fo
lk

s 
th

at
 n

ee
d

 t
o

 b
e 

u
p

d
at

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

an
d

 s
ig

n
 o

ff
 o

n
 it

 a
t 

th
e 

en
d

 
b

u
t 

m
ay

 n
o

t 
b

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 t
h

e 
d

ai
ly

 t
as

ks
 o

f 
cr

ea
ti

n
g 

th
e 

n
ew

 
si

te
).

 O
u

r 
re

gu
la

r 
m

ee
ti

n
gs

 w
it

h
 y

o
u

r 
co

re
 t

ea
m

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
n

d
u

ct
e

d
 v

ia
 M

ic
ro

so
ft

 T
ea

m
s 

o
r 

yo
u

r 
p

re
fe

rr
ed

 
te

le
co

n
fe

re
n

ci
n

g 
p

la
tf

o
rm

, a
n

d
 w

e 
ca

n
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

w
ri

tt
en

 o
r 

te
le

co
n

fe
re

n
ce

 u
p

d
at

es
 t

o
 y

o
u

r 
ex

ec
u

ti
ve

 t
ea

m
. 

   

  
 

 

  
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

323



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

2
5
 

Ti
m

e
lin

e 
A

s 
a 

Sa
aS

 s
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
h

at
 d

o
es

 n
o

t 
re

q
u

ir
e 

cu
st

o
m

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t,

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
ca

n
 b

e 
fu

lly
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 a
n

d
 r

ea
d

y 
fo

r 
co

n
te

n
t 

w
it

h
in

 a
 m

at
te

r 
o

f 
w

ee
ks

. 
Th

e
 p

ri
m

ar
y 

va
ri

ab
le

 f
o

r 
la

u
n

ch
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
ti

m
e 

n
ee

d
ed

 b
y 

th
e

 d
is

tr
ic

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
vi

su
al

 d
es

ig
n

 p
ro

ce
ss

, t
h

e 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

in
it

ia
l 

co
n

su
lt

in
g 

p
ac

ka
ge

s 
in

 t
h

e 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t,
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
av

ai
la

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
st

af
f 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
n

te
n

t 
en

tr
y 

an
d

 m
ig

ra
ti

o
n

 p
ro

ce
ss

. T
h

e
 s

am
p

le
 t

im
el

in
e 

b
el

o
w

 
d

em
o

n
st

ra
te

s 
a 

fi
ve

- 
to

 s
ev

en
-m

o
n

th
 p

ro
je

ct
, h

o
w

ev
er

 o
u

r 
ag

ile
 a

n
d

 it
er

at
iv

e
 m

et
h

o
d

o
lo

gy
 a

llo
w

s 
u

s 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 o
r 

d
ec

re
as

e
 t

h
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 le
n

gt
h

 
to

 m
ee

t 
yo

u
r 

la
u

n
ch

 g
o

al
s.

 A
s 

a 
p

o
in

t 
o

f 
re

fe
re

n
ce

, w
e 

h
av

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 in

 a
s 

lit
tl

e 
as

 f
o

u
r 

m
o

n
th

s.
 

  

 

 
 

P
h

as
e 

1
: K

ic
k-

o
ff

, D
is

co
ve

ry
, a

n
d

 D
at

a 
A

n
al

ys
is

P
h

as
e 

2
: D

es
ig

n
, C

o
n

fi
gu

ra
ti

o
n

, a
n

d
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
M

ig
ra

ti
o

n

P
h

as
e 

3
: T

ra
in

in
g 

P
h

as
e 

4
: C

o
n

te
n

t 
C

re
at

io
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 a
n

d
 B

e
ta

 L
au

n
ch

P
h

as
e 

5
: L

au
n

ch
 a

n
d

 E
vo

lv
e

5
-7

 M
o

n
th

s 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

324



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

2
6
 

P
ro

je
ct

 Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
h

as
e

 1
: K

ic
ko

ff
, D

is
co

ve
ry

, a
n

d
 D

at
a 

A
n

al
ys

is
  

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
an

d
 t

h
e 

cl
ie

n
t 

co
m

e
 t

o
ge

th
er

 a
s 

a 
te

am
 t

o
 m

u
tu

al
ly

 c
o

n
fi

rm
 t

h
e 

p
ro

ce
ss

, e
st

ab
lis

h
 c

la
ri

ty
 o

n
 w

h
o

 d
o

es
 w

h
at

, d
et

er
m

in
e

 t
h

e 
d

at
e

s 
fo

r 
ke

y 
m

ee
ti

n
gs

 a
n

d
 d

el
iv

er
ab

le
s,

 a
n

d
 la

y 
th

e 
gr

o
u

n
d

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

a 
su

cc
es

sf
u

l p
ro

je
ct

 

D
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

s:
 

✓
 K

ic
k 

o
ff

 m
ee

ti
n

g 
 

✓
 S

ta
ke

h
o

ld
er

 D
is

co
ve

ry
 

✓
 D

at
a 

an
d

 A
n

al
yt

ic
s 

 

✓
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
M

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

✓
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
R

at
io

n
al

iz
at

io
n

 (
d

is
cu

ss
io

n
 a

n
d

 c
la

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

) 
 

✓
 S

u
rv

ey
 o

f 
u

se
rs

 (
o

p
ti

o
n

al
) 

✓
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 B
ri

ef
in

g 
(o

p
ti

o
n

al
) 

✓
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
lu

ep
ri

n
t 

fo
r 

D
ig

it
al

 M
ar

ke
ti

n
g 

&
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
Fr

am
ew

o
rk

 

✓
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
an

d
 S

ty
le

 G
u

id
e 

C
L
IE

N
T
 R

e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ti
e
s:

 

✓
 D

ef
in

e
 y

o
u

r 
te

am
, i

d
en

ti
fy

 k
ey

 s
ki

lls
 a

n
d

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

, a
n

d
 s

ta
rt

 
au

d
it

in
g 

yo
u

r 
o

w
n

 c
o

n
te

n
t 

  
 

4B
P
re

m
iu

m
 P

a
ck

a
g
e
s:

 

Si
te

 N
av

ig
at

io
n

 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 A
rc

h
it

ec
tu

re
 

5B
S
p
o
tl
ig

h
t:

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

W
e

 u
se

 A
sa

n
a 

to
 m

an
ag

e 
yo

u
r 

p
ro

je
ct

. M
em

b
er

s 
o

f 
yo

u
r 

co
re

 
te

am
 w

ill
 b

e 
gr

an
te

d
 a

cc
es

s,
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 is

 w
h

er
e 

w
e 

w
ill

 
ag

gr
eg

at
e

 t
as

ks
, f

ile
s,

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

ve
rs

at
io

n
s.

 It
 is

 a
 g

re
at

 r
es

o
u

rc
e

 
fo

r 
u

p
d

at
in

g 
yo

u
r 

ex
ec

u
ti

ve
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
p

ro
gr

es
s 

o
f 

th
e 

w
e

b
si

te
. 

 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

325



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

2
7
 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
h

as
e

 2
: D

e
si

gn
, C

o
n

fi
gu

ra
ti

o
n

, a
n

d
 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

M
ig

ra
ti

o
n

 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

p
ro

je
ct

 t
e

am
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
cl

ie
n

t 
w

ill
 s

h
ar

e 
as

se
ts

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 a
lig

n
 

an
d

 d
el

iv
er

 a
 lo

o
k 

an
d

 f
ee

l t
h

at
 r

ef
le

ct
s 

th
e

 s
p

ir
it

 a
n

d
 g

o
al

s 
o

f 
th

e 
ci

ty
 w

h
ile

 
le

ve
ra

gi
n

g 
th

e 
b

es
t 

p
ra

ct
ic

es
 f

o
r 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e
 s

it
e

 la
yo

u
t 

an
d

 d
es

ig
n

. 

D
el

iv
er

ab
le

s:
  

✓
 C

re
at

e
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
fi

gu
re

 t
h

e 
si

te
 in

st
an

ce
  

✓
 C

o
n

fi
gu

re
 g

en
er

al
 lo

ca
ti

o
n

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

  

✓
 H

o
m

ep
ag

e 
an

d
 t

h
em

e 
d

es
ig

n
 r

ev
ie

w
  

✓
 D

es
ig

n
 f

in
al

iz
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 

✓
 F

o
rm

s 
D

ir
ec

to
ry

 a
n

d
 m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

D
F 

Fo
rm

s 

C
LI

EN
T 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

: 

✓
 P

ro
vi

d
e

 d
es

ig
n

 a
ss

et
s 

✓
 P

ro
vi

d
e

 f
ee

d
b

ac
k 

an
d

 a
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
d

es
ig

n
  

✓
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 c

o
n
te

n
t 

ra
ti
o
n
a
liz

a
ti
o
n
 

 

P
re

m
iu

m
 P

ac
ka

ge
s:

  

En
h

an
ce

d
 D

e
si

gn
 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s-
le

d
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
M

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 

9B
Sp

o
tl

ig
h

t:
 D

es
ig

n
 V

al
u

es
 W

o
rk

sh
o

p
 

To
 e

n
su

re
 w

e
 r

ea
lly

 n
ai

l y
o

u
r 

d
es

ig
n

, w
e 

w
ill

 r
u

n
 a

 t
h

em
e

 
w

o
rk

sh
o

p
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

st
ee

ri
n

g 
co

m
m

it
te

e 
an

d
 c

o
re

 t
e

am
 t

o
 

d
is

cu
ss

 g
en

er
al

 s
it

e
 g

o
al

s,
 e

xa
m

p
le

 s
it

es
 a

n
d

 d
es

ig
n

 a
ss

et
s.

 W
e

 
en

co
u

ra
ge

 y
o

u
 t

o
 in

vi
te

 a
 c

o
u

p
le

 o
f 

cu
st

o
m

er
s 

as
 w

e
ll 

so
 t

h
at

 
d

ec
is

io
n

s 
ca

n
 c

o
n

si
d

er
 a

n
 a

ct
u

al
 u

se
r’

s 
p

er
sp

ec
ti

ve
 e

ar
ly

 o
n

. 
Ta

ki
n

g 
th

is
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
, w

e 
in

fo
rm

 t
h

em
e

 d
ir

ec
ti

o
n

 o
p

ti
o

n
s 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g 
m

o
b

ile
 v

ar
ia

ti
o

n
s)

 f
o

r 
it

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

o
f 

fe
e

d
b

ac
k 

an
d

 
re

fi
n

em
en

t 
b

ef
o

re
 w

e
 im

p
le

m
en

t 
th

e 
fi

n
al

 t
h

em
e

 o
n

to
 t

h
e 

si
te

.  

 

 

In
cl

u
d

ed
 

In
cl

u
d

ed
 

 

In
cl

u
d

ed
 

In
cl

u
d

ed
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

326



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

2
8
 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

M
ig

ra
ti

o
n

  
Th

is
 t

w
o

-p
ar

t 
p

ac
ka

ge
 in

cl
u

d
es

 C
o

n
te

n
t 

M
ig

ra
ti

o
n

 
D

is
co

ve
ry

/S
tr

at
e

gy
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
te

n
t 

M
ig

ra
ti

o
n

 D
e

liv
er

y.
 T

h
is

 p
ac

ka
ge

 is
 

o
p

ti
o

n
al

 a
n

d
 b

es
t 

su
it

ed
 f

o
r 

ci
ti

es
 o

r 
co

u
n

ti
es

 t
h

at
 n

ee
d

 a
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 
m

o
vi

n
g 

p
ag

e 
co

n
te

n
t 

an
d

/o
r 

im
ag

es
 a

n
d

 d
o

cu
m

en
t 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e 

o
ld

 
sy

st
em

.  

1
0B
C

o
n

te
n

t 
M

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 D

is
co

ve
ry

/S
tr

at
eg

y 

In
 t

h
is

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
se

ss
io

n
, w

e
 w

ill
 id

en
ti

fy
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
er

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
te

m
p

la
te

 f
o

r 
ea

ch
 p

ag
e

, n
o

te
 a

n
y 

in
co

n
si

st
e

n
ci

es
 o

r 
cu

st
o

m
 

te
m

p
la

te
s,

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

e 
h

o
w

 w
e 

w
ill

 a
d

d
re

ss
 c

er
ta

in
 e

le
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
te

n
t,

 a
n

d
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

ll 
o

f 
th

is
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

ea
m

 le
ad

 o
r 

co
re

 t
ea

m
. 

1
1B
C

o
n

te
n

t 
M

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 D

el
iv

er
y 

O
n

ce
 w

e
 h

av
e 

ag
re

e
d

 u
p

o
n

 a
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d

 a
 t

im
el

in
e,

 o
u

r 
te

am
 o

f 
m

ig
ra

to
rs

 w
ill

 g
et

 t
o

 it
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 d

el
iv

er
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
je

ct
 b

y 
th

e 
d

es
ig

n
at

ed
 d

ea
d

lin
e.

 A
t 

th
e 

en
d

, y
o

u
 w

ill
 r

ec
ei

ve
: 

✓
 A

cc
es

s 
to

 t
h

e 
sy

st
em

 w
it

h
 a

ll 
ag

re
ed

 p
ag

es
 m

o
ve

d
 o

ve
r 

✓
 A

 r
ec

ap
 d

o
cu

m
en

t 
th

at
 d

et
ai

ls
 a

n
yt

h
in

g 
yo

u
r 

te
am

 s
h

o
u

ld
 k

n
o

w
 

ab
o

u
t 

w
h

at
 w

e 
m

ig
ra

te
d

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

 

 
12

BC
lie

n
t 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

: 

✓
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
 A

IM
 S

p
re

ad
sh

ee
t 

(p
ro

vi
d

ed
 b

y 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s)

 li
st

in
g 

al
l 

p
ag

es
 in

 h
ie

ra
rc

h
ic

al
 o

rd
er

 c
la

ss
if

ie
d

 a
s 

ei
th

er
 A

rc
h

iv
e,

 Im
p

ro
ve

 o
r 

M
ig

ra
te

 

✓
 Id

en
ti

fy
 in

d
iv

id
u

al
 o

r 
te

am
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
ab

ili
ty

 t
o

 c
la

ri
fy

 q
u

es
ti

o
n

s 
an

d
 

p
ro

m
p

tl
y 

m
ak

e 
d

ec
is

io
n

s 
ab

o
u

t 
m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 q

u
es

ti
o

n
s 

 

✓
 P

ro
vi

d
e 

a 
d

es
ir

ed
 f

o
ld

er
 s

tr
u

ct
u

re
 f

o
r 

fi
le

s 
(i

f 
co

n
tr

ac
te

d
) 

13
BW

h
at

’s
 IN

 s
co

p
e?

 

✓
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
m

an
ag

ed
 w

it
h

in
 y

o
u

r 
cu

rr
en

t 
C

M
S 

✓
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
/i

m
ag

es
 (

if
 c

o
n

tr
ac

te
d

) 

14
BW

h
at

’s
 N

O
T 

in
 s

co
p

e 

✗
 A

n
yt

h
in

g 
w

it
h

in
 a

n
 iF

ra
m

e 
o

r 
em

b
ed

d
ed

 H
TM

L 
co

n
te

n
t 

✗
 D

yn
am

ic
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
p

u
lle

d
 f

ro
m

 o
th

er
 s

ys
te

m
s 

✗
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
n

o
t 

m
an

ag
ed

 w
it

h
in

 C
M

S 

✗
 J

av
aS

cr
ip

t,
 C

SS
, o

r 
o

th
er

 c
u

st
o

m
 c

o
d

e 

✗
 In

te
ra

ct
iv

e 
w

eb
 f

o
rm

s 
an

d
/o

r 
si

n
gl

e 
p

ag
e 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

s 

✗
 W

ri
tt

en
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 im

ag
e/

d
ia

gr
am

 

✗
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
co

n
ta

in
ed

 in
si

d
e 

a 
P

D
F 

fi
le

 

✗
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
 a

n
d

 im
ag

es
 o

n
 p

ag
es

 m
ar

ke
d

 “
A

rc
h

iv
e”

 

  
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

327



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

2
9
 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
h

as
e

 3
: T

ra
in

in
g 

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
p

ro
vi

d
es

 t
ra

in
in

g 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 t
h

e
 t

yp
es

 o
f 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
th

at
 C

it
y 

w
an

ts
 t

o
 a

ch
ie

ve
 w

it
h

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s.
 

D
el

iv
er

ab
le

s:
  

✓
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
P

u
b

lis
h

er
 t

ra
in

in
g 

 

✓
 O

p
en

Fo
rm

s 
tr

ai
n

in
g 

 

✓
 S

it
e

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
o

r 
tr

ai
n

in
g 

 

✓
 O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

H
el

p
 C

en
te

r 
o

ri
en

ta
ti

o
n

 

C
LI

EN
T 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

: 

✓
 I
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
tt

e
n

d
e
e
s 

fo
r 

tr
a
in

in
g

  

✓
 E

n
su

re
 a

tt
e
n

d
a
n

ce
 b

y
 s

ta
ff

 a
t 

tr
a
in

in
g

  

✓
 I
d

e
n

ti
fy

 p
o

w
e
r 

u
se

rs
 w

h
o

 w
il
l 
o

p
e
ra

te
 a

s 
in

te
rn

a
l 
“t

ra
in

e
rs

” 
 

P
re

m
iu

m
 P

a
ck

a
g
e
s:

  

W
ri

ti
n

g 
fo

r 
th

e
 W

eb
 

D
ig

it
al

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

A
ca

d
em

y 

9B
S
p
o
tl
ig

h
t:

 A
cc

e
ss

ib
ili

ty
 

B
y 

u
si

n
g 

o
u

r 
o

p
ti

m
iz

ed
 p

la
tf

o
rm

, c
o

n
te

n
t 

cr
ea

te
d

 in
 O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

te
m

p
la

te
s 

is
 a

cc
es

si
b

le
 b

y 
d

es
ig

n
. B

y 
d

ef
au

lt
, t

h
e 

w
eb

si
te

 w
ill

 
b

e 
W

C
A

G
 2

.1
 A

A
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t.

 T
h

ro
u

gh
 o

u
r 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

P
u

b
lis

h
er

 
an

d
 S

it
e 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
o

r 
tr

ai
n

in
g 

w
e 

sh
o

w
 y

o
u

 h
o

w
 t

o
 c

o
n

fi
gu

re
 

th
e 

si
te

 t
o

 c
h

ec
k 

th
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 a
 le

ve
l c

o
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 

yo
u

r 
n

ee
d

s,
 a

n
d

 t
o

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
p

ro
m

p
ts

 t
o

 c
o

n
te

n
t 

cr
ea

to
rs

 t
o

 
im

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

te
xt

 a
n

d
 im

ag
es

.  

 

 

In
cl

u
d

ed
 

In
cl

u
d

ed
 

 

In
cl

u
d

ed
 

In
cl

u
d

ed
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

328



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

3
0
 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
h

as
e

 4
: C

o
n

te
n

t 
C

re
at

io
n

 
R

e
vi

e
w

 a
n

d
 B

e
ta

 L
au

n
ch

 
M

ig
ra

te
 o

r 
cr

ea
te

 q
u

al
it

y 
co

n
te

n
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 n
o

w
 f

u
lly

 d
es

ig
n

ed
 a

n
d

 
co

n
fi

gu
re

d
 w

eb
si

te
. E

n
ga

ge
 s

ta
ff

 in
 o

w
n

in
g 

th
ei

r 
p

ag
es

 a
n

d
 w

e
b

 
co

n
te

n
t.

 C
o

n
ve

rt
 s

ta
ti

c 
P

D
Fs

 in
to

 d
yn

am
ic

 d
ig

it
al

 f
o

rm
s.

 

D
el

iv
er

ab
le

s:
 

✓
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
, i

m
p

ro
ve

m
en

t,
 o

r 
cr

ea
ti

o
n

 b
y 

th
e 

C
LI

EN
T 

 

✓
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

f 
co

n
te

n
t 

m
ig

ra
ti

o
n

 p
ro

ce
ss

 b
y 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
 

✓
 B

et
a 

la
u

n
ch

 (
o

p
ti

o
n

al
)  

C
LI

EN
T 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

: 

✓
 C

re
at

in
g,

 im
p

ro
vi

n
g,

 o
r 

m
ig

ra
ti

n
g 

th
e 

w
eb

 c
o

n
te

n
t 

to
 a

rr
iv

e 
at

 
th

e 
d

es
ir

ed
 o

u
tc

o
m

e 
fo

r 
th

e
ir

 s
it

e 

✓
 C

h
am

p
io

n
 o

n
go

in
g 

p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n

 b
y 

st
af

f 
to

 p
ro

d
u

ce
 t

h
e 

b
es

t 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 r
es

u
lt

s 

 
 

21
BSp

o
tl

ig
h

t:
 B

et
a 

La
u

n
ch

 

O
n

e 
o

f 
th

e 
b

es
t 

th
in

gs
 a

b
o

u
t 

h
av

in
g 

an
 e

as
y-

to
-u

se
 p

la
tf

o
rm

 is
 t

h
at

 
fe

e
d

b
ac

k 
ca

n
 b

e 
ac

ti
o

n
ed

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

. T
o

 g
ai

n
 t

h
at

 f
ee

d
b

ac
k,

 w
e 

en
co

u
ra

ge
 a

 s
ta

ge
d

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 t
o

 la
u

n
ch

in
g 

yo
u

r 
n

ew
 w

eb
si

te
. 

St
at

is
ti

ca
lly

, 2
0%

 o
f 

yo
u

r 
p

ag
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

8
0%

 o
f 

yo
u

r 
tr

af
fi

c.
 W

h
en

 t
h

o
se

 p
ag

es
 a

re
 r

ea
d

y,
 B

et
a 

La
u

n
ch

 y
o

u
r 

si
te

 w
it

h
 a

 b
an

n
er

 
in

d
ic

at
in

g 
th

at
 t

h
e 

n
ew

 s
it

e 
is

 in
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

n
d

 li
n

ki
n

g 
to

 t
h

e 
o

ld
 s

it
e 

fo
r 

an
yt

h
in

g 
m

is
si

n
g.

 T
h

is
 p

ro
vi

d
es

 a
n

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
fo

r 
fe

ed
b

ac
k 

fr
o

m
 b

o
th

 
st

af
f 

an
d

 c
u

st
o

m
er

 u
se

rs
 a

n
d

 g
iv

es
 y

o
u

 t
h

e 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y 

to
 a

d
d

re
ss

 a
n

d
 

im
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e 
si

te
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
an

d
 n

av
ig

at
io

n
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 y
o

u
r 

fu
ll 

la
u

n
ch

. 

 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

329



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

3
1
 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
h

as
e

 5
: L

au
n

ch
 a

n
d

 E
vo

lv
e

 
La

u
n

ch
 t

h
e 

n
ew

 w
e

b
si

te
, g

at
h

er
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
re

sp
o

n
se

 a
n

d
 

fe
ed

b
ac

k,
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 f
ee

d
b

ac
k.

 

D
el

iv
er

ab
le

s:
 

✓
 L

au
n

ch
 c

h
ec

kl
is

t 

✓
 U

R
L 

m
ap

p
in

gs
 f

o
r 

to
p

 p
ag

es
 

✓
 S

SL
 c

er
ti

fi
ca

te
s 

is
su

ed
 

✓
 U

p
d

at
e 

D
N

S 

✓
 S

u
b

m
it

 s
it

em
ap

 

✓
 L

au
n

ch
 t

h
e 

n
ew

 s
it

e!
  

✓
 P

ro
je

ct
 r

ev
ie

w
 

✓
 D

ig
it

al
 M

ar
ke

ti
n

g 

C
LI

EN
T 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

: 

✓
 F

in
al

iz
e 

re
vi

ew
 a

n
d

 p
ro

o
fr

ea
d

in
g 

o
f 

th
e 

si
te

 

✓
 F

u
lly

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

e
 in

 r
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

f 
la

u
n

ch
 c

h
ec

kl
is

t 
it

em
s 

✓
 C

o
o

rd
in

at
e 

la
u

n
ch

 a
n

d
 a

n
n

o
u

n
ce

m
en

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 

✓
 P

o
st

-l
au

n
ch

 s
u

rv
ey

 (
o

p
ti

o
n

al
) 

✓
 M

o
n

it
o

r 
fe

ed
b

ac
k 

p
o

st
 la

u
n

ch
 a

n
d

 u
se

 it
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
sl

y 
im

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e 

si
te

  

24
BSp

o
tl

ig
h

t:
 F

ee
d

b
ac

k 
an

d
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
m

u
lt

ip
le

 w
ay

s 
to

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

o
u

sl
y 

m
o

n
it

o
r 

th
e 

si
te

 f
o

r 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

an
d

 c
o

m
p

le
te

n
es

s.
 P

ag
e 

le
ve

l f
ee

d
b

ac
k 

ca
n

 b
e 

tu
rn

ed
 o

n
 in

 
th

e 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

p
la

tf
o

rm
 f

o
r 

sp
ec

if
ic

 c
o

m
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 in

p
u

t.
 T

h
is

 c
an

 b
e 

es
p

ec
ia

lly
 u

se
fu

l o
n

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
p

ag
es

 w
h

er
e 

u
se

rs
 a

re
 li

n
ki

n
g 

to
 a

n
 o

n
lin

e 
fo

rm
.  

Th
e 

fo
rm

s,
 t

h
em

se
lv

es
, c

an
 in

cl
u

d
e 

co
m

m
en

t 
o

r 
va

lu
e 

q
u

es
ti

o
n

s,
 

an
d

 u
se

r 
su

rv
ey

s 
ca

n
 a

gg
re

ga
te

 b
ro

ad
 d

at
a 

ab
o

u
t 

th
e 

si
te

. A
ll 

th
is

 d
at

a 
ca

n
 a

n
d

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e 
u

se
d

 t
o

 m
ak

e 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 c

u
st

o
m

er
 

n
ee

d
. W

it
h

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s,
 e

ve
n

 s
it

e
-w

id
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

ca
n

 b
e 

ea
si

ly
 in

it
ia

te
d

.  

Item 18 
Attachment 2

330



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

3
2
 

Su
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 S
LA

 
A

s 
an

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
cl

ie
n

t,
 y

o
u

r 
an

n
u

al
 s

u
b

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

 f
ee

 in
cl

u
d

es
: 

•
 

M
an

ag
ed

 u
p

d
at

es
 f

o
r 

em
er

gi
n

g 
W

C
A

G
 A

A
 2

.1
+ 

St
an

d
ar

d
s 

•
 

M
an

ag
ed

 u
p

d
at

es
 f

o
r 

n
ew

 w
e

b
 b

ro
w

se
r 

an
d

 d
ev

ic
e 

co
m

p
at

ib
ili

ty
 (

ex
cl

u
d

es
 c

u
st

o
m

 c
o

d
e 

en
ab

le
d

 b
y 

th
e 

C
LI

EN
T)

 

•
 

M
an

ag
ed

 u
p

d
at

es
 f

o
r 

n
ew

 U
X

/U
I c

o
m

p
o

n
en

ts
 a

n
d

 
p

at
te

rn
s 

•
 

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 is
su

es
 p

er
 S

LA
 a

n
d

 u
n

lim
it

ed
 o

n
lin

e 
h

el
p

d
es

k 
fo

r 
al

l o
th

er
 is

su
es

 

•
 

Tw
ic

e 
an

n
u

al
 “

ch
ec

k-
u

p
” 

w
it

h
 O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

cu
st

o
m

er
 

su
cc

es
s 

te
am

 t
o

 e
xp

lo
re

 s
it

e 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 f
o

cu
se

d
 o

n
 

en
h

an
ci

n
g 

yo
u

r 
si

te
s 

u
sa

b
ili

ty
 

Th
e 

SL
A

 t
o

 t
h

e 
ri

gh
t 

o
u

tl
in

es
 o

u
r 

su
p

p
o

rt
 a

va
ila

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 
st

ru
ct

u
re

 f
o

r 
n

o
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
sc

al
at

io
n

 o
f 

q
u

es
ti

o
n

s 
an

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

ti
ck

e
ts

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

co
m

m
it

te
d

 r
es

p
o

n
se

 a
n

d
 r

e
so

lu
ti

o
n

 t
im

es
. 

D
u

ri
n

g 
th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
, y

o
u

r 
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
 is

 a
va

ila
b

le
 t

o
 a

n
sw

er
 

ge
n

er
al

 q
u

es
ti

o
n

s,
 b

u
t 

as
 y

o
u

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 y

o
u

r 
co

n
te

n
t 

an
d

 c
er

ta
in

ly
 

af
te

r 
yo

u
r 

si
te

 is
 la

u
n

ch
ed

 y
o

u
 w

ill
 r

el
y 

m
o

re
 o

n
 t

h
e 

o
n

lin
e 

H
el

p
 

C
en

te
r 

(a
va

ila
b

le
 2

4
x7

x3
65

) 
fo

r 
q

u
es

ti
o

n
s.

  

 
 

Se
ve

ri
ty

 L
ev

el
 

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 P

ro
ce

ss
 

Ta
rg

et
 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y 

1
  

R
ep

o
rt

ab
le

 2
4

x7
x3

6
5

 v
ia

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

 
Te

le
p

h
o

n
e 

n
u

m
b

er
 

A
ck

n
o

w
le

d
ge

m
en

t 
an

d
 a

ss
ig

n
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
b

le
m

 f
o

r 
re

so
lu

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

in
 1

 
h

o
u

r 

W
it

h
in

 f
o

u
r 

h
o

u
rs

 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y 

2
  

R
ep

o
rt

ab
le

 2
4

x7
x3

6
5

 v
ia

 O
n

lin
e 

H
el

p
 C

en
te

r,
 o

r 
b

y 
te

le
p

h
o

n
e 

d
u

ri
n

g 
b

u
si

n
es

s 
h

o
u

rs
 (

7
 a

m
 t

o
 6

 P
M

, 
P

ac
if

ic
 t

im
e)

. A
ck

n
o

w
le

d
ge

m
e

n
t 

an
d

 a
ss

ig
n

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
ro

b
le

m
 f

o
r 

re
so

lu
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
in

 1
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 d

ay
 

P
ro

vi
d

e 
w

o
rk

ar
o

u
n

d
 

o
r 

V
er

si
o

n
 U

p
d

at
e 

to
 f

ix
 p

ro
b

le
m

 b
y 

cl
o

se
 o

f 
n

ex
t 

b
u

si
n

es
s 

d
ay

 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y 

3
  

R
ep

o
rt

ab
le

 2
4

x7
x3

6
5

 v
ia

 O
n

lin
e 

H
el

p
 C

en
te

r.
 A

ck
n

o
w

le
d

ge
m

e
n

t 
an

d
 

as
si

gn
m

en
t 

o
f 

p
ro

b
le

m
 f

o
r 

re
so

lu
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
in

 1
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 d

ay
 

A
s 

so
o

n
 a

s 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 
w

it
h

in
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
e

n
t 

(s
ch

ed
u

le
d

 o
r 

n
ex

t 
ve

rs
io

n
 u

p
d

at
e)

 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y 

4
  

R
ep

o
rt

ab
le

 2
4

x7
x3

6
5

 v
ia

 O
n

lin
e 

H
el

p
 C

en
te

r.
 A

ck
n

o
w

le
d

ge
m

e
n

t 
an

d
 

as
si

gn
m

en
t 

o
f 

p
ro

b
le

m
 f

o
r 

re
so

lu
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
in

 3
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 d

ay
s 

Sc
h

ed
u

le
d

 o
r 

n
ex

t 
ve

rs
io

n
 u

p
d

at
e

 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

331



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

3
3
 

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
A

d
vo

ca
cy

 
A

ft
e

r 
la

u
n

ch
, w

e
 b

el
ie

ve
 t

h
at

 y
o

u
r 

w
eb

si
te

 is
 n

ev
er

 t
ru

ly
 d

o
n

e;
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

ch
an

ge
s 

d
ai

ly
 a

n
d

 
yo

u
r 

w
e

b
si

te
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

ab
le

 t
o

 k
ee

p
 u

p
. I

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g 
yo

u
 w

it
h

 a
 C

M
S 

th
at

 is
 

ea
sy

 t
o

 u
se

, p
o

w
er

fu
l a

n
d

 r
o

b
u

st
, w

e
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
yo

u
 w

it
h

 a
 d

es
ig

n
at

e
d

 C
u

st
o

m
er

 
A

d
vo

ca
te

 w
h

o
 w

ill
 b

e 
yo

u
r 

ch
am

p
io

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 f

o
r 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
su

p
p

o
rt

 m
o

vi
n

g 
fo

rw
ar

d
 

(n
o

te
 t

h
at

 t
h

is
 is

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

th
an

 t
ro

u
b

le
sh

o
o

ti
n

g 
an

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 r

eq
u

es
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 g
o

 
th

ro
u

gh
 t

h
e 

o
n

lin
e 

h
el

p
 d

es
k)

. Y
o

u
r 

C
u

st
o

m
er

 A
d

vo
ca

te
 w

ill
 s

ch
ed

u
le

 m
ee

ti
n

gs
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

te
am

 e
ve

ry
 s

ix
 m

o
n

th
s 

to
 c

h
ec

k 
in

 o
n

 t
h

e 
p

ro
gr

es
s 

b
ei

n
g 

m
ad

e 
to

w
ar

d
s 

ac
h

ie
vi

n
g 

yo
u

r 
d

ig
it

al
 t

ra
n

sf
o

rm
at

io
n

 g
o

al
s,

 h
el

p
 t

h
in

k 
cr

ea
ti

ve
ly

 a
n

d
 s

tr
at

e
gi

ca
lly

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e 
b

es
t 

w
ay

s 
to

 
u

se
 t

h
e 

p
la

tf
o

rm
, o

ff
er

 s
u

gg
es

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

ar
ea

s 
to

 im
p

ro
ve

 y
o

u
r 

si
te

. O
u

r 
o

ve
ra

ll 
go

al
 is

 t
o

 
en

su
re

 y
o

u
 a

re
 g

et
ti

n
g 

th
e 

m
o

st
 o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e 

p
la

tf
o

rm
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
r 

su
b

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 u

ti
liz

in
g 

th
e 

te
ch

n
o

lo
gy

 t
o

 it
s 

fu
lle

st
 e

xt
en

t.
 F

in
al

ly
, w

e 
w

ill
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 y
o

u
 a

re
 a

w
ar

e 
o

f 
re

ce
n

t 
fe

at
u

re
 r

el
ea

se
s 

th
at

 a
re

 in
cl

u
d

ed
 in

 y
o

u
r 

su
b

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 u

p
co

m
in

g 
ro

ad
m

ap
 it

em
s 

th
at

 
m

ig
h

t 
b

e 
o

f 
va

lu
e 

to
 y

o
u

r 
te

am
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
u

n
iq

u
e

 g
o

al
s 

th
at

 y
o

u
 h

av
e 

se
t.

 Y
o

u
r 

C
u

st
o

m
er

 
A

d
vo

ca
te

 w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 t
o

 r
el

ay
 p

ro
d

u
ct

 f
ee

d
b

ac
k 

d
ir

ec
tl

y 
to

 t
h

e 
p

ro
d

u
ct

 t
ea

m
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
w

e 
m

ak
e

 t
o

 t
h

e 
p

la
tf

o
rm

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 a

ct
u

al
 u

se
r 

fe
e

d
b

ac
k 

an
d

 s
ce

n
ar

io
s.

 
In

 s
u

m
m

ar
y,

 w
e 

ar
e 

h
er

e 
to

 b
e 

yo
u

r 
p

ar
tn

er
s 

in
d

ef
in

it
el

y 
an

d
 e

n
su

re
 y

o
u

 a
lw

ay
s 

h
av

e 
a 

w
e

b
si

te
 t

h
at

 y
o

u
 lo

ve
 a

n
d

 t
h

at
 m

ee
ts

 y
o

u
r 

ev
er

-c
h

an
gi

n
g 

n
ee

d
s.

 

 
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

332



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
e

d
 s

ty
le

 in
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
t.

  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

3
4
 

D
ig

it
al

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

A
ca

d
e

m
y 

 
M

o
re

 t
h

an
 ju

st
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

tr
ai

n
in

g,
 t

h
e 

D
ig

it
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

ca
d

em
y 

is
 a

 p
o

w
e

rf
u

l w
ay

 t
o

 h
el

p
 y

o
u

r 
te

am
 a

ck
n

o
w

le
d

ge
 t

h
ei

r 
ex

p
er

ti
se

 a
n

d
 b

ec
o

m
e 

w
e

b
 p

u
b

lis
h

er
s 

w
h

o
 c

re
at

e
 c

it
iz

en
-c

en
tr

ic
 

co
n

te
n

t 
an

d
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 

Th
e 

co
u

rs
e 

u
ti

liz
es

 k
ey

 u
se

r-
ce

n
te

re
d

 d
es

ig
n

 p
ri

n
ci

p
le

s,
 le

ar
n

in
g 

sk
ill

s 
an

d
 t

ec
h

n
iq

u
es

 f
o

r 
jo

u
rn

ey
 m

ap
p

in
g,

 d
ig

it
iz

in
g,

 t
e

st
in

g,
 a

n
d

 
im

p
ro

vi
n

g 
w

eb
 c

o
n

te
n

t,
 a

s 
w

e
ll 

as
 c

re
at

in
g 

O
p

en
Fo

rm
s 

an
d

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 p

ag
es

. T
h

e 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

D
SA

 la
ys

 t
h

e 
fo

u
n

d
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
b

et
te

r 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
w

eb
si

te
s 

an
d

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
 d

ig
it

al
 t

ra
n

sf
o

rm
at

io
n

 
o

u
tc

o
m

es
.  

P
ar

ti
ci

p
an

ts
 w

ill
:  

✓
 J

o
u

rn
ey

 m
ap

 a
 c

u
rr

en
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

 f
o

r 
th

ei
r 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

✓
 C

o
n

ve
rt

 c
u

rr
en

t 
p

ag
e 

co
n

te
n

t 
in

to
 a

 d
ig

it
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 

✓
 B

ec
o

m
e

 f
am

ili
ar

 w
it

h
 a

 u
se

r-
ce

n
te

re
d

 d
es

ig
n

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 

✓
 B

u
ild

 a
n

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
 d

ig
it

al
 f

o
rm

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

O
p

en
Fo

rm
s 

p
la

tf
o

rm
 

✓
 C

re
at

e
 a

n
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
p

ag
e 

u
si

n
g 

an
 O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

te
m

p
la

te
 

✓
 L

ea
rn

 t
ip

s 
an

d
 b

es
t 

p
ra

ct
ic

es
 f

o
r 

u
se

r 
te

st
in

g 
 

✓
 C

o
n

d
u

ct
 a

 s
m

al
l u

se
r 

te
st

in
g 

se
ss

io
n

 (
o

p
ti

o
n

al
) 

 

 
W

h
o

 is
 it

 f
o

r?
 

Th
e 

D
ig

it
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

ca
d

em
y 

is
 f

o
r 

yo
u

r 
te

am
 m

em
b

er
s 

in
 e

ac
h

 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

w
h

o
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
ct

 m
at

te
r 

ex
p

er
ts

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

te
n

t 

au
th

o
rs

 w
it

h
o

u
t 

th
at

 n
ee

d
in

g 
to

 b
e 

th
ei

r 
ti

tl
e 

o
r 

ke
y 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

. T
h

es
e 

ar
e 

th
e 

p
eo

p
le

 w
it

h
in

 y
o

u
r 

o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
 

w
h

o
 w

an
t 

to
 le

ar
n

 h
o

w
 t

o
 im

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e 

w
e

b
si

te
 c

o
n

te
n

t,
 

tr
an

sf
o

rm
 s

ta
ti

c 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 in

to
 d

ig
it

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d

 f
u

lly
 

le
ve

ra
ge

 t
h

e 
p

u
b

lis
h

in
g,

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

, a
n

d
 r

ep
o

rt
in

g 
ca

p
ab

ili
ti

es
 

in
 t

h
e 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
p

la
tf

o
rm

. 

P
ar

ti
ci

p
an

ts
 a

n
d

 t
im

ef
ra

m
e 

Th
is

 t
ra

in
in

g 
p

ro
gr

am
 t

ak
e

s 
p

la
ce

 o
ve

r 
3

 h
al

f-
d

ay
 s

es
si

o
n

s 

d
u

ri
n

g 
o

n
e

 w
ee

k.
 It

 w
ill

 in
tr

o
d

u
ce

 u
p

 t
o

 2
5

 s
u

b
je

ct
 m

at
te

r 

ex
p

er
ts

 (
st

af
f 

fr
o

m
 t

h
ro

u
gh

o
u

t 
yo

u
r 

o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
) 

to
 t

h
e

 

p
ro

ce
ss

 a
n

d
 v

al
u

e
 o

f 
d

ig
it

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
ro

u
gh

 a
 u

se
r 

m
in

d
se

t.
 

O
u

tc
o

m
es

 

Fo
r 

ea
ch

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
re

se
n

te
d

 a
t 

th
e 

w
o

rk
sh

o
p

, y
o

u
r 

p
ar

ti
ci

p
an

ts
 

w
ill

 c
re

at
e

 o
r 

ga
in

 u
n

d
er

st
an

d
in

g 
o

f:
  

✓
 A

 c
u

st
o

m
er

 jo
u

rn
ey

 m
ap

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

jo
u

rn
ey

 m
ap

p
in

g 
p

ro
ce

ss
 

✓
 A

n
 O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 p
ag

e 
fo

r 
co

m
p

le
ti

n
g 

th
e 

gi
ve

n
 s

er
vi

ce
  

✓
 A

n
 O

p
en

Fo
rm

 (
d

ig
it

al
 f

o
rm

) 
fo

r 
th

e 
o

n
lin

e
 s

er
vi

ce
  

✓
 F

ee
d

b
ac

k 
fr

o
m

 u
se

r 
te

st
in

g 

P
re

m
iu

m
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

333



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

3
5
 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

M
ig

ra
ti

o
n

  
Th

is
 t

w
o

-p
ar

t 
p

ac
ka

ge
 in

cl
u

d
es

 C
o

n
te

n
t 

M
ig

ra
ti

o
n

 
D

is
co

ve
ry

/S
tr

at
e

gy
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
te

n
t 

M
ig

ra
ti

o
n

 D
e

liv
er

y.
 T

h
is

 p
ac

ka
ge

 
is

 o
p

ti
o

n
al

 a
n

d
 b

es
t 

su
it

ed
 f

o
r 

ci
ti

es
 o

r 
co

u
n

ti
es

 t
h

at
 n

ee
d

 
as

si
st

an
ce

 m
o

vi
n

g 
p

ag
e 

co
n

te
n

t 
an

d
/o

r 
im

ag
es

 a
n

d
 d

o
cu

m
en

t 
fr

o
m

 
th

e 
o

ld
 s

ys
te

m
.  

C
o

n
te

n
t 

M
ig

ra
ti

o
n

 D
is

co
ve

ry
/S

tr
at

eg
y 

In
 t

h
is

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
se

ss
io

n
, w

e
 w

ill
 id

en
ti

fy
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
er

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
te

m
p

la
te

 f
o

r 
ea

ch
 p

ag
e,

 n
o

te
 a

n
y 

in
co

n
si

st
e

n
ci

es
 o

r 
cu

st
o

m
 

te
m

p
la

te
s,

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

e 
h

o
w

 w
e 

w
ill

 a
d

d
re

ss
 c

er
ta

in
 e

le
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
te

n
t,

 a
n

d
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

ll 
o

f 
th

is
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

ea
m

 le
ad

 o
r 

co
re

 t
ea

m
. 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

M
ig

ra
ti

o
n

 D
el

iv
er

y 

O
n

ce
 w

e
 h

av
e

 a
gr

ee
d

 u
p

o
n

 a
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d

 a
 t

im
el

in
e,

 o
u

r 
te

am
 o

f 
m

ig
ra

to
rs

 w
ill

 g
et

 t
o

 it
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 d

el
iv

er
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
je

ct
 b

y 
th

e 
d

es
ig

n
at

ed
 d

ea
d

lin
e.

 A
t 

th
e 

en
d

, y
o

u
 w

ill
 r

ec
ei

ve
: 

✓
 A

cc
es

s 
to

 t
h

e 
sy

st
em

 w
it

h
 a

ll 
ag

re
ed

 p
ag

es
 m

o
ve

d
 o

ve
r 

✓
 A

 r
ec

ap
 d

o
cu

m
en

t 
th

at
 d

et
ai

ls
 a

n
yt

h
in

g 
yo

u
r 

te
am

 s
h

o
u

ld
 k

n
o

w
 

ab
o

u
t 

w
h

at
 w

e 
m

ig
ra

te
d

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

 

 
C

it
y 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

: 

✓
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
 A

IM
 S

p
re

ad
sh

ee
t 

(p
ro

vi
d

ed
 b

y 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s)

 li
st

in
g 

al
l p

ag
es

 

in
 h

ie
ra

rc
h

ic
al

 o
rd

er
 c

la
ss

if
ie

d
 a

s 
ei

th
er

 A
rc

h
iv

e,
 Im

p
ro

ve
 o

r 
M

ig
ra

te
 

✓
 Id

en
ti

fy
 in

d
iv

id
u

al
 o

r 
te

am
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
ab

ili
ty

 t
o

 c
la

ri
fy

 q
u

es
ti

o
n

s 
an

d
 

p
ro

m
p

tl
y 

m
ak

e 
d

ec
is

io
n

s 
ab

o
u

t 
m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 q

u
es

ti
o

n
s 

 

✓
 P

ro
vi

d
e 

a 
d

es
ir

ed
 f

o
ld

er
 s

tr
u

ct
u

re
 f

o
r 

fi
le

s 
(i

f 
co

n
tr

ac
te

d
) 

W
h

at
’s

 IN
 s

co
p

e?
 

✓
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
m

an
ag

ed
 w

it
h

in
 y

o
u

r 
cu

rr
en

t 
C

M
S 

✓
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
/i

m
ag

es
 (

if
 c

o
n

tr
ac

te
d

) 

W
h

at
’s

 N
O

T 
in

 s
co

p
e 

✗
 A

n
yt

h
in

g 
w

it
h

in
 a

n
 iF

ra
m

e 
o

r 
em

b
ed

d
ed

 H
TM

L 
co

n
te

n
t 

✗
 D

yn
am

ic
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
p

u
lle

d
 f

ro
m

 o
th

er
 s

ys
te

m
s 

✗
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
n

o
t 

m
an

ag
ed

 w
it

h
in

 C
M

S 

✗
 J

av
aS

cr
ip

t,
 C

SS
, o

r 
o

th
er

 c
u

st
o

m
 c

o
d

e 

✗
 In

te
ra

ct
iv

e 
w

eb
 f

o
rm

s 
an

d
/o

r 
si

n
gl

e 
p

ag
e 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

s 

✗
 W

ri
tt

en
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 im

ag
e/

d
ia

gr
am

 

✗
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
co

n
ta

in
ed

 in
si

d
e 

a 
P

D
F 

fi
le

 

✗
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
 a

n
d

 im
ag

es
 o

n
 p

ag
es

 m
ar

ke
d

 “
A

rc
h

iv
e”

 

P
re

m
iu

m
 

In
cl

u
d

e
d

 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

334



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

3
6
 

W
ri

ti
n

g 
fo

r 
th

e
 W

e
b

 
If

 t
h

e
 D

ig
it

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
ca

d
em

y 
is

 m
o

re
 t

h
an

 y
o

u
 a

re
 lo

o
ki

n
g 

fo
r,

 b
u

t 
yo

u
 w

o
u

ld
 s

ti
ll 

lik
e 

st
af

f 
to

 h
av

e
 s

o
m

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 t
ra

in
in

g 
o

n
 w

ri
ti

n
g 

b
et

te
r 

co
n

te
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
w

e
b

, y
o

u
 c

an
 s

el
ec

t 
ju

st
 t

h
e 

W
ri

ti
n

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
W

eb
 p

o
rt

io
n

. T
h

is
 w

o
rk

sh
o

p
 w

ill
 m

ak
e 

su
re

 y
o

u
r 

st
af

f 
is

 w
e

ll 
eq

u
ip

p
ed

 t
o

 c
re

at
e

 n
ew

 c
o

n
te

n
t 

th
at

 is
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

ly
 w

ri
tt

en
, 

o
rg

an
iz

ed
, a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

fo
r 

yo
u

r 
re

si
d

en
ts

. T
h

is
 t

w
o

-h
o

u
r 

w
o

rk
sh

o
p

 
w

ill
 h

el
p

 t
ea

ch
 s

ta
ff

 h
o

w
 t

o
 m

ak
e

 c
o

n
te

n
t 

in
te

re
st

in
g,

 
u

n
d

er
st

an
d

ab
le

, a
n

d
 f

re
e

 o
f 

ja
rg

o
n

, w
h

ile
 s

ta
yi

n
g 

in
si

d
e

 t
h

e 
ci

ty
 

gu
id

el
in

es
. C

an
 b

e 
d

el
iv

er
ed

 t
o

 u
p

 t
o

 2
0

 s
ta

ff
 a

t 
a 

ti
m

e.
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 A
rc

h
it

e
ct

u
re

 
U

p
d

at
in

g 
yo

u
r 

w
e

b
si

te
’s

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 A
rc

h
it

ec
tu

re
 (

IA
) 

is
 k

ey
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
vi

n
g 

th
e 

o
ve

ra
ll 

u
se

r 
ex

p
er

ie
n

ce
. O

p
en

C
it

ie
s’

 IA
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

in
vo

lv
es

 w
e

b
si

te
 d

at
a 

an
al

ys
is

, u
se

r 
re

se
ar

ch
 a

n
d

 u
se

r 
te

st
in

g,
 a

n
d

 
o

th
er

 b
es

t-
p

ra
ct

ic
e 

m
et

h
o

d
o

lo
gi

es
 t

h
at

 s
e

rv
e 

to
 s

e
am

le
ss

ly
 b

ri
d

ge
 

yo
u

r 
go

al
s 

w
it

h
 u

se
r 

n
ee

d
s.

 T
h

is
 e

ff
o

rt
 w

ill
 r

es
u

lt
 in

 a
 c

o
h

es
iv

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
 t

o
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

es
 a

n
d

 a
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
o

f 
a 

co
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 n
av

ig
at

io
n

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

 f
o

r 
yo

u
r 

n
ew

 s
it

e,
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
cr

ea
ti

o
n

 o
f 

an
 a

ct
io

n
ab

le
 m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

yo
u

r 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

co
n

te
n

t.
 

 
En

h
an

ce
d

 D
es

ig
n

  
Th

is
 in

fo
rm

s 
th

e 
cr

ea
ti

o
n

 o
f 

an
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 h
o

m
ep

ag
e

 d
es

ig
n

 
o

p
ti

o
n

/w
ir

ef
ra

m
e

 (
th

re
e 

to
ta

l)
, w

it
h

 t
w

o
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 r
o

u
n

d
s 

o
f 

re
vi

si
o

n
s 

(f
iv

e 
to

ta
l)

 o
n

 t
h

e 
se

le
ct

ed
 h

o
m

ep
ag

e
 d

es
ig

n
 a

n
d

 in
cl

u
si

o
n

 
o

f 
se

co
n

d
ar

y 
p

ag
e 

d
es

ig
n

 c
o

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
fi

n
is

h
ed

 h
o

m
ep

ag
e

 
d

es
ig

n
.  

C
o

n
te

n
t 

R
at

io
n

al
iz

at
io

n
 a

n
d

  
N

av
ig

at
io

n
 

If
 y

o
u

 a
re

 u
n

su
re

 w
h

ic
h

 p
ag

es
 o

n
 y

o
u

r 
si

te
 y

o
u

 w
an

t 
to

 a
rc

h
iv

e,
 

im
p

ro
ve

, o
r 

m
ig

ra
te

 a
s 

is
, o

r 
ar

e 
u

n
su

re
 o

f 
th

e 
id

ea
l n

av
ig

at
io

n
 o

n
 

th
e 

n
ew

 s
it

e,
 O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

w
ill

 r
e

vi
ew

 y
o

u
r 

p
ag

es
 a

n
d

 p
ag

e
-v

ie
w

 
an

al
yt

ic
s 

to
 r

e
co

m
m

en
d

 a
 s

it
e

 n
av

ig
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 s

tr
at

e
gy

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 n

o
te

 w
h

er
e 

w
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

 im
p

ro
vi

n
g 

co
n

te
n

t 
u

si
n

g 
o

u
r 

te
m

p
la

te
 f

u
n

ct
io

n
al

it
y,

 a
s 

w
e

ll 
as

 w
h

er
e 

w
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

 c
o

m
b

in
in

g 
co

n
te

n
t 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

, u
sa

b
ili

ty
, a

n
d

 u
se

fu
ln

es
s.

 

 

P
re

m
iu

m
 

P
re

m
iu

m
 

P
re

m
iu

m
 

P
re

m
iu

m
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

335



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

3
7
 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
W

eb
si

te
: T

ra
n

sf
o

rm
 y

o
u

r 
w

eb
 e

xp
er

ie
n

ce
 

La
u

n
ch

 m
o

d
er

n
, e

as
y 

to
 u

se
 w

eb
si

te
s 

th
at

 a
lw

ay
s 

 

ev
o

lv
e 

to
 p

u
t 

th
e 

n
ee

d
s 

o
f 

yo
u

r 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y 

at
 t

h
e 

ce
n

te
r.

 

  
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

336



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

3
8
 

Fu
tu

re
-p

ro
o

f 
yo

u
r 

d
ig

it
al

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 

C
re

at
e 

a 
m

o
d

er
n

 h
o

m
ep

ag
e.

 L
ev

er
ag

e
 e

m
er

gi
n

g 
U

X
 p

at
te

rn
s.

 
U

p
d

at
e

 y
o

u
r 

d
es

ig
n

 a
n

yt
im

e.
 D

el
iv

er
 u

se
fu

l n
ew

 f
u

n
ct

io
n

s 
fo

r 
u

se
rs

 w
it

h
o

u
t 

w
ai

ti
n

g 
w

e
ek

s 
fo

r 
w

eb
 d

ev
el

o
p

er
s,

 o
r 

ye
ar

s 
fo

r 
a 

fu
ll 

re
d

es
ig

n
 p

ro
ce

ss
. O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

le
ts

 y
o

u
 t

ak
e 

fu
ll 

co
n

tr
o

l o
f 

yo
u

r 
en

ti
re

 d
ig

it
al

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

 u
si

n
g 

an
 in

tu
it

iv
e

 d
ra

g 
an

d
 d

ra
g 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
, w

it
h

o
u

t 
cu

st
o

m
 c

o
d

in
g.

 

Th
e

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
d

es
ig

n
 e

n
gi

n
e

 p
ro

vi
d

es
 a

n
 e

vo
lv

in
g 

lib
ra

ry
 o

f 
u

se
r-

te
st

ed
, a

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t,
 m

o
b

ile
 o

p
ti

m
iz

ed
 U

I t
ile

s 
th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
as

se
m

b
le

d
 b

as
ed

 o
n

 y
o

u
r 

d
es

ig
n

, c
o

n
te

n
t,

 a
n

d
 

fu
n

ct
io

n
al

 n
ee

d
s.

 A
n

d
 b

ec
au

se
 t

h
er

e 
is

 n
o

 c
u

st
o

m
 c

o
d

e
 

in
vo

lv
ed

, t
h

es
e 

ti
le

s 
au

to
m

at
ic

al
ly

 u
p

d
at

e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 n

ew
 

b
ro

w
se

rs
, d

ev
ic

es
, a

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 
an

d
 u

se
r 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

 
tr

en
d

s,
 a

llo
w

in
g 

yo
u

r 
w

e
b

si
te

 t
o

 e
vo

lv
e

 in
 s

te
p

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

w
o

rl
d

’s
 

b
es

t 
in

 d
ig

it
al

 g
o

v,
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
th

e 
n

ee
d

 f
o

r 
co

n
st

an
t 

re
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t.
 

W
it

h
 t

h
e 

ab
ili

ty
 t

o
 t

ra
ck

 s
it

e 
u

sa
ge

; a
n

d
 t

h
en

 u
p

d
at

e,
 p

re
vi

ew
, 

an
d

 p
u

b
lis

h
 y

o
u

r 
d

es
ig

n
 c

h
an

ge
s 

w
it

h
in

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
en

vi
ro

n
m

en
t,

 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

al
lo

w
s 

yo
u

 t
o

 b
e 

m
o

re
 r

es
p

o
n

si
ve

 t
o

 r
es

id
en

t 
n

ee
d

s,
 

an
d

 it
er

at
e 

fa
st

er
 t

h
an

 e
ve

r 
b

ef
o

re
.  

 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

337



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

3
9
 

In
cr

e
as

e
 c

u
st

o
m

e
r 

se
lf

-s
e

rv
e,

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 h
e

lp
 o

f 
d

e
e

p
 d

at
a 

P
eo

p
le

 d
o

 n
o

t 
b

ro
w

se
 g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

w
e

b
si

te
s 

lik
e

 t
h

ey
 w

o
u

ld
 a

 
n

ew
s 

si
te

 o
r 

o
n

lin
e 

st
o

re
. T

h
ey

 c
o

m
e

 t
o

 g
et

 t
h

in
gs

 d
o

n
e.

 

Le
ve

ra
gi

n
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 f
ro

m
 m

ill
io

n
s 

o
f 

re
si

d
en

t-
co

u
n

ci
l 

in
te

ra
ct

io
n

s,
 c

o
m

b
in

ed
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

si
te

 d
at

a,
 O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

b
et

te
r 

co
n

n
ec

ts
 u

se
rs

 t
o

 t
h

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

ey
 n

ee
d

.  

Fo
r 

ex
am

p
le

, p
ro

m
o

te
 t

im
el

y 
To

p
 T

as
ks

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

re
n

d
in

g 
co

n
te

n
t,

 lo
ca

ti
o

n
, a

n
d

 s
ea

so
n

al
 p

at
te

rn
s,

 i.
e.

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
zi

n
g 

ta
x 

p
ay

m
en

ts
 a

t 
sp

ec
if

ic
 t

im
es

 o
f 

ye
ar

, o
r 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
zi

n
g 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
-b

as
ed

 
ta

sk
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

re
p

o
rt

in
g 

p
o

th
o

le
s 

o
r 

gr
af

fi
ti

 f
o

r 
m

o
b

ile
 w

e
b

si
te

 
vi

si
to

rs
.  

O
r 

h
el

p
 u

se
rs

 f
in

d
 t

h
e 

ri
gh

t 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 e

ve
ry

 t
im

e
 w

it
h

 a
 

p
re

d
ic

ti
ve

 s
ea

rc
h

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

 t
h

at
 c

o
u

p
le

s 
d

ee
p

 d
at

a 
w

it
h

 o
u

r 
p

ro
p

ri
et

ar
y 

lo
ca

l g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
th

es
au

ru
s,

 w
h

ic
h

 a
u

to
m

at
ic

al
ly

 
b

ri
d

ge
s 

re
si

d
en

t 
lin

go
 (

i.e
. r

u
b

b
is

h
 d

u
m

p
) 

w
it

h
 g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

le
ga

le
se

 (
i.e

. r
es

o
u

rc
e

 r
ec

la
m

at
io

n
 c

en
te

r)
, h

el
p

in
g 

re
si

d
en

ts
 

q
u

ic
kl

y 
fi

n
d

 w
h

at
 t

h
ey

 n
ee

d
, w

it
h

o
u

t 
n

ee
d

in
g 

to
 u

n
d

er
st

an
d

 t
h

e 
la

n
gu

ag
e

 o
f 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t.

 

 
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

338



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

4
0
 

In
cr

e
as

e
 e

n
ga

ge
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
im

e
ly

, r
e

le
va

n
t 

co
n

te
n

t 
Le

ss
 lo

o
ki

n
g,

 m
o

re
 d

is
co

ve
ri

n
g.

 W
h

at
 if

 y
o

u
r 

w
e

b
si

te
 c

o
u

ld
 c

u
ra

te
 t

h
e 

sp
ec

if
ic

 n
ew

s,
 e

ve
n

ts
, p

ro
je

ct
s,

 c
o

n
su

lt
at

io
n

s,
 a

n
d

 in
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

a 
u

se
r 

m
ig

h
t 

b
e 

in
te

re
st

e
d

 in
, b

as
ed

 o
n

 t
h

ei
r 

im
p

lic
it

 n
ee

d
s?

 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
al

lo
w

s 
yo

u
 t

o
 d

o
 ju

st
 t

h
at

, b
y 

su
rf

ac
in

g 
co

n
te

n
t 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 

cu
st

o
m

er
 jo

u
rn

ey
s.

 F
o

r 
ex

am
p

le
, g

en
er

at
in

g 
a 

la
n

d
in

g 
p

ag
e 

th
at

 
sh

o
w

s 
a 

u
se

r 
th

ei
r 

n
ea

re
st

 d
o

g 
o

ff
-l

ea
sh

 p
ar

ks
, u

p
co

m
in

g 
p

et
 f

ri
en

d
ly

 
ev

en
ts

, a
n

d
 c

it
y 

n
ew

s 
an

d
 in

it
ia

ti
ve

s 
ta

rg
et

e
d

 a
t 

p
et

 o
w

n
er

s,
 s

tr
ai

gh
t 

af
te

r 
th

ey
 h

av
e 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 r
eg

is
te

ri
n

g 
th

ei
r 

d
o

g 
w

it
h

 c
o

u
n

ci
l. 

O
r 

sh
o

w
ca

si
n

g 
ki

d
s’

 e
ve

n
ts

 a
t 

th
e 

lo
ca

l l
ib

ra
ry

, l
ea

rn
 t

o
 s

w
im

 c
la

ss
es

 
in

 t
h

e
 s

p
o

rt
s 

ce
n

te
r,

 d
ay

ca
re

 c
en

te
r 

in
 t

h
e

 a
re

as
 a

n
d

 m
o

re
, w

h
en

 a
 

u
se

r 
h

as
 f

in
is

h
ed

 e
n

ro
lli

n
g 

th
ei

r 
ch

ild
 in

 a
 lo

ca
l k

in
d

er
ga

rt
en

.  
 

B
es

t 
o

f 
al

l, 
o

n
ce

 y
o

u
’v

e
 s

et
u

p
 y

o
u

r 
ta

xo
n

o
m

y,
 O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

au
to

m
at

ic
al

ly
 d

et
e

ct
s 

an
d

 s
er

ve
s 

ti
m

el
y,

 u
se

fu
l c

o
n

te
n

t,
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
an

y 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 e

ff
o

rt
 o

n
 b

eh
al

f 
o

f 
yo

u
r 

w
e

b
 p

u
b

lis
h

er
s.

 

 
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

339



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

4
1
 

P
u

b
lis

h
 o

n
ce

, p
re

se
n

t 
e

ve
ry

w
h

er
e

  
A

s 
re

si
d

en
ts

 a
cc

es
s 

yo
u

r 
ci

ty
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 a
n

 in
cr

ea
si

n
g 

ar
ra

y 
o

f 
ch

an
n

el
s 

an
d

 p
la

tf
o

rm
s,

 h
o

w
 d

o
 y

o
u

 e
n

su
re

 a
 c

o
n

si
st

e
n

t 
m

es
sa

ge
? 

 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
re

d
u

ce
s 

th
e 

ef
fo

rt
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

le
xi

ty
 o

f 
m

u
lt

i-
ch

an
n

el
 

co
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
 b

y 
al

lo
w

in
g 

yo
u

 t
o

 c
re

at
e

 c
o

n
te

n
t 

ju
st

 o
n

ce
 a

n
d

 
p

re
se

n
t 

it
 in

 m
an

y 
p

la
ce

s.
 I.

e.
 p

u
b

lis
h

 a
n

 e
ve

n
t 

an
d

 p
re

se
n

t 
it

 a
s 

a 
w

e
b

 p
ag

e 
in

 y
o

u
r 

m
ai

n
 s

it
e,

 o
r 

sy
n

d
ic

at
ed

 a
cr

o
ss

 y
o

u
r 

en
ti

re
 n

et
w

o
rk

 
o

f 
w

eb
si

te
s,

 w
it

h
in

 a
 m

o
n

th
ly

 c
al

en
d

ar
 v

ie
w

, o
n

 a
 G

o
o

gl
e 

M
ap

, i
n

 
yo

u
r 

Fa
ce

b
o

o
k 

an
d

 T
w

it
te

r 
ch

an
n

el
s,

 o
r 

se
n

d
 a

s 
an

 e
m

ai
l n

o
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 

to
 s

u
b

sc
ri

b
er

s.
 

A
si

d
e

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
th

es
e

 c
h

an
n

el
s,

 w
it

h
 O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

A
P

I’
s,

 y
o

u
 c

an
 

o
u

tp
u

t 
an

d
 r

en
d

er
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
to

 a
n

y 
en

d
p

o
in

t,
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

a 
d

ig
it

al
 d

is
p

la
y 

o
r 

to
u

ch
-s

cr
ee

n
 k

io
sk

.  

B
y 

se
p

ar
at

in
g 

th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 la
ye

r 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 la

ye
r,

 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

al
lo

w
s 

yo
u

 t
o

 c
o

n
ve

n
ie

n
tl

y 
m

an
ag

er
 m

o
re

 o
f 

yo
u

r 
co

n
te

n
t 

w
it

h
in

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
p

la
tf

o
rm

 a
n

d
 o

u
tp

u
t 

it
 t

o
 a

n
y 

en
d

 d
es

ti
n

at
io

n
.  

 
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

340



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

4
2
 

C
o

-c
re

at
e

 w
it

h
 y

o
u

r 
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s,
 v

ia
 o

n
lin

e
 c

o
n

su
lt

at
io

n
s 

 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

h
el

p
s 

yo
u

 d
ri

ve
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
an

d
 p

u
b

lic
 p

ar
ti

ci
p

at
io

n
 in

 c
it

y 
p

ro
je

ct
s 

an
d

 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 v
ia

 o
n

lin
e 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

sp
ac

es
, d

is
cu

ss
io

n
 b

o
ar

d
s,

 in
it

ia
ti

ve
 d

ir
ec

to
ri

es
, 

su
rv

ey
s 

an
d

 m
o

re
.  

A
 r

an
ge

 o
f 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

en
ab

le
 y

o
u

 t
o

 c
o

n
tr

o
l h

o
w

 p
eo

p
le

 e
n

ga
ge

 w
it

h
 

th
e

 c
it

y;
 a

n
d

 in
cr

ea
se

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n

 b
y 

d
ee

p
ly

 e
m

b
ed

d
in

g 
co

n
su

lt
at

io
n

 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

o
ve

ra
ll 

w
eb

si
te

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

.  

St
ru

ct
u

re
 E

n
ga

ge
m

en
ts

 

Sc
al

e 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t 
fr

o
m

 c
lo

se
d

 p
o

lls
 a

n
d

 

st
ru

ct
u

re
d

 s
u

rv
ey

s 
th

ro
u

gh
 t

o
 o

p
en

 

d
is

cu
ss

io
n

s 
an

d
 c

o
n

ve
rs

at
io

n
 s

p
ac

es
. 

M
at

ch
 P

ar
ti

ci
p

an
ts

 

M
at

ch
 e

n
ga

ge
m

en
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

to
 

re
le

va
n

t 
w

eb
si

te
 v

is
it

o
rs

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
ei

r 

n
ee

d
s 

an
d

 in
te

re
st

s.
 

D
ri

ve
 A

w
ar

en
es

s 

P
ro

m
o

te
 c

o
n

su
lt

at
io

n
s 

an
d

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

 

se
ar

ch
, o

n
 m

ap
s,

 in
 c

al
en

d
ar

s,
 o

n
 t

h
e 

h
o

m
ep

ag
e

 a
n

d
 m

o
re

. 

In
te

gr
at

e 
w

it
h

 S
o

ci
al

 M
ed

ia
 

P
u

sh
 o

r 
p

u
ll 

co
n

te
n

t 
fr

o
m

 s
o

ci
al

 m
ed

ia
 

to
 d

ri
ve

 m
u

lt
i-

ch
an

n
el

 e
n

ga
ge

m
en

t 

ac
ro

ss
 y

o
u

r 
co

n
su

lt
at

io
n

s.
 

 
 

P
re

m
iu

m
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

341



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

4
3
 

Su
p

p
o

rt
 lo

ca
l b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
an

d
 g

ro
u

p
s 

 
H

el
p

 y
o

u
r 

lo
ca

l o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
s 

ge
t 

d
is

co
ve

re
d

 b
y 

cr
ea

ti
n

g 
an

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g 

th
ei

r 
lis

ti
n

gs
 a

n
d

 e
ve

n
ts

 in
 t

h
e 

C
it

y 
w

e
b

si
te

. L
is

ti
n

gs
 in

cl
u

d
e 

im
ag

e
 g

al
le

ri
es

, m
ap

s,
 

so
ci

al
 m

ed
ia

 li
n

ks
 a

n
d

 m
o

re
, p

ro
vi

d
in

g 
a 

vi
su

al
ly

 e
n

ga
gi

n
g 

b
ro

w
si

n
g 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

. 

A
n

 in
tu

it
iv

e
 d

as
h

b
o

ar
d

 a
llo

w
s 

n
o

n
-t

ec
h

n
ic

al
 u

se
rs

 t
o

 p
u

b
lis

h
 a

n
d

 u
p

d
at

e
 t

h
ei

r 
ev

en
ts

 a
n

d
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

 d
et

ai
ls

 t
h

ro
u

gh
 a

 s
im

p
le

 in
te

rf
ac

e.
 C

it
y 

st
af

f 
ca

n
 

q
u

ic
kl

y 
re

vi
ew

, r
ej

e
ct

, r
ev

is
e,

 o
r 

ap
p

ro
ve

 li
st

in
gs

, e
n

su
ri

n
g 

th
e 

lo
ca

l d
ir

ec
to

ry
 

re
m

ai
n

s 
fr

es
h

 a
n

d
 u

p
 t

o
 d

at
e

.  

Q
u

ic
k 

Se
tu

p
 a

n
d

 L
o

gi
n

 

U
se

rs
 c

an
 u

se
 t

h
ei

r 
so

ci
al

 m
ed

ia
 t

o
 

ac
ce

le
ra

te
 s

et
u

p
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

ac
co

u
n

t 

Lo
ca

l E
ve

n
ts

 

C
o

n
n

ec
t 

re
si

d
en

ts
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 

h
o

st
ed

 e
ve

n
ts

 a
n

d
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 

Lo
ca

l G
ro

u
p

s 
an

d
 B

u
si

n
es

se
s 

P
ro

m
o

te
 lo

ca
l g

ro
u

p
s 

an
d

 b
u

si
n

es
s 

w
it

h
 

se
ar

ch
 f

ilt
er

s 
an

d
 m

ap
 v

ie
w

s 

W
o

rk
fl

o
w

 a
n

d
 A

p
p

ro
va

ls
 

W
o

rk
fl

o
w

 e
n

su
re

s 
co

n
te

n
t 

is
 a

p
p

ro
ve

d
 

b
y 

th
e 

ci
ty

 b
ef

o
re

 a
p

p
ea

ri
n

g 
liv

e.
 

 
 

P
re

m
iu

m
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

342



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

4
4
 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

in
si

gh
ts

 a
n

d
 r

ec
o

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s 
Th

e
 la

u
n

ch
 o

f 
yo

u
r 

n
ew

 w
eb

si
te

 is
 ju

st
 t

h
e 

st
ar

t 
o

f 
yo

u
r 

d
ig

it
al

 
tr

an
sf

o
rm

at
io

n
 jo

u
rn

ey
. O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

p
ro

vi
d

es
 t

h
e 

in
si

gh
ts

 y
o

u
 t

o
 n

ee
d

 m
ak

e 
b

et
te

r,
 d

at
a 

d
ri

ve
n

 d
ec

is
io

n
s.

  

C
u

st
o

m
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 in
si

gh
ts

  

W
h

at
’s

 t
re

n
d

in
g 

n
o

w
? 

W
h

at
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

p
eo

p
le

 u
si

n
g?

 W
h

at
 s

ea
rc

h
es

 a
re

 

tr
en

d
in

g?
 O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

sh
o

w
s 

yo
u

 a
 li

ve
 

vi
ew

 o
f 

w
h

at
 is

 h
ap

p
en

in
g 

o
n

 y
o

u
r 

w
eb

si
te

, g
iv

in
g 

cu
st

o
m

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 t

ea
m

s 

a 
cr

ys
ta

l b
al

l f
o

r 
th

e 
u

p
co

m
in

g 
d

ay
 b

y 

th
e 

ti
m

e 
th

ey
 c

o
m

e 
in

to
 o

ff
ic

e.
 

Ta
sk

in
g 

d
as

h
b

o
ar

d
 

A
 p

er
so

n
al

 d
as

h
b

o
ar

d
 k

ee
p

s 
ea

ch
 

p
u

b
lis

h
er

 in
fo

rm
ed

 w
h

en
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
is

 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
in

g 
re

vi
ew

 o
r 

ab
o

u
t 

to
 e

xp
ir

e,
 

p
ag

e 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, f

ee
d

b
ac

k,
 w

o
rk

fl
o

w
 

st
at

u
s 

an
d

 m
o

re
, k

ee
p

in
g 

d
ec

en
tr

al
iz

ed
 

te
am

s 
o

n
 t

ra
ck

. 

H
o

m
ep

ag
e

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 

W
h

at
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
ze

d
 o

n
 

yo
u

r 
h

o
m

ep
ag

e 
an

d
 w

h
en

? 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

as
se

ss
es

 w
h

at
 is

 t
h

er
e,

 w
h

at
 is

 n
o

t,
 a

n
d

 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 u

sa
ge

 t
re

n
d

s,
 m

ak
es

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

w
h

ic
h

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
o

r 

co
n

te
n

t 
to

 r
em

o
ve

, o
r 

ad
d

, t
o

 e
n

su
re

 a
n

 

o
p

ti
m

al
 e

xp
er

ie
n

ce
.  

C
o

n
te

n
t 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

B
as

ed
 o

n
 u

se
r 

fe
ed

b
ac

k 
co

u
p

le
d

 w
it

h
 

p
ag

e 
tr

af
fi

c,
 O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

w
ill

 h
ig

h
lig

h
t 

an
d

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
ze

 c
o

n
te

n
t 

th
at

 r
eq

u
ir

es
 

at
te

n
ti

o
n

, h
el

p
in

g 
yo

u
 f

o
cu

s 
yo

u
r 

ti
m

e 

o
n

 im
p

ro
vi

n
g 

th
at

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 d
ri

ve
 

gr
ea

te
st

 im
p

ac
t.

 

 
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

343



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
e

d
 s

ty
le

 in
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
t.

  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

4
5
 

Si
n

gl
e

 s
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
tr

u
th

 
En

su
re

 r
es

id
en

ts
 (

an
d

 c
it

y 
st

af
f,

 w
h

en
 u

si
n

g 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

yo
u

r 
in

tr
an

et
) 

ar
e 

al
w

ay
s 

ac
ti

n
g 

o
n

 t
h

e 
m

o
st

 a
cc

u
ra

te
 a

n
d

 u
p

-
to

-d
at

e 
fo

rm
s,

 lo
ca

l l
aw

s,
 p

o
lic

ie
s 

an
d

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s.
  

O
u

r 
D

M
S 

C
o

n
n

ec
to

r 
al

lo
w

 y
o

u
 t

o
 s

h
ar

e 
d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 f

ro
m

 y
o

u
r 

D
M

S 
sy

st
em

s 
o

n
to

 y
o

u
r 

w
eb

si
te

, a
n

d
 a

u
to

m
at

ic
al

ly
 m

ai
n

ta
in

 
ve

rs
io

n
 c

u
rr

en
cy

 a
s 

th
ey

 a
re

 u
p

d
at

ed
.  

 

Sh
ar

ed
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 c

an
 b

e 
ad

d
ed

 d
ir

ec
tl

y 
to

 a
 p

ag
e 

b
y 

p
u

b
lis

h
er

s,
 o

r 
au

to
m

at
ic

al
ly

 a
d

d
ed

 t
o

 a
 d

yn
am

ic
 li

st
in

g 
o

f 
co

n
te

n
t 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 m

et
ad

at
a.

 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
D

M
S 

h
as

 o
u

t-
o

f-
th

e-
b

o
x 

su
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

Te
ch

n
o

lo
gy

O
n

e
 E

C
M

, H
P

 T
R

IM
/R

M
/C

M
, O

b
je

ct
iv

e
 D

M
S 

an
d

 
M

ag
iq

 D
M

S.
 

    
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

344



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

4
6
 

In
te

gr
at

e
 w

it
h

 in
te

rn
al

 s
ys

te
m

s 
W

e
 r

ec
o

gn
iz

e 
th

at
 o

u
r 

p
la

tf
o

rm
 is

 o
n

ly
 o

n
e 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
yo

u
r 

te
ch

n
o

lo
gy

 e
co

sy
st

em
, a

n
d

 f
o

r 
th

at
 e

co
sy

st
em

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

ly
, s

ys
te

m
s 

n
ee

d
 t

o
 

sp
ea

k 
to

 e
ac

h
 o

th
er

. T
h

at
 is

 w
h

y 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

p
ro

vi
d

es
 a

n
 o

p
en

 a
n

d
 f

le
xi

b
le

 in
te

rf
ac

e
 t

h
at

 c
an

 in
te

gr
at

e 
w

it
h

 o
th

er
 s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d

 d
at

a 
so

u
rc

es
, w

it
h

 
o

u
t-

o
f-

th
e-

b
o

x 
co

n
n

ec
to

rs
 f

o
r 

m
an

y 
m

o
st

 p
o

p
u

la
r 

lo
ca

l g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
sy

st
em

s 
an

d
 f

u
lly

 d
o

cu
m

en
te

d
 A

P
Is

 f
o

r 
cu

st
o

m
 in

te
gr

at
io

n
s 

w
h

en
 n

ee
d

ed
.  

 
D

M
S 

C
o

n
n

ec
to

r 
En

su
re

 y
o

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
is

 a
ct

in
g 

o
n

 t
h

e 

m
o

st
 a

cc
u

ra
te

 d
o

cu
m

en
ts

. O
u

r 
D

M
S 

co
n

n
ec

to
r 

al
lo

w
s 

yo
u

 t
o

 s
yn

ch
ro

n
iz

e
 f

ile
s 

fr
o

m
 T

ec
h

n
o

lo
gy

O
n

e
 E

C
M

, T
R

IM
 C

M
, 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

 D
M

S 
w

it
h

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s,
 c

re
at

in
g 

a 

si
n

gl
e

 s
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
tr

u
th

. 

 
C

R
M

 A
P

Is
 

Sh
ar

e 
b

et
w

ee
n

 O
p

en
Fo

rm
s 

an
d

 y
o

u
r 

C
R

M
 

sy
st

em
. P

u
sh

 d
at

a 
in

to
 y

o
u

r 
C

R
M

 w
it

h
o

u
t 

re
q

u
ir

in
g 

cu
st

o
m

er
 s

e
rv

ic
e 

te
am

s 
to

 

m
an

u
al

ly
 r

ek
ey

 r
eq

u
es

ts
. P

u
ll 

d
at

a 
fr

o
m

 y
o

u
r 

C
R

M
 t

o
 p

re
-f

ill
 f

ie
ld

s 
an

d
 s

im
p

lif
y 

fo
rm

 

co
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

cu
st

o
m

er
s.

 

 
A

ct
iv

e 
D

ir
ec

to
ry

 C
o

n
n

ec
to

r 
A

u
th

en
ti

ca
te

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
p

u
b

lis
h

er
 o

r 

in
tr

an
et

 u
se

rs
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l t

h
ei

r 
p

er
m

is
si

o
n

s 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 y

o
u

r 
A

zu
re

 b
as

ed
 A

D
. 

 
P

ay
m

en
t 

ga
te

w
ay

 c
o

n
n

ec
to

r 
W

it
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
m

an
y 

o
f 

th
e 

m
o

st
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 

p
ay

m
en

t 
ga

te
w

ay
s 

u
se

d
 b

y 
Lo

ca
l 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

ts
, O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

m
ak

es
 it

 e
as

y 
to

 

se
tu

p
 o

n
lin

e 
p

ay
m

en
t 

fo
rm

s 
th

at
 c

an
 b

e 

re
co

n
ci

le
d

 w
it

h
 y

o
u

r 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

s.
 

 
M

ap
s 

A
P

Is
 

U
si

n
g 

o
u

r 
M

ap
s 

A
P

I,
 y

o
u

 c
an

 d
ra

w
 in

 t
ra

sh
 

p
ic

k-
u

p
 s

ch
ed

u
le

s 
fr

o
m

 y
o

u
r 

G
IS

 s
ys

te
m

. U
se

 

p
lo

t 
co

n
te

n
t 

fr
o

m
 y

o
u

r 
G

IS
 s

ys
te

m
 o

n
to

 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
M

ap
s.

 S
h

o
w

ca
se

 r
o

ad
 w

o
rk

s,
 

p
ro

je
ct

s 
an

d
 c

lo
su

re
s 

as
 p

in
s 

o
r 

lin
es

. 

 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

A
P

Is
 

P
u

b
lis

h
 p

ag
es

 a
n

d
 li

st
s 

d
yn

am
ic

al
ly

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 s
et

s 
in

 y
o

u
r 

in
te

rn
al

 s
ys

te
m

s.
  

 

P
re

m
iu

m
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

345



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

4
7
 

H
o

st
in

g 
an

d
 S

e
cu

ri
ty

 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

h
as

 p
ar

tn
er

ed
 w

it
h

 M
ic

ro
so

ft
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 w

e 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

th
e 

m
o

st
 r

el
ia

b
le

 a
n

d
 s

e
cu

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e 

u
si

n
g 

M
ic

ro
so

ft
 A

zu
re

, t
h

e 
w

o
rl

d
’s

 m
o

st
 

tr
u

st
ed

 c
lo

u
d

. H
o

st
e

d
 in

 t
h

e 
M

ic
ro

so
ft

 A
zu

re
 G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

C
lo

u
d

 in
 t

h
e 

U
.S

, O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
e

n
su

re
s 

m
ax

im
u

m
 u

p
ti

m
e 

b
y 

ta
ki

n
g 

ad
va

n
ta

ge
 o

f 
M

ic
ro

so
ft

 A
zu

re
’s

 g
eo

-r
ed

u
n

d
an

cy
, b

u
ilt

-i
n

 b
ac

ku
p

 c
ap

ab
ili

ti
es

, a
n

d
 a

d
va

n
ce

d
 s

ec
u

ri
ty

 p
o

st
u

re
. 

Lo
ca

lly
 h

o
st

ed
, D

at
a 

so
ve

re
ig

n
ty

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
W

it
h

 a
ll 

M
ic

ro
so

ft
 A

zu
re

 p
ri

m
ar

y 
an

d
 s

e
co

n
d

ar
y 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
lo

ca
te

d
 

o
n

sh
o

re
, O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

is
 f

u
lly

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
d

at
a 

so
ve

re
ig

n
ty

 la
w

s.
 T

h
e 

D
at

a 
C

en
te

r 
is

 a
 T

ie
r 

4
 s

ec
u

ri
ty

, f
u

lly
 

re
d

u
n

d
an

t,
 m

an
ag

ed
 n

et
w

o
rk

 in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 w
it

h
 o

n
si

te
 p

o
w

e
r 

b
ac

ku
p

 a
n

d
 g

en
er

at
o

rs
, m

u
lt

ip
le

 t
e

le
co

m
, a

n
d

 n
et

w
o

rk
 p

ro
vi

d
er

s 

an
d

 2
4

x7
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g.
 

9
9

.9
%

 S
LA

 
O

u
r 

h
o

st
in

g 
p

ro
vi

d
es

 a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 u
p

ti
m

e 
gu

ar
an

te
e 

w
it

h
 m

o
n

th
ly

 

re
b

at
e

s 
if

 w
e 

d
o

 n
o

t 
m

ee
t 

o
u

r 
co

m
m

it
m

en
ts

. O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
p

ro
vi

d
es

 9
9

.9
%

 

u
p

ti
m

e 
av

ai
la

b
ili

ty
, c

al
cu

la
te

d
 m

o
n

th
ly

. I
n

 a
 t

yp
ic

al
 3

0
 d

ay
/7

2
0

-h
o

u
r 

m
o

n
th

, t
h

is
 e

q
u

at
e

s 
to

 n
o

 m
o

re
 t

h
an

 1
 h

o
u

r 
o

f 
d

o
w

n
ti

m
e 

p
er

 m
o

n
th

 

(n
o

t 
in

cl
u

si
ve

 o
f 

sc
h

ed
u

le
d

 m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 a

n
d

 e
m

er
ge

n
cy

 m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
).

 

Tr
u

st
ed

 r
el

ia
b

ili
ty

 
M

ic
ro

so
ft

 A
zu

re
 d

el
iv

er
s 

6
2 

co
m

p
lia

n
ce

 o
ff

er
in

gs
, w

h
ic

h
 is

 m
o

re
 

th
an

 a
n

y 
o

th
er

 c
lo

u
d

 p
ro

vi
d

er
. T

h
at

 is
 w

h
y 

9
0

%
 o

f 
Fo

rt
u

n
e 

50
0 

co
m

p
an

ie
s 

u
se

 t
h

e 
M

ic
ro

so
ft

 C
lo

u
d

. W
it

h
 O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

an
d

 A
zu

re
, 

yo
u

 a
re

 in
 s

af
e 

h
an

d
s.

 

Se
cu

ri
ty

 /
 S

SL
 e

n
cr

yp
ti

o
n

 
A

s 
so

ci
et

y’
s 

d
ig

it
al

 f
o

o
tp

ri
n

t 
co

n
ti

n
u

es
 t

o
 e

xp
an

d
, t

h
e 

th
re

at
 o

f 
m

al
ic

io
u

s 

ac
ti

vi
ty

 o
n

lin
e 

b
ec

o
m

es
 m

o
re

 p
er

va
si

ve
. G

iv
en

 t
h

e 
am

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

p
er

so
n

al
 

d
at

a 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 in
 g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n

s,
 t

h
e 

ri
sk

 t
o

 t
h

e 
p

u
b

lic
 c

an
 b

e 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t.

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
e

n
cr

yp
ts

 a
ll 

fo
rm

s 
w

it
h

 S
SL

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 s
ec

u
ri

ty
.  

 
D

D
o

S 
M

it
ig

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 D
is

as
te

r 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 
Th

e 
cl

o
u

d
 w

eb
 a

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
ir

ew
al

l O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
u

ti
liz

e 
al

so
 c

o
n

ta
in

s 
D

D
o

S 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 b
u

ilt
 in

 a
n

d
 c

an
 m

it
ig

at
e 

an
y 

D
D

o
S 

in
 r

ea
l t

im
e.

 A
ll 

si
te

s 
ar

e 

b
ac

ke
d

 b
y 

o
u

r 
D

R
 p

o
lic

y 
w

it
h

 a
 m

in
im

al
 R

P
O

 a
n

d
 R

TO
, o

n
-l

in
e 

st
at

u
s 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g,

 e
ve

n
t 

n
o

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

w
ic

e
-d

ai
ly

 b
ac

ku
p

s 

 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

346



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

4
8
 

A
zu

re
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t 
C

lo
u

d
  

B
y 

p
ar

tn
er

in
g 

w
it

h
 M

ic
ro

so
ft

 A
zu

re
 G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t,

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
p

ro
vi

d
es

 a
 s

u
p

er
io

r 
se

rv
ic

e
 t

h
at

 d
el

iv
er

s 
w

o
rl

d
 c

la
ss

 s
ec

u
ri

ty
, 

p
ri

va
cy

, a
n

d
 s

ca
la

b
ili

ty
. O

u
r 

se
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

vi
d

es
 f

u
ll 

re
d

u
n

d
an

cy
 a

n
d

 
tw

ic
e 

d
ai

ly
 b

ac
ku

p
s,

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

ed
 b

y 
a 

99
.9

%
 S

LA
 g

u
ar

an
te

e.
 

Fi
n

d
 o

u
t 

m
o

re
 a

b
o

u
t 

M
ic

ro
so

ft
 A

zu
re

 G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
h

er
e 

 
h

tt
p

s:
//

az
u

re
.m

ic
ro

so
ft

.c
o

m
/e

n
-u

s/
gl

o
b

al
-

in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

/g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t/
st

at
e

-a
n

d
-l

o
ca

l/
  

A
ct

iv
e

 D
ir

e
ct

o
ry

 C
o

n
n

e
ct

o
r 

(p
re

m
iu

m
*)

 
Fo

r 
se

cu
re

 s
in

gl
e 

si
gn

 o
n

 t
o

 y
o

u
r 

b
ro

w
se

r-
b

as
ed

 a
d

m
in

 c
o

n
so

le
, 

ci
ty

 s
ta

ff
 c

an
 u

se
 t

h
ei

r 
A

zu
re

A
D

 c
re

d
en

ti
al

s 
to

 lo
gi

n
. O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

In
tr

an
et

 in
te

gr
at

e
s 

w
it

h
 y

o
u

r 
M

ic
ro

so
ft

 A
ct

iv
e 

D
ir

ec
to

ri
es

 (
vi

a 
A

zu
re

),
 g

iv
in

g 
st

af
f 

th
e 

co
n

ve
n

ie
n

ce
 o

f 
a 

si
n

gl
e 

si
gn

-o
n

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

. 
A

n
d

 f
o

r 
th

o
se

 s
ta

ff
 t

h
at

 a
re

 n
o

t 
re

gi
st

e
re

d
 in

 y
o

u
r 

A
ct

iv
e 

D
ir

ec
to

ri
es

, o
u

r 
In

tr
an

et
 a

llo
w

s 
yo

u
 t

o
 s

et
 t

h
em

 u
p

 d
ir

ec
tl

y 
w

it
h

in
 

o
u

r 
sy

st
em

 –
 e

n
su

ri
n

g 
ev

er
yo

n
e 

ac
ro

ss
 t

h
e 

o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
, i

n
cl

u
d

in
g 

fi
el

d
 s

ta
ff

 w
it

h
o

u
t 

d
es

kt
o

p
 lo

gi
n

s,
 c

an
 e

q
u

al
ly

 a
cc

es
s 

th
e 

in
tr

an
et

. 

A
u

th
en

ti
ca

te
 a

n
d

 p
er

so
n

al
iz

e 
th

e 
in

tr
an

et
 e

xp
er

ie
n

ce
 b

as
ed

 o
n

 
yo

u
r 

u
se

r 
cr

ed
en

ti
al

s,
 v

ia
 s

in
gl

e 
si

gn
-o

n
. P

le
as

e 
se

e 
th

e 
d

ia
gr

am
 

b
el

o
w

 t
h

at
 d

et
ai

ls
 w

e
 in

te
gr

at
e 

w
it

h
 M

ic
ro

so
ft

 A
ct

iv
e 

D
ir

ec
to

ri
es

. 
W

e
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

th
e 

cl
ie

n
t 

to
 in

st
al

l a
 s

m
al

l w
e

b
 s

er
vi

ce
 t

h
at

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 

sy
n

c 
an

d
 h

an
d

le
 A

D
 b

as
ed

 a
u

th
en

ti
ca

ti
o

n
 a

tt
em

p
ts

.  

*T
h

e 
A

ct
iv

e 
D

ir
ec

to
ry

 C
o

n
n

ec
to

r 
is

 in
cl

u
d

ed
 a

s 
st

an
d

ar
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
In

tr
an

et
. 

 

  
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

347

https://azure.microsoft.com/en-us/global-infrastructure/government/state-and-local/
https://azure.microsoft.com/en-us/global-infrastructure/government/state-and-local/


G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

4
9
 

Im
p

e
rv

a 

 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
u

se
s 

Im
p

er
va

's
 m

ar
ke

t 
le

ad
in

g 
cl

o
u

d
 s

ec
u

ri
ty

 p
la

tf
o

rm
. 

Si
te

s 
ca

n
 b

en
ef

it
 f

ro
m

 Im
p

er
va

's
 W

eb
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 F
ir

ew
al

l (
W

A
F)

, 
B

o
t,

 D
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 D

en
ia

l o
f 

Se
rv

ic
e 

(D
D

o
S)

, a
n

d
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
D

el
iv

er
y 

N
et

w
o

rk
 (

C
D

N
).

 

O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
is

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

st
ab

ili
ty

 o
f 

yo
u

r 
w

eb
si

te
s.

 E
sp

ec
ia

lly
 

at
 a

 t
im

e 
w

h
en

 t
h

er
e 

ar
e 

so
 m

an
y 

cr
it

ic
al

 g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
an

n
o

u
n

ce
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 w

e
b

si
te

 u
p

d
at

es
 r

el
at

ed
 t

o
 C

O
V

ID
-1

9
, w

e 
h

av
e 

ta
ke

n
 e

ve
ry

 e
ff

o
rt

 t
o

 p
ro

te
ct

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
sl

y 
im

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n

d
 s

e
cu

ri
ty

 o
f 

yo
u

r 
si

te
. O

n
e 

o
f 

th
o

se
 s

te
p

s 
w

as
 t

o
 p

u
t 

ev
er

y 
O

p
en

C
it

ie
s 

w
eb

si
te

 in
 t

h
e 

U
S 

b
eh

in
d

 t
h

e 
Im

p
er

va
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
D

el
iv

er
y 

N
et

w
o

rk
.  

 

 
W

h
y 

is
 Im

p
er

va
 a

 b
en

ef
it

 f
o

r 
yo

u
r 

si
te

? 

B
y 

u
si

n
g 

th
e 

ca
ch

in
g 

fe
at

u
re

 o
f 

th
e 

Im
p

er
va

 C
D

N
, y

o
u

r 
w

eb
si

te
 

p
ag

es
 a

re
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
sl

y 
ca

ch
ed

 a
n

d
 c

an
 b

e 
se

rv
ed

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

C
D

N
 

ra
th

er
 t

h
an

 d
ir

ec
tl

y 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
si

te
 s

e
rv

er
s 

w
it

h
in

 M
ic

ro
so

ft
 

A
zu

re
 G

o
v.

 In
 t

h
is

 w
ay

, a
 li

ve
 a

n
n

o
u

n
ce

m
en

t 
ab

o
u

t 
yo

u
r 

ci
ty

 o
r 

co
u

n
ty

 v
ac

ci
n

e 
p

ro
gr

am
 d

ir
ec

ti
n

g 
th

e 
p

u
b

lic
 t

o
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

w
eb

 
p

ag
e 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
re

su
lt

 in
 t

h
e 

si
te

 s
lo

w
in

g 
u

n
re

as
o

n
ab

ly
.  

Im
p

er
va

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
te

ct
s 

fr
o

m
 m

al
ic

io
u

s 
at

ta
ck

s 
th

at
 s

p
ik

e 
tr

af
fi

c.
  

 

 
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

348



G
ra

n
ic

u
s:

 O
p

en
C

it
ie

s 
Er

ro
r!

 N
o

 t
e

xt
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
ed

 s
ty

le
 in

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce

  
| 

 S
u
is

u
n
 C

it
y
, 
C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

5
0
 

O
p

e
n

C
it

ie
s 

A
rc

h
it

e
ct

u
ra

l D
ia

gr
am

 
 

Item 18 
Attachment 2

349



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

350



408 Saint Peter Street, Suite 600 Amendment
Saint Paul, MN 55102 Prepared for
United States Suisun City, CA

Order #: Q-166074
Prepared: 01/24/2022

Page 1 of 7

First Amendment to the Granicus Service Agreement between Granicus, LLC 
and Suisun City, CA

This First Amendment to the Granicus, LLC Service Agreement is effective on the date this document is signed and 
entered into by and between Granicus, LLC, a Minnesota Limited Liability Company d/b/a Granicus (hereinafter 
referred to as "Granicus"), and Suisun City, CA (hereinafter referred to as "Client"), with reference to the following:

WHEREAS, the Client and Granicus entered into an Agreement effective 06/07/2021 (the "Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, in addition to Client's existing solution, Client wishes to add certain products and services as detailed in Q-
166074, which is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the parties intend that the Agreement be amended as follows:

1. Compensation shall be amended to include the fees detailed in Exhibit A. Exhibit A is exclusive of applicable 
state, local, and federal taxes, which, if any, will be included in the invoice. It is the responsibility of the Client 
to provide applicable exemption certificate(s).

2. Except as amended by this First Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in 
full force and effect.

3. In the event of any inconsistency between the provisions of this First Amendment and the documents 
comprising the Agreement, the provisions of this First Amendment shall prevail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this First Amendment to be executed by their duly authorized 
representatives.

Agreement and Acceptance
By signing this document, the undersigned certifies they have authority to enter the agreement. The undersigned 
also understands the services and terms.

Suisun City, CA Granicus

Signature: Signature:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Item 18 
Attachment 3

351



408 Saint Peter Street, Suite 600 THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE Exhibit A
Saint Paul, MN 55102 Prepared for
United States Suisun City, CA

Order #: Q-166074
Prepared: 01/24/2022

Page 2 of 7

Exhibit A

ORDER DETAILS
Prepared By: Kevin Stay
Phone:
Email: kevin.stay@granicus.com
Order #: Q-166074
Prepared On: 01/24/2022
Expires On: 03/31/2022

Currency: USD
Payment Terms: Net 30 (Payments for subscriptions are due at the beginning of the period of 

performance.)
  

The subscription includes the following domain(s) and subdomain(s):
•https://www.suisun.com/

ORDER TERMS

Item 18 
Attachment 3

352



Exhibit A 
Suisun City, CA

Order #: Q-166074
Prepared: 01/24/2022

 Page 3 of 7

PRICING SUMMARY
The pricing and terms within this Proposal are specific to the products and volumes contained within this
Proposal.

One-Time Fees

Solution Billing 
Frequency Quantity/Unit One-Time Fee

Communications Cloud - Setup and 
Configuration Up Front 1 Each $2,400.00 

Communications Cloud - Online Training Up Front 1 Each $500.00 

OpenCities Content Migration Milestones 1 Each $2,790.00 

OpenCities CMS Design Upon Delivery 1 Each $5,000.00 

OpenCities Training Upon Delivery 1 Each $2,500.00 

OpenCities Digital Services Academy Upon Delivery 1 Each $12,500.00 

OpenCities Cloud Security License - 
Services Setup and Configuration Package Up Front 1 Each $0.00 

OpenCities CMS - Services Setup and 
Configuration Package

Milestones - 
25/25/25/25 1 Each $10,500.00 

SUBTOTAL: $36,190.00

New Subscription Fees

Solution Billing 
Frequency Quantity/Unit Annual Fee

Communications Cloud
Annual 1 Each $6,000.00

OpenCities Cloud Security License
Annual 1 Each $1,000.00

OpenCities CMS - License
Annual 1 Each $16,000.00

SUBTOTAL: $23,000.00
• Please note, annual fees for new subscriptions will be prorated to align to Client's then-current billing 

term. Exceptions include Recurring Captioning Services, SMS, and Targeted Messages.

Communications Cloud Tier:

for up to 5000 subscribers.

Item 18 
Attachment 3

353



Exhibit A
Suisun City, CA

Order #: Q-166074
Prepared: 01/24/2022

Page 4 of 7

FUTURE YEAR PRICING

Period of Performance
Solution(s)

Year 2

Communications Cloud $6,420.00

OpenCities Cloud Security License $1,070.00

OpenCities CMS - License $17,120.00

SUBTOTAL: $24,610.00

Item 18 
Attachment 3

354



Suisun City, CA

Order #: Q-166074
Prepared:  01/24/2022

Page 5 of 7

PRODUCT DESCRIPTIONS

Solution Description

Communications Cloud The Cloud is a Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) solution that enables 
government organizations to connect with more people. By leveraging the 
Cloud, the client will be able to utilize a number of different outreach 
mediums, including email, SMS/text messages, RSS feeds, and social media 
integration to connect with its target audiences. The Cloud includes:

• Unlimited email sends with industry-leading delivery and 
management of all bounces

• Support to upload and migrate existing email lists

• Access to participate in the GovDelivery Network

• Ability to send mass notifications to multiple devices

• 24/7 system monitoring, email and phone support during business 
hours, auto-response to inbound messages from end users, and 
emergency support

• Text-to-subscribe functionality

• Up to 2 Web-hosted training sessions annually

• Up to 50 administrators

• Up to 1 GovDelivery account(s)

• Access to a complete archive of all data created by the client for 
18 months (rolling)

• Up to 3 hours of message template and integration development

• Up to 100 subscription topics

• Up to 100,000 SMS/text messages per year from a shared short 
code within the United States*

*International numbers are not supported. SMS/text messages not used in 
the period of performance will not carry over to the following year.

Item 18 
Attachment 3

355



Suisun City, CA

Order #: Q-166074
Prepared:  01/24/2022

Page 6 of 7

Solution Description

Communications Cloud - Setup 
and Configuration

The Cloud is a Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) solution that enables 
government organizations to connect with more people. By leveraging the 
Cloud, the client will be able to utilize a number of different outreach 
mediums, including email, SMS/text messages, RSS feeds, and social media 
integration to connect with its target audiences. The Cloud setup and 
configuration includes:

• The implementation consultant will be assigned to Recipient during 
the setup process for up to 90 days

• Unlimited access to Web-based recorded trainings and online help 
for administrations on the following topics: standard Messaging, the 
GovDelivery Network, Automation, Mobile and Analytics

• Up to 2 Web-hosted training sessions that must be used within 180 
days of Kickoff

• Up to 5 hours of message template and integration development 
that must be used within 90 days of Kickoff

Communications Cloud - 
Online Training

Provides a balance of Product knowledge and industry best practices to a 
specific audience. Sessions are delivered by product experts via 
videoconferencing technology.

GRANICUS ADVANCED NETWORK AND SUBSCRIBER INFORMATION

• Granicus Communications Suite Subscriber Information. 
o Data provided by the Client and contact information gathered through the Client's own web 

properties or activities will remain the property of the Client ('Direct Subscriber'), including any 
and all personally identifiable information (PII). Granicus will not release the data without the 
express written permission of the Client, unless required by law.

o Granicus shall: (i) not disclose the Client's data except to any third parties as necessary to 
operate the Granicus Products and Services (provided that the Client hereby grants to 
Granicus a perpetual, non-cancelable, worldwide, non-exclusive license to utilize any data, on 
an anonymous or aggregate basis only, that arises from the use of the Granicus Products by 
the Client, whether disclosed on, subsequent to, or prior to the Effective Date, to improve the 
functionality of the Granicus Products and any other legitimate business purpose, including the 
right to sublicense such data to third parties, subject to all legal restrictions regarding the use 
and disclosure of such information).

• Data obtained through the Granicus Advanced Network.
o Granicus offers a SaaS product, known as the Communications Cloud, that offers Direct 

Subscribers recommendations to subscribe to other Granicus Client's digital communication 
(the 'Advanced Network'). When a Direct Subscriber signs up through one of the 
recommendations of the Advanced Network, that subscriber is a 'Network Subscriber' to the 
agency it subscribed to through the Advanced Network.

Item 18 
Attachment 3

356



Suisun City, CA

Order #: Q-166074
Prepared:  01/24/2022

Page 7 of 7

o Network Subscribers are available for use while the Client is under an active subscription with 
Granicus. Network Subscribers will not transfer to the Client upon termination of any Granicus 
Order, SOW, or Exhibit. The Client shall not use or transfer any of the Network Subscribers after 
termination of its Order, SOW, or Exhibit placed under this agreement. All information related to 
Network Subscribers must be destroyed by the Client within 15 calendar days of the Order, 
SOW, or Exhibit placed under this agreement terminating.

o Opt-In. During the last 10 calendar days of the Client's subscription, the Client may send an opt-
in email to Network Subscribers that shall include an explanation of the Client's relationship with 
Granicus terminating and that the Network Subscribers may visit the Client's website to 
subscribe to further updates from the Client in the future. Any Network Subscriber that does not 
opt-in will not be transferred with the subscriber list provided to the Client upon termination.

UPDATES TO SHARED SHORT CODES FOR SMS/TEXT MESSAGING (US CLIENTS 
ONLY):

• Granicus will be migrating all clients with SMS/Text Messaging Solutions using a shared short code 
option to a unique standard toll-free number within the United States (International numbers not 
supported). Short Codes are recommended for Text-to-Subscribe functionalities, if enabled where 
available, for an additional fee. 

• Client must have explicit opt-in for all destinations sent to and adhere to all CTIA guidelines for the 
duration of its use.

Item 18 
Attachment 3

357



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

358



1

OpenCities & 
GovDelivery
City Council Meeting: February 15, 2022

OpenCities: Website Upgrade

 To create a beautiful, customer-focused website that
makes it easy for people to find what they need.

 Empowers staff with an intranet that helps them better
serve themselves and their community.

Code-free, drag and drop approach to digitalize every
stage of your customer journey.

 Software as a Service (SaaS) platform that powers
millions of resident-government interactions.

1

2

Item 18 
Attachment 4

359



2

GovDelivery: Communication Strategy

 Email, Social & Text Messaging Solutions
 Improve citizen engagement
Grow your audience by 250%
 Ensure your messages are received
 Spend less on marketing & lighten your workload

Implementation

 Simple, population-based subscription model, and
very short setup time.

 Empowers local governments of every size to transform
their customer experience.

3

4

Item 18 
Attachment 4

360



3

Timeline: 5-7 Months

 Phase 1: Kick-off, Discovery, and Data Analysis
 Phase 2: Design, Configuration, and Content Migration
 Phase 3: Training
 Phase 4: Content Creation Review and Beta Launch
 Phase 5: Launch and Evolve

Pricing: One-Time

5

6

Item 18 
Attachment 4

361



4

Pricing: First Year

Questions/Comments

 Enjoy the demonstration provided by Granicus!

7

8

Item 18 
Attachment 4

362


	5:30 pm - Agenda Special Closed Session Meeting
	6:30 pm - Regular Meeting Agenda
	Item 3 - Teleconference Meeting Procedures
	Item 4 - Rural Recreation Tourism Program Grant Funds
	Item 5 - Marina Dock Box Replacement Project
	Item 6 -Medic Ambulance Service Billing Services for First Responder Fee
	Item 7 - Purchase Agreement with Golden State Fire Apparatus for a Skeeter Brush Truck LLC Type 5 Wildland Engine
	Item 8 - List of Projects for FY 2022-23 Funded by SB 1
	Item 9 - Establishing List of Qualified Environmentl Consultants for Development Projects and Capital Improvement Projects
	Item 10 - Purchase and Implementation of Tyler Technologies System Software
	Item 11 - Purchase Two Information Technology Servers
	Item 12 - Amending the Council Norms and Procedures Manual
	Item 13 - Investment Report Quater Ending December 31, 2021
	Item 14 - Minutes February 1, 2022
	Item 16 - Placing Liens for Unpaid Waste Collection Service Charges
	Item 17 - Implement Change to Fairfield and Suisu Transit Fixed Route Services
	Item 18 - First Amendment to Granicus Service Agreement



